State Of California Retiree Health Benefits Program GASB Nos. 74 and 75 Actuarial Valuation Report As of June 30, 2019





August 28, 2020

The Honorable Betty T. Yee California State Controller 300 Capitol Mall, Suite 1850 Sacramento, California 95814

Dear Controller Yee:

Submitted in this report are the results of our actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2019, of the liabilities associated with Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB), including retiree healthcare benefits, provided to statewide employees through the programs sponsored by the State of California as administered by the California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS) and the California Department of Human Resource (CalHR). This report was prepared at the request of the State Controller's Office (SCO) for the purpose of satisfying the State of California's financial reporting requirements.

The actuarial calculations were prepared for purposes of complying with the requirements of Statements No. 74 and 75 of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The calculations reported herein have been made on a basis consistent with our understanding of these accounting standards. This report also provides actuarial funding costs assuming a full-funding policy and a full-funding interest rate of 6.75 percent.

Determinations of the liability associated with the benefits described in this report for purposes other than those stated may produce significantly different results. This report may be provided to parties other than the SCO only in its entirety and only with the permission of the SCO. GRS is not responsible for unauthorized use of this report.

The actuarial valuation report provides the following information:

- An actuarial valuation of plan liabilities as of June 30, 2019, using census data as of June 30, 2019;
- A reconciliation of Total OPEB Liability from June 30, 2018, to June 30, 2019;
- The development of OPEB expense for the State's fiscal year end June 30, 2020, using a measurement date of June 30, 2019;
- The deferred inflows and outflows applicable to year end June 30, 2019;
- Disclosure of certain Required Supplementary Information such as the impact of a percentage point change on the discount rate or the ultimate healthcare trend rate;
- Support of the discount rate used to develop the Total OPEB Liability; and
- Development of the Actuarially Determined Contribution, actuarial accrued liability and normal cost assuming a full-funding interest rate of 6.75 percent.

The Honorable Betty T. Yee California State Controller Page 2

The actuarial valuation was based on information furnished by the SCO, CalPERS, and CalHR concerning retiree healthcare benefits, members' census data, and financial data. Data was reviewed for reasonableness and internal consistency but was not audited. We are not responsible for the accuracy or completeness of the information received to produce this actuarial valuation. OPEB-related actuarial valuation assumptions are based on an Experience Review Study for the period from July 1, 2014, to June 30, 2019. Pension-related actuarial valuation assumptions are based on the 2019 actuarial valuations of CalPERS statewide pension plans.

To the best of our knowledge, the information contained in this report is accurate and fairly presents the actuarial position of the Retiree Healthcare Benefit Program sponsored by the State of California as of June 30, 2019. All calculations have been made in conformity with generally accepted actuarial principles and practices, with the Actuarial Standards of Practice issued by the Actuarial Standards Board and with applicable statutes.

Future actuarial measurements may differ significantly from the current measurements presented in this report due to such factors as the following: plan experience differing from that anticipated by the economic or demographic assumptions; changes in economic or demographic assumptions; increases or decreases expected as part of the natural operation of the methodology used for these measurements (such as the end of an amortization period or additional cost or contribution requirements based on the plan's funded status); and changes in plan provisions or applicable law.

This report should not be relied on for any purpose other than the purpose stated.

The signing actuaries are independent of the plan sponsor.

Alex Rivera, James E. Pranschke, and Lance J. Weiss are Members of the American Academy of Actuaries and meet the Qualification Standards of the American Academy of Actuaries to render the actuarial opinions herein.

Respectfully submitted,

Gabriel, Roeder, Smith & Company

Alex Rivera, FSA, EA, MAAA, FCA Senior Consultant

Lance J. Weiss, EA, MAAA, FCA Senior Consultant



James E. Pranschke, FSA, MAAA, FCA Senior Healthcare Consultant



Table of Contents

Section	Page Number	
		TRANSMITTAL LETTER
	1	Executive Summary
Α	8	CURRENT OVERVIEW
В	18	SUMMARY OF ACTUARIAL VALUATION RESULTS
С	24	SUMMARY OF CURRENT SUBSTANTIVE PLAN PROVISIONS
D	46	SUMMARY OF THE PARTICIPANT DATA
E	57	SUMMARY OF ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS AND METHODS
F	68	Pension-Related Assumptions
APPENDIX A	91	GLOSSARY



i

Table of Contents

	PAGE	
SECTION	NUMBER	
APPENDIX B		INDIVIDUAL ACTUARIAL VALUATION RESULTS
	95	ATTORNEYS AND HEARING OFFICERS (BU 2)
	101	HIGHWAY PATROL (BU 5)
	107	CORRECTIONS (BU 6)
	113	PROTECTIVE SERVICES AND PUBLIC SAFETY (BU 7)
	119	FIREFIGHTERS (BU 8)
	125	PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERS (BU 9)
	131	PROFESSIONAL SCIENTIFIC (BU 10)
	137	CRAFT AND MAINTENANCE (BU 12)
	143	STATIONARY ENGINEERS (BU 13)
	149	PHYSICIANS, DENTISTS, AND PODIATRISTS(BU 16)
	155	Psychiatric Technicians (BU 18)
	161	HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES/PROFESSIONAL (BU 19)
	167	CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY
	173	JUDICIAL BRANCH
	179	EXEMPT/EXCLUDED/EXECUTIVE
	185	Other
	191	SERVICE EMPLOYEES INTERNATIONAL UNION (SEIU)



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Introduction

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued accounting standards, Statements No. 43 and 45, relating to Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB). Under these statements, public employers sponsoring and subsidizing retiree healthcare benefit programs recognized the cost of such benefits on an accrual basis. GASB No. 45 first became effective for the State's fiscal year end June 30, 2008, and required:

- Recognition of the cumulative difference between the annual expense and employer contributions; i.e., Net OPEB Obligation, on the balance sheet.
- Disclosure of the unfunded actuarial liability off the balance sheet as part of Required Supplementary Information.
- Development of an actuarial liability and normal cost using a discount rate based on the funding policy and expected return on assets. Since the State financed retiree benefits primarily on a payas-you-go basis (PayGO), the discount rate assumption was set to 4.25 percent for the most recent GASB Statements No. 43 and 45 actuarial valuations.
- Development of annual expense, or Annual OPEB Cost, based on the normal cost plus a 30-year amortization of the unfunded actuarial liability, with certain adjustment for changes in the Net OPEB Obligation.

GASB Statements No. 43 and 45 were replaced by GASB Statements No. 74 and 75. GASB No. 74 first applied to plan reporting for the plan year end June 30, 2017. GASB No. 75 first applied to the State's reporting for the fiscal year end June 30, 2018. GASB No. 75 requires:

- Recognition of the unfunded actuarial liability; i.e., Net OPEB Liability, on the balance sheet.
- Development of an actuarial liability and normal cost using a blended discount rate which is based on a 20-year general obligation bond index if benefits are financed on a pay-as-you-go basis, and the expected return on trust assets if pre-funding assets are available to pay benefits.
- Development of an Annual OPEB Expense based on the normal cost plus an amortization of changes in the unfunded actuarial liability due to demographic experience, assumption changes, plan changes, and investment experience. Demographic experience and assumptions changes are amortized over the average remaining working lifetime of all participants, investment experience is amortized over five years, and plan changes are recognized immediately.

GASB Statement No. 75 is expected to increase the balance sheet liability because the entire unfunded actuarial liability is recognized on the balance sheet. In addition, the balance sheet liability is projected to be more volatile because the unfunded actuarial liability will be based on a blended discount rate that changes at each measurement date as the 20-year general obligation bond index changes.

The following section contains more background information on GASB Nos. 74 and 75.

GASB Statements No. 74 and 75

On June 2, 2015, the GASB released two new accounting standards applicable to OPEB. GASB Statement No. 74, *Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans*, addresses reporting by OPEB plans that administer benefits on behalf of governments. GASB Statement No. 75,



Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, addresses reporting by governments who provide OPEB to their employees and for governments who finance OPEB for employees of other governments.

Statement No. 74

Statement No. 74 replaces GASB Statement No. 43, *Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans*. Statement No. 74 addresses the financial reports of defined benefit OPEB plans that are administered through trusts that meet specified criteria.

The Statement requires a statement of fiduciary net position and a statement of changes in fiduciary net position. The Statement also requires more extensive note disclosures and Required Supplementary Information (RSI) relating to the measurement of the OPEB liabilities for which assets have been accumulated, including information about the annual money-weighted rates of return on plan investments.

Statement No. 74 is first effective for the plan year beginning July 1, 2016.

Statement No. 75

Statement No. 75 replaces GASB Statement No. 45. Statement No. 75 requires governments to recognize an OPEB liability on the face of the financial statements.

Statement No. 75 requires governments to present more extensive note disclosures and Required Supplementary Information (RSI) about their OPEB liabilities. Among the new note disclosures is a description of the effect on the reported OPEB liability of using a discount rate and a healthcare cost trend rate that are one percentage point higher and one percentage point lower than assumed by the government. Also, the Statement changes the way in which the discount rate for a Plan that is being prefunded is calculated. The new RSI includes a schedule showing the causes of increases and decreases in the Total OPEB liability and a schedule comparing a government's actual OPEB contributions to its contribution requirements.

Statement No. 75 is first effective for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2017.

Impact of New Accounting Standards

Under the new accounting standards, the annual expense and OPEB liability for plans funded on a pay-asyou-go basis will be more volatile because the discount rate used to develop the normal costs and actuarial accrued liability is based on a municipal bond index.

The municipal bond index rate is 3.62 percent as of June 30, 2018, and 3.13 percent as of June 30, 2019. Plan sponsors who partially pre-fund benefits must discount liabilities using a "blended discount rate" that reflects the municipal bond rate index if pre-funding assets are not available to pay benefits and the long-term expected return on assets if pre-funding assets are available to pay benefits.



Executive Summary

The State and employees in all bargaining units and Judicial employees have agreed to pre-fund retiree healthcare benefits. The State and all active members make contributions into separate accounts for each respective bargaining unit and Judicial employee group. Contributions are based on a percentage of pensionable compensation with the ultimate goal of contributing 100 percent of the actuarially determined normal cost shared equally between the State and employees. Pre-funding contributions and investment income are not available to pay plan benefits until the earlier of 2046 or the year that actuarial accrued liabilities are fully funded.

Plan assets are currently held in the California Employers' Retiree Benefit Trust (CERBT) and the State has adopted investment Strategy 1. Based on information provided on CalPERS' website, the CERBT Strategy 1 investment portfolio is expected to earn approximately 6.75 percent per year over the long term.

As of June 30, 2019, total assets in the CERBT accounts, for 12 bargaining units, Judicial employees, and Exempt/Excluded/Executive employees, are approximately \$1.58 billion.

The sponsor also makes pay-as-you-go contributions for benefits paid to current retirees and the portion of benefits paid to future retirees that are not pre-funded.

Plan Benefits

The State of California provides medical, prescription drug, and dental benefits (healthcare benefits) to retired statewide employees through a single-employer defined benefit plan. The State participates in the CERBT, an agent multiple-employer plan consisting of an aggregation of single-employer plans, including over 548 contributing employers.

The State also offers life insurance, long-term care and vision benefits to retirees; however, because these benefits are completely paid for by retirees, there is no GASB Statements No. 74 or 75 liability to the State on behalf of such benefits.

We are not aware of any other OPEB offered to statewide employees that are subsidized by the State of California, and subject to GASB Statements No. 74 and 75.

The State and employees in most bargaining units and Judicial employees have agreed to changes in benefits if an employee is hired after certain effective dates. The key benefit changes include:

- Reducing the "100/90" State contribution formula to "80/80";
- Grading the State contribution if the member has less than 25 years of Credited Service at retirement;
- For Medicare eligible members, eliminating the Medicare Part B subsidy; and
- For Medicare eligible members, developing the "80/80" State contribution based on the premium rates for only Medicare members.



Key Definitions

Following is a list of key terms used for the GASB Statements No. 74 and 75 actuarial valuations:

- 1) **Present value of future healthcare benefits** is the present value of benefits expected to be paid to current and future retirees.
- Actuarial Accrued Liability or Total OPEB Liability is the present value of future retiree healthcare benefits attributable to employee service earned in prior fiscal years using the Entry Age Normal Cost Method.
- 3) *Normal Cost* or *Service Cost* is the present value of future benefits earned by employees during the current fiscal year.
- 4) **Actuarially Determined Contribution or ADC** equals the Normal Cost plus an amortization of the difference between the Actuarial Accrued Liability and any assets available to pay benefits.
- 5) *Plan Fiduciary Net Position* equals the market value of plan assets available to pay plan benefits.
- 6) **Net OPEB Liability** equals the difference between **Total OPEB Liability** and the **Plan Fiduciary Net Position.** The **Net OPEB Liability** is recognized directly on the plan sponsor's balance sheet.
- 7) Annual OPEB Expense equals:
 - a. Service Cost
 - b. Plus administrative costs
 - c. Plus interest on the Total OPEB Liability
 - d. Less member contributions
 - e. Less expected investment income
 - f. Plus the change in Total OPEB Liability due to changes in benefit provisions
 - g. Plus the amortization of the change in *Total OPEB Liability* due to non-investment experience
 - h. Plus the amortization of the change in Total OPEB Liability due to changes in assumptions
 - i. Plus the amortization of investment gains and losses
 - j. Plus other changes in the Plan Fiduciary Net Position
- 8) Changes in **Total OPEB Liability** due to non-investment experience or change in assumptions are amortized on a straight-line basis using the expected future working years including members who are inactive or retired.
- 9) Investment gains and losses are amortized using a five-year straight line period.
- 10) Changes in *Total OPEB Liability* due to plan changes are recognized immediately as a component of the *Annual OPEB Expense*.
- 11) **Deferred Inflows or Outflows** are based on the changes in **Net OPEB Liability** due to demographic experience, investment experience, or changes in assumptions that have not yet been recognized as a component of the **Annual OPEB Expense**.
- 12) **Blended Discount Rate** is based on a long-term municipal bond rate if assets are not available to pay benefits and the portfolio's long-term expected return on assets if assets are available to pay benefits.
- 13) The Individual Entry Age Normal Cost Method spreads costs as a level percentage of payroll.
- 14) Under a *Closed Group* actuarial cost method, actuarial present values associated with future entrants are not considered.

Please note that the Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC) represents the annual employer contribution that along with member contributions and investment income is projected to fully fund the



Executive Summary

program over a reasonable period such as 30 years. The ADC is developed assuming the sponsor will: (i) make the targeted pre-funding contributions on a timely basis, (ii) contributions are deposited in an irrevocable qualified trust for the exclusive benefit of plan members, (iii) contributions in excess of the pay-as-you-go amount are invested in a diversified investment portfolio with a defined investment policy, and (iv) the discount rate used to develop the *Actuarial Accrued Liability* and *Normal Cost* recognizes the expected return of the entire portfolio.

The **Annual OPEB Expense** is used solely for accounting under GASB No. 75 and is not appropriate for developing the employer's pre-funding contribution amount such as the ADC. The **Annual OPEB Expense** is not a good proxy for the ADC because the GASB Statement No. 75 amortization and **Blended Discount Rate** requirements will produce too much volatility.

Based on the State's funding policy, we understand the goal is to make additional normal cost contributions in excess of the pay-as-you-go contributions, for each respective actuarial valuation group, such that the program is projected to be fully funded in approximately 30 years. As of June 30, 2019, 15 out of 17 membership groups or approximately 81 percent of the active covered members have entered into pre-funding arrangements with the State.

For GASB Statements No. 74 and 75 reporting purposes, if the membership group has not entered into a pre-funding arrangement with the State, we assumed a discount rate of 3.13 percent, which is equal to municipal bond rate at June 30, 2019. For membership groups with pre-funding arrangements, we assumed a blended discount reflecting the municipal bond rate of 3.13 percent if pre-funding assets are not available to pay benefits and 6.75 percent if pre-funding assets are available to pay benefits.

Other key assumptions such as healthcare inflation, projected healthcare claims, the likelihood an employee retires, elects healthcare coverage and survives after retirement will also have an impact on costs. The Current Overview section of the report provides more details on other actuarial valuation assumptions.



The following table shows key valuation results as of June 30, 2019, and June 30, 2018.

KEY VALUATION RESULTS (\$ IN 000'S)						
GASB No. 75		June 30, 2019		June 30, 2018		
Total OPER Liability	4	02 511 060	¢	86 460 220		
Total OPEB Liability Net Fiduciary Position	\$ \$	93,511,969 1,583,373	\$ \$	86,469,239 874,286		
Net OPEB Liability	\$	91,928,596	\$	85,594,953		
		51,520,350	Ŷ	03,334,333		
Service Cost	\$	3,158,693	\$	3,477,466		
Annual OPEB Expense	\$	3,726,301	\$	3,934,608		
Employer Contribution	\$	2,965,538	\$	2,534,168		
Total Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC)	\$	4,905,408	\$	4,672,787		

Basis of Actuarial Valuation

The preceding actuarial valuation results were based on:

- The provisions of GASB Statements No. 74 and 75.
- The provisions of Actuarial Standard of Practice No. 6, *Measuring Retiree Group Benefit Obligations*.
- Census information as of June 30, 2019, provided by the California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS) and the California Department of Human Resource (CalHR).
- Claims, enrollment data, and average costs provided by CalPERS and CalHR for the period from January 1, 2016, to May 31, 2019.
- Premium data through calendar year 2020, provided by CalPERS and CalHR.
- Employer Group Waiver Plan (EGWP) information provided by CalPERS.
- Medicare Advantage design and premium rate information provided by CalPERS.
- Plan information provided by CalPERS and CalHR.
- Demographic actuarial assumptions consistent with those that will be used in the 2019 actuarial valuations of the CalPERS statewide pension programs.
- Healthcare related actuarial valuation assumptions such as healthcare plan participation, coverage and continuance, aging factors, adjustments for disabled members, and adjustments for children of current retirees and survivors are based on the experience study for the period from July, 1, 2014, to June 30, 2018, first effective with the actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2019.
- Effective as of June 30, 2019, the full-funding discount rate and long-term expected return on assets was changed from 7.00 percent to 6.75 percent, the general inflation assumption was changed from 2.50 percent to 2.25 percent, and the wage inflation assumption was changed from 2.75 percent to 2.50 percent.



- Other healthcare, economic, and demographic assumptions such as the discount rate, healthcare inflation, healthcare claim costs, and healthcare plan participation are based on recommendations from Gabriel, Roeder, Smith & Company as approved by the SCO.
- Effective as of July 1, 2018, actuarial costs for members in the Service Employee International Union (bargaining units 1, 3, 4, 11, 14, 15, 17, 20, and 21) are based on one combined actuarial valuation group.
- Effective as of July 1, 2018, the actuarial valuation reflects a pre-funding policy for the Exempt, Excluded and Executive actuarial valuation group.
- Effective as of June 30, 2018, the basis used to allocate total pay-as-you-go employer contribution by actuarial valuation group was changed from an expected benefit payments to number of retirees.
- The latest developments in Federal healthcare reform.
- For purposes of developing the ADC, the Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL) is amortized over a 30-year closed period from June 30, 2017, as a level percent of pay.

The actuarial valuation was prepared under the supervision of Members of the American Academy of Actuaries who satisfy the Qualification Standards of the American Academy of Actuaries to render an actuarial opinion on the actuarial valuation of retiree healthcare benefits.

The remainder of the report is an integral component of the actuarial valuation and includes:

- An overview of the current GASB Statements No. 74 and 75 requirements in effect on June 30, 2019.
- The basis of the actuarial assumptions and methods used in this actuarial valuation.
- Development of the ADC by actuarial valuation group using a full-funding rate of 6.75 percent.
- GASB No. 74 information applicable to the plan's fiscal year end June 30, 2019.
- GASB No. 75 information applicable to the sponsor's fiscal year end June 30, 2020.
- Additional details on the census, plan provisions, assumptions and methods used to prepare the actuarial valuation.



SECTION A

CURRENT OVERVIEW

Summary of GASB Accounting Standards

Accounting Standard

For other postemployment benefit (OPEB) plans that are administered through trusts or equivalent arrangements, Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 74, "Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans other than Pension Plans," replaced the requirements of GASB Statement No. 43, "Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans." GASB Statement No. 74 establishes standards of financial reporting for separately issued financial reports of state and local government OPEB plans.

GASB Statement No. 75 replaced the requirements of Statements No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployments Benefits Other Than Pensions, as amended, and No. 57, OPEB Measurements by Agent Employers and Agent Multiple-Employer Plans, for OPEB.

GASB Statements No. 74 and 75 are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2016, and June 15, 2017, respectively.

The following discussion provides a summary of the information that is required to be disclosed under these accounting standards. A number of these disclosure items are provided in this report. However, certain non-actuarial information, such as notes regarding accounting policies and investments, is not included in this report. As a result, the plan sponsor will be responsible for preparing and disclosing the non-actuarial information needed to comply with these accounting standards.

Plan Financial Statements

GASB Statement No. 74 requires defined benefit OPEB plans which are administered as trusts or equivalent arrangements to present two financial statements: a statement of fiduciary net position and a statement of changes in fiduciary net position. The statement of fiduciary net position presents the assets and liabilities of the OPEB plan at the end of the OPEB plan's reporting period. The statement of changes in fiduciary net position, such as contributions and investment income, and deductions, such as benefit payments and expense, and net increase or decrease in the fiduciary net position.

GASB Statement No. 75 requires state and local government employers to recognize the Net OPEB Liability and the Annual OPEB Expense on their financial statements, and disclose deferred outflows and inflows for changes in Net OPEB Liability not recognized in the Annual OPEB Expense. The Net OPEB Liability is the difference between the Total OPEB Liability and the plan's fiduciary net position. In traditional actuarial terms, this is analogous to the actuarial accrued liability less the market value of assets.

The Annual OPEB Expense equals the Service Cost, less member contributions less the expected return on assets plus an amortization of changes in the Net OPEB liability due to demographic experience, investment performance, assumption changes, and plan changes.



The GASB Statement No. 74 information contained in this report is based on an actuarial valuation date of June 30, 2019, and a measurement date of June 30, 2019.

For GASB Statement No. 75 reporting purposes, the plan sponsor's financial reporting for fiscal year end June 30, 2020, will be based on a measurement date of June 30, 2019.

GASB Statement No. 75 requires that employer contributions made to the OPEB plan subsequent to the measurement date and before the end of the employer's reporting period should be reported as a deferred outflow of resources.

The information contained in this report does not incorporate any employer contributions made subsequent to the measurement date of June 30, 2019.

Notes to Financial Statements

GASB Statement No. 75 requires the notes of the employer's financial statements to disclose the annual OPEB expense, the OPEB plan's liabilities and assets, and deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to OPEB.

GASB Statement Nos. 74 and 75 require the notes of the financial statements for the Plan and Plan Sponsor to include certain additional information. The list of disclosure items should include:

- The name of the OPEB plan, the administrator of the OPEB plan, and the identification of whether the OPEB plan is a single-employer, agent, or cost-sharing OPEB plan;
- A description of the benefits provided by the plan;
- A brief description of changes in benefit terms or assumptions that affected the measurement of the total OPEB liability since the prior measurement date;
- The number of plan members by category and if the plan is closed;
- A description of the plan's funding policy, including member and employer contribution requirements;
- The OPEB plan's investment policies;
- The OPEB plan's fiduciary net position and the net OPEB liability;
- The impact to net OPEB liability of changing the discount rate by one percentage point;
- The impact to the net OPEB liability of changing the healthcare trend rate by one percentage point;
- Significant assumptions and methods used to calculate the total OPEB liability;
- Inputs to the discount rates; and
- Certain information about mortality assumptions and the dates of experience studies.

OPEB plans that are administered through trusts or equivalent arrangements are required to disclose additional information in accordance with GASB Statement No. 74. This information includes:

- The composition of the OPEB plan's Board and the authority under which benefit terms may be amended;
- A description of how fair value is determined;



- Information regarding certain reserves and investments, including concentrations of investments greater than or equal to 5 percent, receivables, and insurance contracts excluded from plan assets; and
- Annual money-weighted rate of return.

Required Supplementary Information

GASB Statement No. 74 requires a 10-year fiscal history of:

- Sources of changes in the net OPEB liability;
- Information about the components of the net OPEB liability and related ratios, including the OPEB plan's fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB liability, and the net OPEB liability as a percent of covered-employee payroll;
- Comparison of the actual employer contributions to the actuarially determined contributions, if applicable, based on the plan's funding policy; and
- For plans with an actuarially determined contribution, the schedule covering each of the 10 most recent fiscal years of the actuarially determined contribution, contributions to the OPEB plan, and related ratios.

Frequency and Timing of the Actuarial Valuation

An actuarial valuation to determine the total OPEB liability is required to be performed at least once every two years. For the employer's financial reporting purposes, the net OPEB liability and OPEB expense should be measured as of the employer's "measurement date," which may not be earlier than the employer's prior fiscal year end-date. If the actuarial valuation used to determine the total OPEB liability is not calculated as of the measurement date, the total OPEB liability is required to be rolled forward from the actuarial valuation date to the measurement date.

Single Discount Rate

Projected benefit payments are required to be discounted to their actuarial present values using a Single Discount Rate that reflects (1) a long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments (to the extent that the plan's fiduciary net position is projected to be sufficient to pay benefits), and (2) a tax-exempt municipal bond rate based on an index of 20-year general obligation bonds with an average AA credit rating as of the measurement date (to the extent that the contributions for use with the long-term expected rate of return are not met).

The tax-exempt municipal bond rate was based on Fidelity's "20-Year Municipal GO AA Index" as of each measurement date. This index represents fixed-income municipal bonds with 20 years to maturity and is constructed using option-adjusted analytics for a diverse group of 10,000 tax-exempt securities. The Fidelity Index rates are 3.62 percent as of June 30, 2018, and 3.13 percent as of June 30, 2019.

Actuarial Assumptions

The actuarial assumptions used to value the actuarial liabilities are outlined in detail in Sections E and F. The actuarial assumptions include healthcare related assumptions such as: trend rates, participation



rates, and per capita claim costs, and pension related assumptions such as: termination rates, disability rates, retirement rates, and mortality rates.

The healthcare related assumptions are based on an Experience Review for the period July 1, 2014, to June 30, 2018, performed by GRS and were first adopted beginning with the June 30, 2019, actuarial valuation. The pension related assumptions are based on an Experience Review performed by CalPERS and were first adopted beginning with the June 30, 2018, actuarial valuation.

Following is a summary of the key changes in assumptions:

- **Full-funding discount rate** Decrease the full-funding discount rate from 7.00 percent to 6.75 percent. We recommend that full-funding policy discount rates be reviewed each year in relation to the rate expected to be earned under Strategy 1 as disclosed by CERBT.
- **General inflation and wage inflation** Decrease the price inflation assumption from 2.50 percent to 2.25 percent and decrease the wage inflation assumption from 2.75 percent to 2.50 percent.
- **Health cost and premium increases** Continue the use of a select and ultimate trend assumption and the use of the most recent premium information available at the time of the valuation.
- Impact of the excise tax Increase the excise tax trend adjustment from 0.14 percent to 0.18 percent.
- Participation election percentage Update these assumptions based on the experience of the plan.
- **Percentage of disabled members eligible for Medicare benefits** Update this assumption based on the experience of the plan.
- **Coverage and continuance assumptions** Maintain the current assumption.
- Aging factors Update these factors based on more recent gross claims data.
- Aged per capita claim cost based on updated aging factors medical and prescription Update the per capita claims costs based on the recommended aging factors.
- Adjustments for disabled members Slightly lower the load applied to the expected claims for disabled members.
- Adjustments for children of current retirees and survivors Update the load applied to the expected claims to account for children of current retirees and survivors.
- Per capita claim cost dental Maintain the current assumption.
- Medicare Part B premiums Maintain the current assumption.
- **Employer Group Waiver Plan** Decrease the EGWP trend adjustment factors applied to Medicare claims.
- Data processing assumptions Continue to review the data each year to determine whether or not certain assumptions need to be made and whether or not those assumptions will have a material impact on the valuation.



Future Uncertainty or Risk

Future results may differ from those anticipated in this actuarial valuation. Reasons include, but are not limited to:

- Claims experience differing from expected;
- Medical trend experience differing from expected;
- Changes in the healthcare plan designs offered to active and retired members;
- Changes in healthcare related costs due to recent experience; and
- Participant behavior differing from expected; e.g.,
 - o Elections at retirement;
 - o One-person versus two-person coverage elections; and
 - Timing of retirement or termination.

Benefits Valued

The benefit provisions that were valued are described in Section C. The actuarial valuation is required to be performed on the current benefit terms and existing legal agreements. Consideration is to be given to the written plan document as well as other communications between the employer and plan members and an established pattern of practice for cost sharing. The summary of major plan provisions is designed to outline principal plan benefits.



Assumptions and Methods Impacting the Actuarial Valuation

Healthcare Related Assumption Changes

GRS performed a review of the healthcare related actuarial assumptions used to value the actuarial liabilities associated with the retiree healthcare benefits provided to statewide employees through the programs sponsored by the State of California as administered by CalPERS and CalHR. The primary purpose of the study was to determine the continued appropriateness of certain healthcare related actuarial assumptions by comparing actual experience to expected experience. The study was based on healthcare census information; claims experience data and actuarial valuations for the period from July 1, 2014, to June 30, 2018. The actuarial assumptions determined by this study were first used for the GASB Statements No. 67 and 68 actuarial valuations effective as of June 30, 2019. For the actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2019, assumptions, including per capita healthcare cost and healthcare trend rates, were updated based on experience through June 30, 2019.

Discount Rate Assumption

The discount rate assumption depends on the purposes of the measurement.

The sponsor's pre-funding policy provides for a 50 percent cost sharing of the normal cost, between active members and the plan sponsor, graded over several years since the adoption of the pre-funding policy. Pre-funding normal cost contributions are deposited into the CERBT and are expected to earn 6.75 percent per year. Pre-funding normal costs and investment income are not available to pay benefits until the earlier of 2046 or the year that the total actuarial liability is fully funded. The sponsor finances benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis prior to the year that pre-funding assets are available to pay benefits. For purposes of developing the full-funding normal cost, actuarial liability and actuarially determined contribution, a discount rate of 6.75 percent was used.

The discount rate used to develop the GASB Nos. 74 and 75 Total OPEB Liability and Service Cost was based on a blended rate for each respective actuarial valuation group comprised of 3.13 percent if pre-funding assets are not available to pay benefits and 6.75 percent if pre-funding assets are available to pay benefits.

Healthcare Trend Assumptions

One of the key assumptions influencing costs is the assumed growth or trend in healthcare costs. The healthcare trend assumption for OPEB actuarial valuations spans over the lifetime of a covered retiree, which could extend to over 30 years. This is in contrast to the short-term healthcare inflation used to develop premiums for the next fiscal year. This long-term healthcare assumption is by far the most difficult to set.

Actuaries generally compare the growth in general inflation, wages, healthcare costs, and other goods and services when setting the healthcare trend assumption. For example, the actuary may compare the historical experience of national healthcare expenditures to the Gross Domestic Product (GDP). Healthcare inflation may be expressed as general inflation plus a component for healthcare costs.



Current Overview

The long-term healthcare trend is generally lower than the short-term healthcare trend used to update premiums and expected claims in the following fiscal year because such short-term increases are generally not sustainable in the long term. That is, if healthcare benefit costs are assumed to increase by 9.00 percent per year in the long term while the cost for other goods and services increase at a rate less than 3.00 percent per year, then in the long run the general economy would include a disproportionate share of expenditures allocated to healthcare benefits. Consequently, long-term retiree healthcare actuarial models generally assume that the initial trend rate will eventually grade down to a more sustainable level. For this valuation, the 2020 trend rates are based on actual premium increases from calendar 2019 to 2020. Based on a review of supporting documentation provided by CaIPERS and a review of various publically available trend studies, the 2020 trend rate for the PPO per capita claims costs is assumed to be 4.00 percent for Pre-Medicare costs and 4.00 percent for Pre-Medicare and Post-Medicare costs, decreasing each year over the next six years to a rate of 4.50 percent, remains at 4.50 percent for ten years until the ultimate rate of 4.25 percent is reached in 2037.

Adjustments to Estimate the Potential Impact of the Employer Group Waiver Plan (EGWP)

Effective January 1, 2013, prescription benefits for certain Medicare eligible members are provided through an Employer Group Waiver Plan (EGWP) with a "Wrap" feature. The EGWP design is based on a federally approved drug formulary and plan design. A sponsor may provide additional benefits through a supplementary "Wrap" plan that ensures members will receive benefits that are relatively equal to those of the plan that the sponsor currently offers. In most instances, the current plan benefit design can be replicated through the combination of an EGWP-Wrap plan at reduced costs. The key components which are expected to reduce costs include:

- Seventy-five percent discount on brand name drugs while member is in the "donut hole" coverage gap. Under a standard or model Medicare Part D program, a member is responsible for 100 percent of the prescription costs from the initial coverage limit (\$3,820 for 2019) to the catastrophic coverage limit (\$7,654 for 2019). This coverage gap is also known as the "donut hole." The discount is also applied to the member's true out of pocket costs which allows federal catastrophic coverage to be reached sooner.
- 2) The "donut hole" coverage gap is reduced ratably and completely eliminated by 2019.
- 3) As the coverage gap diminishes, the sponsor's "Wrap" supplemental benefits within the "donut hole" decreases.
- 4) Federal prescription drug subsidies must be used to reduce the cost of providing benefits to Medicare eligible members, resulting in lower premium rates. This feature allows the sponsor to reflect certain EGWP-Wrap savings in the OPEB actuarial valuation.

Based on updated data from CalPERS, the remaining savings as of June 30, 2019, attributable to the EGWP-Wrap design feature is approximately 20 percent of average costs for PERSCare, 24 percent of average costs for PERS Choice, and 15 percent for HMO plans. In our actuarial valuation, EGWP based savings are assumed to gradually wear away over the next seven years to an ultimate savings level of 14 percent of average costs for PERS Choice, and 10 percent of average costs for HMO plans.



Current Overview

Adjustments to Estimate the Impact of Excise Tax under Healthcare Reform

Beginning in 2022, the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act (PPACA) imposes a 40 percent excise tax on healthcare plan costs over certain statutory limits. The annual statutory limits depend on the age and coverage tier as follows:

	Age less than 55 or greater than 64	Age greater than 54 or less than 65
Single person coverage	\$10,200	\$11,850
All other coverage types	\$27,500	\$30,950

Before the tax takes effect, the preceding statutory limits are expected to be updated for inflation. The statutory limits do not recognize differences due to region, health status of the group, or plan design. Healthcare plan costs may be blended among active members, pre-Medicare retirees, and Medicare retirees if members are covered by the same plan, and similar benefits are provided. Healthcare plan costs subject to the excise tax include medical, prescription and employer Health Savings Accounts and Health Reimbursement Accounts.

For the actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2019, the impact of the excise tax was estimated by:

- 1) Aggregating average costs by the PPO plans and the HMO plans;
- 2) Projecting average plan costs based on the assumed actuarial valuation trend rate;
- 3) Projecting the statutory limits assuming an inflation rate of 3.0 percent;
- 4) Estimating the projected excise tax based on the projected average costs and statutory limits;
- 5) Assuming the plan sponsor would subsidize the excise tax and no additional costs would be passed to plan members; and
- 6) Developing an adjusted trend rate, applied to the explicit costs, to approximate the impact of the additional excise tax costs.

Based on the preceding method, the ultimate trend rate for future retirees was increased by an additional 0.18 of a percentage point to 4.68 percent on and after plan year end 2023 through 2036 and 4.43 percent beginning in 2037 and thereafter.

The H.R. 1865, *Further Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2020,* enacted to fund the federal government through fiscal year 2020 included, among other provisions, a repeal of excise taxes on three key revenue provisions affecting health care plans: 1.) High Cost Employer-Sponsored Health Coverage (also known as the "Cadillac Tax"), 2.) the Medical Device Excise Tax, and 3.) the annual Health Insurance Providers fee (also known as the "Health Insurance Tax").

The Cadillac Tax was originally scheduled to take effect for 2018. It was delayed twice, most recently until 2022, and is now permanently repealed. The repeal is effective for taxable years beginning after December 31, 2019, and will be removed in the June 30, 2020, actuarial valuation.



Participation Assumption

Another key assumption influencing costs is the participation assumption, or the likelihood that an active member will retire and select healthcare coverage. This assumption generally depends on the subsidy provided by the employer. That is, the higher the level of employer benefits, and the lower the level of retiree-paid premium, the higher the likelihood the retired member will select healthcare coverage. For this actuarial valuation, we have defined participation rates that depend on the portion of the total premium paid by the State. On average, approximately 95 percent of all eligible retirees elect healthcare coverage.

Other Demographic Assumptions

Demographic assumptions are used to determine the likelihood an active member will retire, survive, and receive benefits. Assumptions relating to termination, disability, retirement, and mortality were based on the same assumptions used by CalPERS to develop costs for pension benefits. We reviewed the CalPERS assumptions for reasonableness and consistency.

Retiree Per Capita Claim Costs and the Implicit Rate Subsidy

A retiree healthcare actuarial valuation depends on the retired member's expected healthcare claim at a given age indexed for healthcare inflation. Average healthcare costs are generally developed using the experience of the group, and are adjusted for the retired member's age based on standard morbidity tables or group specific morbidity for very large groups.

The employer's net cost for a given member in a given year equals the expected age-adjusted annual claims cost less the member's annual contribution. Retired members not eligible for Medicare who are charged a premium based on the experience of both active and retired members will be receiving a subsidy because the average healthcare costs of retired members is generally higher than the blended average costs of a group comprised of both active and retired members. This subsidy is referred to as the *implicit rate subsidy*, and is a major contributor to the OPEB costs. The portion of the blended average costs paid by the employer is referred to as the *explicit rate subsidy*, and also directly impacts OPEB costs.

The employer's estimated explicit and implicit costs are shown on page 21 of the actuarial valuation report and are based on first year projected costs generated from the actuarial valuation. For purposes of financial reporting, estimated explicit and implicit costs will be updated based on actual premium and claim experience. These estimates could change primarily due to: (i) differences between expected and actual number of non-Medicare retirees and dependents, (ii) changes in age and gender profile of non-Medicare retiree and dependents , (iii) differences between expected and actual trend during the year on premiums and claims, (iv) migration between non-Medicare plans, and (v) updates to the age and gender factors.

Actuarial Cost Method

Actuarial valuation results, used for accounting purposes, such as the Total OPEB Liability and Service Cost were developed using the Entry Age Normal Actuarial Cost Method and the blended discount rates as required by GASB Statements No. 74 and 75. The Normal Cost and Actuarial Accrued Liability for purpose



of calculating the Actuarially Determined Contribution were developed using the Entry Age Normal Actuarial Cost Method and a full-funding discount rate of 6.75 percent.

Closed Versus Open Group Valuation

The development of the Actuarially Determined Contribution and the measurement of the Actuarial Accrued Liability and Total OPEB Liability were based on a "closed group" valuation. A closed group valuation produces assets, liabilities, and costs for the current and future fiscal years without considering how future new hires may influence costs. An open group valuation considers the impact of future new hires and is a useful tool to evaluate the impact of future potential changes in demographics, benefit design, assumptions, funding policies, or the budgetary impact of the OPEB programs.

The following section contains a reconciliation of the actuarial accrued liability since the last actuarial valuation and a summary of key valuation results as of June 30, 2019.



SECTION B

SUMMARY OF ACTUARIAL VALUATION RESULTS

Reconciliation of the Total OPEB Liability

The table on the following page shows a reconciliation of the total OPEB liability from June 30, 2018, to June 30, 2019, based on the GASB Statements No. 74 and 75.

The total OPEB liability increased from \$86.47 billion as of June 30, 2018, to \$93.51 billion as of June 30, 2019. If the plan's assumptions had been exactly realized during the year and no assumption changes were made, the total OPEB liability would have increased to \$90.79 billion as of June 30, 2019. The key factors contributing to the unexpected increase in total OPEB liability of \$2.72 billion include:

- The consolidation of the SEIU bargaining units increased the total OPEB liability by \$0.09 billion.
- Demographic experience increased the expected actuarial liabilities by 0.7 percent or \$0.59 billion. Examples of demographic experience losses include: more members retiring than assumed, members retiring earlier than assumed and members living longer than assumed. During the year, the number of retirees increased by 2.7 percent from 187,622 at June 30, 2018, to 192,701 at June 30, 2019, and the number of active members increased by 1.6 percent from 272,078 to 276,317, which are key reasons for the demographic loss.
- During the year, favorable healthcare claims experience and plan design changes decreased the expected total OPEB liability by approximately 2.2 percent or \$1.99 billion. This change in total OPEB liability is mainly driven by the relationship between the assumed trend rate used to project average member claims cost in 2019 (used in last year's actuarial valuation) and the actual trend rate for 2019 (used to update average per member claim costs). During plan year end June 30, 2019, average per member claim costs were lower than assumed.
- The healthcare related assumptions were updated based on the 2018 Experience Review for the Years July 1, 2014, to June 30, 2018, conducted by GRS which includes rates of decrement, salary increase rates, and economic assumptions. These assumption changes increased expected total OPEB liability by 0.4 percent or \$0.36 billion.
- Each year, as part of the actuarial valuation process, the trend rates are evaluated and updated based on a review of supporting documentation provided by CalPERS and a review of various publicly available trend studies. We continue to use a select and ultimate trend assumption and the most recent premium information available at the time of the actuarial valuation. Trend rates for the June 30, 2019, actuarial valuation were reviewed and updated since the last actuarial valuation. The trend rates are assumed to begin in plan year 2021 at 7.50 percent for pre-Medicare and post-Medicare coverage and gradually decrease to 4.50 percent in 2036 and then decrease to an ultimate rate of 4.25 percent beginning in 2037. This assumption change decreased expected total OPEB liability by approximately 2.3 percent or \$2.07 billion.
- Changing the GASB Statements No. 74 and 75 blended discount rate as of June 30, 2018, which
 ranged from 3.62 percent to 4.28 percent, to the blended discount rate as of June 30, 2019, which
 ranges from 3.13 percent to 3.85 percent, increased the total OPEB liability by 6.6 percent or
 \$5.73 billion.



The table below shows the reconciliation of the total OPEB liability.

CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLOYEES OPEB ACTUARIAL VALUATION RESULTS AS OF JUNE 30, 2019 (\$ in '000s) BASED on GASB Statements No. 74 and 75 Discount Rate (GAIN)/LOSS ANALYSIS						
Total OPEB Liability as of June 30, 2018	\$	86,469,239				
Service Cost for 18/19		3,158,693				
Actual Benefit Payments		(2,345,512)				
Interest		3,510,048				
Expected Total OPEB Liability as of June 30, 2019	\$	90,792,468				
(Gain)/Loss Items						
Consolidation of SEIU Group	\$	88,691				
Demographic Experience		593,882				
Healthcare Claims Experience		(1,987,308)				
Change in Healthcare Related Assumptions due to 2018 Experience Review		361,213				
Change in Healthcare Related Assumptions		(2,068,392)				
Change in GASB 74/75 Blended Discount Rate		5,731,415				
Total	\$	2,719,501				
Total OPEB Liability as of June 30, 2019	\$	93,511,969				

The following table shows key actuarial valuation results by group.



JUNE 30, 2019 ACTUARIAL VALUATION SUMMARY (\$ IN 000's)												
		FY 2019		Ful	Full-funding Discount Rate			GASB No. 74 and 75				
						Net	Blended		Total	Net	Annual	
	Assets	PAYGO	Pre-Fund	Normal	Actuarial	Employer	Discount	Service	OPEB	OPEB	OPEB	
Actuarial Valuation Group	6/30/2019	Contributions	Contributions	Cost	Liability	ADC	Rate	Cost	Liability	Liability	Expense	
Attorneys and Hearing Officers (BU2)	33,800	30,621	13.778	21,055	826,198	59,645	3.711%	44.164	1,254,842	1,221,042	51,436	
Highway Patrol (BU5)	416,319	78,501	61,510	67,142	3,250,193	229,183	3.851%	140,545	5,181,801	4,765,482	258,649	
Corrections (BU6)	579,048	294,213	213,184	237,663	10,082,913	· ·	3.726%	503,829	15,983,539	15,404,491	599,119	
Protective Services and Public Safety (BU7)	72,366	73,353	26,632	47,137	2,036,875	144,709	3.654%	101,132	3,198,846	3,126,480	113,092	
Firefighters (BU8)	42,232	40,965	20,032	42,921	1,544,164	114,928	3.776%	95,936	2,464,725	2,422,493	136,182	
Professional Engineers (BU9)	84,788	84,522	26,622	57,163	2,788,968	194,353	3.586%	127,060	4,363,691	4,278,903	116,551	
Professional Scientific (BU10)	23,658	23,092	8,886	16,753	673,844	48,611	3.690%	35,836	1,043,568	1,019,910	45,881	
Craft and Maintenance (BU12)	63,867	120,833	32,536	60,360	2,757,778	· ·	3.604%	129,311	4,220,828		120,217	
		· ·	· · ·			· ·		,		4,156,961	,	
Stationary Engineers (BU13)	5,437	10,957	3,584	5,409	274,898	19,190	3.516%	11,434	424,157	418,720	8,111	
Physicians, Dentists, and Podiatrists (BU16)	26,676	18,674	10,962	10,528	373,439		3.772%	19,868	536,023	509,347	12,277	
Psychiatric Technicians (BU18)	26,827	60,499	17,651	34,393	1,349,708		3.705%	75,099	2,113,325	2,086,498	88,212	
Health and Social Services/Professional (BU19)	29,723	42,720	19,360	31,247	1,000,740		3.757%	63,722	1,514,612	1,484,889	72,744	
California State University	-	381,303	-	266,289	8,858,804	786,426	3.130%	603,049	14,498,545	14,498,545	714,217	
Judicial Branch	20,165	11,534	7,868	8,101	333,408	22,423	3.724%	16,635	505,429	485,264	18,153	
Exempt/Excluded/Executive	6,855	51,792	6 <i>,</i> 486	26,855	1,310,455	96,636	3.568%	64,676	2,049,430	2,042,575	64,655	
Other	-	165,439	-	20,836	1,754,067	191,394	3.130%	48,033	2,561,252	2,561,252	44,349	
Service Employees International Union (SEIU)	151,612	856,494	143,424	488,072	20,213,708	1,543,231	3.604%	1,078,364	31,597,356	31,445,744	1,262,456	
Total	\$ 1,583,373	\$ 2,345,512	\$ 620,026	\$ 1,441,924	\$ 59,430,160	\$ 4,526,496		\$ 3,158,693	\$ 93,511,969	\$ 91,928,596	\$ 3,726,301	

Detailed actuarial valuation results by group are provided in Appendix B of this report.



Actuarial Valuation Results

CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLOYEES POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS PROGRAM FULL-FUNDING ACTUARIAL VALUATION (\$ IN 000'S) 7.00% AT JULY 1, 2018 AND 6.75% AT JULY 1, 2019 TOTAL OF ALL ACTUARIAL VALUATION GROUPS

		July 1, 2018		July 1, 2019
Number of Participants Covered				
Active Participants		272,078		276,317
Retired Participants ^a		187,622		192,701
Total Participants		459,700		469,018
Actuarial Present Value of Projected Benefits				
Active Participants	\$	36,896,456	\$	37,370,952
Retired Participants		32,546,122		35,546,649
Total Participants	\$	69,442,578	\$	72,917,601
Actuarial Accrued Liability				
Active Participants	\$	23,577,036	\$	23,883,511
Retired Participants		32,546,122		35,546,649
Total Participants	\$	56,123,158	\$	59,430,160
Actuarial Value of Assets	\$	874,286	\$	1,583,373
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability	\$	55,248,872	\$	57,846,787
Net Employer ADC for FYE		June 30, 2019		June 30, 2020
Normal Cost	\$	1,434,214	\$	1,441,924
Administrative Expenses		5,688		6,252
Amortization of UAAL		3,232,885		3,457,232
Total ADC	\$	4,672,787	\$	4,905,408
Estimated Member Contributions		(240,706)		(378,912
Net Employer ADC	\$	4,432,081	\$	4,526,496
Expected Claim Costs for FYE ^b Employer Explicit Costs		June 30, 2019		June 30, 2020
Medical and Rx Claims	\$	1,576,478	\$	1,642,670
Part B Reimbursement	Ļ	281,265	Ļ	306,360
Dental Claims		114,181		120,371
Total	\$		\$	2,069,401
Employer Implicit Costs	Ŷ	302,137	7	432,398
Total Employer Costs	\$		\$	2,501,799
Retiree Share of Claim Costs	7	2,2,7,001	Ŷ	2,301,733
Medical and Rx Claims	\$	93,379	\$	91,499
Dental Claims		30,449	-	31,211
Total	\$	123,828	\$	122,710
IUlai				

^aRetired participants with dental only coverage, 11,459 as of July 1, 2018, and 11,819 as of July 1, 2019, are excluded from the above counts but are reflected in the actuarial valuation.

^bFor purposes of financial reporting, employer explicit and implicit costs will be updated based on actual experience during each respective reporting period.



Actuarial Valuation Results

CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLOYEES POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS PROGRAM GASB NOS. 74 AND 75 DISCLOSURES CHANGE IN NET OPEB LIABILITY AND CONTRIBUTIONS MADE BY EMPLOYER (\$ IN 000'S) TOTAL OF ALL ACTUARIAL VALUATION GROUPS

Fiscal Year Ending		June 30, 2017		June 30, 2018	June 30, 2019		
Total OPEB Liability							
Service Cost	\$	4,009,501	\$	3,477,466	\$	3,158,693	
Interest on Total OPEB Liability		3,249,843		3,659,659		3,510,048	
Changes of Benefit Terms		-		-		-	
Difference between Expected and Actual Experience		-		(7,189,638)		(1,393,426)	
Changes of Assumptions		(9,830,478)		(2,739,427)		4,112,927	
Benefit Payments		(2,118,695)		(2,246,439)		(2,345,512)	
Net Change in Total OPEB Liability	\$	(4,689,829)	\$	(5,038,379)	\$	7,042,730	
Total OPEB Liability - Beginning	\$	96,197,447	\$	91,507,618	\$	86,469,239	
Total OPEB Liability - Ending (a)	\$	91,507,618	\$	86,469,239	\$	93,511,969	
Plan Fiduciary Net Position							
Employer PayGO Contributions	\$	2,118,695	\$	2,246,439	\$	2,345,512	
Employer Pre-Funding Contributions		271,114		171,669		336,826	
Active Member Contributions		39,362		116,061		283,202	
Net Investment Income		42,292		48,098		89,940	
Benefit Payments		(2,118,695)		(2,246,439)		(2,345,512)	
Administrative Expense		(165)		(350)		(251)	
Other		(290)		-		-	
Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position	\$	352,313	\$	335,478	\$	709,717	
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning	\$	147,722	\$	538,808	\$	873,656	
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending (b)	\$	500,035	\$	874,286	\$	1,583,373	
Net OPEB Liability - Ending (a) - (b)	\$	91,007,583	\$	85,594,953	\$	91,928,596	
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage Total OPEB Liability		0.546%		1.011%		1.693%	
Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC)	\$	4,506,153	\$	4,565,820	\$	4,389,585	
Employer Contribution	\$	2,389,810	\$	2,418,108	\$	2,682,338	
Percentage of ADC made by Employer		53%		53%		61%	
Contribution Excess/(Shortfall)	\$	(2,116,343)	\$	(2,147,712)	\$	(1,707,247)	
Expected Return on Assets	\$	24,862	\$	49,503	\$	82,480	
Investment (Gain)/Loss	\$	(17,427)	\$	1,405	\$	(7,460)	
Average Expected Remaining Service	Fi	om 2.607026 to 9.568629	I	From 2.749775 to 9.781090	F	rom 2.965309 to 8.815624	
Blended Discount Rate Beginning of Year		From 2.850% to 3.672%		From 3.560% to 4.219%		From 3.620% to 4.282%	
Blended Discount Rate End of Year		From 3.560% to 4.219%		From 3.620% to 4.282%		From 3.130% to 3.851%	
Long-term Expected Return on Assets		7.280%		7.000%		6.750%	



State of California OPEB Valuation as of June 30, 2019 22

GASB NOS. 74 AND 75 DISCLOSURES OPEB EXPENSES AND NET OPEB LIABILITY SENSITIVITY (\$ IN 000'S) TOTAL OF ALL ACTUARIAL VALUATION GROUPS					
Measured for the Plan's Fiscal Year Ending Applicable for the Sponsor's Fiscal Year Ending		une 30, 2018 une 30, 2019	June 30, 2019 June 30, 2020		
OPEB Expense					
Service Cost Interest on the Total OPEB Liability Current-Period Benefit Changes Active Member Contributions Projected Earnings on Plan Investments	\$	3,477,466 3,659,659 - (116,061) (49,503)	\$	3,158,693 3,510,048 - (283,202) (82,480)	
Operating Expenses Other Changes in Plan Fiduciary Net Position Recognition of Outflow/(Inflow) due to Non-investment Experience Recognition of Outflow/(Inflow) due to Assumption Changes Recognition of Outflow/(Inflow) due to Investment Experience Net OPEB Expense	\$	350 - (1,091,995) (1,942,105) (3,203) 3,934,608	\$	251 - (1,283,896) (1,288,417) (4,696) 3,726,301	
Reconciliation of Net OPEB Liability					
Net OPEB Liability Beginning of Year OPEB Expense Employer Contributions Change in Outflow/(Inflow) due to Non-investment Experience Change in Outflow/(Inflow) due to Assumption Changes Change in Outflow/(Inflow) due to Investment Experience Net OPEB Liability End of Year	\$	90,968,810 3,934,608 (2,418,108) (6,097,643) (797,322) 4,608 85,594,953	\$	85,595,583 3,726,301 (2,682,338) (109,530) 5,401,344 (2,764) 91,928,596	
Deferred (Inflows) Non-investment Experience Assumption Changes Investment Experience	\$ \$ \$	(6,097,644) (9,097,746) (11,071)	\$ \$ \$	(6,302,117 (7,224,812 (14,561	
Deferred Outflows Non-investment Experience Assumption Changes Investment Experience	\$ \$ \$	- 3,784 1,737	\$ \$ \$	94,943 3,532,192 2,463	
Net OPEB Liability Sensitivity					
Baseline Discount Rate and Trend Rates Increase Discount Rate by One Percentage Point Decrease Discount Rate by One Percentage Point Increase Trend Rate by One Percentage Point	\$ \$ \$	85,594,953 73,281,736 101,103,828 99,687,229	\$ \$ \$	91,928,596 78,577,547 108,767,242 110,170,617	
Decrease Trend Rate by One Percentage Point	\$	74,577,761	\$	77,734,902	



SECTION C

SUMMARY OF THE CURRENT SUBSTANTIVE PLAN PROVISIONS

Eligibility Requirements

Health Care Coverage

Retired Employees

A member is eligible to enroll in a CalPERS health plan if he or she retires within 120 days of separation from employment, was eligible for health benefits upon separation, and receives a monthly retirement allowance. If the member meets this requirement, he or she may continue his or her enrollment at retirement, enroll within 60 days of retirement, or enroll during any Open Enrollment period. If a member is currently enrolled in a CalPERS health plan and wants to continue enrollment into retirement, the employer will notify CalPERS and the member's coverage will continue into retirement.

Survivors of an Annuitant

If a CalPERS annuitant satisfied the requirement to retire within 120 days of separation, the survivor may be eligible to enroll within 60 days of the annuitant's death or during any future Open Enrollment period. *Note: A survivor cannot add any new dependents; only dependents that were enrolled or eligible to enroll at the time of the member's death qualify for benefits.*

Surviving registered domestic partners who are receiving a monthly annuity as a surviving beneficiary of a deceased employee or annuitant on or after January 1, 2002, are eligible to continue coverage if currently enrolled, enroll within 60 days of the domestic partner's death, or enroll during any future Open Enrollment period.

Eligibility Exceptions

Certain family members are **not** eligible for CalPERS health benefits:

- Children age 26 or older;
- Children who have been married;
- Children's spouses;
- Disabled children over age 26 who were never enrolled or who were deleted from coverage;
- Former spouses;
- Grandparents;
- Parents;
- Children of former spouses/ former registered domestic spouses; and
- Other relatives.

Death of a Member

Upon the death of an employee while in State service, the law requires the State employer to continue to pay contributions for the survivor's or registered domestic partner's health coverage for up to 120 days



after the employee's death. Surviving family members will be eligible for health benefit coverage, provided they:

- Qualify for a monthly survivor check from CalPERS;
- Were an eligible dependent at the time of the member's death; and
- Continue to qualify as eligible family members.

Surviving family members who do not meet the above qualifications may be eligible for COBRA.

Children of registered domestic partners may have continued eligibility if they were enrolled as family members at the time of a member's death.

Coordination with Medicare

CalPERS retired members who qualify for premium-free Part A, either on their own or through a spouse (current, former, or deceased), must sign up for Part B as soon as they qualify for Part A. A member must then enroll in a CalPERS-sponsored Medicare plan. The CalPERS-sponsored Medicare plan will pay for costs not paid by Medicare, by coordinating benefits.

Dental Benefits

Retired Employees

Retired State employees are eligible to continue enrollment in the State's Dental Program if they retire within 120 days after their date of separation and they receive a retirement allowance from CalPERS. Retired employees who did not continue dental coverage into retirement may enroll during the annual dental open enrollment period.

California Highway Patrol employees who retired on or after September 30, 1992, may elect to continue enrollment in the Union-sponsored indemnity plan or change to a State-sponsored dental plan. Under the terms of the Memorandum of Understanding between the California Highway Patrol and the California Department of Human Resource, this is an irrevocable one-time election.

California Correctional Peace Officers Association members who are enrolled in a union-sponsored dental plan must change to a State-sponsored dental plan and retire within 120 days after their date of separation to continue their dental coverage.

Survivors of an Employee or Annuitant

Departments are required to continue paying the State Contributions for a covered employee's spouse, domestic partner, and other eligible family members for up to 120 days following an employee's death. During this time, CalPERS will determine if the spouse or other family members are eligible for continuation coverage.



Summary of the Current Substantive Plan Provisions

After 120 days, the surviving family member(s) will be eligible to continue their current coverage if they meet all of the following criteria:

- They were enrolled as dependents at the time of death;
- They qualify for a monthly survivor allowance from CalPERS; and
- They continue to qualify as family members.

Surviving enrolled family members who do not qualify to continue their current coverage are eligible for continuation coverage under COBRA.

2019 State Contribution

The 2019 maximum State Contribution amounts are as follows:

2019 State Contribution							
One-Party Coverage	Two-Party Coverage	Family Coverage					
\$734.00	\$1,398.00	\$1,788.00					

The preceding "100/90" State contributions rates are based on:

- 100 percent of the weighted average single premium for employees and annuitants participating in the four Basic plans with the highest enrollment of single coverage; plus
- An additional contribution for dependent coverage equal to 90 percent of the weighted average excess of the two-party or family premium over the single premium for employees and annuitants participating in the four Basic plans with the highest enrollment of two-party and family coverage.

If the State retiree is signed up for a CalPERS-sponsored Medicare plan and the monthly State contribution is more than the plan's monthly premium, CalPERS will credit the retiree the difference between the two amounts, up to the amount of the Part B premium.

The actual amount of the contribution varies based on the employee type as described below.

State Contribution – Judge Elected or Appointed Prior to November 9, 1994

State Contributions are based upon the vesting schedule applicable to State Employees.

If a member is eligible for a deferred retirement benefit, the member must pay the full plan premium until he or she starts receiving benefits in order to have the State's contribution paid once he or she begins receiving retirement payments.



State Contribution – Judge Elected or Appointed After November 9, 1994

To continue CalPERS health coverage into retirement if the member is under age 65, the member must:

- Have at least five years of service credit;
- Elect health coverage within 60 days after leaving judicial office; and
- Assume the cost of both the member's share and the employer's share of the monthly premiums plus an additional 2 percent of the premium, until age 65.

When the member reaches age 65, the member is eligible for the employer's share of the premium. The State Contribution is determined by the member's years of service credit:

Years of Service	State Contribution
At Least 5 Years	50%
Between 5 to 10 Years	Pro-rated between 50% to 100%
10 or More Years	100%

State Contribution – Legislator, Constitutional Officer, or Statutory Officer

Members of the CalPERS Health Program can continue coverage into retirement. Members must have at least eight years of service for health benefits vesting. If the member took office after January 1, 1985, he or she will need 10 years to receive the full State Contribution towards the monthly premium.

State and CSU Employees (includes Misc., Industrial, CHP, POFF, and Safety)

For State Employees, the amount the State contributes toward health coverage depends on whether the employee is vested. The contribution amount is determined by a formula set by law and the date the employee was first employed by the State.

- **First hired by the State prior to January 1, 1985:** The member is eligible to receive 100 percent of the State's contribution toward the member's health premium upon the member's retirement.
- First hired by the State between January 1, 1985 and January 1, 1989: The member is subject to vesting requirements, as follows:
 - 10 years of service: Member is fully vested and qualifies for 100 percent of the State's contribution toward his or her health premium.
 - Less than 10 years of service: Members are eligible for health coverage; however, the State's contribution will be reduced by 10 percent for each year of service under 10 years. The member will be responsible for the additional cost.



• First hired by the State after January 1, 1989: The percentage of the State's contribution is based on completed years of State credited service as follows:

Years of Credited Service	State Contribution
Less than 10	0%
10	50%
10 to 19	50%, plus 5% added for each year after the 10 th year
20 or more	100%

For California State University Employees and members on disability, the above vesting requirements do not apply and the employer pays 100 percent of the contribution provided the member is eligible for healthcare benefits at retirement.

California State University Employees hired on or after July 1, 2017, must have at least 10 years of credited service to be eligible for healthcare benefits at retirement.

State Employees in Bargaining Units and Judicial Employees

The State and employees in most bargaining units and Judicial Employees have agreed to changes in benefits if an employee is hired after certain effective dates. The key benefit changes include:

- Reducing the "100/90" State contribution formula to "80/80";
- Grading the State contribution if the member has less than 25 years of Credited Service at retirement;
- For Medicare eligible members, eliminating the Medicare Part B subsidy; and
- For Medicare eligible members, developing the "80/80" State contribution based on the premium rates for only Medicare members.



The following table shows the percentage of State contribution based on years of Credited Service at retirement:

Years of Credited Service	State Contribution
Less than 15	0%
15	50%
15 to 24	50%, plus 5% added for each year after the 15 th year
25 or more	100%

The following table shows the plan change effective date by employee type:

Employee Type	Plan Change Effective Date
BU 9 and 10	January 1, 2016
SEIU (BU 1,3,4,11,14,15,17,20,21)	January 1, 2017
BU 2,6,7,8,12,13,18,19	January 1, 2017
Judicial Employees	January 1, 2017
BU 16	April 1, 2017
Exempt/Excluded/Executive Employees	July 1, 2018

Prefunding of Retiree Healthcare Benefits

The State and employees in all bargaining units and Judicial employees have agreed to pre-fund retiree healthcare benefits. The State and all active members make contributions into separate CERBT accounts that are based on a percentage of pensionable compensation with the ultimate goal of contributing 100 percent of the actuarially determined normal cost shared equally between the State and employees.

Assets in each respective CERBT account cannot be used to pay benefits until the earlier of 2046 or the year that the actuarial accrued liability is fully funded, and then only for the members of those bargaining units. GASB 75 requires discrete plan reporting for the portion of asset amounts accumulated solely for the payment of benefits of certain groups of employees. The State's comprehensive annual financial report will include these plan amounts.



The following table shows the Fiscal Year Beginning date of the Bargaining Unit's goal to reach 50 percent of actuarially determined normal cost ("Fund Goal") as well as the total employee contribution percentage of pensionable compensation (the State will make a matching contribution of the same amount, except for BU 5^a):

		Fisca	al Year Begi	nning July	1,	
Bargaining Unit	2016	2017	2018	2019	2020	2021
SEIU (BU 1,3,4,11,14,15,17,20,21)			1.2%	2.3%	3.5%	Fund Goal
BU 2		0.7%	1.3%	2.0%	Fund Goal	
BU 5 (Highway Patrol) ^a	0.5%	0.5%	0.5%	Fund Goal		
BU 6 (Corrections)	1.3%	2.6%	4.0%	Fund Goal		
BU 7 (Protective Services and Public Safety)		1.3%	2.7%	4.0%	Fund Goal	
BU 8 (Firefighters)		1.5%	3.0%	4.4%	Fund Goal	
BU 9 (Professional Engineers)		0.5%	1.0%	2.0%	Fund Goal	
BU 10 (Professional Scientific)		0.7%	1.4%	2.8%	Fund Goal	
BU 12 (Crafts & Maintenance)	0.5%	1.5%	2.5%	3.5%	4.6%	Fund Goal
BU 13 (Stationary Engineers)		1.3%	2.6%	3.9%	Fund Goal	
BU 16 (Physicians and Dentists)	0.5%	1.0%	1.4%	Fund Goal		
BU 18 (Psychiatric Technicians)		1.3%	2.6%	4.0%	Fund Goal	
BU 19 (Health and Social Services)		1.0%	2.0%	3.0%	Fund Goal	
Judicial Employees	1.5%	2.3%	Fund Goal			
Exempt/Excluded/Executive Employees		0.8%	1.6%	2.4% ^b	Fund Goal	

^a For bargaining unit 5, the State contributes 7.3% of base pay and the member contributes 0.5% of base pay in fiscal years 2017, 2018, and 2019.

^b For the Exempt/Excluded/Executive employees, contribution rate for fiscal year beginning July 1,2020, was assumed to be 2.4%.



EPO and HMO Basic Plans

Kaiser Permanente, Blue Shield Access+ HMO, Blue Shield Access+ EPO, Anthem Blue Cross, Health Net, Sharp Performance Plus, UnitedHealthcare SignatureValue Alliance HMO, Western Health Advantage HMO

	Copay and/or Benefit Limit
Hospital	
Inpatient	No Charge
Outpatient	
Kaiser Permanente	\$15/Visit
Other HMO/EPO Plans	No Charge
hysician Services	
Office Visits	\$15/visit
More than one copay may apply during an office visit if multiple	
services are provided.	
Outpatient Visits	
Kaiser Permanente	\$15/visit
Other HMO Plans	\$15/visit
Urgent Care Visits	
Other HMO Plans	\$15/visit
Allergy Testing/Treatment	
Kaiser Permanente	No charge for Injections
	\$15/Visit (Testing Visits)
Other HMO Plans	No Charge
Vision Exam (Refraction)	
Kaiser Permanente	No Charge
Other HMO Plans	No Charge
For age 17 and under. Varies by plan for age 18 and over and may be limited to one visit per calendar year.	
Hearing Exam/Screening	
Kaiser Permanente	\$15/visit
Other HMO Plans	No Charge
Inpatient Hospital Visits	No Charge
Surgery/Anesthesia	
Kaiser Permanente	No Charge for Inpatient, \$15 for Outpatien
Other HMO Plans	No Charge
mbulance Service	
Air/ground ambulance service	No Charge
mergency Services	
Waived if admitted as an inpatient or for observations as an outpatient	\$50/Visit
rescription Drug Benefit	
Other HMO Plans	\$5/generic
Retail Pharmacy	\$20/formulary brand name
(up to 30-day supply)	\$50/non-formulary
	(\$40 if medical necessity approved)
Mail Order Program	\$10/generic
(up to 90-day supply)	\$40/formulary brand name
\$1,000 maximum copayment per person per calendar year.	\$100/non-formulary
	(\$70 if medical necessity approved)
Maximum Calendar Year Deductible	\$1,000
Kaiser Permanente	
Up to 30-day supply	\$5/generic / \$20/brand name
31-100-day supply	\$10/generic / \$40/brand name



	PERS	Select	PERS	Choice	PERS	Care
	Member's Cost		Member's Cost		Member's Cost	
	РРО	Non-PPO	РРО	Non-PPO	РРО	Non-PPC
Calendar Year Deductible						
Individual	\$1,0		\$500 \$1,000		\$500 \$1,000	
Family	\$2,0	100	\$1,	500	\$1,0	100
Maximum Calendar Year Copay						
Individual	\$3,000	None	\$3,000	None	\$2,000	None
Family	\$6,000	None	\$6,000	None	\$4,000	None
Lifetime Maximum Benefit - Per Individual	No	ne	No	ne	No	ne
Hospital						
Per Admission Deductible	None	None	None	None	\$250	\$250
Inpatient and Outpatient	20%	40%	20%	40%	10%	40%
	20/0	40/0	2070	4070	10/0	4070
Physician Services						
Office Visits	\$35 copay ^{1,2}	40%	\$20 copay ²	40%	\$20 copay ²	40%
Urgent Care Visits	\$35 copay	40%	\$35 copay	40%	\$35 copay	40%
Outpatient Visits	\$20 copay	40%	\$20 copay	40%	\$20 copay	40%
Inpatient Visits	20%	40%	20%	40%	10%	40%
Allergy Testing/Treatment	20%	40%	20%	40%	10%	40%
Ambulance Service	20%	20%	20%	20%	10%	10%
Emergency Services						
(\$50 deductible per visit for covered ER charges -						
waived if admitted to Hospital)	20%	20%	20%	20%	10%	10%
Prescription Drug Benefit	Gen	eric	Preferred Brand		Non-Preferred Brand	
Applies to PERS Select, PERS Choice, and PERSCare	5		Tretene			
Retail Pharmacy*	\$!	5	Śź	20	\$5	0
*short-term use	φ. 	5	,÷,		(\$40 if partial v	
					Preferred Bran	
					appro	
Retail Pharmacy Maintenance Medications	\$1	0	¢.	10	\$10	00
filled after 2nd Fill**	<u>د</u> ې		ې. ا		ļ ,	
** A maintenance medication taken longer than					(\$70 if partial v	vaiver of No
60 days for chronic conditions.					Preferred Bran	
					appro	
Mail Service Pharmacy	\$1	.0	\$4	10	\$10	
A \$1,000 maximum copayment per person per					(\$70 if partial v	
calendar year applies					Preferred Bran	
	1				appro	ved)

¹ Reduced to \$10 if enrolled with personal doctor

² \$35 for specialist



	Medicare Managed Care Plan (Medicare Advantage)	Medicare Managed Care Plan (Group Medicare Advantage)	
	Kaiser Permanente	UnitedHealthcare, Anthem Preferre	
	Copay and/or Benefit Limit	Copay and/or Benefit Limit	
Hospital			
Inpatient Outpatient	No Charge \$10/visit	No Charge No Charge	
Outpatient	ŞID/VISIt	No Charge	
Physician Services			
Office Visits	\$10/visit	\$10/visit	
Urgent Care Visits	\$10/visit	\$25/visit	
Allergy Testing/Treatment	\$3/visit (injection visits) \$10/visit (testing visits)	\$10/visit (injection visits) \$10/visit (testing visits)	
Vision Exam (Refraction)	\$10/visit	\$10 (limited to one visit)	
Hearing Exam/Screening	\$10/visit	\$10/visit	
Inpatient Hospital Visits	No Charge	No Charge	
Surgery/Anesthesia	No Charge for Inpatient \$10/visit for Outpatient	No Charge	
Ambulance Service Air/ground ambulance service	No Charge	No Charge	
Emergency Services Waived if admitted as an inpatient or for observations as an outpatient	\$50/visit	\$50/visit	
Prescription Drug Benefit			
Retail Pharmacy (up to 30-day supply)	\$5/generic	\$5/generic	
(Does not apply to Kaiser)	\$20/brand name Kaiser Permanente provides up to 100-day supply (or a 30-day supply for certain drugs) through its pharmacies or mail order program.	\$20/formulary brand name \$50/non-formulary (\$40 if medical necessity approved)	
Mail Order Program \$1,000 maximum copayment per person per calendar year (up to 90-day supply) (Does not apply to Kaiser)	\$10/generic \$40/brand name Kaiser Permanente provides up to 100-day supply (or a 30-day supply for certain drugs) through its pharmacies or mail order program.	\$10/generic \$40/formulary brand name \$100/non-formulary (\$70 if medical necessity approved)	



PERS Select, PERS Choice, & PERSCare Supplement Plans

	PERS Select	PERS Choice	PERSCare
	РРО	РРО	РРО
Calendar Year Deductible	None Plan pays Medicare Parts A and B deductible	None Plan pays Medicare Parts A and B deductible	None Plan pays Medicare Parts A and B deductibl
Lifetime Maximum Benefit - Per Individual	None	None	None
Hospital			
Inpatient and Outpatient	No Charge	No Charge	No Charge
Physician Services			
Physician Office Visits	No Charge	No Charge	No Charge
Inpatient Visits	No Charge	No Charge	No Charge
Outpatient Visits	No Charge	No Charge	No Charge
Urgent Care Visits	No Charge	No Charge	No Charge
Allergy Testing/Treatment	No Charge	No Charge	No Charge
Ambulance Service	No Charge	No Charge	No Charge
Emergency Services	No Charge	No Charge	No Charge
Prescription Drug Benefit Applies to PERS Select, PERS Choice, and PERSCare	Generic	Preferred Brand	Non-Preferred Brand
Retail Pharmacy* *short-term use	\$5	\$20	\$50 (\$40 if partial waiver of Non-Preferred Brand copayment approved)
Retail Pharmacy Maintenance Medications filled after 2nd Fill** ** A maintenance medication taken longer than 60 days for chronic conditions.	\$10	\$40	\$100 (\$70 if partial waiver oj Non-Preferred Brand copayment approved)
Mail Service Pharmacy A \$1,000 maximum copayment per person per calendar year applies	\$10	\$40	\$100 (\$70 if partial waiver oj Non-Preferred Brand copayment approved)



	Copay and/or Benefit Limit
Hospital	
Inpatient	\$100 per admission
Outpatient Facility/Surgery Services	\$50/visit
Physician Services	
Office Visits	\$15/visit
Outpatient Visits	\$15/visit
Urgent Care Visits	\$15/visit
Allergy Testing/Treatment	No Charge
Vision Exam (Refraction)	\$15/visit
Hearing Exam/Screening	\$15/visit
Inpatient Hospital Visits	No Charge
Surgery/Anesthesia	No Charge
Ambulance Service	No Charge
Emergency Services	
Waived if hospitalized or kept for observation – if admitted, \$100 per admission fee will apply	\$75/visit
Prescription Drug Benefit	
Deductible	\$50 calendar year Tier 2, 3, 4 deductible
	per member, not to exceed \$150 per family
Retail Pharmacy	\$10/Tier 1
	\$25/Tier 2
	\$50/Tier 3 and 4
Mail Order Program	\$20/Tier 1
(up to 90-day supply)	\$50/Tier 2
	\$100/Tier 3 and 4



	Copay and/or Benefit Limit
lospital	
Inpatient	\$100 per admission
Outpatient Surgery	No Charge
hysician Services	
Office Visits	\$10/visit
Outpatient Visits	\$10/visit
Urgent Care Visits	\$10/visit
Allergy Testing/Treatment	No Charge
Vision Exam (Refraction)	\$10/visit
Hearing Exam/Screening	\$15/visit
Inpatient Hospital Visits	No Charge
Surgery/Anesthesia	No Charge
Ambulance Service	No Charge
Emergency Services	No Charge
Prescription Drug Benefit	
Retail Pharmacy	\$5/Tier 1
(up to 30-day supply)	\$20/Tier 2
	\$35/Tier 3
	\$50/Tier 4 and 5
Mail Order Program	\$10/Tier 1
(up to 90-day supply)	\$40/Tier 2
	\$70/Tier 3
	\$150/Tier 4



	CAHP Cop	pay/Limits	PORAC Co	pay/Limits
	PPO	Non-PPO	РРО	Non-PPO
Calendar Year Deductible				
Individual	None	None	\$300	\$600
Family	None	None	\$900	\$1,800
Dut-of-Pocket Maximum	\$2,000/member	None		l or \$6,000/family
	\$4,000/family	None	(Combined PPC) and non-PPO)
ifetime Maximum	None	None	None	None
lospital				
Inpatient	10%	Varies. See EOC	10%	10% (varies)
Outpatient	10%	40%	10%	10% (varies)
Physician Services				
Office Visits	\$15	40%	\$20	10%
Outpatient Visits	10%	40%	10%	10%
Urgent Care Visits	\$15	40%	10%	10%
Allergy Testing/Treatment	10%	40%	10%	10%
Vision Exam (Refraction)	Not Covered	Not Covered	Not Covered	Not Covered
Hearing Exam/Screening	10%	40%	20%	20%
Inpatient Hospital Visits	10%	40%	10%	10% (varies)
Surgery/Anesthesia	10%	40%	10%	10% (varies)
•				
Ambulance Service	20%	20%	20%	20%
mergency Services	4	4		
Emergency	\$50* + 10%	\$50* + 10%	10%	10%
Non-Emergency	\$50* + 10%	\$50* + 40%	50%	50%
* If admitted to the hospital on an inpatient basis,				
the \$50 copayment will be reduced to \$25				
rescription Drug Benefit				
Retail Pharmacy	\$6/generic	\$6/generic	\$10/generic	\$10/generic
CAHP (up to 30-day supply)	\$25/single source	\$25/single source	\$25/ formulary	\$25/ formulary
PORAC (up to 34-day supply or	\$35/multi-source	\$35/multi-source	brand name	brand name
100 pills/units, whichever is more)			\$45/non-formulary brand	\$45/non-formulary bran
Retail Pharmacy	\$12/generic	\$12/generic	Not Applicable	Not Applicable
Maintenance Medications	\$50/single source	\$50/single source		
filled after 2nd Fill**	\$70/multi-source	\$70/multi-source		
CAHP (up to 30-day supply)				
** A maintenance medication taken				
longer than 60 days for chronic				
conditions.				
Mail Order Program	\$12/generic	\$12/generic	\$20/generic	Not Applicable
CAHP (up to 90-day supply)	\$50/single source	\$50/single source	\$40/ formulary	
PORAC (up to 90-day supply or	\$70/multi-source	\$70/multi-source	brand name	
100 pills/units, whichever is more)			\$75/non-formulary brand	



	CAHP Copays/Limits	PORAC Copays/Limits	
Deductibles	\$100/individual \$200/family (Major Medical deductible)	\$100/individual \$200/family (Major Medical deductible)	
Hospital Inpatient	No Charge	No charge. Plan pays after Medicare benefits are exhausted. See EOC	
Outpatient	No Charge	No Charge	
Physician Services Office Visits	\$10/visit	No Charge	
Outpatient Visits	No Charge	No Charge	
Urgent Care Visits	No Charge	No Charge	
Allergy Testing/Treatment	No Charge	No Charge	
Vision Exam (Refraction)	Not Covered	20%; one exam/ calendar year	
Hearing Exam/Screening	No Charge	20%; \$50/exam in connection with hearing aid purchase	
Inpatient Hospital Visits	No Charge	No Charge	
Surgery/Anesthesia	No Charge	No Charge	
Ambulance Service	No Charge if Medicare approved 20% if not Medicare approved	No Charge	
Emergency Services	No Charge if Medicare approved 20% if not Medicare approved	No Charge	
Prescription Drug Benefit Retail Pharmacy (up to 30-day supply) CAHP: Diabetic supplies paid under madical banefit	\$6/generic \$25/preferred \$35/non-preferred	\$10/generic \$25/formulary brand name \$45/non-formulary brand name	
medical benefit. PORAC: \$50 deductible/member for retail only			
Retail Pharmacy Maintenance Medications filled after 2nd fill* CAHP (up to 30-day supply) * A maintenance medication taken longer than 60 days for chronic conditions.	\$12/generic \$50/preferred \$70/non-preferred		
Mail Order Program (90-day supply)	\$12/generic \$50/preferred \$70/non-preferred	\$20/generic \$40/single source \$75/multi-source	



State Sponsored Dent		PREFERRED PROVIDER	
BENEFITS	INDEMNITY	OPTION	PREPAID
Type of Plan	Fee-for-Service Plan, this plan	Plan provides maximum	Plan pays enrollee's chosen
	provides reimbursement for	benefit when you visit an in-	dentist a monthly fixed rate
	services rendered.	network PPO dentist.	to provide services as
Dental Providers	Any licensed dentist.	Any licensed dentist, but	Must select a dental provide
	However, out-of-pocket	maximum benefits when	affiliated with the enrollee's
	expenses may be lower when	visiting a PPO network	prepaid plan.
	visiting a Delta Dental PPO	dentist. If an out-of-PPO	
	dentist.	network dentist is used,	
		benefits are lower.	
Orthodontic Providers	May visit any orthodontist.	Must visit an in-PPO network	Must use orthodontist
	However, out-of-pocket	orthodontist to receive maximum benefit.	affiliated with the enrollee's
	expenses may be lower when	maximum benefit.	prepaid plan.
	visiting a Delta Dental PPO dentist.		
Changing Providers	May change dentists at any	May change at any time.	May change to another
	time.	indy enange at any time.	dentist affiliated with the
			plan, with prior approval.
Deductibles	Basic: \$50 per person, up to	\$25 per person, up to \$100	No deductible.
	\$150 annual maximum per	annual maximum per family,	
	family.	for PPO network dentists.	
		\$75 per person up to \$200	
		annual maximum per family	
		for non-PPO network	
		dentists.	
Consuments	Member pays the co-	Member pays the co-	Co-payments for certain
Co-payments		payment and any deductibles	
	and charges above the	and charges above the	require payment at time of
		annual maximum for covered	
	services when visiting a Delta	services when visiting a Delta	
	Dental dentist.	Dental dentist.	
	When visiting a non-Delta	When visiting a non-Delta	
	Dental dentist, member pays	Dental dentist, member pays	
	the difference between the	the difference between the	
	dentist's submitted charges	dentist's submitted charges	
	and Delta Dental's approved fees.	and Delta Dental's approved fees.	
	iees.	iees.	
Plan Payments	Payments based on Delta	Payments based on Delta	Plan pays dentist monthly
	Dentist contracted fees or	Dentist contracted fees or	contract fee.
	the maximum plan allowance	the maximum plan allowance	
	when non-Delta Dental	when non-Delta Dental	
	dentists are used.	dentists are used.	
Maximum Benefits per Calendar	Basic: \$2,000 for employee,	\$2,000 for employee, \$2,000	No maximum.
Year	\$1,000 per dependent	per eligible dependent when	
		PPO network dentists are	
		used.	
Maximum Lifetime Implant	Not a covered benefit.	Maximum lifetime benefit of	Premier Access and Westerr
Maximum Lifetime Implant Benefit	Not a covered benefit.		Premier Access and Westerr Dental only.



California State University Sponsored Dental Plan						
BENEFITS	Delta Dental Basic	DeltaCare Basic				
Diagnostic and preventive benefits	75%, no deductible	No Cost				
Basic benefits	75%, deductible applies	No Cost				
Crowns, inlays, inlays and cast		\$35 - \$50 per unit; plus additional				
restoration benefits	50%, deductible applies	cost for precious metals and				
		porcelain on molars				
Dentures	EQ9/ doductible applies	Full – \$60 each;				
	50%, deductible applies	Partials – \$70 each				
Orthodontic benefits		\$1,400 plus \$350 start-up costs,				
	50%, maximum lifetime of \$1,000	Covers up to 24 months of active				
		treatment				
Annual Deductibles	\$50 Per Person/\$150 Per Family	No Deductible				
Annual Maximum	\$1,500 Per Person	No Maximum				



2019 Health Plan Rates								
	Basic Plans -	НМО						
Plan	Employee Only	Employee & 1 Dep.	Employee & 2+ Dep.					
Anthem Select HMO	\$742.89	\$1,485.78	\$1,931.51					
Anthem Traditional HMO	\$1,034.48	\$2,068.96	\$2,689.65					
Blue Shield	\$799.03	\$1,598.06	\$2,077.48					
Health Net Salud y Más	\$376.89	\$753.78	\$979.91					
Health Net SmartCare	\$728.70	\$1,457.40	\$1,894.62					
Kaiser	\$708.39	\$1,416.78	\$1,841.81					
Kaiser Out-of-State - Colorado	\$964.68	\$1,929.36	\$2,508.17					
Kaiser Out-of-State - Georgia	\$964.68	\$1,929.36	\$2,508.17					
Kaiser Out-of-State - Hawaii	\$964.68	\$1,929.36	\$2,508.17					
Kaiser Out-of-State - Mid-Atlantic	\$964.68	\$1,929.36	\$2,508.17					
Kaiser Out-of-State - Northwest	\$964.68	\$1,929.36	\$2,508.17					
Sharp	\$593.66	\$1,187.32	\$1,543.52					
UnitedHealthcare	\$695.77	\$1,391.54	\$1,809.00					
Western Health Advantage	\$706.79	\$1,413.58	\$1,837.65					
	Basic Plans	- РРО						
Plan	Employee Only	Employee & 1 Dep.	Employee & 2+ Dep.					
Anthem EPO Del Norte	\$764.78	\$1,529.56	\$1,988.43					
PERS Choice	\$764.78	\$1,529.56	\$1,988.43					
PERS Select	\$492.24	\$984.48	\$1,279.82					
PERSCare	\$929.89	\$1,859.78	\$2,417.71					
	Basic Association	on Plans						
Plan	Employee Only	Employee & 1 Dep.	Employee & 2+ Dep.					
САНР	\$697.46	\$1,354.01	\$1,770.92					
CCPOA - North	\$754.96	\$1,513.14	\$2,042.88					
CCPOA - South	\$622.54	\$1,248.25	\$1,686.69					
PORAC	\$774.00	\$1,623.00	\$2,076.00					



2019 Health Plan Rates								
Supplement/Managed Medicare Plans - HMO								
Plan	Employee Only	Employee & 1 Dep.	Employee & 2+ Dep.					
Anthem Traditional	\$357.44	\$714.88	\$1,072.32					
Kaiser	\$323.74	\$647.48	\$971.22					
Kaiser Out-of-State - Colorado	\$323.74	\$647.48	\$971.22					
Kaiser Out-of-State - Georgia	\$323.74	\$647.48	\$971.22					
Kaiser Out-of-State - Hawaii	\$323.74	\$647.48	\$971.22					
Kaiser Out-of-State - Mid-Atlantic	\$323.74	\$647.48	\$971.22					
Kaiser Out-of-State - Northwest	\$323.74	\$323.74 \$647.48						
UnitedHealthcare	\$299.37	\$898.11						
Supp	element/Managed Me	edicare Plans - PPO						
Plan	Employee Only	Employee & 1 Dep.	Employee & 2+ Dep.					
PERS Choice	\$360.41	\$720.82	\$1,081.23					
PERS Select	\$360.41	\$720.82	\$1,081.23					
PERSCare	\$394.83	\$789.66	\$1,184.49					
Suppler	ment/Managed Medi	care Association Plans						
Plan	Employee Only	Employee & 1 Dep.	Employee & 2+ Dep.					
САНР	\$418.37	\$772.54	\$982.26					
CCPOA - North	\$484.58	\$971.59	\$1,453.18					
CCPOA - South	\$484.58	\$971.59	\$1,453.18					
PORAC	\$513.00	\$1,022.00	\$1,635.00					



2019 Health Plan Rates										
Со	mbination Plans (Employ	yee in Basic Plan) - HMO								
1 Dep. In 1 Dep. In Supplement/ 2+ Dep. In Supplement/ 1+ Dep. In Su Plan Managed Medicare Managed Medicare Managed I										
Anthem Traditional	\$1,391.92	\$1,749.36	\$2,012.61							
Kaiser	\$1,032.13	\$1,355.87	\$1,457.16							
Kaiser Out-of-State - Colorado	\$1,288.42	\$1,612.16	\$1,867.23							
Kaiser Out-of-State - Georgia	\$1,288.42	\$1,612.16	\$1,867.23							
Kaiser Out-of-State - Hawaii	\$1,288.42	\$1,612.16	\$1,867.23							
Kaiser Out-of-State - Mid-Atlantic	\$1,288.42	\$1,612.16	\$1,867.23							
Kaiser Out-of-State - Northwest	\$1,288.42	\$1,612.16	\$1,867.23							
UnitedHealthcare	\$995.14	\$1,294.51	\$1,412.60							
Со	mbination Plans (Emplo	yee in Basic Plan) - PPO								
Plan	1 Dep. In Supplement/ Managed Medicare	2+ Dep. In Supplement/ Managed Medicare	1 Dep. In Basic 1+ Dep. In Supplement/ Managed Medicare							
Anthem EPO Del Norte	\$1,125.19	\$1,485.60	\$1,584.06							
PERS Choice	\$1,125.19	\$1,485.60	\$1,584.06							
PERS Select	\$852.65	\$1,213.06	\$1,147.99							
PERSCare	\$1,324.72	\$1,719.55	\$1,882.65							
Comb	ination (Employee in Ba	sic Plan) Association Plans								
Plan	1 Dep. In Supplement/ Managed Medicare	2+ Dep. In Supplement/ Managed Medicare	1 Dep. In Basic 1+ Dep. In Supplement/ Managed Medicare							
САНР	\$1,051.63	\$1,261.35	\$1,468.54							
CCPOA - North	\$1,241.97	\$1,723.56	\$1,771.71							
CCPOA - South	\$1,109.55	\$1,591.14	\$1,547.99							
PORAC	\$1,283.00	\$1,896.00	\$1,736.00							



2019 Health Plan Rates

	2019 Health Pla	an Rates					
Combination Plans (E	mployee in Suppleme	nt/Managed Medicare I	Plan) - HMO				
Plan	1 Dep. In Basic	2+ Dep. In Basic	1 Dep. In Supplement/ Managed Medicare 1+ Dep. In Basic				
Anthem Traditional	\$1,391.92	\$2,012.61	\$1,335.57				
Kaiser	\$1,032.13	\$1,457.16	\$1,072.51				
Kaiser Out-of-State - Colorado	\$1,288.42	\$1,867.23	\$1,226.29				
Kaiser Out-of-State - Georgia	\$1,288.42	\$1,867.23	\$1,226.29				
Kaiser Out-of-State - Hawaii	\$1,288.42	\$1,867.23	\$1,226.29				
Kaiser Out-of-State - Mid-Atlantic	\$1,288.42	\$1,867.23	\$1,226.29				
Kaiser Out-of-State - Northwest	\$1,288.42	\$1,867.23	\$1,226.29				
UnitedHealthcare	\$995.14	\$1,016.20					
Combination Plans (E	Employee in Suppleme	ent/Managed Medicare	Plan) - PPO				
Plan	1 Dep. In Basic	2+ Dep. In Basic	1 Dep. In Supplement/ Managed Medicare 1+ Dep. In Basic				
Anthem EPO Del Norte							
	\$1,125.19	\$1,584.06	\$1,179.69				
PERS Choice	\$1,125.19	\$1,584.06	\$1,179.69				
PERS Select	\$852.65	\$1,147.99	\$1,016.16				
PERSCare	\$1,324.72	\$1,882.65	\$1,347.59				
Combination (Employee in Supplement/Managed Medicare Plan) Association Plans 1 Dep. In Supplement/ Managed Medicare Plan 1 Dep. In Basic 2+ Dep. In Basic 1+ Dep. In Basic							
САНР	\$1,074.92	\$1,491.83	\$1,189.45				
CCPOA - North	\$1,242.76	\$1,772.50	\$1,501.33				
CCPOA - South	\$1,110.29	\$1,548.73	\$1,410.03				
PORAC	\$1,362.00	\$1,815.00	\$1,475.00				



2019 Dental Plan Rates - State Sponsored Plans							
Plan	Employee Only	Employee & 1 Dep.	Employee & 2+ Dep.				
DeltaPremier ¹	\$50.83	\$88.75	\$128.28				
Delta PPO ²	\$46.45	\$90.31	\$135.88				
Safeguard SOC Enhanced Plan ³	\$16.06	\$27.18	\$33.48				
Delta Care USA ³	\$19.44	\$31.90	\$44.13				
Premier Access ³	\$15.80	\$25.59	\$35.84				
Western Dental ³	\$15.77	\$26.02	\$36.91				

¹ Employee Share: 1 party - \$12.71 / 2 party - \$22.19 / 3 or more party - \$32.07

² Employee Share: 1 party - \$11.61 / 2 party - \$22.58 / 3 or more party - \$33.97

³ Provided at no cost to the retiree

2019 Dental Plan Rates - California State University ⁴						
Plan	Employee Only	Employee & 1 Dep.	Employee & 2+ Dep.			
Delta Dental PPO - Basic	\$30.45	\$57.52	\$115.49			
DeltaCare USA - Basic	\$18.85	\$31.08	\$45.97			

⁴ Provided at no cost to the retiree



SECTION D

SUMMARY OF THE PARTICIPANT DATA

A1. Summary of the Participant Data

- A. Members Currently in Retired Status
 - 1. Counts of Current Retirees by Medical/Rx Benefit Plan and Valuation Group
 - 2. Counts of Current Retirees by Medical/Rx Benefit Plan and Coverage
 - 3. Distribution of Current Retirees by Medical/Rx Benefit Plan and Coverage Type
 - 4. Distribution of Retiree Medical/Rx Benefit by Age
 - 5. Counts of Current Retirees by Dental Benefit Plan and Valuation Group
 - 6. Counts of Current Retirees by Dental Benefit Plan and Coverage
 - 7. Distribution of Current Retirees by Dental Benefit Plan and Coverage Type
 - 8. Distribution of Retiree Dental Benefit Plan by Age

The members in the schedules referenced above include only those retirees who have elected to receive health care coverage or dental coverage through the State of California.

- B. Members Currently in Active Status
 - 1. Distribution of All Active Members by Age and Service

C. All Members

1. Counts of Current Active Participants and Retirees by Valuation Group



A1. Summary of the	Participant Data
--------------------	------------------

	California State Employees								
Counts of Current Retirees by Medical/Rx Benefit Plan and Valuation Group									
	Bargaining Unit 2	Bargaining Unit 5	Bargaining Unit 6	Bargaining Unit 7	Bargaining Unit 8	Bargaining Unit 9	Bargaining Unit 10	Bargaining Unit 12	Bargaining Unit 13
	22	10	264	70	45	125	20	02	15
Anthem Blue Cross	33	10	264	79	45	125	20	92	15
Blue Shield	65	61	1,544	396	381	316	81	432	51
Health Net	15	9	131	43	16	39	6	41	3
Kaiser	793	776	7,030	1,993	592	2,496	653	3,121	297
Kaiser Out-of-State	15	17	122	41	17	42	22	40	6
Sharp	6	2	39	21	19	19	1	23	-
UnitedHealthcare	284	66	1,372	707	287	898	267	1,332	88
PERS Choice	605	1,065	7,534	1,487	1,558	1,676	491	3,000	295
PERS Select	11	5	428	62	61	64	15	180	21
PERSCare	728	287	2,360	1,033	579	1,439	409	1,650	129
САНР	-	4,474	-	5	-	-	-	1	-
ССРОА	1	1	3,835	-	-	-	-	1	-
PORAC	-	-	10	170	5	-	-	-	-
Western Health	4	3	48	<u>15</u>	<u>3</u>	23	8	7	<u>1</u>
Total	2,560	6,776	24,717	6,052	3,563	7,137	1,973	9,920	906
	Bargaining Unit 16	Bargaining Unit 18	Bargaining Unit 19	CSU	Judicial	Exempt Excluded Executive	Other	SEIU	Total
Anthem Blue Cross	9	47	42	241	20	43	29	832	1,946
Blue Shield	20	315	89	686	26	223	160	2,837	7,683
Health Net	3	57	15	121	21	11	10	304	845
Kaiser	289	1,933	1,272	9,020	296	1,608	3,189	30,285	65,643
Kaiser Out-of-State	5	40	18	296	5	32	75	449	1,242
Sharp	2	1	4	79	-	2	2	121	341
UnitedHealthcare	85	665	374	3,474	164	562	851	10,371	21,847
PERS Choice	532	1,187	945	9,165	245	862	2,618	12,611	45,876
PERS Select	17	31	29	231	6	22	31	520	1,734
PERSCare	509	697	778	8,100	235	842	4,503	11,445	35,723
	-	-	-	-	-	9	698	1	5,188
CAHP					-	19	22	5	3,884
САНР ССРОА	-	-	-	-					
ССРОА		-			-	5			
	- - <u>2</u>		- - <u>5</u>	56 <u>14</u>	- <u>1</u>	5 <u>22</u>	8 <u>8</u>	5 <u>320</u>	259 <u>490</u>



A2. Summary	of the	Participant Data
-------------	--------	------------------

California State Employees									
Counts of Current Retirees by Medical/Rx Benefit Plan and Coverage									
		One Party Two Party Family						tal	
	Male	Female	Male	Female	Male	Female	Male	Female	
Anthem Blue Cross	226	497	484	409	218	112	928	1,018	
Blue Shield	1,223	2,469	1,472	966	1,104	449	3,799	3,884	
Health Net	127	253	134	123	137	71	398	447	
Kaiser	10,860	24,336	14,714	10,524	3,441	1,768	29,015	36,628	
Kaiser Out-of-State	208	529	291	172	30	12	529	713	
Sharp	44	66	56	71	67	37	167	174	
UnitedHealthcare	3,531	7,948	5,170	3,748	917	533	9,618	12,229	
PERS Choice	7,544	13,944	14,118	6,450	2,889	931	24,551	21,325	
PERS Select	232	329	530	264	273	106	1,035	699	
PERSCare	6,019	15,962	8,354	4,551	596	241	14,969	20,754	
САНР	630	849	2,511	135	945	118	4,086	1,102	
ССРОА	508	511	1,353	283	1,062	167	2,923	961	
PORAC	26	36	118	13	55	11	199	60	
Western Health	<u>47</u>	<u>173</u>	<u> 60 </u>	<u>118</u>	<u>63</u>	<u>29</u>	<u>170</u>	320	
Total	31,225	67,902	49,365	27,827	11,797	4,585	92,387	100,314	



A3. Summary	of the	Participant Data
-------------	--------	------------------

California State Employees								
Distribution of Currer	nt Retirees by I	Medical/Rx Bei	nefit Plan					
	Under 65	At Least 65	Total					
Anthem Blue Cross	1,160	786	1,946					
Blue Shield	7,213	470	7,683					
Health Net	803	42	845					
Kaiser	19,229	46,414	65,643					
Kaiser Out-of-State	193	1,049	1,242					
Sharp	335	6	341					
UnitedHealthcare	3,615	18,232	21,847					
PERS Choice	13,300	32,576	45,876					
PERS Select	1,117	617	1,734					
PERSCare	3,154	32,569	35,723					
САНР	2,196	2,992	5,188					
ССРОА	2,931	953	3,884					
PORAC	130	129	259					
Western Health	<u>483</u>	<u>_7</u>	<u>490</u>					
Total	55,859	136,842	192,701					
Distribution of C	urrent Retirees	s by Coverage [·]	Туре					
	Under 65	At Least 65	Total					
One Party	21,949	77,178	99,127					
Two Party	21,377	55,815	77,192					
Family	<u>12,533</u>	3,849	<u>16,382</u>					
Total	55,859	136,842	192,701					



California State Employees									
Distribution	of Retiree Med	ical/Rx Benefit	t by Age						
Attained Age	Attained Age Male Female Total								
Under 40	263	238	501						
40-44	350	273	623						
45-49	694	654	1,348						
50-54	3,656	2,341	5,997						
55-59	9,013	8,166	17,179						
60-64	13,793	16,418	30,211						
65-69	18,141	21,223	39,364						
70-74	18,625	18,392	37,017						
75-79	12,569	12,576	25,145						
80-84	8,007	8,680	16,687						
85-89	4,704	6,156	10,860						
90 & Over	2,572	5,197	7,769						
Totals	92,387	100,314	192,701						

A4. Summary of the Participant Data



A5. Summary of the Participant Data

			Califo	rnia State E	mployees							
	Counts of Current Retirees by Dental Benefit Plan and Valuation Group											
	Bargaining Unit 2	Bargaining Unit 5	Bargaining Unit 6	Bargaining Unit 7	Bargaining Unit 8	Bargaining Unit 9	Bargaining Unit 10	Bargaining Unit 12	Bargaining Unit 13			
Delta Dental PPO	350	580	4,531	1,025	455	1,397	275	1,617	188			
Delta Dental	2,197	2,601	19,271	4,829	2,947	5,540	1,651	7,441	656			
Safeguard	26	82	335	141	58	118	17	262	36			
DeltaCare USA	22	33	311	116	29	105	25	483	18			
CAHP/Blue Cross	-	3,369	-	2	-	-	-	1	-			
Premier Access	-	1	28	3	3	-	1	8	1			
Western Dental	<u>1</u>	2	<u>188</u>	4	2	<u>1</u>	<u>1</u>	<u>17</u>	<u>-</u>			
Total	2,596	6,668	24,664	6,120	3,494	7,161	1,970	9,829	899			
	Bargaining Unit 16	Bargaining Unit 18	Bargaining Unit 19	CSU	Judicial	Exempt Excluded Executive	Other	SEIU	Total			
Delta Dental PPO	202	715	570	-	146	694	1,829	10,877	25,451			
Delta Dental	1,264	3,711	2,867	30,243	860	3,551	9,662	56,906	156,197			
Safeguard	13	293	61	-	15	45	538	1,282	3,322			
DeltaCare USA	8	122	57	1,525	7	46	249	2,374	5 <i>,</i> 530			
CAHP/Blue Cross	-	-	-	-	-	1	22	-	3,395			
Premier Access	-	3	5	-	-	1	1	52	107			
Western Dental		<u>19</u>	<u>7</u>	_	<u>1</u>	_	<u>6</u>	<u>116</u>	<u>365</u>			
Total	1,487	4,863	3,567	31,768	1,029	4,338	12,307	71,607	194,367			



A6. Summary of the Participant Data

California State Employees										
Counts of Current Retirees by Dental Benefit Plan and Coverage										
	One	Party	Тwo	Party	Far	nily	Тс	tal		
	Male	Female	Male	Female	Male	Female	Male	Female		
Delta Dental PPO	3,299	7,688	7,250	4,145	2,233	836	12,782	12,669		
Delta Dental	25,293	55,064	39,951	24,425	8,060	3,404	73,304	82,893		
Safeguard	631	1,460	717	357	109	48	1,457	1,865		
DeltaCare USA	1,059	2,376	1,078	712	185	120	2,322	3,208		
CAHP/Blue Cross	390	330	1,776	108	712	79	2,878	517		
Premier Access	15	31	27	18	12	4	54	53		
Western Dental	<u>67</u>	<u>94</u>	<u>81</u>	<u>46</u>	<u>58</u>	<u>19</u>	206	<u>159</u>		
Total	30,754	67,043	50,880	29,811	11,369	4,510	93,003	101,364		



A7. Summary of the Participant Data

California State Employees								
Distribution of Current Retirees by Dental Benefit Plan								
	Under 65 At Least 65 Tota							
Delta Dental PPO	8,942	16,509	25,451					
Delta Dental	41,270	114,927	156,197					
Safeguard	698	2,624	3,322					
DeltaCare USA	1,284	4,246	5,530					
CAHP/Blue Cross	1,653	1,742	3,395					
Premier Access	65	42	107					
Western Dental	<u>252</u>	<u>113</u>	<u>365</u>					
Total	54,164	140,203	194,367					
Distribution of	Current Retirees b	oy Dental Benefit (Coverage Type					
	Under 65	At Least 65	Total					
One Party	20,869	76,928	97,797					
Two Party	21,307	59,384	80,691					
Family	<u>11,988</u>	<u>3,891</u>	<u>15,879</u>					
Total	54,164	140,203	194,367					



California State Employees									
Distribution of Retiree Dental Benefit Plan by Age									
Attained Age	ttained Age Male Female Total								
Under 40	225	206	431						
40-44	324	245	569						
45-49	637	602	1,239						
50-54	3,412	2,164	5,576						
55-59	8,693	7,893	16,586						
60-64	13,519	16,244	29,763						
65-69	18,342	21,402	39,744						
70-74	19,031	18,913	37,944						
75-79	12,910	12,981	25,891						
80-84	8,280	8,929	17,209						
85-89	4,929	6,431	11,360						
90 & Over	2,701	5,354	8,055						
Totals	93,003	101,364	194,367						

A8. Summary of the Participant Data



B1. Summary	of the	Participant Data
--------------------	--------	-------------------------

	California State Employees									
Distribution of All Active Members by Age and Service										
Attained Age	Years of Service to Valuation Date									
Attained Age	0 - 4	5 - 9	10 - 14	15 - 19	20 - 24	25 - 29	30 Plus	No.		
Under 20	82	-	-	-	-	-	-	82		
20-24	4,918	17	-	-	-	-	-	4,935		
25-29	19,998	2,156	23	-	-	-	-	22,177		
30-34	19,903	8,553	3,473	18	-	-	-	31,947		
35-39	14,950	8,433	10,941	1,964	25	-	-	36,313		
40-44	10,272	6,229	9,822	7,507	1,884	31	-	35,745		
45-49	8,330	5,269	8,676	8,256	7,100	1,944	59	39,634		
50-54	6,659	4,339	6,927	6,811	6,224	5,123	1,631	37,714		
55-59	5,591	3,891	5,746	5,601	4,664	4,308	3,938	33,739		
60-64	3,380	2,847	4,089	3,931	2,795	2,311	2,632	21,985		
65 & Over	2,041	1,726	2,469	2,070	1,331	1,022	1,387	12,046		
Totals	96,124	43,460	52,166	36,158	24,023	14,739	9,647	276,317		



C1. Summary of the Participant Data

	California State Employees										
	Counts of Current Active Participants and Retirees by Valuation Group										
	Bargaining Unit	Bargaining Unit	Bargaining Unit	Bargaining Unit	Bargaining Unit	Bargaining Unit	Bargaining Unit	Bargaining Unit	Bargaining Unit		
	2	5	6	7	8	9	10	12	13		
Active Participants	4,488	7,392	31,412	7,717	6,178	13,265	4,048	13,053	975		
Retired Participants	<u>2,560</u>	<u>6,776</u>	<u>24,717</u>	<u>6,052</u>	<u>3,563</u>	<u>7,137</u>	<u>1,973</u>	<u>9,920</u>	<u>906</u>		
Total Participants	7,048	14,168	56,129	13,769	9,741	20,402	6,021	22,973	1,881		
	Bargaining Unit 16	Bargaining Unit 18	Bargaining Unit 19	CSU	Judicial	Exempt Excluded Executive	Other	SEIU	Total		
Active Participants	1,621	6,228	5,744	49,249	1,617	6,926	4,281	112,123	276,317		
Retired Participants	<u>1,473</u>	<u>4,979</u>	<u>3,571</u>	<u>31,483</u>	<u>1,019</u>	<u>4,262</u>	12,204	70,106	<u>192,701</u>		
Total Participants	3,094	11,207	9,315	80,732	2,636	11,188	16,485	182,229	469,018		



SECTION E

SUMMARY OF ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS AND METHODS

The actuarial assumptions used in the actuarial valuation are shown in this section. Actuarial assumptions that are specific to certain groups (i.e., State Miscellaneous, State Industrial, CHP, POFF, State Safety, JRS, and LRS) are discussed under the Demographic and Certain Economic Assumptions subsection and were based on the most recent pension actuarial valuation reports produced by CalPERS. Assumptions that are common to all types of members and unique to the OPEB valuation are shown in the Healthcare and Other Economic Assumptions subsection. The pension related actuarial assumptions were updated by CalPERS, and were first recognized in the OPEB actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2018. The healthcare related assumptions are based on the recommendations from the 2018 experience review for the years July 1, 2014, to June 30, 2018, and were approved by the SCO.

Actuarial Assumptions and Methods

An actuarial valuation measures the program's funded status and annual funding or accounting costs based on the actuarial assumptions and methods selected. The funded status compares assets to actuarial accrued liabilities, and the annual cost represents the normal cost plus an amortization of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability.

In the actuarial valuation process, certain economic and demographic assumptions are made relating to the projection of benefits and the timing and duration of benefits. The stream of expected projected benefits is discounted to a present value as of the actuarial valuation date. The present value is then spread over past service (actuarial accrued liability), and service for the current year (normal cost) based on the chosen actuarial cost method.

The Actuarial Valuation of the State's OPEB is similar to the Actuarial Valuations performed for the State's pension plans. The demographic assumptions (rates of retirement, termination, disability and mortality, etc.) used in this OPEB Actuarial Valuation were identical to those used in the most recent CalPERS Actuarial Valuations. The demographic assumptions are disclosed in Section F of this report.

In addition, the actuarial cost method (entry-age normal) is identical to the one used in the most recent CalPERS Actuarial Valuation for the State Plan of the California Public Employees' Retirement System.

The discount rate selected was 6.75 percent for the actuarial valuation of the fully funded policy. A discount rate of 6.75 percent can be supported for the actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2019, provided the sponsor makes pre-funding contributions as defined by statute and pre-funding contributions are invested in CalPERS CERBT Strategy 1.



Summary of Actuarial Assumptions and Methods

For purposes of GASB Nos. 74 and 75 financial reporting, liabilities are discounted using a blended discount rate. The blended discount rate is based on a (1) 20-year general obligation bond index if benefits are financed on a pay-as-you-go basis and (2) the expected return on trust assets if pre-funding assets are available to pay benefits. The following table shows the blended discount rates at June 30, 2018, and June 30, 2019, for each respective actuarial valuation group.

BLENDED DISCOUNT RATES							
Actuarial Valuation Group	June 30, 2018	June 30, 2019					
Attorneys and Hearing Officers (BU2)	4.072%	3.711%					
Highway Patrol (BU5)	4.282%	3.851%					
Corrections (BU6)	4.133%	3.726%					
Protective Services and Public Safety (BU7)	4.066%	3.654%					
Firefighters (BU8)	4.152%	3.776%					
Professional Engineers (BU9)	3.953%	3.586%					
Professional Scientific (BU10)	4.084%	3.690%					
Craft and Maintenance (BU12)	4.010%	3.604%					
Stationary Engineers (BU13)	3.906%	3.516%					
Physicians, Dentists, and Podiatrists (BU16)	4.112%	3.772%					
Psychiatric Technicians (BU18)	4.080%	3.705%					
Health and Social Services/Professional (BU19)	4.159%	3.757%					
California State University	3.620%	3.130%					
Judicial Branch	4.118%	3.724%					
Exempt/Excluded/Executive	3.620%	3.568%					
Other	3.620%	3.130%					
Service Employees International Union (SEIU)	3.987%	3.604%					

Other assumptions and methods unique to OPEB valuations are consistent with CalPERS OPEB assumption parameters, with the exception of the dental trend rates, as follows:

Healthcare trend – Select and ultimate healthcare trend rates were developed separately for the PPO, prescription drug, HMO, and dental plans. For the Pre-Medicare and Post-Medicare medical and drug plans, the select and ultimate trend rates were set at actual increases for 2020 and 7.50 percent in 2021 graded down over a six-year period until to a trend rate of 4.50 percent in 2027, remains at 4.50 percent for ten years until the ultimate rate of 4.25 percent is reached in 2037. Based on a review of supporting documentation provided by CalPERS and a review of various publically available trend studies, the 2020 trend rate for the PPO per capita claims costs is assumed to be 4.00 percent for Pre-Medicare medical and Pre-Medicare prescription drug, and 4.00 percent for Post-Medicare medical and Post-Medicare prescription drug. Beginning in the year 2023 for Future Retirees, the ultimate trend rate on the Employer's explicit contribution includes an additional 0.18 percent to account for the Excise Tax under Federal Healthcare Reform. For the dental plans, select and ultimate trend rates were set at 0.01 percent for 2020



Summary of Actuarial Assumptions and Methods

and 4.50 percent for 2021 and beyond. The trend rates are net of any increases due to the potential wear-away of the EGWP-Wrap design savings in 2026. Effective trend for the Post-Medicare plans affected by the EGWP-Wrap design would be higher until the year 2026. These higher effective trend rates gradually eliminate the approximately 20 percent savings for PERSCare, 24 percent savings for PERS Choice and 15 percent savings for the HMO plans remaining as of June 30, 2019, due to the EGWP-Wrap plan design. After seven years, the ultimate savings are assumed to equal 14 percent for PERSCare, 17 percent for PERS Choice, and 10 percent for HMO plans.

- Per capita claim costs Claims costs were developed separately for the PPO, prescription drug, HMO, and dental plans. Costs were developed for pre-Medicare and post-Medicare coverage at each respective age and gender, using overall average costs adjusted for morbidity.
- Other healthcare assumptions The proportion of members selecting a particular plan and coverage at retirement was based on the most current census and enrollment data.



Healthcare and Other Economic Assumptions

Health Cost and Premium Increases - See table below

		Trend Assumption - Per Capita Costs									
		PPO	Plans		НМО	Plans					
	Pre-Me	edicare	Post-M	edicare	Pre-Medicare	Post-Medicare					
Year	Medical	Rx	Medical	Rx	Medical/Rx	Medical/Rx	Dental				
2020	4.00%	4.00%	4.00%	4.00%	6.16%	6.42%	0.01%				
2021	7.50%	7.50%	7.50%	7.50%	7.50%	7.50%	4.50%				
2022	7.00%	7.00%	7.00%	7.00%	7.00%	7.00%	4.50%				
2023	6.50%	6.50%	6.50%	6.50%	6.50%	6.50%	4.50%				
2024	6.00%	6.00%	6.00%	6.00%	6.00%	6.00%	4.50%				
2025	5.50%	5.50%	5.50%	5.50%	5.50%	5.50%	4.50%				
2026	5.00%	5.00%	5.00%	5.00%	5.00%	5.00%	4.50%				
2027	4.50%	4.50%	4.50%	4.50%	4.50%	4.50%	4.50%				
2028-2036	4.50%	4.50%	4.50%	4.50%	4.50%	4.50%	4.50%				
2037 and	4.25%	4.25%	4.25%	4.25%	4.25%	4.25%	4.25%				
Beyond	4.23%	4.23%	4.23%	4.25%	4.25%	4.23%	4.23%				

	Trend Assumption - Premiums and Statutory Cap						
	PPO Plans		HMO Plans				
	Pre-Medicare	Post-Medicare	Pre-Medicare	Post-Medicare			Statutory
Year	Medical/Rx	Medical/Rx	Medical/Rx	Medical/Rx	Dental	Part B	Сар
2020	3.71%	-1.59%	6.33%	6.77%	0.01%	6.72%	4.50%
2021	7.50%	7.50%	7.50%	7.50%	4.50%	4.50%	7.50%
2022	7.00%	7.00%	7.00%	7.00%	4.50%	4.50%	7.00%
2023	6.50%	6.50%	6.50%	6.50%	4.50%	4.50%	6.50%*
2024	6.00%	6.00%	6.00%	6.00%	4.50%	4.50%	6.00%
2025	5.50%	5.50%	5.50%	5.50%	4.50%	4.50%	5.50%
2026	5.00%	5.00%	5.00%	5.00%	4.50%	4.50%	5.00%
2027	4.50%	4.50%	4.50%	4.50%	4.50%	4.50%	4.50%
2028-2036	4.50%	4.50%	4.50%	4.50%	4.50%	4.50%	4.50%
2037 and Beyond	4.25%	4.25%	4.25%	4.25%	4.25%	4.25%	4.25%

*Based on actual increases

*For Future Retirees, the ultimate trend rate on the Employer's explicit contribution includes an additional 0.18 percent to account for the Excise Tax under Federal Healthcare Reform.

All increases are assumed to occur January 1st of each year beginning January 1, 2020.

The trend rates shown above are net of any increases due to the potential wear-away of the EGWP-Wrap design changes by 2026. Effective trend for the Post-Medicare plans affected by the EGWP-Wrap design changes would be higher until the year 2026. These higher effective trend rates gradually eliminate the approximately 20 percent savings for PERSCare, 24 percent savings for PERS Choice and 15 percent savings for the HMO plans remaining as of June 30, 2019, due to the EGWP-Wrap plan design. After seven years, the ultimate savings are assumed to equal 14 percent for PERSCare, 17 percent for PERS Choice, and 10 percent for HMO plans.

Retired members as of June 30, 2019, are assumed to pay \$135.50 in 2019 and other members as of June 30, 2019, are assumed to pay \$135.50 in 2019 for Medicare Part B premiums.



Participation percentage: Participation in the health benefits program is based upon the percent of premium that the employer contribution covers at retirement. We have assumed the following election percentages:

Employer Contribution Percentage of Premium	Participation Rate for Retirees with Healthcare Coverage While Active	Participation Rate for Retirees without Healthcare Coverage While Active
less than 50%	67%	12%
50% to 75%	91%	15%
75% to 90%	96%	20%
90% to 100%	98%	40%

Percent of Disabilities Treated as Post-Medicare: Four percent of Public Safety disabilities and 33 percent of all other disabilities are assumed to be eligible for Medicare.

Coverage and Continuance Assumptions: It is assumed that 40 percent of participating members will elect one-party coverage, while 60 percent will elect two-party coverage. Of the members electing two-party coverage, we assumed that 100 percent of surviving spouses would continue coverage after the death of the retiree.

Price Inflation: Price inflation is assumed to be 2.25 percent.

Wage inflation: Wage inflation is assumed to be 2.50 percent.



Summary of Actuarial Assumptions and Methods

Aging Factors: In any given year, the cost of medical and prescription drug benefits vary by age. As the ages of employees and retirees in the covered population increase so does the cost of benefits. Morbidity tables are employed to develop Per Capita Costs at every relevant age. The following table represents the percent by which the cost of benefits for non-disabled lives at one age is higher than the cost for the previous age. For example, according to the following table, the cost of benefits for a male in the PPO plan age 55 is 2.58 percent higher than for one age 54. These percentages below are separate from the annual Medical Trend, which operates to increase costs independent of and in addition to the Aging Factors shown below. These factors, with the exception of the Pre-Medicare HMO rates, were developed using actual experience.

Aging factors for the PPO and prescription drug plans were based on gross claim and enrollment experience data broken out by five-year age bands, for calendar years 2014 through 2018. Average gross costs were developed by gender at each age interval for each respective calendar year. These costs were weighted, smoothed, and the average increase at each age was estimated using interpolation formulas. Aging factors for the HMO were calculated by adjusting the PPO medical factors to account for relative differences between HMO and PPO plans.

	Cost Increase by Age							
Sample	Medica	al - PPO	Rx -	PPO	HN	/10		
Ages	Male	Female	Male	Female	Male	Female		
45	2.65%	2.24%	3.58%	3.83%	3.21%	1.58%		
50	2.63%	2.18%	2.85%	2.96%	3.14%	1.67%		
55	2.58%	2.12%	2.32%	2.35%	3.20%	1.90%		
60	2.51%	2.06%	1.93%	1.90%	2.88%	1.98%		
65	2.43%	1.99%	1.62%	1.55%	2.65%	1.89%		
70	2.35%	1.92%	1.36%	1.26%	2.48%	1.85%		
75	2.26%	1.86%	1.15%	1.02%	2.33%	1.82%		
80	2.17%	1.79%	0.97%	0.81%	2.21%	1.79%		
85	2.09%	1.73%	0.81%	0.62%	2.10%	1.76%		
90	2.01%	1.67%	0.67%	0.45%	2.00%	1.73%		

Aged Per Capita Claim Cost – **Medical and Prescription:** The following tables represent the assumed per capita claims costs for sample ages. Costs were developed separately for PERS Choice, PERSCare, and the HMO plans. Costs for the PERS Choice and PERSCare plans were based on paid and incurred experience and enrollment information. Costs for the HMO plans were based on the aggregate premium and enrollment data for active and retired members. The per capita costs for PERS Select and the two association PPOs (CAHP and PORAC) were developed using costs for PERS Choice adjusted by the ratio of single premium for the association plan and PERS Choice. The average costs for each respective plan were age adjusted using the morbidity factors described above.



Summary of Actuarial Assumptions and Methods

Costs for Retirees and Spouses Expected Monthly Per Capita Costs								
		PERS Cho	oice - PPO					
	Med	dical	Prescr	iption				
Age	Male	Female	Male	Female				
50	\$587.04	\$587.04	\$175.84	\$175.84				
55	668.39	654.00	202.33	203.44				
60	759.22	726.38	226.93	228.51				
65	150.70	141.00	215.45	216.65				
70	169.95	155.59	233.43	233.92				
75	190.85	171.13	249.80	249.02				
80	213.42	187.62	264.54	261.93				

Costs for Retirees and Spouses Expected Monthly Per Capita Costs								
		PERSCa	re - PPO					
	Med	dical	Prescr	iption				
Age	Male	Female	Male	Female				
50	\$737.25	\$737.25	\$202.02	\$202.02				
55	839.42	821.35	232.45	233.73				
60	953.49	912.24	260.73	262.54				
65	162.68	152.21	232.00	233.30				
70	183.46	167.96	251.37	251.90				
75	206.03	184.73	268.99	268.16				
80	230.39	202.53	284.87	282.06				

Costs for Retirees and Spouses (Expected Monthly Per Capita Costs)						
	All HM	O Plans				
	Medie	cal/Rx				
Age	Male	Female				
50	\$682.68	\$755.04				
55	797.43	819.37				
60	933.04	898.08				
65	279.56	257.50				
70	318.59	282.84				
75	360.02	310.00				
80	404.02	339.26				



PPO Per Capita Claim Cost Expense Load: The following table shows the administrative expenses, per member per month, included in the PPO medical per capita claims costs before application of the aging factors.

Medical Plan	Per Member Per Month Expenses
PERS Choice - Pre-Medicare	\$24.00
PERS Choice - Post-Medicare	\$34.77
PERSCare - Pre-Medicare	\$26.44
PERSCare - Post-Medicare	\$36.14

Per Capita Claim Cost – Dental: The following table represents the assumed per capita claims costs for sample ages. Costs were developed separately for DPO/Indemnity and the Pre-Paid Plans, based on premium, claim and enrollment data for calendar years 2019 and 2020. Dental costs do not vary by age or gender.



Summary of Actuarial Assumptions and Methods

Costs for Retirees and Spouses Expected Monthly Per Capita Costs - Non CSU Retirees								
		Denta	l Plans					
	DPO/In	demnity	Pre-Pa	id Plans				
Age	First Person	Second Person	First Person	Second Person				
50	\$51.89	\$38.74	\$19.50	\$11.64				
55	51.89	38.74	19.50	11.64				
60	51.89	38.74	19.50	11.64				
65	51.89	38.74	19.50	11.64				
70	51.89	38.74	19.50	11.64				
75	51.89	38.74	19.50	11.64				
80	51.89	38.74	19.50	11.64				

Costs for Retirees and Spouses Expected Monthly Per Capita Costs - CSU Retirees								
		Denta	l Plans					
	DPO/In	demnity	Pre-Pa	id Plans				
Age	First Person	Second Person	First Person	Second Person				
50	\$33.61	\$29.00	\$20.79	\$12.53				
55	33.61	29.00	20.79	12.53				
60	33.61	29.00	20.79	12.53				
65	33.61	29.00	20.79	12.53				
70	33.61	29.00	20.79	12.53				
75	33.61	29.00	20.79	12.53				
80	33.61	29.00	20.79	12.53				



Adjustments for Disabled Members: Claims for disabled members were increased by 10 percent if not eligible for Medicare and 40 percent if eligible for Medicare.

Adjustments for Children: Claims for current general retirees and survivors were increased by 7.5 percent for medical claims and prescription drug claims and 10.5 percent for dental claims until the retiree or survivor reaches age 65. Claims for current public safety retirees and survivors were increased by 8.0 percent for medical claims and prescription drug claims and 11.5 percent for dental claims until the retirees and survivors of future general retirees by 2.5 percent for medical claims and prescription drug claims were increased for future general retirees by 2.5 percent for medical claims and prescription drug claims and 2.0 percent for dental claims until the retiree or survivor reaches age 65. The composite claims age 65. The composite claims and prescription drug claims and 2.0 percent for dental claims until the retiree or survivor reaches age 65. The composite claims and prescription drug claims and 2.0 percent for dental claims until the retiree or survivor so future public safety retirees and survivors of future public safety retirees and survivors of future public safety retirees and survivors of future public safety retirees by 3.0 percent for medical claims and prescription drug claims and 2.5 percent for dental claims until the retiree or survivor reaches age 65.

Medicare Part B Premiums: Retired members as of June 30, 2019, are assumed to pay \$135.50 in 2019 and other members as of June 30, 2019, are assumed to pay \$135.50 in 2019. Our actuarial valuation assumes Social Security benefits increase at 4.5 percent per year through 2036 and 4.25 percent per year beginning in 2037 and thereafter and will be sufficient to cover projected increases in the Part B premium. Our actuarial valuation does not consider the member's income when estimating Part B premiums.

Employer Group Waiver Plan: The per capita costs include approximately 20 percent savings for PERSCare, 24 percent savings for PERS Choice and 15 percent savings for the other Medicare plans as of June 30, 2019, due to the EGWP-Wrap plan design. It was assumed that the EGWP savings would wear away ratably over the next seven years, and the trend rates for post-Medicare prescription benefits were adjusted accordingly.

Projection Assumptions: Operating expenses are assumed to be equal to 0.02 percent of CERBT assets at the beginning of the year plus 0.25 percent of expected employer benefit payments during the year. Prefunding contributions are assumed to increase proportionately until the targeted year that 100 percent of normal costs are required to be made. Benefits are paid from each respective CERBT account when the full-funding actuarial accrued liability is fully financed.

Closed Group Projections: The development of the single equivalent discount rate for each respective valuation group was based on a closed group projection of assets and liabilities to determine the plan year that the valuation group is fully funded. For this purpose, we assumed: (i) invested assets would not be used to pay benefits until the valuation group is fully funded, (ii) invested assets would earn 6.75 percent per year and (iii) actuarial liabilities are discounted using a rate of 6.75 percent. The projections do not include liabilities or assets for future members because it is assumed that the normal costs for future members will be fully financed by the sponsor and active members resulting in no unfunded actuarial liability for future members. The total pre-funding contributions, based on the total normal costs for both current members and future members, are not included in this report.

Data Processing:

• An assumption for active dental plan participation was made for all active employees because we are unable to match records between the medical and dental data files. Active members are



assumed to have the following dental coverage: 90 percent DPO/Indemnity, 5 percent Pre-paid Plans, and 5 percent waived.

Actuarial Method

The individual entry-age normal actuarial cost method of valuation was used in determining liabilities and normal cost. Differences between assumed experience and actual experience ("actuarial gains and/or losses") become part of actuarial accrued liabilities.

In performing the actuarial valuation using the Entry Age Normal (EAN) method, the same salary scale was used in this actuarial valuation as was used in the pension actuarial valuations for these groups. This results in normal cost dollars that increase at the same rate as the normal cost dollars in the pension actuarial valuation for this same group of people. Normal cost for actives hired after the valuation date was not included in this actuarial valuation and was not factored into the Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC).

Unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities are amortized from June 30, 2019, for purposes of calculating the ADC to produce payments (principal & interest), which are a level percent of payroll, over a closed 30-year period effective as of June 30, 2017, with 28 years remaining as of June 30, 2019.



SECTION F

PENSION-RELATED ASSUMPTIONS

Economic Assumptions:

Salary Growth

Annual increases vary by entry age and service. See sample rates in table below. Wage inflation assumption is added to these factors for total salary growth.

		Annual Percentage Increase								
	Sta		llaneous							
		Tier 1 & Tier 2				Industrial				
Duration of Comi		Entry	-		-	20	Entry Age			
Duration of Servio		30	4			20	30	40		
0	6.4%	5.6%	4.4			7.3%	7.0%	6.4%		
3	5.3%	4.4%	3.1			5.1%	4.7%	3.9%		
5	4.3%	3.6%	2.4			4.0%	3.6%	2.8%		
10	2.3%	1.8%	1.2			2.7%	2.2%	1.4%		
15	1.5%	1.2%	0.8	3%		1.8%	1.5%	1.1%		
20	1.0%	0.9%	0.6	5%		1.2%	1.0%	0.8%		
25	0.7%	0.6%	0.4	1%		0.8%	0.7%	0.6%		
30	0.5%	0.4%	0.3	3%		0.5%	0.5%	0.4%		
		Safety				POFF				
		Entry Age				Entry Age				
Duration of Servio	ce 20	30	4	0	. <u>-</u>	20	30	40		
0	5.0%	5.0%	5.0)%		14.7%	14.7%	14.7%		
3	3.1%	3.1%	3.1	L%		6.7%	6.7%	6.7%		
5	2.1%	2.1%	2.2	L%		4.0%	4.0%	4.0%		
10	0.8%	0.8%	0.8	3%		1.2%	1.2%	1.2%		
15	0.7%	0.7%	0.7	7%		0.5%	0.5%	0.5%		
20	0.6%	0.6%	0.6	5%		1.4%	1.4%	1.4%		
25	0.5%	0.5%	0.5	5%		1.5%	1.5%	1.5%		
30	0.5%	0.5%	0.5	5%		1.0%	1.0%	1.0%		
				СНР						
		_		Entry Age						
	Duration of Service		20	30	40					
	0		6.8%	6.8%	6.8%					
	3		4.0%	4.0%	4.0%					
	5		2.4%	2.4%	2.4%					
	10		1.0%	1.0%	1.0%					
	15		1.0%	1.0%	1.0%					
	20		1.8%	1.8%	1.8%					
	25		2.0%	2.0%	2.0%					



Annual increases for members of JRS I, JRS II and LRS are assumed to be 2.5% for all years of service and ages.

Overall Payroll Growth

2.50% compounded annually for all members (used in projecting the payroll over which the unfunded liability is amortized). For the State Miscellaneous plan, the payroll of the Second Tier members is assumed to decrease in accordance with actuarial assumptions based on the assumption that all new entrants will elect the State Miscellaneous First Tier. The payroll of the First Tier members is assumed to grow at the rate necessary for the overall payroll of the State Miscellaneous plan to grow annually at a rate of 2.50%.

Inflation

2.25% compounded annually.



Demographic Assumptions:

Age of Spouse

It is assumed that female spouses are three years younger than male spouses.

Miscellaneous Assumptions:

Tier 2 Members Electing Tier 1 Benefits

Tier 2 members of both the State Miscellaneous and State Industrial plans have the right to convert their Tier 2 service to Tier 1 service provided that they make up the shortfall in their accumulated contributions with interest. In this actuarial valuation, we have assumed that all Tier 2 members will elect to convert their Tier 2 service to Tier 1 service.



PLAN SPECIFIC ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS

STATE MISCELLANEOUS TIER 1 AND TIER 2

Service Retirement – Classic Members

Rates vary by age and service. See sample rates in table below.

	Years of Service							
Attained	5	10	15	20	25	30	35	
Age		10		20	25			
50	0.007	0.010	0.014	0.019	0.019	0.022	0.029	
52	0.013	0.012	0.013	0.018	0.020	0.023	0.031	
54	0.011	0.017	0.020	0.030	0.035	0.039	0.049	
56	0.023	0.035	0.043	0.062	0.083	0.106	0.165	
58	0.027	0.043	0.047	0.074	0.089	0.121	0.170	
60	0.037	0.062	0.075	0.119	0.141	0.175	0.246	
62	0.087	0.127	0.152	0.221	0.263	0.310	0.356	
65	0.090	0.158	0.175	0.245	0.249	0.301	0.344	
70	0.140	0.176	0.184	0.223	0.276	0.299	0.299	
75	1.000	1.000	1.000	1.000	1.000	1.000	1.000	

Service Retirement – PEPRA Members

Rates vary by age and service. See sample rates in table below.

	Years of Service						
Attained Age	5	10	15	20	25	30	35
50	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000
52	0.009	0.008	0.009	0.013	0.014	0.016	0.022
54	0.008	0.012	0.014	0.021	0.025	0.027	0.034
56	0.016	0.025	0.030	0.043	0.058	0.074	0.116
58	0.020	0.032	0.035	0.056	0.067	0.091	0.128
60	0.030	0.050	0.060	0.095	0.113	0.140	0.197
62	0.070	0.102	0.122	0.177	0.210	0.248	0.285
65	0.081	0.142	0.158	0.221	0.224	0.271	0.310
70	0.140	0.176	0.184	0.223	0.276	0.299	0.299
75	1.000	1.000	1.000	1.000	1.000	1.000	1.000



STATE MISCELLANEOUS TIER 1 AND TIER 2 (CONTINUED)

Termination with Refund

Rates vary by entry age and service. See sample rates in table below.

	Entry Age							
Duration of								
Service	20	25	30	35	40			
0	0.1657	0.1657	0.1512	0.1366	0.1292			
1	0.1366	0.1366	0.1216	0.1066	0.0965			
2	0.1106	0.1106	0.0965	0.0825	0.0719			
3	0.0877	0.0877	0.0760	0.0643	0.0554			
4	0.0679	0.0679	0.0600	0.0520	0.0468			
5	0.0272	0.0272	0.0223	0.0174	0.0160			
10	0.0048	0.0048	0.0043	0.0037	0.0027			
15	0.0016	0.0016	0.0012	0.0008	0.0007			
20	0.0011	0.0011	0.0008	0.0005	0.0005			
25	0.0008	0.0008	0.0006	0.0004	0.0003			
30	0.0006	0.0006	0.0004	0.0002	0.0002			

Terminations with Vested Deferred Benefits

Rates vary by entry age and service. See sample rates in table below.

	Entry Age							
Duration of								
Service	20	25	30	35	40			
5	0.0441	0.0441	0.0394	0.0346	0.0289			
6	0.0397	0.0397	0.0357	0.0318	0.0261			
7	0.0355	0.0355	0.0322	0.0289	0.0233			
8	0.0317	0.0317	0.0288	0.0260	0.0206			
9	0.0282	0.0282	0.0257	0.0232	0.0180			
10	0.0251	0.0251	0.0227	0.0204	0.0156			
14	0.0161	0.0161	0.0137	0.0113	0.0085			
15	0.0146	0.0146	0.0122	0.0097	0.0074			
19	0.0104	0.0104	0.0079	0.0054	0.0043			
20	0.0095	0.0095	0.0071	0.0047	0.0038			
24	0.0058	0.0058	0.0037	0.0017	0.0013			
25	0.0050	0.0050	0.0029	0.0008	0.0007			
29	0.0029	0.0029	0.0015	-	-			
30	0.0026	0.0026	0.0013	-	-			



STATE MISCELLANEOUS TIER 1 AND TIER 2 (CONTINUED)

Non-Industrial Death and Disability

Rates vary by age and gender. See sample rates in table below.

	Ma	ale	Female			
Attained Age	Non- Industrial Death	Non- Industrial Disability	Non- Industrial Death	Non- Industrial Disability		
20	0.00022	0.00019	0.00007	0.00039		
25	0.00029	0.00019	0.00011	0.00039		
30	0.00038	0.00019	0.00016	0.00046		
35	0.00049	0.00036	0.00027	0.00096		
40	0.00064	0.00103	0.00037	0.00186		
45	0.00080	0.00204	0.00054	0.00326		
50	0.00116	0.00274	0.00079	0.00405		
55	0.00172	0.00238	0.00120	0.00310		
60	0.00255	0.00200	0.00166	0.00256		

Postretirement Mortality

Rates vary by age and gender for healthy benefit recipients, for non-industrially disabled (disability not job-related) retirees and for retirees who are industrially disabled (disability is job-related). See sample rates in table below.

	Healthy I	Recipients		rially Disabled p-Related)	Industrially Disabled (Job-Related)		
Age	Male	Female	Male	Female	Male	Female	
50	0.00372	0.00346	0.01183	0.01083	0.00372	0.00346	
55	0.00437	0.00410	0.01613	0.01178	0.00437	0.00410	
60	0.00671	0.00476	0.02166	0.01404	0.00671	0.00476	
65	0.00928	0.00637	0.02733	0.01757	0.01113	0.00765	
70	0.01339	0.00926	0.03358	0.02183	0.01607	0.01111	
75	0.02316	0.01635	0.04277	0.02969	0.02779	0.01962	
80	0.03977	0.03007	0.06272	0.04641	0.04773	0.03609	
85	0.07122	0.05418	0.09793	0.07847	0.08547	0.06501	
90	0.13044	0.10089	0.14616	0.13220	0.14348	0.11098	
95	0.21658	0.17698	0.21658	0.21015	0.21658	0.17698	
100	0.32222	0.28151	0.32222	0.32226	0.32222	0.28151	
105	0.46691	0.43491	0.46691	0.43491	0.46691	0.43491	
110	1.00000	1.00000	1.00000	1.00000	1.00000	1.00000	

The postretirement mortality rates above include 15 years of projected ongoing mortality improvement using 90 percent scale MP-2016 published by the Society of Actuaries.



STATE INDUSTRIAL TIER 1 AND TIER 2 (CONTINUED)

Service Retirement – Classic Members

Rates vary by age and service. See sample rates in table below.

Attained	Years of Service								
Age	5	10	15	20	25	30	35		
50	0.006	0.008	0.013	0.019	0.026	0.029	0.036		
52	0.007	0.009	0.015	0.023	0.031	0.034	0.043		
54	0.014	0.020	0.030	0.046	0.062	0.069	0.086		
56	0.028	0.040	0.062	0.094	0.126	0.140	0.174		
58	0.029	0.041	0.064	0.098	0.131	0.145	0.181		
60	0.042	0.060	0.093	0.142	0.191	0.211	0.262		
62	0.079	0.113	0.176	0.266	0.357	0.398	0.493		
65	0.081	0.117	0.182	0.276	0.371	0.413	0.511		
70	0.097	0.139	0.217	0.329	0.443	0.493	0.611		
75	1.000	1.000	1.000	1.000	1.000	1.000	1.000		

Service Retirement – PEPRA Members

Rates vary by age and service. See sample rates in table below.

Attained	Years of Service							
Age	5	10	15	20	25	30	35	
50	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	
52	0.005	0.006	0.011	0.016	0.022	0.024	0.030	
54	0.010	0.014	0.021	0.032	0.043	0.048	0.060	
56	0.020	0.028	0.043	0.066	0.088	0.098	0.122	
58	0.022	0.031	0.048	0.074	0.098	0.109	0.136	
60	0.034	0.048	0.074	0.114	0.153	0.169	0.210	
62	0.063	0.090	0.141	0.213	0.286	0.318	0.394	
65	0.073	0.105	0.164	0.248	0.334	0.372	0.460	
70	0.097	0.139	0.217	0.329	0.443	0.493	0.611	
75	1.000	1.000	1.000	1.000	1.000	1.000	1.000	



STATE INDUSTRIAL TIER 1 AND TIER 2 (CONTINUED)

Termination with Refund

Rates vary by service. See sample rates in table below.

Service									
0	5	10_	15	20	25	30	35	40	45
0.0912	0.0190	0.0029	0.0016	0.0010	0.0006	0.0004	0.0002	0.0001	0.0001

Terminations with Vested Deferred Benefits

Rates vary by entry age and service. See sample rates in table below.

			Entry Age		
Duration of					
Service	20	25	30	35	40
5	0.0496	0.0449	0.0405	0.0356	0.0311
6	0.0470	0.0421	0.0377	0.0328	0.0281
7	0.0442	0.0393	0.0346	0.0297	0.0250
8	0.0414	0.0365	0.0316	0.0267	0.0220
9	0.0384	0.0335	0.0285	0.0234	0.0187
10	0.0353	0.0302	0.0253	0.0201	-
14	0.0311	0.0257	0.0206	0.0152	-
15	0.0302	0.0246	0.0194	-	-
19	0.0248	0.0190	0.0136	-	-
20	0.0232	0.0176	-	-	-
24	0.0173	0.0115	-	-	-
25	0.0159	-	-	-	-
29	0.0091	-	-	-	-
30	-	-	-	-	-



STATE INDUSTRIAL TIER 1 AND TIER 2 (CONTINUED)

Non-Industrial Death, Non-Industrial Disability, Industrial Disability & Industrial Death

Non-Industrial Death rates vary by age and gender. Non-Industrial Disability, Industrial Disability and Industrial Death rates vary by age. See sample rates in table below.

			Non-		
	Non-In	dustrial	Industrial	Industrial	Industrial
	Dea	ath	Disability	Disability	Death
			Male and	Male and	Male and
Attained Age	Male	Female	Female	Female	Female
20	0.00022	0.00007	0.00043	0.00015	0.00004
25	0.00029	0.00011	0.00043	0.00015	0.00006
30	0.00038	0.00016	0.00106	0.00015	0.00007
35	0.00049	0.00027	0.00184	0.00029	0.00009
40	0.00064	0.00037	0.00295	0.00029	0.00010
45	0.00080	0.00054	0.00448	0.00044	0.00012
50	0.00116	0.00079	0.00601	0.00044	0.00013
55	0.00172	0.00120	0.00771	0.00058	0.00015
60	0.00255	0.00166	0.00771	0.00058	0.00016

Postretirement Mortality

Rates vary by age and gender for healthy benefit recipients, for non-industrially disabled (disability not job-related) retirees and for retirees who are industrially disabled (disability is job-related). See sample rates in table below.

			Non-Indust	rially Disabled	Industrial	y Disabled	
	Healthy I	Recipients	(Not Jol	o-Related)	(Job-Related)		
Age	Male	Female	Male	Female	Male	Female	
50	0.00372	0.00346	0.01183	0.01083	0.00372	0.00346	
55	0.00437	0.00410	0.01613	0.01178	0.00437	0.00410	
60	0.00671	0.00476	0.02166	0.01404	0.00671	0.00476	
65	0.00928	0.00637	0.02733	0.01757	0.01113	0.00765	
70	0.01339	0.00926	0.03358	0.02184	0.01607	0.01112	
75	0.02316	0.01635	0.04277	0.02969	0.02779	0.01962	
80	0.03977	0.03007	0.06272	0.04641	0.04773	0.03609	
85	0.07122	0.05418	0.09793	0.07847	0.08547	0.06501	
90	0.13044	0.10089	0.14616	0.13220	0.14348	0.11098	
95	0.21658	0.17698	0.21658	0.21015	0.21658	0.17698	
100	0.32222	0.28151	0.32222	0.32226	0.32222	0.28151	
105	0.46691	0.43491	0.46691	0.43491	0.46691	0.43491	
110	1.00000	1.00000	1.00000	1.00000	1.00000	1.00000	

The postretirement mortality rates above include 15 years of projected ongoing mortality improvement using 90 percent scale MP-2016 published by the Society of Actuaries.



STATE SAFETY

Service Retirement – Classic Members

Rates vary by age and service. See sample rates in table below.

Attained		Years of Service							
Age	5	10	15	20	25	30	35		
50	0.008	0.013	0.020	0.030	0.032	0.039	0.045		
52	0.008	0.017	0.017	0.030	0.030	0.035	0.044		
54	0.016	0.023	0.023	0.034	0.041	0.054	0.099		
56	0.032	0.039	0.058	0.109	0.138	0.171	0.231		
58	0.035	0.047	0.069	0.109	0.132	0.179	0.256		
60	0.048	0.056	0.090	0.154	0.158	0.201	0.257		
62	0.084	0.095	0.140	0.239	0.253	0.308	0.356		
65	0.111	0.138	0.172	0.249	0.257	0.311	0.359		
70	0.137	0.167	0.214	0.281	0.309	0.373	0.401		
75	1.000	1.000	1.000	1.000	1.000	1.000	1.000		

Service Retirement – PEPRA Members

Rates vary by age and service. See sample rates in table below.

Attained		Years of Service								
Age	5	10	15	20	25	30	35			
50	0.007	0.011	0.017	0.026	0.027	0.033	0.038			
52	0.007	0.014	0.014	0.026	0.026	0.030	0.037			
54	0.012	0.017	0.017	0.026	0.031	0.041	0.074			
56	0.024	0.029	0.044	0.082	0.104	0.128	0.173			
58	0.028	0.038	0.055	0.087	0.106	0.143	0.205			
60	0.043	0.050	0.081	0.139	0.142	0.181	0.231			
62	0.067	0.076	0.112	0.191	0.202	0.246	0.285			
65	0.100	0.124	0.155	0.224	0.231	0.280	0.323			
70	0.137	0.167	0.214	0.281	0.309	0.373	0.401			
75	1.000	1.000	1.000	1.000	1.000	1.000	1.000			

Termination with Refund

Rates vary by service. See sample rates in table below.

Service										
_0	1	_2_	3	4	5	10	15	20	25	30
0.1408	0.1014	0.0723	0.0533	0.0444	0.0155	0.0033	0.0019	0.0011	0.0006	0.0004



STATE SAFETY (CONTINUED)

Terminations with Vested Deferred Benefits

Rates vary by service. See sample rates in table below.

					Service	•				
5	6	_7_	8	9	10	15	20	25	30	35
0.0246	0.0218	0.0194	0.0173	0.0155	0.0141	0.0097	0.0073	0.0050	0.0034	0.0000

Non-Industrial Death, Non-Industrial Disability, Industrial Disability & Industrial Death

Non-Industrial Death rates vary by age and gender. Non-Industrial Disability, Industrial Disability and Industrial Death rates vary by age. See sample rates in table below.

			Non-		
	Non-In	dustrial	Industrial	Industrial	Industrial
	Dea	ath	Disability	Disability	Death
			Male and	Male and	Male and
Attained Age	Male	Female	Female	Female	Female
20	0.00022	0.00007	0.00036	0.00002	0.00004
25	0.00029	0.00011	0.00054	0.00076	0.00006
30	0.00038	0.00016	0.00063	0.00170	0.00007
35	0.00049	0.00027	0.00072	0.00264	0.00009
40	0.00064	0.00037	0.00072	0.00360	0.00010
45	0.00080	0.00054	0.00108	0.00457	0.00012
50	0.00116	0.00079	0.00201	0.00557	0.00013
55	0.00172	0.00120	0.00240	0.00658	0.00015
60	0.00255	0.00166	0.00320	0.00762	0.00016



STATE SAFETY (CONTINUED)

Postretirement Mortality

Rates vary by age and gender for healthy benefit recipients and for non-industrially disabled (disability not job-related) retirees. Rates vary by age for retirees who are industrially disabled (disability is job-related). See sample rates in table below.

			Non-Industri	ally Disabled	Industriall	y Disabled	
	Healthy F	Recipients	(Not Job	-Related)	(Job-Related)		
Age	Male	Female	Male	Female	Male	Female	
50	0.00372	0.00346	0.01183	0.01083	0.00372	0.00346	
55	0.00437	0.00410	0.01613	0.01178	0.00437	0.00410	
60	0.00671	0.00476	0.02166	0.01404	0.00671	0.00476	
65	0.00928	0.00637	0.02733	0.01757	0.01113	0.00765	
70	0.01339	0.00926	0.03358	0.02184	0.01607	0.01112	
75	0.02316	0.01635	0.04277	0.02969	0.02779	0.01962	
80	0.03977	0.03007	0.06272	0.04641	0.04773	0.03609	
85	0.07122	0.05418	0.09793	0.07847	0.08547	0.06501	
90	0.13044	0.10089	0.14616	0.13220	0.14348	0.11098	
95	0.21658	0.17698	0.21658	0.21015	0.21658	0.17698	
100	0.32222	0.28151	0.32222	0.32226	0.32222	0.28151	
105	0.46691	0.43491	0.46691	0.43491	0.46691	0.43491	
110	1.00000	1.00000	1.00000	1.00000	1.00000	1.00000	

The postretirement mortality rates above include 15 years of projected ongoing mortality improvement using 90 percent scale MP-2016 published by the Society of Actuaries.



STATE PEACE OFFICERS AND FIREFIGHTERS

Service Retirement – Classic Members

Rates vary by age and service. See sample rates in table below.

Attained	Years of Service										
Age	5	10	15	20	25	30	35				
50	0.012	0.030	0.044	0.109	0.224	0.449	0.467				
52	0.012	0.026	0.041	0.096	0.145	0.255	0.257				
54	0.021	0.042	0.053	0.118	0.162	0.292	0.306				
56	0.031	0.044	0.057	0.135	0.213	0.335	0.345				
58	0.020	0.065	0.070	0.158	0.224	0.354	0.354				
60	0.035	0.066	0.094	0.179	0.276	0.360	0.367				
62	0.067	0.104	0.130	0.221	0.324	0.415	0.440				
65	0.065	0.081	0.127	0.231	0.342	0.427	0.453				
70	1.000	1.000	1.000	1.000	1.000	1.000	1.000				

Service Retirement – PEPRA Members

Rates vary by age and service. See sample rates in table below.

Attained			Ye	ars of Serv	ice		
Age	5	10	15	20	25	30	35
50	0.008	0.021	0.031	0.076	0.157	0.314	0.327
52	0.008	0.018	0.029	0.067	0.102	0.179	0.180
54	0.016	0.032	0.040	0.089	0.122	0.219	0.230
56	0.025	0.035	0.046	0.108	0.170	0.268	0.276
58	0.018	0.059	0.063	0.142	0.202	0.319	0.319
60	0.033	0.063	0.089	0.170	0.262	0.342	0.349
62	0.067	0.104	0.130	0.221	0.324	0.415	0.440
65	0.065	0.081	0.127	0.231	0.342	0.427	0.453
70	1.000	1.000	1.000	1.000	1.000	1.000	1.000

Termination with Refund

Rates vary by service. See sample rates in table below.

_				Se	rvice					
_0	1	_2_	3	4	5	10	15	20	25	30
0.1217	0.0779	0.0431	0.0353	0.0275	0.0056	0.0039	0.0025	0.0015	0.0006	0.0003



STATE PEACE OFFICERS AND FIREFIGHTERS (CONTINUED)

Terminations with Vested Deferred Benefits

Rates vary by service. See sample rates in table below.

					Service	1				
5	6	_7_	8	9	10	15	20	25	30	35
0.0117	0.0115	0.0112	0.0108	0.0103	0.0098	0.0069	0.0049	0.0031	0.0020	0.0000

Non-Industrial Death, Non-Industrial Disability, Industrial Disability & Industrial Death

Non-Industrial Death rates vary by age and gender. Non-Industrial Disability, Industrial Disability and Industrial Death rates vary by age. See sample rates in table below.

	Non-Indus	trial Death	Non- Industrial Disability	Industrial Disability	Industrial Death
			Male and	Male and	Male and
Attained Age	Male	Female	Female	Female	Female
20	0.00022	0.00007	0.00030	0.00039	0.00004
25	0.00029	0.00011	0.00030	0.00087	0.00006
30	0.00038	0.00016	0.00030	0.00167	0.00007
35	0.00049	0.00027	0.00030	0.00289	0.00009
40	0.00064	0.00037	0.00040	0.00464	0.00010
45	0.00080	0.00054	0.00060	0.00706	0.00012
50	0.00116	0.00079	0.00098	0.01027	0.00013
55	0.00172	0.00120	0.00143	0.01442	0.00015
60	0.00255	0.00166	0.00188	0.01966	0.00016



STATE PEACE OFFICERS AND FIREFIGHTERS (CONTINUED)

Postretirement Mortality

Rates vary by age and gender for healthy benefit recipients, for non-industrially disabled (disability not job-related) retirees and for retirees who are industrially disabled (disability is job-related). See sample rates in table below.

	Healthy Recipients			ally Disabled -Related)	Industrially Disabled (Job-Related)		
Age	Male	Female	Male	Female	Male	Female	
50	0.00372	0.00346	0.01183	0.01083	0.00372	0.00346	
55	0.00437	0.00410	0.01613	0.01178	0.00437	0.00410	
60	0.00671	0.00476	0.02166	0.01404	0.00671	0.00476	
65	0.00928	0.00637	0.02733	0.01757	0.01113	0.00765	
70	0.01339	0.00926	0.03358	0.02184	0.01607	0.01112	
75	0.02316	0.01635	0.04277	0.02969	0.02779	0.01962	
80	0.03977	0.03007	0.06272	0.04641	0.04773	0.03609	
85	0.07122	0.05418	0.09793	0.07847	0.08547	0.06501	
90	0.13044	0.10089	0.14616	0.13220	0.14348	0.11098	
95	0.21658	0.17698	0.21658	0.21015	0.21658	0.17698	
100	0.32222	0.28151	0.32222	0.32226	0.32222	0.28151	
105	0.46691	0.43491	0.46691	0.43491	0.46691	0.43491	
110	1.00000	1.00000	1.00000	1.00000	1.00000	1.00000	

The postretirement mortality rates above include 15 years of projected ongoing mortality improvement using 90 percent scale MP-2016 published by the Society of Actuaries.



CALIFORNIA HIGHWAY PATROL

Service Retirement – Classic Members

Rates vary by age and service. See sample rates in table below.

Attained			Ye	ars of Serv	ice		
Age	5	10	15	20	25	30	35
50	0.038	0.038	0.038	0.049	0.107	0.418	0.453
52	0.027	0.027	0.027	0.027	0.093	0.315	0.383
54	0.038	0.038	0.038	0.038	0.124	0.309	0.404
56	0.051	0.051	0.051	0.084	0.139	0.350	0.380
58	0.049	0.049	0.049	0.049	0.171	0.338	0.350
60	1.000	1.000	1.000	1.000	1.000	1.000	1.000

Service Retirement – PEPRA Members

Rates vary by age and service. See sample rates in table below.

Attained	_	Years of Service										
Age	5	10	15	20	25	30	35					
50	0.027	0.027	0.027	0.034	0.075	0.293	0.317					
52	0.020	0.020	0.020	0.020	0.070	0.236	0.287					
54	0.030	0.030	0.030	0.030	0.099	0.247	0.323					
56	0.043	0.043	0.043	0.071	0.118	0.298	0.323					
58	0.044	0.044	0.044	0.044	0.154	0.304	0.315					
60	1.0000	1.0000	1.0000	1.0000	1.0000	1.0000	1.0000					

Termination with Refund

Rates vary by service. See sample rates in table below.

				Se	rvice					
0	1	_2_	3	4	5	10	15	20	25	30
0.1050	0.0243	0.0152	0.0091	0.0054	0.0029	0.0005	0.0003	0.0002	0.0002	0.0002



CALIFORNIA HIGHWAY PATROL (CONTINUED)

Terminations with Vested Deferred Benefits

Rates vary by service. See sample rates in table below.

					Service	9				
5	6	_7_	8	9	10	15	20	25	30	35
0.0090	0.0084	0.0079	0.0075	0.0071	0.0067	0.0049	0.0034	0.0023	0.0010	0.0000

When a member is eligible to retire, the termination with vested benefits probability is set to zero.

Non-Industrial Death and Disability & Industrial Death and Disability

Non-Industrial Death rates vary by age and gender. Non-Industrial Disability, Industrial Disability and Industrial Death rates vary by age. See sample rates in table below.

			Non-		
			Industrial	Industrial	Industrial
	Non-Indus	trial Death	Disability	Disability	Death
			Male and	Male and	Male and
Attained Age	Male	Female	Female	Female	Female
20	0.00022	0.00007	0.00010	0.00016	0.00004
25	0.00029	0.00011	0.00010	0.00035	0.00006
30	0.00038	0.00016	0.00010	0.00068	0.00007
35	0.00049	0.00027	0.00010	0.00122	0.00009
40	0.00064	0.00037	0.00010	0.00202	0.00010
45	0.00080	0.00054	0.00020	0.00316	0.00012
50	0.00116	0.00079	0.00020	0.01214	0.00013
55	0.00172	0.00120	0.00020	0.05407	0.00015
60	0.00255	0.00166	0.00020	0.20431	0.00016



CALIFORNIA HIGHWAY PATROL (CONTINUED)

Postretirement Mortality

Rates vary by age and gender for healthy benefit recipients, for non-industrially disabled (disability not job-related) retirees and for retirees who are industrially disabled (disability is job-related). See sample rates in table below.

	Healthy F	Recipients	Non-Industri Not Job)	ally Disabled ·Related)		y Disabled elated)
Age	Male	Female	Male	Female	Male	Female
50	0.00372	0.00346	0.01183	0.01083	0.00372	0.00346
55	0.00437	0.00410	0.01613	0.01178	0.00437	0.00410
60	0.00671	0.00476	0.02166	0.01404	0.00671	0.00476
65	0.00928	0.00637	0.02733	0.01757	0.01113	0.00765
70	0.01339	0.00926	0.03358	0.02184	0.01607	0.01112
75	0.02316	0.01635	0.04277	0.02969	0.02779	0.01962
80	0.03977	0.03007	0.06272	0.04641	0.04773	0.03609
85	0.07122	0.05418	0.09793	0.07847	0.08547	0.06501
90	0.13044	0.10089	0.14616	0.13220	0.14348	0.11098
95	0.21658	0.17698	0.21658	0.21015	0.21658	0.17698
100	0.32222	0.28151	0.32222	0.32226	0.32222	0.28151
105	0.46691	0.43491	0.46691	0.43491	0.46691	0.43491
110	1.00000	1.00000	1.00000	1.00000	1.00000	1.00000

The postretirement mortality rates above include 15 years of projected ongoing mortality improvement using 90 percent scale MP-2016 published by the Society of Actuaries.



JUDGES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM I

Probability of Termination from Active Service

No pre-retirement termination or disability rates were assumed.

Service Retirement

<u>Age</u>	<u>Rate</u>	<u>Age</u>	<u>Rate</u>
60	0.20	68	0.20
61	0.20	69	0.30
62	0.20	70	0.10
63	0.20	71	0.10
64	0.20	72-79	0.20
65	0.20	80-84	0.30
66	0.20	85-89	0.50
67	0.20	>89	1.00

Mortality

The mortality assumptions are based on mortality rates resulting from the most recent CalPERS Experience Study adopted by the CalPERS Board. For purposes of the mortality rates, the revised rates include 15 years of projected ongoing mortality improvement using 90 percent of Scale MP 2016 published by the Society of Actuaries.



JUDGES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM II

Service Retirement

Rates vary by age and service.

Service Greate	Service Greater than 20 Years		
Age	<u>Rate</u>		
Below 65	0.0000		
65	0.7500		
66	0.4000		
67	0.3000		
68	0.3500		
69	0.5000		
70*	1.0000		

* For Judges age 70 and older with 5 or more years of service the probability of retirement is 100 percent.

Withdrawal

Rates vary by age and service.

Entry	<u>0-1</u>	<u>1-2</u>	<u>2-3</u>	<u>3-4</u>	<u>4-5</u>	<u>5 or</u>
<u>Age</u>						more
35	0.0053	0.0053	0.0053	0.0053	0.0053	0.0023
40	0.0045	0.0045	0.0045	0.0045	0.0045	0.0038
45	0.0038	0.0038	0.0038	0.0038	0.0038	0.0075
50	0.0038	0.0038	0.0038	0.0038	0.0038	0.0090
55	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0083
60	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0075

Pre-Retirement Non-Industrial Mortality

Rates vary by age.



JUDGES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM II (CONTINUED)

Non-Industrial Disability and Pre-Retirement Mortality

Rates vary by age.

	Pre- Retirement	Pre- Retirement	Non-
Attained	Mortality	Mortality	Industrial
<u>Age</u>	<u>Male</u>	<u>Female</u>	<u>Disability</u>
35	0.0005	0.0003	0.0000
40	0.0006	0.0004	0.0010
45	0.0008	0.0005	0.0019
50	0.0012	0.0008	0.0032
55	0.0017	0.0012	0.0054
60	0.0026	0.0017	0.0085
65	0.0036	0.0023	0.0122
70	0.0062	0.0039	0.0000

Industrial Mortality

Rates are zero.

Industrial Disability

Rates are zero.

Post-Retirement Mortality:

Rates vary by age and sex.

	Healthy	Healthy	Non- Industrial Disability	Non- Industrial Disability		Healthy	Healthy	Non- Industrial Disability	Non- Industrial Disability
Age	Male	Female	Male	<u>Female</u>	Age	Male	Female	Male	<u>Female</u>
35	0.0005	0.0003	0.0005	0.0003	75	0.0232	0.0164	0.0428	0.0297
40	0.0006	0.0004	0.0006	0.0004	80	0.0398	0.0301	0.0627	0.0464
45	0.0008	0.0005	0.0008	0.0005	85	0.0712	0.0542	0.0979	0.0785
50	0.0037	0.0035	0.0118	0.0108	90	0.1304	0.1009	0.1462	0.1322
55	0.0044	0.0041	0.0161	0.0112	95	0.2166	0.1770	0.2166	0.2102
60	0.0067	0.0048	0.0217	0.0140	100	0.3222	0.2815	0.3222	0.3223
65	0.0093	0.0064	0.0273	0.0176	105	0.4669	0.4349	0.4669	0.4349
70	0.0134	0.0093	0.0336	0.0218	110	1.0000	1.0000	1.0000	1.0000

The postretirement mortality rates above include 15 years of projected ongoing mortality improvement using 90 percent scale MP-2016 published by the Society of Actuaries.



Legislators' Retirement System

Probabilities of Decrement for Active Participants

Vested Withdrawal – Sample vested withdrawal rates are shown in the following table.

Disability – Sample disability rates are shown in the following table.

Non-vested Withdrawal – Sample rates for non-vested withdrawal are shown in the following table.

For each 1,000 active participants at the age shown, the following number will leave within a year on account of:

	Vested		Non-Vested
Age	<u>Withdrawal</u>	<u>Disability</u>	<u>Withdrawal</u>
30	50.0	0.1	25.0
35	50.0	0.2	25.0
40	50.0	0.7	20.0
41	50.0	0.8	15.0
42	40.0	0.9	15.0
43	40.0	1.0	15.0
44	40.0	1.1	15.0
45	40.0	1.2	15.0
46	40.0	1.3	15.0
47	40.0	1.5	15.0
48	40.0	1.7	15.0
49	40.0	1.9	15.0
50	40.0	2.2	10.0
51	40.0	2.5	5.0
52	40.0	3.0	0.0
53	40.0	3.6	0.0
54	40.0	4.3	0.0
55	40.0	5.0	0.0
56	40.0	5.8	0.0
57	40.0	6.7	0.0
58	40.0	7.5	0.0
59	40.0	8.4	0.0
60	40.0	9.5	0.0



Legislators' Retirement System (CONTINUED)

Pre-Retirement Non-Industrial Mortality

Rates vary by age and sex.

Mortality Rates after Leaving Active Participation

The mortality assumptions are based on mortality rates resulting from the most recent CalPERS Experience Study adopted by the CalPERS Board. For purposes of the postretirement mortality rates, the revised rates include 20 years of projected ongoing mortality improvement using Scale BB published by the Society of Actuaries.

	Healthy	Healthy	Disability	Disability		Healthy	Healthy	Disability	Disability
Age	<u>Male</u>	<u>Female</u>	Male	<u>Female</u>	<u>Age</u>	Male	<u>Female</u>	<u>Male</u>	<u>Female</u>
35	0.0005	0.0003	0.0005	0.0003	75	0.0232	0.0164	0.0428	0.0297
40	0.0006	0.0004	0.0006	0.0004	80	0.0398	0.0301	0.0627	0.0464
45	0.0008	0.0005	0.0008	0.0005	85	0.0712	0.0542	0.0979	0.0785
50	0.0037	0.0035	0.0118	0.0108	90	0.1304	0.1009	0.1462	0.1322
55	0.0044	0.0041	0.0161	0.0112	95	0.2166	0.1770	0.2166	0.2102
60	0.0067	0.0048	0.0217	0.0140	100	0.3222	0.2815	0.3222	0.3223
65	0.0093	0.0064	0.0273	0.0176	105	0.4669	0.4349	0.4669	0.4349
70	0.0134	0.0093	0.0336	0.0218	110	1.0000	1.0000	1.0000	1.0000

The postretirement mortality rates above include 15 years of projected ongoing mortality improvement using 90 percent scale MP-2016 published by the Society of Actuaries.



APPENDIX A

GLOSSARY

Accrued Service	Service credited under the system that was rendered before the date of the actuarial valuation.
Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL)	The AAL is the difference between the actuarial present value of all benefits and the actuarial value of future normal costs. The definition comes from the fundamental equation of funding which states that the present value of all benefits is the sum of the Actuarial Accrued Liability and the present value of future normal costs. The AAL may also be referred to as "accrued liability" or "actuarial liability."
Actuarial Assumptions	These assumptions are estimates of future experience with respect to rates of mortality, disability, turnover, retirement, rate or rates of investment income, and compensation increases. Actuarial assumptions are generally based on past experience, often modified for projected changes in conditions. Economic assumptions (compensation increases, payroll growth, inflation, and investment return) consist of an underlying real rate of return plus an assumption for a long-term average rate of inflation.
Actuarial Cost Method	A mathematical budgeting procedure for allocating the dollar amount of the actuarial present value of the OPEB trust benefits between future normal cost and actuarial accrued liability. The actuarial cost method may also be referred to as the actuarial funding method.
Actuarial Equivalent	A single amount or series of amounts of equal actuarial value to another single amount or series of amounts, computed on the basis of appropriate actuarial assumptions.
Actuarial Gain (Loss)	The difference in liabilities between actual experience and expected experience during the period between two actuarial valuations is the gain (loss) on the accrued liabilities.
Actuarial Present Value (APV)	The amount of funds currently required to provide a payment or series of payments in the future. The present value is determined by discounting future payments at predetermined rates of interest and probabilities of payment.
Actuarial Valuation	The actuarial valuation report determines, as of the actuarial valuation date, the service cost, total OPEB liability, and related actuarial present value of projected benefit payments for OPEB.
Actuarial Valuation Assets	The actuarial valuation assets are the assets used in determining the unfunded liability of the plan. For purposes of GASB Statement Nos. 74 and 75, the actuarial valuation assets are equal to the market value of assets.
Actuarial Valuation Date	The date as of which an actuarial valuation is performed.
Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC)	A calculated contribution into an OPEB plan for the reporting period, most often determined based on the funding policy of the plan. Typically the Actuarially Determined Contribution has a normal cost payment and an amortization payment.



Amortization Method	The method used to determine the periodic amortization payment may be a level dollar amount, or a level percent of pay amount. The period will typically be expressed in years, and the method will either be "open" (meaning, reset each year) or "closed" (the number of years remaining will decline each year).
Amortization Payment	The amortization payment is the periodic payment required to pay off an interest-discounted amount with payments of interest and principal.
Cost-of-Living Adjustments	Postemployment benefit changes intended to adjust benefit payments for the effects of inflation.
Cost-Sharing Multiple- Employer Defined Benefit OPEB Plan (cost-sharing OPEB plan)	A multiple-employer defined benefit OPEB plan in which the OPEB obligations to the employees of more than one employer are pooled and OPEB plan assets can be used to pay the benefits of the employees of any employer that provides benefits through the OPEB plan.
Covered-Employee Payroll	The payroll of employees that are provided with benefits through the OPEB plan.
Deferred Inflows and Outflows	The deferred inflows and outflows of OPEB resources are amounts used under GASB Statement No. 74 in developing the annual OPEB expense. Deferred inflows and outflows arise with differences between expected and actual experiences; changes of assumptions. The portion of these amounts not included in the OPEB expense should be included in the deferred inflows or outflows of resources.
Discount Rate	For GASB purposes, the discount rate is the single rate of return that results in the present value of all projected benefit payments to be equal to the sum of the funded and unfunded projected benefit payments, specifically:
	 The benefit payments to be made while the OPEB plans' fiduciary net position is projected to be greater than the benefit payments that are projected to be made in the period; and The present value of the benefit payments not in (1) above, discounted using the municipal bond rate.
Entry Age Actuarial Cost Method (EAN)	The EAN is a cost method for allocating the costs of the plan between the normal cost and the accrued liability. The actuarial present value of the projected benefits of each individual included in an actuarial valuation is allocated on a level basis (either level dollar or level percent of pay) over the earnings or service of the individual between entry age and assumed exit ages(s). The portion of the actuarial present value allocated to an actuarial valuation year is the normal cost. The portion of this actuarial present value not provided for at an actuarial valuation date by the actuarial present value of future normal costs is the actuarial accrued liability. The sum of the accrued liability plus the present value of all future normal costs is the present value of all benefits.
Fiduciary Net Position	The fiduciary net position is the market value of the assets of the trust dedicated to the defined benefit provisions.



GASB	The Governmental Accounting Standards Board is an organization that exists in order to promulgate accounting standards for governmental entities.
Long-Term Expected Rate of Return	The long-term rate of return is the expected return to be earned over the entire trust portfolio based on the asset allocation of the portfolio.
Money-Weighted Rate of Return	The money-weighted rate of return is a method of calculating the returns that adjusts for the changing amounts actually invested. For purposes of GASB Statement No. 74, the money-weighted rate of return is calculated as the internal rate of return on OPEB plan investments, net of OPEB plan investment expense.
Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit OPEB Plan	A multiple-employer plan is a defined benefit OPEB plan that is used to provide OPEB payments to the employees of more than one employer.
Municipal Bond Rate	The Municipal Bond Rate is the discount rate to be used for those benefit payments that occur after the assets of the trust have been depleted.
Net OPEB Liability (NOL)	The NOL is the liability of employers and non-employer contributing entities to plan members for benefits provided through a defined benefit OPEB plan.
Non-Employer Contributing Entities	Non-employer contributing entities are entities that make contributions to an OPEB plan that is used to provide OPEB payments to the employees of other entities. For purposes of the GASB accounting statements, plan members are not considered non-employer contributing entities.
Normal Cost	The portion of the actuarial present value allocated to an actuarial valuation year is called the normal cost. For purposes of application to the requirements of this Statement, the term normal cost is the equivalent of service cost.
Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)	All postemployment benefits other than retirement income (such as death benefits, life insurance, disability, and long-term care) that are provided separately from a pension plan, as well as postemployment healthcare benefits regardless of the manner in which they are provided. Other postemployment benefits do not include termination benefits.
Real Rate of Return	The real rate of return is the rate of return on an investment after adjustment to eliminate inflation.
Service Cost	The service cost is the portion of the actuarial present value of projected benefit payments that is attributed to an actuarial valuation year.



Total OPEB Expense	The total OPEB expense is the sum of the following items that are recognized at the end of the employer's fiscal year:
	 Service Cost Interest on the Total OPEB Liability Current-Period Benefit Changes Employee Contributions (made negative for addition here) Projected Earnings on Plan Investments (made negative for addition here) OPEB Plan Administrative Expense Other Changes in Plan Fiduciary Net Position Recognition of Outflow (Inflow) of Resources due to Liabilities Recognition of Outflow (Inflow) of Resources due to Assets
Total OPEB Liability (TOL)	The TOL is the portion of the actuarial present value of projected benefit payments that is attributed to past periods of member service.
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL)	The UAAL is the difference between actuarial accrued liability and actuarial valuation assets.
Actuarial Valuation Assets	The actuarial valuation assets are the assets used in determining the unfunded liability of the plan. For purposes of GASB Statement Nos. 74 and 75, the actuarial valuation assets are equal to the market value of assets.



APPENDIX B

INDIVIDUAL ACTUARIAL VALUATION RESULTS

CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLOYEES POS FULL-FUNDING ACTUARIAL 7.00% AT JULY 1, 2018 AN BARGAINING UI	. VALUATION D 6.75% AT	N (\$ IN 000'S) JULY 1, 2019	ROG	RAM
ATTORNEYS AND H	EARING OF	ICERS		
	Ju	ly 1, 2018		July 1, 2019
Number of Participants Covered Active Participants		4,404		1 100
•				4,488
Retired Participants ^a		2,451		2,560
Total Participants		6,855		7,048
Actuarial Present Value of Projected Benefits				
Active Participants	\$	548,737	\$	559,423
Retired Participants		413,628		460,531
Total Participants	\$	962,365	\$	1,019,954
Actuarial Accrued Liability	Å	250 424	~	
Active Participants	\$	359,124	\$	365,667
Retired Participants		413,628	_	460,531
Total Participants	\$	772,752	\$	826,198
Actuarial Value of Assets	\$	18,143	\$	33,800
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability	\$	754,609	\$	792,398
Net Employer ADC for FYE	Jur	ie 30, 2019		June 30, 2020
Normal Cost	\$	20,868	\$	21,055
Administrative Expenses	-	73	-	81
Amortization of UAAL		43,357		46,435
Total ADC	\$	64,298	Ś	67,571
Estimated Member Contributions	Ŧ	(5,235)	Ŧ	(7,926)
Net Employer ADC	\$	59,063	\$	59,645
Expected Claim Costs for FYE ^b Employer Explicit Costs	Jur	ie 30, 2019		June 30, 2020
Medical and Rx Claims	\$	18,949	\$	19,607
Part B Reimbursement	Ŧ	5,045	7	5,580
Dental Claims		1,589		1,664
Total	\$	25,583	\$	26,851
Employer Implicit Costs	Ŧ	3,449	7	5,487
Total Employer Costs	\$	29,032	\$	32,338
Retiree Share of Claim Costs	Ļ	29,032	ڔ	52,550
Medical and Rx Claims	\$	1,450	\$	1,549
Dental Claims	Ļ	505	Ļ	522
Total	\$	1,955	\$	2,071
Total Claims Costs	\$ \$	1,955 30,987	ې \$	34,409

^aRetired participants with dental only coverage, 148 as of July 1, 2018, and 157 as of July 1, 2019, are excluded from the above counts but are reflected in the actuarial valuation.

^bFor purposes of financial reporting, employer explicit and implicit costs will be updated based on actual experience during each respective reporting period.



	CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLOYEES POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS PROGRAM FULL-FUNDING PROJECTIONS BASED ON JULY 1, 2019, ACTUARIAL VALUATION (\$ IN 000'S) BARGAINING UNIT NUMBER 2 ATTORNEYS AND HEARING OFFICERS													
Long-terr Discount	r Beginning n Asset Return Rate is Fully Funded	7/1/2019 6.750% 6.750% 2046												
		Disbursements/	Administrative		Pre-Fund		Investment				Accrued	Funded		
FYE	Assets (boy)	Benefits	Expenses		ontribution		Income		Assets (eoy)		Liability (eoy)	Ratio		Normal Cost
2019	\$ 18,130	\$ -		\$	13,778	\$	1,897			\$	826,198	4.1%	\$	21,055
2020	33,800	-	81		15,852		2,805		52,376		871,013	6.0%		20,216
2021	52,376	-	90		20,306		4,207		76,799		914,211	8.4%		19,457
2022	76,799	-	99		19,557	1	5,830		102,087		955,563	10.7%		18,716
2023	102,087	-	109		18,825	1	7,512		128,315		994,925	12.9%		17,995
2024	128,315	-	119		18,114		9,259		155,569		1,032,106	15.1%		17,301
2025	155,569	-	129		17,430		11,075		183,945		1,067,034	17.2%		16,630
2026	183,945	-	138		16,768		12,968		213,543		1,099,799	19.4%		15,978
2027	213,543	-	147		16,124		14,945		244,465		1,130,436	21.6%		15,330
2028	244,465	-	155		15,485		17,010		276,805		1,158,956	23.9%		14,697
2029	276,805	-	163		14,861		19,172		310,675		1,185,357	26.2%		14,076
2030	310,675	-	172		14,247		21,438		346,188		1,209,438	28.6%		13,454
2031 2032	346,188 383,456		180 187		13,634 13,029		23,814 26,310		383,456 422,608		1,231,152 1,250,468	31.1% 33.8%		12,841 12,222
2032	422,608	-	187		13,029		28,932		463,762		1,250,468	35.6%		12,222
2033	463,762		203		12,417		31,689		507,044		1,281,315	39.6%		10,958
2034	507,044		203		11,750		34,589		552,591		1,292,741	42.7%		10,304
2035	552,591		210		10,521		37,642		600,537		1,301,391	42.7%		9,630
2030	600,537		224		9,854		40,856		651,023		1,307,033	49.8%		8,939
2038	651,023	-	230		9,170		44,241		704,204		1,309,530	53.8%		8,240
2039	704,204	-	237		8,477		47,807		760,251		1,308,881	58.1%		7,537
2035	760,251	-	242		7,780		51,567		819,356		1,305,097	62.8%		6,829
2041	819,356	-	247		7,076		55,533		881,718		1,298,256	67.9%		6,119
2042	881,718	-	252		6,371		59,719		947,556		1,288,315	73.5%		5,419
2043	947,556	-	256		5,675	1	64,140		1,017,115		1,275,273	79.8%		4,740
2044	1,017,115	-	259		4,999	1	68,813		1,090,668		1,259,389	86.6%		4,087
2045	1,090,668	-	261		4,348	1	73,756		1,168,511		1,240,869	94.2%		3,470
2046	1,168,511	16,888	263		3,733	1	78,429		1,233,522		1,219,811	101.1%		2,896
2047	1,233,522	105,272	263		-	1	79,759		1,207,746		1,196,463	100.9%		2,370
2048	1,207,746	105,250	263		-	1	78,020		1,180,253		1,171,000	100.8%		1,897
2049	1,180,253	105,009	263		-	1	76,172		1,151,153		1,143,563	100.7%		1,481
2050	1,151,153	104,382	261		-	1	74,229		1,120,739		1,114,480	100.6%		1,129
2051	1,120,739	103,575	259		-	1	72,202	2	1,089,107		1,083,894	100.5%		842
2052	1,089,107	102,524	256		-	1	70,102	2	1,056,429		1,052,022	100.4%		615
2053	1,056,429	101,098	253		-	1	67,944		1,023,022		1,019,230	100.4%		440
2054	1,023,022	99,637	249		-	1	65,738		988,874		985,550	100.3%		311
2055	988,874	98,193	245		-	1	63,481		953,917		950,950	100.3%		217
2056	953,917	96,634	242		-	1	61,173		918,214		915,525	100.3%		150
2057	918,214	95,071	238		-		58,815	;	881,720		879,254	100.3%		103



CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLOYEES POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS PROGRAM DEVELOPMENT OF GASB NOS. 74 AND 75 SINGLE EQUIVALENT DISCOUNT RATE (\$ IN 000'S) **BARGAINING UNIT NUMBER 2** ATTORNEYS AND HEARING OFFICERS

20-Year GO Municipal Bond Rate at June 30, 2019	3.130%
Long-Term Investment Return	6.750%
Year Plan is Fully Funded	2046
Single Equivalent Rate	3.711%

Present Value of Benefits

ent Value o	of Benefits			\$ 1,801,644			\$
		Cross-over		Discounted	Single		
	Net Employer	Investment	Discount	Benefit	Equivalent	Discount	
FYE	Benefits	Return	Factor	Payment	Return	Factor	
2020	\$ 32,338	3.130%		,	3.711%	0.98194	\$
2021	35,964	3.130%		34,339	3.711%	0.94681	
2022	39,789	3.130%		36,839	3.711%	0.91293	
2023	43,650	3.130%		39,186	3.711%	0.88026	
2024	47,588	3.130%		41,425	3.711%	0.84876	
2025	51,478	3.130%		43,452	3.711%	0.81839	
2026	55,161	3.130%		45,147	3.711%	0.78910	
2027	58,687	3.130%		46,575	3.711%	0.76086	
2028	62,066	3.130%		47,762	3.711%	0.73364	
2029	65,329	3.130%	0.74618	48,747	3.711%	0.70739	
2030	68,656	3.130%		49,675	3.711%	0.68207	
2031	71,877	3.130%	0.70157	50,427	3.711%	0.65767	
2032	74,984	3.130%	0.68028	51,010	3.711%	0.63413	
2033	78,076	3.130%	0.65963	51,501	3.711%	0.61144	
2034	81,116	3.130%		51,883	3.711%	0.58956	
2035	83,952	3.130%		52,067	3.711%	0.56846	
2036	86,711	3.130%	0.60138	52,146	3.711%	0.54812	
2037	89,491	3.130%	0.58313	52,185	3.711%	0.52851	
2038	92,191	3.130%	0.56543	52,127	3.711%	0.50959	
2039	94,677	3.130%		51,908	3.711%	0.49136	
2040	96,943	3.130%	0.53163	51,538	3.711%	0.47378	
2041	98,924	3.130%	0.51549	50,995	3.711%	0.45682	
2042	100,746	3.130%	0.49985	50,357	3.711%	0.44048	
2043	102,374	3.130%	0.48468	49,618	3.711%	0.42471	
2044	103,573	3.130%	0.46997	48,676	3.711%	0.40952	
2045	104,413	3.130%	0.45570	47,581	3.711%	0.39486	
2046	105,023	3.130%	0.44187	46,407	3.711%	0.38073	
2047	105,272	6.750%	0.41393	43,576	3.711%	0.36711	
2048	105,250	6.750%	0.38776	40,812	3.711%	0.35397	
2049	105,009	6.750%	0.36324	38,144	3.711%	0.34130	
2050	104,382	6.750%	0.34027	35,518	3.711%	0.32909	
2051	103,575	6.750%	0.31876	33,015	3.711%	0.31732	
2052	102,524	6.750%	0.29860	30,614	3.711%	0.30596	
2053	101,098	6.750%	0.27972	28,279	3.711%	0.29501	
2054	99,637	6.750%	0.26203	26,108	3.711%	0.28446	
2055	98,193	6.750%	0.24546	24,103	3.711%	0.27428	
2056	96,634	6.750%	0.22994	22,220	3.711%	0.26446	
2066	76,429	6.750%	0.11966	9,145	3.711%	0.18370	
2076	39,140	6.750%	0.06227	2,437	3.711%	0.12760	
2086	8,005	6.750%	0.03240	259	3.711%	0.08863	
2096	357	6.750%	0.01686	6	3.711%	0.06157	
2106	16	6.750%	0.00877	-	3.711%	0.04276	
2116	-	6.750%	0.00457	-	3.711%	0.02970	1



CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLO	YEES POST	RETIREMENT BENE	FITS PROG	GRAM		
		75 DISCLOSURES				
CHANGE IN NET OPEB LIABILITY AN			EMPLOY	ER (\$ IN 000'S)		
		IT NUMBER 2				
		ARING OFFICERS				
Fiscal Year Ending	JL	ine 30, 2017	Ju	ine 30, 2018		June 30, 2019
Total OPEB Liability						
Service Cost	\$	56,706	\$	49,771	\$	44,164
Interest on Total OPEB Liability		44,801		50,488		48,322
Changes of Benefit Terms		-		-		-
Difference between Expected and Actual Experience		-		(91,108)		(923)
Changes of Assumptions		(120,350)		(50,429)		36,206
Benefit Payments		(26,821)		(28,844)		(30,621)
Net Change in Total OPEB Liability	\$	(45,664)	\$	(70,122)	\$	97,148
Total OPEB Liability - Beginning	\$	1,273,480	\$	1,227,816	\$	1,157,694
Total OPEB Liability - Ending (a)	\$	1,227,816	\$	1,157,694	\$	1,254,842
Plan Fiduciary Net Position						
Employer PayGO Contributions	\$	26,821	\$	28,844	\$	30,621
Employer Pre-Funding Contributions	Ļ	20,821	Ļ	3,165	ç	6,889
Active Member Contributions		_		3,165		6,889
Net Investment Income		_		951		1,897
Benefit Payments		(26,821)		(28,844)		(30,621)
Administrative Expense		(20,021)		(20,044)		(50,021)
Other		-		(7)		(3)
Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position	\$	-	\$	7,274	\$	15,670
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning	\$	-	\$	10,869	\$	18,130
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending (b)	\$		\$	18,143	\$	33,800
Net OPEB Liability - Ending (a) - (b)	\$	1,227,816	\$	1,139,551	\$	1,221,042
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage Total OPEB Liability		0.000%		1.567%		2.694%
Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC)	\$	63,906	\$	62,658	\$	57,409
Employer Contribution	\$	26,821	\$	32,009	\$	37,510
Percentage of ADC made by Employer		42%		51%		65%
Contribution Excess/(Shortfall)	\$	(37,085)	\$	(30,649)	\$	(19,899)
Expected Return on Assets	\$	-	\$	1,017	\$	1,743
Investment (Gain)/Loss	\$	-	\$	66	\$	(154
Average Expected Remaining Service		6.824846		7.207062		7.249983
Blended Discount Rate Beginning of Year		3.402%		3.996%		4.072%
Blended Discount Rate End of Year		3.996%		4.072%		3.711%
Long-term Expected Return on Assets		7.280%		7.000%		6.750%



GASB NOS. 74 AND 75 DISCLOSURES OPEB EXPENSES AND NET OPEB LIABILITY SENSITIVITY (\$ IN 000'S) BARGAINING UNIT NUMBER 2 ATTORNEYS AND HEARING OFFICERS										
Measured for the Plan's Fiscal Year Ending Applicable for the Sponsor's Fiscal Year Ending	Ju	ne 30, 2018 ne 30, 2019		ine 30, 2019 ine 30, 2020						
OPEB Expense										
Service Cost Interest on the Total OPEB Liability Current-Period Benefit Changes Active Member Contributions Projected Earnings on Plan Investments Operating Expenses Other Changes in Plan Fiduciary Net Position Recognition of Outflow/(Inflow) due to Non-investment Experience Recognition of Outflow/(Inflow) due to Assumption Changes Recognition of Outflow/(Inflow) due to Investment Experience	\$	49,771 50,488 - (3,165) (1,017) 7 - (12,641) (24,631) 13	\$	44,164 48,322 - (6,889) (1,743) 5 - (12,768) (19,637) (18)						
Net OPEB Expense	\$	58,825	\$	51,436						
Reconciliation of Net OPEB Liability										
Net OPEB Liability Beginning of Year OPEB Expense Employer Contributions Change in Outflow/(Inflow) due to Non-investment Experience Change in Outflow/(Inflow) due to Assumption Changes Change in Outflow/(Inflow) due to Investment Experience Net OPEB Liability End of Year	\$ \$	1,216,947 58,825 (32,009) (78,467) (25,798) 53 1,139,551	\$	1,139,564 51,436 (37,510) 11,845 55,843 (136) 1,221,042						
Deferred (Inflows)	Ŷ	1,133,331	Ŷ	1,221,042						
Non-investment Experience Assumption Changes Investment Experience	\$ \$ \$	(78,467) (128,514) -	\$ \$ \$	(66,622) (103,883) (123)						
Deferred Outflows Non-investment Experience Assumption Changes Investment Experience	\$ \$ \$	- - 53	\$ \$ \$	- 31,212 40						
Net OPEB Liability Sensitivity										
Baseline Discount Rate Baseline Discount Rate and Trend Rates Increase Discount Rate by One Percentage Point Decrease Discount Rate by One Percentage Point	\$ \$ \$	4.072% 1,139,551 981,552 1,335,619	\$ \$ \$	3.711% 1,221,042 1,049,735 1,433,811						
Increase Trend Rate by One Percentage Point Decrease Trend Rate by One Percentage Point	\$ \$	1,317,535 998,562	\$ \$	1,454,585 1,037,195						



			CALIF	ORNIA S				TIREMENT BEN DISCLOSURES	IEFIT	IS PROGRAM						
				DE	FERR	ED INFLOWS A BARGAINING		JTFLOWS (\$ IN NUMBER 2	000'	'S)						
					A	TTORNEYS AN	D HEA	RING OFFICERS								
Valuation Date Measurement Date		6/30/2019 6/30/2019														
Measurement Date		6/30/2019														
		Non	n-Investmen	t Experier	ice				Ass	umption Changes		I	nves	stment Experie	nce	
			Amortiz	ation		Initial				Amortization	Initial		1	Amortization		Initial
Plan Year Beginning		(Gain)/Loss	Facto			mortization		(Gain)/Loss		Factor	Amortization	iain)/Loss		Factor		nortization
7/1/2016	\$	-		824846		-	\$	(120,350)		6.824846	\$ (17,634)	\$ -	\$	5.000000	\$	-
7/1/2017	\$	(91,108)		207062		(12,641)	\$	(50,429)		7.207062	\$ (6,997)	\$ 66	.1	5.000000	\$	1
7/1/2018	\$	(923)	7.	249983	Ş	(127)	\$	36,206		7.249983	\$ 4,994	\$ (154))	5.000000	\$	(3
Deferred Outflows/(Inflows) Recognized in OPEB Expense for Current Plan Year End		Outflows	(Inflov	ws)		Net		Outflows		(Inflows)	Net	Outflows		(Inflows)		Net
6/30/2019	\$	-	\$	(12,768)	\$	(12,768)	\$	4,994	\$	(24,631)	\$ (19,637)	\$ 13	\$	(31)	\$	(1
Deferred Outflows/(Inflows) Recognized in OPEB Expense for Future Plan Years Ending																
6/30/2020	\$	-	\$	(12,768)	\$	(12,768)	\$	4,994	\$	(24,631)	\$ (19,637)	\$ 13	\$	(31)	\$	(1
6/30/2021	\$	-	\$	(12,768)	\$	(12,768)	\$	4,994	\$	(24,631)	\$ (19,637)	\$ 13	\$	(31)	\$	(1
6/30/2022	\$	-	\$	(12,768)	\$	(12,768)	\$	4,994	\$	(24,631)	\$ (19,637)	\$ 14	\$	(31)	\$	(1
6/30/2023	\$	-	\$	(12,768)	\$	(12,768)	\$	4,994	\$	(21,543)	\$ (16,549)	\$ -	\$	(30)	\$	(3
6/30/2024	\$	-	\$	(12,768)	\$	(12,768)	\$	4,994	\$	(6,997)	\$ (2,003)	\$ -	\$	-	\$	-
6/30/2025	\$	-	\$	(2,748)	\$	(2,748)	\$	4,994	\$	(1,450)	\$ 3,544	\$ -	\$	-	\$	-
6/30/2026	\$	-	\$	(34)	\$	(34)	\$	1,248	\$	-	\$ 1,248	\$ -	\$	-	\$	-
6/30/2027	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$ -	\$ -	\$	-	\$	-
6/30/2028	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$ -	\$ -	\$	-	\$	-
otal	\$	-	\$	(66,622)	\$	(66,622)	\$	31,212	\$	(103,883)	\$ (72,671)	\$ 40	\$	(123)	\$	(8
Change In Deferred Outflows/(Inflows) Recognized in Liability and Assets for Current Plan Year End																
6/30/2019	1				\$	11,845					\$ 55,843		1		\$	(13



FULL-FUNDING ACTUARIAL 7.00% AT JULY 1, 2018 AND BARGAINING UN	6.75% A IT NUMB	T JULY 1, 2019		
HIGHWAY F		luly 1, 2018		July 1, 2019
Number of Participants Covered	-	, _,		, _,
Active Participants		7,461		7,392
Retired Participants ^a		6,598		6,776
Total Participants		14,059		14,168
Actuarial Present Value of Projected Benefits				
Active Participants	\$	1,812,674	\$	1,940,074
Retired Participants		1,836,283		2,027,966
Total Participants	\$	3,648,957	\$	3,968,040
Actuarial Accrued Liability				
Active Participants	\$	1,127,761	\$	1,222,227
Retired Participants		1,836,283		2,027,966
Total Participants	\$	2,964,044	\$	3,250,193
Actuarial Value of Assets	\$	331,292	\$	416,319
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability	\$	2,632,752	\$	2,833,874
Net Employer ADC for FYE		une 30, 2019		June 30, 2020
Normal Cost	\$	63,151	\$	67,142
Administrative Expenses		269		299
Amortization of UAAL		151,270		166,065
Total ADC	\$	214,690	\$	233,506
Estimated Member Contributions		(4,065)		(4,323
Net Employer ADC	\$	210,625	\$	229,183
Expected Claim Costs for FYE ^b	Ji	une 30, 2019		June 30, 2020
Employer Explicit Costs	\$	00 204	ć	04 000
Medical and Rx Claims Part B Reimbursement	Ş	80,294 8,154	Ş	84,922 8,937
Dental Claims		8,154 4,665		5,044
Total	\$		\$	98,903
Employer Implicit Costs	Ş	93,113 14 525	ډ	
	~	14,525	~	20,816
Total Employer Costs	\$	107,638	\$	119,719
Retiree Share of Claim Costs	ć	2 4 4 2	÷	2 207
Medical and Rx Claims	\$	2,443 1,488	\$	2,307
Dontal Claims		1.488		1,513
Dental Claims Total	\$	3,931	\$	3,820

^aRetired participants with dental only coverage, 65 as of July 1, 2018, and 67 as of July 1, 2019, are excluded from the above counts but are reflected in the actuarial valuation.

^bFor purposes of financial reporting, employer explicit and implicit costs will be updated based on actual experience during each respective reporting period.



	CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLOYEES POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS PROGRAM FULL-FUNDING PROJECTIONS BASED ON JULY 1, 2019, ACTUARIAL VALUATION (\$ IN 000'S) BARGAINING UNIT NUMBER 5 HIGHWAY PATROL											
Long-tern Discount	r Beginning n Asset Return Rate is Fully Funded	7/1/2019 6.750% 6.750% 2046										
		Disbursements/	Administrative	Pre-Fund	Investment		Accrued	Funded				
FYE	Assets (boy)	Benefits	Expenses	Contribution	Income	Assets (eoy)	Liability (eoy)	Ratio	Normal Cost			
2019	\$ 331,052	\$-	\$ 77					12.8% 15.0%				
2020	416,319	-	299	67,442	30,331	513,793	3,417,500		67,732			
2021 2022	513,793 618,456	-	320 347	68,053 68,362	36,930 44,004	618,456 730,475	3,587,962 3,759,460	17.2% 19.4%	68,016 67,862			
2022	618,456 730,475	-	347	68,362	44,004 51,560	730,475 849,897	3,759,460 3,931,182	19.4% 21.6%	67,862			
2023	730,475 849,897	-	403	68,236	51,560	976,732	3,931,182 4,101,739	21.6%	67,235			
2024 2025	849,897 976,732		403	66,631	68,127	1,111,058	4,101,739	23.8%	64,873			
2025	1,111,058	-	462	65,334	77,150	1,253,080	4,437,175	20.0%	63,358			
2020	1,253,080		489	63,847	86,686	1,403,124	4,602,130	30.5%	61,639			
2027	1,403,124		518	62,157	96,757	1,561,520	4,764,423	32.8%	59,648			
2020	1,561,520		549	60,197	107,383	1,728,551	4,922,792	35.1%	57,421			
2020	1,728,551		581	58,003	118,583	1,904,556	5,076,137	37.5%	55,050			
2030	1,904,556	-	613	55,663	130,385	2,089,991	5,223,982	40.0%	52,626			
2032	2,089,991	-	647	53,273	142,821	2,285,438	5,365,173	42.6%	50,104			
2033	2,285,438		682	50,785	155,930	2,491,471	5,499,055	45.3%	47,385			
2034	2,491,471	-	716	48,102	169,747	2,708,604	5,624,734	48.2%	44,452			
2035	2,708,604	-	753	45,205	184,307	2,937,363	5,740,704	51.2%	41,209			
2036	2,937,363	-	790	41,999	199,640	3,178,212	5,845,572	54.4%	37,694			
2037	3,178,212	-	827	38,521	215,781	3,431,687	5,938,582	57.8%	34,069			
2038	3,431,687	-	863	34,932	232,770	3,698,526	6,019,059	61.4%	30,614			
2039	3,698,526	-	897	31,512	250,667	3,979,808	6,087,175	65.4%	27,509			
2040	3,979,808	-	929	28,438	269,550	4,276,867	6,143,250	69.6%	24,647			
2041	4,276,867	-	961	25,608	289,507	4,591,021	6,187,008	74.2%	21,881			
2042	4,591,021	-	992	22,873	310,620	4,923,522	6,218,028	79.2%	19,058			
2043	4,923,522	-	1,022	20,080	332,970	5,275,550	6,235,557	84.6%	16,152			
2044	5,275,550	-	1,053	17,205	356,636	5,648,338	6,238,595	90.5%	13,176			
2045	5,648,338	-	1,083	14,259	381,700	6,043,214	6,226,101	97.1%	10,250			
2046	6,043,214	221,154	1,112	11,362	400,915	6,233,225	6,197,661	100.6%	7,571			
2047	6,233,225	455,656	1,139	-	405,578	6,182,008	6,153,226	100.5%	5,325			
2048	6,182,008	464,877	1,162	-	401,814	6,117,783	6,093,871	100.4%	3,618			
2049	6,117,783	472,041	1,180	-	397,240	6,041,802	6,021,286	100.3%	2,393			
2050	6,041,802	477,844	1,195	-	391,918	5,954,681	5,936,503	100.3%	1,536			
2051	5,954,681	482,084	1,205	-	385,896	5,857,288	5,840,703	100.3%	960			
2052	5,857,288	484,321	1,211	-	379,248	5,751,004	5,735,514	100.3%	591			
2053	5,751,004	485,871	1,215	-	372,022	5,635,940	5,621,234	100.3%	364			
2054	5,635,940	487,105	1,218	-	364,214	5,511,831	5,497,727	100.3%	229			
2055	5,511,831	487,077	1,218	-	355,838	5,379,374	5,365,771	100.3%	151			
2056	5,379,374	485,943	1,215	-	346,935	5,239,151	5,226,000	100.3%	104			
2057	5,239,151	484,231	1,211	-	337,527	5,091,236	5,078,517	100.3%	74			



CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLOYEES POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS PROGRAM DEVELOPMENT OF GASB NOS. 74 AND 75 SINGLE EQUIVALENT DISCOUNT RATE (\$ IN 000'S) BARGAINING UNIT NUMBER 5 HIGHWAY PATROL 20-Year GO Municipal Bond Rate at June 30, 2019 3.130% Long-Term Investment Return 6.750% Year Plan is Fully Funded 2046 Single Equivalent Rate 3.851%

\$

7,302,948

Present Value of Benefits

resent value o	T Denento			\$ 7,302,948			Ş 7,302,
		Cross-over		Discounted	Single		Discounted
	Net Employer	Investment	Discount	Benefit	Equivalent	Discount	Benefit
FYE	Benefits	Return	Factor	Payment	Return	Factor	Payment
2020	\$ 119,719	3.130%	6 0.98471	\$ 117,888	3.851%	0.98128	\$ 117,
2021	128,199	3.130%	6 0.95482	122,407	3.851%	0.94490	121,
2022	138,621	3.130%	6 0.92584	128,341	3.851%	0.90986	126,
2023	149,447	3.130%	6 0.89774	134,165	3.851%	0.87612	130
2024	161,145	3.130%	6 0.87050	140,276	3.851%	0.84363	135
2025	172,952	3.130%	6 0.84408	145,985	3.851%	0.81235	140
2026	184,621	3.130%	6 0.81846	151,105	3.851%	0.78223	144
2027	195,615	3.130%	0.79362	155,244	3.851%	0.75322	147
2028	207,188	3.130%	0.76953	159,438	3.851%	0.72529	150
2029	219,528	3.130%	0.74618	163,807	3.851%	0.69840	153
2030	232,440	3.130%	6 0.72353	168,178	3.851%	0.67250	156,
2031	245,331	3.130%	6 0.70157	172,117	3.851%	0.64756	158,
2032	258,923	3.130%	0.68028	176,140	3.851%	0.62355	161
2033	272,615	3.130%	0.65963	179,826	3.851%	0.60043	163
2034	286,493	3.130%	0.63961	183,245	3.851%	0.57817	165
2035	301,070	3.130%	0.62020	186,724	3.851%	0.55673	167
2036	316,040	3.130%	0.60138	190,060	3.851%	0.53608	169
2037	330,738	3.130%		192,862	3.851%	0.51620	170
2038	345,200	3.130%		195,185	3.851%	0.49706	171
2039	358,851	3.130%		196,746	3.851%	0.47863	171
2040	371,747	3.130%	0.53163	197,631	3.851%	0.46088	171
2041	384,376	3.130%	0.51549	198,143	3.851%	0.44379	170
2042	396,707	3.130%		198,293	3.851%	0.42734	169
2043	408,875	3.130%		198,172	3.851%	0.41149	168
2044	421,045	3.130%		197,877	3.851%	0.39623	166
2045	433,202	3.130%		197,412	3.851%	0.38154	165
2046	444,800	3.130%		196,545	3.851%	0.36739	163
2047	455,656	6.750%		188,611	3.851%	0.35377	161
2048	464,877	6.750%		180,260	3.851%	0.34065	158
2049	472,041	6.750%		171,464	3.851%	0.32802	154
2050	477,844	6.750%		162,597	3.851%	0.31586	150
2051	482,084	6.750%		153,667	3.851%	0.30414	146
2052	484,321	6.750%		144,618	3.851%	0.29287	141
2053	485,871	6.750%		135,907	3.851%	0.28201	137
2054	487,105	6.750%		127,637	3.851%	0.27155	132
2055	487,077	6.750%		119,559	3.851%	0.26148	127
2056	485,943	6.750%		111,739	3.851%	0.25178	122
2066	430,669	6.750%		51,533	3.851%	0.17255	74
2076	280,323	6.750%		17,455	3.851%	0.11826	33
2086	100,238	6.750%		3,248	3.851%	0.08104	8
2096	11,944	6.750%		201	3.851%	0.05554	0
2106	220	6.750%		201	3.851%	0.03806	
				-			
2116	1	6.750%	0.00457	-	3.851%	0.02609	



7,302,948

\$

CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLOYEES POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS PROGRAM GASB NOS. 74 AND 75 DISCLOSURES CHANGE IN NET OPEB LIABILITY AND CONTRIBUTIONS MADE BY EMPLOYER (\$ IN 000'S) BARGAINING UNIT NUMBER 5 HIGHWAY PATROL										
Fiscal Year Ending		une 30, 2017	Ju	une 30, 2018		June 30, 2019				
Total OPEB Liability Service Cost Interest on Total OPEB Liability	\$	168,057 179,397	\$	146,042 195,713	\$	140,545 199,637				
Changes of Benefit Terms Difference between Expected and Actual Experience		-		(108,271)		41,288				
Changes of Assumptions Benefit Payments Net Change in Total OPEB Liability	\$	(474,646) (95,517) (222,709)	\$	(137,150) (77,897) 18,437	\$	318,292 (78,501) 621,261				
Total OPEB Liability - Beginning Total OPEB Liability - Ending (a)	\$ \$	4,764,812 4,542,103	\$ \$	4,542,103 4,560,540	\$ \$	4,560,540 5,181,801				
Plan Fiduciary Net Position Employer PayGO Contributions	\$	95,517	\$	77,897	<u> </u>	78,501				
Employer Pre-Funding Contributions Active Member Contributions Net Investment Income	-	77,454 12,783	-	59,697 4,089		57,567 3,943				
Benefit Payments Administrative Expense Other		21,109 (95,517) (95) (290)		20,988 (77,897) (144)		23,834 (78,501) (77)				
Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position	\$	110,961	\$	84,630	\$	85,267				
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending (b)	\$ \$	135,701 246,662	\$ \$	246,662 331,292	\$ \$	331,052 416,319				
Net OPEB Liability - Ending (a) - (b)	\$	4,295,441	\$	4,229,248	\$	4,765,482				
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage Total OPEB Liability		5.431%		7.264%		8.034%				
Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC) Employer Contribution Percentage of ADC made by Employer	\$ \$	185,626 172,971 93%	\$ \$	200,272 137,594 69%	\$ \$	210,747 136,068 65%				
Contribution Excess/(Shortfall)	\$	(12,655)	\$	(62,678)	\$	(74,679)				
Expected Return on Assets Investment (Gain)/Loss Average Expected Remaining Service	\$ \$	13,649 (7,460) 6.861227	\$ \$	20,233 (755) 6.957379	\$ \$	25,287 1,453 6.730568				
Blended Discount Rate Beginning of Year Blended Discount Rate End of Year Long-term Expected Return on Assets		3.672% 4.219% 7.280%		4.219% 4.282% 7.000%		4.282% 3.851% 6.750%				



GASB NOS. 74 AND 75 DISCLOSURES OPEB EXPENSES AND NET OPEB LIABILITY SENSITIVITY (\$ IN 000'S) BARGAINING UNIT NUMBER 5										
HIGHWAY PATROL Measured for the Plan's Fiscal Year Ending	lu	ne 30, 2018	I	une 30, 2019						
Applicable for the Sponsor's Fiscal Year Ending		ne 30, 2019		une 30, 2020						
OPEB Expense										
Service Cost	\$	146,042	\$	140,545						
Interest on the Total OPEB Liability		195,713		199,637						
Current-Period Benefit Changes		-		-						
Active Member Contributions		(4,089)		(3,943)						
Projected Earnings on Plan Investments		(20,233)		(25,287)						
Operating Expenses		144		77						
Other Changes in Plan Fiduciary Net Position		-		-						
Recognition of Outflow/(Inflow) due to Non-investment Experience		(15,562)		(9,428)						
Recognition of Outflow/(Inflow) due to Assumption Changes		(88,891)		(41,600)						
Recognition of Outflow/(Inflow) due to Investment Experience	<u> </u>	(1,643)	<u> </u>	(1,352)						
Net OPEB Expense	\$	211,481	\$	258,649						
Reconciliation of Net OPEB Liability										
Net OPEB Liability Beginning of Year	\$	4,295,441	\$	4,229,488						
OPEB Expense		211,481		258,649						
Employer Contributions		(137,594)		(136,068)						
Change in Outflow/(Inflow) due to Non-investment Experience		(92,709)		50,716						
Change in Outflow/(Inflow) due to Assumption Changes		(48,259)		359,892						
Change in Outflow/(Inflow) due to Investment Experience	\$	888		2,805						
Net OPEB Liability End of Year	Ş	4,229,248	\$	4,765,482						
Deferred (Inflows)	ć	(02, 700)	ć							
Non-investment Experience	\$	(92,709)	\$	(77,147)						
Assumption Changes	\$ \$	(453,727)	\$ \$	(364,836)						
Investment Experience	Ş	(5,080)	Ş	(3,437)						
Deferred Outflows										
Non-investment Experience	\$	-	Ş	35,154						
Assumption Changes	\$	-	\$	271,001						
Investment Experience	\$	-	\$	1,162						
Net OPEB Liability Sensitivity										
Baseline Discount Rate		4.282%		3.851%						
Baseline Discount Rate and Trend Rates	\$	4,229,248	\$	4,765,482						
Increase Discount Rate by One Percentage Point	\$	3,519,534	\$ \$	3,942,154						
Decrease Discount Rate by One Percentage Point	\$ \$ \$	5,144,023	\$	5,832,270						
Increase Trend Rate by One Percentage Point		5,084,616	\$	5,900,167						
Decrease Trend Rate by One Percentage Point	\$	3,572,416	\$	3,901,073						



				(GASB NOS. 74 A	ND 7 ND 0 G UNIT	UTFLOWS (\$ IN NUMBER 5								
Valuation Date Measurement Date	6/30/2019 6/30/2019														
	 0, 30, 2013														
	No	n-Inv	vestment Experier	ice				Ass	sumption Changes		li	nve	stment Experier	ice	
			Amortization		Initial				Amortization	Initial			Amortization		Initial
Plan Year Beginning	(Gain)/Loss		Factor	A	mortization		(Gain)/Loss		Factor	Amortization	(Gain)/Loss		Factor	Ar	nortization
7/1/2016	\$ -		6.861227	\$	-	\$	(474,646)		6.861227	\$ (69,178)	\$	\$		\$	(1,492)
7/1/2017	\$ (108,271)		6.957379	\$	(15,562)	\$	(137,150)		6.957379	\$ (19,713)	\$		5.000000	\$	(151
7/1/2018	\$ 41,288		6.730568	\$	6,134	\$	318,292		6.730568	\$ 47,291	\$ 1,453		5.000000	\$	291
Deferred Outflows/(Inflows) Recognized in OPEB Expense for Current Plan Year End	Outflows		(Inflows)		Net		Outflows		(Inflows)	Net	Outflows		(Inflows)		Net
6/30/2019	\$ 6,134	\$	(15,562)	\$	(9,428)	\$	47,291	\$	(88,891)	\$ (41,600)	\$ 291	\$	(1,643)	\$	(1,352
Deferred Outflows/(Inflows) Recognized in OPEB Expense for Future Plan Years Ending															
6/30/2020	\$ 6,134	\$	(15,562)	\$	(9,428)	\$	47,291	\$	(88,891)	\$ (41,600)	\$ 291	\$	(1,643)	\$	(1,352
6/30/2021	\$ 6,134	\$	(15,562)	\$	(9,428)	\$	47,291	\$	(88,891)	\$ (41,600)	\$	\$	(1,643)	\$	(1,352
6/30/2022	\$ 6,134	\$	(15,562)	\$	(9,428)	\$	47,291	\$	(88,891)	\$ (41,600)	\$ 291	\$	(151)	\$	140
6/30/2023	\$ 6,134	\$	(15,562)	\$	(9,428)	\$	47,291	\$	(79,291)	\$ (32,000)	\$ 289	\$	-	\$	289
6/30/2024	\$ 6,134	\$	(14,899)	\$	(8,765)	\$	47,291	\$	(18,872)	\$ 28,419	\$ -	\$	-	\$	-
6/30/2025	\$ 4,484	\$	-	\$	4,484	\$	34,546	\$	-	\$ 34,546	\$ -	\$	-	\$	-
6/30/2026	\$ -	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$ -	\$ -	\$	-	\$	-
6/30/2027	\$ -	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$ -	\$	\$	-	\$	-
6/30/2028	\$ -	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$ -	\$ -	\$	-	\$	-
Total	\$ 35,154	\$	(77,147)	\$	(41,993)	\$	271,001	\$	(364,836)	\$ (93,835)	\$ 1,162	\$	(3,437)	\$	(2,275
Change In Deferred Outflows/(Inflows) Recognized in Liability and Assets for Current Plan Year End															
6/30/2019				\$	50,716					\$ 359,892				\$	2,805



CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLOYEES POS FULL-FUNDING ACTUARIA 7.00% AT JULY 1, 2018 AN BARGAINING U	L VALUAT ID 6.75% / NIT NUMI	ION (\$ IN 000'S) AT JULY 1, 2019	100	GRAM
CORREC	TIONS			
		July 1, 2018		July 1, 2019
Number of Participants Covered		•		
Active Participants		31,154		31,412
Retired Participants ^a		23,707		24,717
Total Participants		54,861		56,129
Actuarial Present Value of Projected Benefits				
Active Participants	\$	5,918,469	\$	6,059,038
Retired Participants		5,771,160		6,300,634
Total Participants	\$	11,689,629	\$	12,359,672
Actuarial Accrued Liability				
Active Participants	\$	3,693,008	\$	3,782,279
Retired Participants		5,771,160		6,300,634
Total Participants	\$	9,464,168	\$	10,082,913
Actuarial Value of Assets	\$	332,752	\$	579,048
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability	\$	9,131,416	\$	9,503,865
Net Employer ADC for FYE		June 30, 2019		June 30, 2020
Normal Cost	\$	233,685	\$	237,663
Administrative Expenses		875		967
Amortization of UAAL		524,662		556,926
Total ADC	\$	759,222	\$	795,556
Estimated Member Contributions		(87,960)		(119,315)
Net Employer ADC	\$	671,262	\$	676,241
Expected Claim Costs for FYE ^b Employer Explicit Costs		June 30, 2019		June 30, 2020
Medical and Rx Claims	\$	279,631	\$	295,304
Part B Reimbursement	-	19,551		22,400
Dental Claims		15,674	_	17,246
Total	\$	314,856	\$	334,950
Employer Implicit Costs		35,061		51,711
Total Employer Costs	\$	349,917	\$	386,661
Retiree Share of Claim Costs				
Medical and Rx Claims	\$	19,052	\$	19,584
Dental Claims		4,925		5,106
Total	\$	23,977	\$	24,690
Total Claims Costs	\$	373,894	\$	411,351

^aRetired participants with dental only coverage, 1,265 as of July 1, 2018, and 1,329 as of July 1, 2019, are excluded from the above counts but are reflected in the actuarial valuation.

^bFor purposes of financial reporting, employer explicit and implicit costs will be updated based on actual experience during each respective reporting period.



				OJECTIONS BASED ON BARGAINI	5 POSTRETIREMENT BE JULY 1, 2019, ACTUAR NG UNIT NUMBER 6 DRRECTIONS	NEFITS PROGRAM RIAL VALUATION (\$ IN 0	100'S)		
Long-tern Discount	r Beginning n Asset Return Rate is Fully Funded	7/1/2019 6.750% 6.750% 2047							
		Disbursements/	Administrative	Pre-Fund	Investment		Accrued	Funded	
FYE	Assets (boy)	Benefits	Expenses	Contribution	Income	Assets (eoy)	Liability (eoy)	Ratio	Normal Cost
2019	\$ 332,511	\$ -		\$ 213,184	,			5.7%	
2020	579,048	-	967	238,629	46,976	863,686	10,617,506	8.1%	233,866
2021	863,686	-	1,059	234,925	66,063	1,163,615	11,146,056	10.4%	229,453
2022	1,163,615	-	1,163	230,616	86,162	1,479,230	11,662,390	12.7%	224,144
2023	1,479,230	-	1,271	225,415	107,289	1,810,663	12,163,549	14.9%	218,012
2024 2025	1,810,663	-	1,379 1,484	219,391 212,834	129,458	2,158,133 2,522,174	12,647,201	17.1% 19.2%	211,351 204,145
	2,158,133	-			152,691		13,113,080		
2026 2027	2,522,174 2,903,343	-	1,582 1,674	205,727 198,057	177,024 202,496	2,903,343 3,302,222	13,562,125 13,995,325	21.4% 23.6%	196,383 188,043
2027	3,302,222	-	1,874	198,037	202,496 229,143	3,719,408	13,995,525	25.8%	179,349
2028	3,719,408		1,703	189,808	257,014	4,155,771	14,411,032	23.8%	179,543
2025	4,155,771		1,858	172,525	286,178	4,612,522	15,181,579	30.4%	161,717
2030	4,612,522		2,052	163,768	316,714	5,090,952	15,530,763	32.8%	152,790
2032	5,090,952	-	2,052	154,945	348,712	5,592,455	15,851,699	35.3%	143,850
2033	5,592,455	-	2,257	146,106	382,267	6,118,571	16,142,409	37.9%	134,973
2034	6,118,571	-	2,360	137,333	417,485	6,671,029	16,400,540	40.7%	126,060
2035	6,671,029	-	2,461	128,521	454,480	7,251,569	16,624,986	43.6%	117,045
2036	7,251,569	-	2,561	119,605	493,367	7,861,980	16,813,617	46.8%	108,265
2037	7,861,980	-	2,655	110,920	534,278	8,504,523	16,966,458	50.1%	100,034
2038	8,504,523	-	2,740	102,775	577,376	9,181,934	17,085,666	53.7%	92,197
2039	9,181,934	-	2,819	95,016	622,842	9,896,973	17,171,896	57.6%	84,460
2040	9,896,973	-	2,896	87,356	670,850	10,652,283	17,224,217	61.8%	76,465
2041	10,652,283	-	2,972	79,437	721,568	11,450,316	17,239,978	66.4%	67,923
2042	11,450,316	-	3,047	70,971	775,151	12,293,391	17,216,540	71.4%	58,720
2043	12,293,391	-	3,122	61,843	831,753	13,183,865	17,150,750	76.9%	49,041
2044	13,183,865	-	3,201	52,242	891,539	14,124,445	17,037,524	82.9%	39,449
2045	14,124,445	-	3,276	42,725	954,710	15,118,604	16,875,504	89.6%	30,610
2046	15,118,604	-	3,341	33,951	1,021,522	16,170,736	16,666,460	97.0%	22,886
2047	16,170,736	764,335	3,395	26,281	1,066,909	16,496,196	16,412,709	100.5%	16,457
2048	16,496,196	1,374,754	3,437	-	1,067,739	16,185,744	16,117,508	100.4%	11,424
2049	16,185,744	1,385,886	3,465	-	1,046,413	15,842,806	15,785,517	100.4%	7,703
2050	15,842,806	1,389,829	3,475	-	1,023,133	15,472,635	15,423,080	100.3%	5,062
2051	15,472,635	1,388,619	3,472	-	998,187	15,078,731	15,034,620	100.3%	3,249
2052	15,078,731	1,383,614	3,459	-	971,765	14,663,423	14,623,186	100.3%	2,039
2053	14,663,423	1,373,663	3,434	-	944,063 915,344	14,230,389	14,192,980 13,748,749	100.3%	1,253 751
2054 2055	14,230,389	1,358,330 1,337,031	3,396	-	915,344 885,922	13,784,007 13,329,555	13,748,749	100.3% 100.3%	751 440
2055	13,784,007 13,329,555	1,337,031	3,343 3,277	-	885,922 856,118	13,329,555	13,296,015	100.3%	253
2056	13,329,555	1,280,384	3,201		826,217	12,871,565	12,383,380	100.3%	142
2037	12,071,303	1,200,304	3,201	-	020,217	12,414,197	12,505,580	100.276	142



CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLOYEES POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS PROGRAM DEVELOPMENT OF GASB NOS. 74 AND 75 SINGLE EQUIVALENT DISCOUNT RATE (\$ IN 000'S) BARGAINING UNIT NUMBER 6 CORRECTIONS

20-Year GO Municipal Bond Rate at June 30, 2019	3.130%
Long-Term Investment Return	6.750%
Year Plan is Fully Funded	2047
Single Equivalent Rate	3.726%

Present Value of Benefits

sent Value	of Benefits			\$ 22,448,200			\$ 22,448
		Cross-over		Discounted	Single		Discounted
	Net Employer	Investment	Discount	Benefit	Equivalent	Discount	Benefit
FYE	Benefits	Return	Factor	Payment	Return	Factor	Payment
2020	\$ 386,661	3.130%	0.98471		3.726%	0.98188	-
2021	423,492	3.130%	0.95482	404,359	3.726%	0.94661	400
2022	465,299	3.130%	0.92584	430,794	3.726%	0.91261	424
2023	508,220	3.130%	0.89774	456,252	3.726%	0.87983	447
2023	551,565	3.130%	0.87050	480,136	3.726%	0.84823	467
2025	593,453	3.130%	0.84408	500,921	3.726%	0.81777	485
2026	632,757	3.130%	0.81846	517,886	3.726%	0.78839	498
2020	669,409	3.130%	0.79362	531,256	3.726%	0.76008	508
2027	705,990	3.130%	0.76953	543,283	3.726%	0.73278	517
2028	743,184	3.130%	0.76555	554,547	3.726%	0.70646	525
2029	743,184 780,957	3.130%	0.74618	565,047	3.726%	0.68108	523
2030	820,694	3.130%	0.72555	575,776	3.726%	0.65662	538
2031 2032		3.130%	0.70157		3.726%	0.63304	
	861,634			586,152			54
2033	902,614	3.130%	0.65963	595,394	3.726%	0.61030	550
2034	943,967	3.130%	0.63961	603,774	3.726%	0.58838	555
2035	984,225	3.130%	0.62020	610,417	3.726%	0.56725	558
2036	1,024,230	3.130%	0.60138	615,949	3.726%	0.54687	560
2037	1,062,126	3.130%	0.58313	619,353	3.726%	0.52723	55
2038	1,096,153	3.130%	0.56543	619,795	3.726%	0.50830	55
2039	1,127,768	3.130%	0.54827	618,318	3.726%	0.49004	55
2040	1,158,226	3.130%	0.53163	615,744	3.726%	0.47244	54
2041	1,188,773	3.130%	0.51549	612,803	3.726%	0.45547	54
2042	1,218,913	3.130%	0.49985	609,270	3.726%	0.43911	53
2043	1,248,870	3.130%	0.48468	605,298	3.726%	0.42334	52
2044	1,280,484	3.130%	0.46997	601,785	3.726%	0.40813	52
2045	1,310,411	3.130%	0.45570	597,159	3.726%	0.39348	51
2046	1,336,213	3.130%	0.44187	590,436	3.726%	0.37934	50
2047	1,357,852	3.130%	0.42846	581,788	3.726%	0.36572	49
2048	1,374,754	6.750%	0.40137	551,784	3.726%	0.35258	484
2049	1,385,886	6.750%	0.37599	521,079	3.726%	0.33992	47
2050	1,389,829	6.750%	0.35222	489,519	3.726%	0.32771	45
2051	1,388,619	6.750%	0.32994	458,167	3.726%	0.31594	438
2052	1,383,614	6.750%	0.30908	427,649	3.726%	0.30459	42:
2053	1,373,663	6.750%	0.28954	397,727	3.726%	0.29365	403
2054	1,358,330	6.750%	0.27123	368,419	3.726%	0.28310	384
2055	1,337,031	6.750%	0.25408	339,712	3.726%	0.27294	364
2056	1,310,831	6.750%	0.23801	311,995	3.726%	0.26313	344
2066	1,029,109	6.750%	0.12386	127,463	3.726%	0.18252	18
2076	663,752	6.750%	0.06445	42,781	3.726%	0.12661	84
2086	241,855	6.750%	0.03354	8,112	3.726%	0.08782	2:
2096	26,421	6.750%	0.01745	461	3.726%	0.06092	
2106	485	6.750%	0.00908	4	3.726%	0.04226	
2116	13	6.750%	0.00473	-	3.726%	0.02931	



CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLO	YEES POST	RETIREMENT BENE	FITS PRO	GRAM		
		75 DISCLOSURES	-			
CHANGE IN NET OPEB LIABILITY AN PARC		BUTIONS MADE BY	EMPLOY	ER (\$ IN 000'S)		
DANU	CORREC					
Fiscal Year Ending		une 30, 2017	Ju	une 30, 2018		June 30, 2019
Total OPEB Liability				·		
Service Cost	\$	609,551	\$	531,916	Ś	503,829
Interest on Total OPEB Liability	Ļ	574,853	Ŷ	634,360	Ļ	622,325
Changes of Benefit Terms						022,323
Difference between Expected and Actual Experience		_		(1,186,530)		(460,414)
Changes of Assumptions		(1,637,897)		(1,180,530)		912,754
Benefit Payments		(325,344)		(327,604)		(294,213)
Net Change in Total OPEB Liability	\$		\$		\$	
Net Change in Total OPEB Liability	Ş	(778,837)	Ş	(512,094)	Ş	1,284,281
Total OPEB Liability - Beginning	\$	15,990,189	\$	15,211,352	\$	14,699,258
Total OPEB Liability - Ending (a)	\$	15,211,352	\$	14,699,258	\$	15,983,539
Plan Fiduciary Net Position						
Employer PayGO Contributions	\$	325,344	\$	327,604	\$	294,213
Employer Pre-Funding Contributions	Ļ	146,933	Ŷ	65,245	Ļ	106,592
Active Member Contributions		23,181		65,245		106,592
Net Investment Income		15,089		17,235		33,447
Benefit Payments		(325,344)		(327,604)		(294,213)
Administrative Expense		(323,344)		(128)		(234,213)
Other		(48)		(120)		(54)
Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position	\$	185,155	\$	147,597	\$	246,537
	<u>,</u>		<u>,</u>		<u>,</u>	222 544
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning	\$ \$	-	\$ \$	185,155	\$	332,511
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending (b)	-	185,155		332,752	\$	579,048
Net OPEB Liability - Ending (a) - (b)	\$	15,026,197	\$	14,366,506	\$	15,404,491
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage Total OPEB Liability		1.217%		2.264%		3.623%
Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC)	\$	698,913	\$	678,512	\$	652,630
Employer Contribution	\$	472,277	\$	392,849	\$	400,805
Percentage of ADC made by Employer		68%		58%		61%
Contribution Excess/(Shortfall)	\$	(226,636)	\$	(285,663)	\$	(251,825)
Expected Return on Assets	\$	7,907	\$	18,141	\$	30,608
Investment (Gain)/Loss	\$	(7,182)	\$	906	\$	(2,839)
Average Expected Remaining Service	Ŧ	6.570241	Ŧ	6.456823	Ŧ	6.426717
Blended Discount Rate Beginning of Year		3.497%		4.074%		4.133%
Blended Discount Rate End of Year		4.074%		4.133%		3.726%
Long-term Expected Return on Assets		7.280%		7.000%		6.750%



GASB NOS. 74 AND 75 DISCL OPEB EXPENSES AND NET OPEB LIABILITY S BARGAINING UNIT NUMB	ENSITIVITY	(\$ IN 000'S)		
CORRECTIONS Measured for the Plan's Fiscal Year Ending Applicable for the Sponsor's Fiscal Year Ending		ine 30, 2018 ine 30, 2019		June 30, 2019 June 30, 2020
OPEB Expense				
Service Cost Interest on the Total OPEB Liability Current-Period Benefit Changes Active Member Contributions Projected Earnings on Plan Investments Operating Expenses Other Changes in Plan Fiduciary Net Position Recognition of Outflow/(Inflow) due to Non-investment Experience Recognition of Outflow/(Inflow) due to Assumption Changes Recognition of Outflow/(Inflow) due to Investment Experience	\$	531,916 634,360 - (65,245) (18,141) 128 - (183,764) (274,726) (1,255)	\$	503,829 622,325 - (106,592) (30,608) 94 - (255,405) (132,701) (1,823)
Net OPEB Expense	\$	623,273	\$	599,119
Reconciliation of Net OPEB Liability				
Net OPEB Liability Beginning of Year OPEB Expense Employer Contributions Change in Outflow/(Inflow) due to Non-investment Experience Change in Outflow/(Inflow) due to Assumption Changes Change in Outflow/(Inflow) due to Investment Experience Net OPEB Liability End of Year	\$	15,026,197 623,273 (392,849) (1,002,766) 110,490 2,161 14,366,506	\$	14,366,747 599,119 (400,805) (205,009) 1,045,455 (1,016) 15,404,491
Deferred (Inflows)				
Non-investment Experience Assumption Changes Investment Experience	\$ \$ \$	(1,002,766) (1,278,117) (4,310)	\$ \$ \$	(1,207,775) (1,003,391) (5,145)
Deferred Outflows Non-investment Experience Assumption Changes Investment Experience	\$ \$ \$	- - 725	\$ \$ \$	- 770,729 544
Net OPEB Liability Sensitivity				
Baseline Discount Rate Baseline Discount Rate and Trend Rates Increase Discount Rate by One Percentage Point Decrease Discount Rate by One Percentage Point Increase Trend Rate by One Percentage Point	\$ \$ \$	4.133% 14,366,506 12,132,067 17,237,517 16,959,344	\$ \$ \$	3.726% 15,404,491 12,978,078 18,523,905 18,699,103
Decrease Trend Rate by One Percentage Point	\$	12,356,587	\$	12,863,462



Valuation Date		6/30/2019				GASB NOS. 74 RED INFLOWS BARGAININ	AND 7 AND 0	ETIREMENT BEN 5 DISCLOSURES UTFLOWS (\$ IN 7 NUMBER 6 ONS									
Measurement Date		6/30/2019 6/30/2019															
		Νο	n-Inv	vestment Experier	ice				As	sumption Changes				In	vestment Experi	ence	
				Amortization		Initial				Amortization		Initial			Amortization	Т	Initial
Plan Year Beginning		(Gain)/Loss		Factor	4	Amortization		(Gain)/Loss		Factor		Amortization	(Gain)/L	oss	Factor	4	mortization
7/1/2016 7/1/2017 7/1/2018	\$ \$ \$	- (1,186,530) (460,414)		6.570241 6.456823 6.426717	\$	- (183,764) (71,641)	\$ \$ \$			6.570241 6.456823 6.426717	\$ \$ \$	(249,290) (25,436) 142,025	\$	182) 906 839)	\$ 5.000000 5.000000 5.000000	\$	(1,436) 181 (568)
Deferred Outflows/(Inflows) Recognized in OPEB Expense for Current Plan Year End		Outflows		(Inflows)		Net		Outflows		(Inflows)		Net	Outflo	vs	(Inflows)		Net
6/30/2019	\$	-	\$	(255,405)	\$	(255,405)	\$	142,025	\$	(274,726)	\$	(132,701)	\$	181	\$ (2,004)\$	(1,823)
Deferred Outflows/(Inflows) Recognized in OPEB Expense for Future Plan Years Ending																	
6/30/2020	\$	-	\$	(255,405)	\$	(255,405)	\$		\$	(274,726)	\$	(132,701)		181	\$ (2,004)\$	(1,823)
6/30/2021	\$	-	\$	(255 <i>,</i> 405)		(255,405)	\$		\$	(274,726)	\$	(132,701)	\$	181	\$ (2,006)\$	(1,825)
6/30/2022	\$	-	\$	(255 <i>,</i> 405)		(255,405)	\$		\$	(274,726)		(132,701)	\$	182	\$ (568	· ·	(386)
6/30/2023	\$	-	\$	(255,405)		(255,405)	\$		\$	(167,593)		(25,568)	\$	-	\$ (567)\$	(567)
6/30/2024	\$	-	\$	(155,587)		(155,587)	\$		\$	(11,620)	\$	130,405	\$	-	\$ -	\$	-
6/30/2025	\$	-	\$	(30,568)	\$	(30,568)	\$	60,604	\$	-	\$	60,604	\$	-	\$ -	\$	-
6/30/2026	\$	-	\$	-	Ş	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$ -	\$	-
6/30/2027	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	Ş	-	Ş	-	\$	-	\$-	\$	-
6/30/2028	\$	-	\$	-	Ş	-	\$	-	Ş	-	Ş	-	\$	-	Ş -	\$	-
Total	\$	-	\$	(1,207,775)	\$	(1,207,775)	\$	770,729	\$	(1,003,391)	\$	(232,662)	\$	544	\$ (5,145)\$	(4,601)
Change In Deferred Outflows/(Inflows) Recognized in Liability and Assets for Current Plan Year End																	
6/30/2019					\$	(205,009)					\$	1,045,455				\$	(1,016)



CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLOYEES POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS PROGRAM FULL-FUNDING ACTUARIAL VALUATION (\$ IN 000'S) 7.00% AT JULY 1, 2018 AND 6.75% AT JULY 1, 2019 BARGAINING UNIT NUMBER 7

PROTECTIVE SERVICES AND PUBLIC SAFETY

		July 1, 2018		July 1, 2019
Number of Participants Covered		7 574		7 717
Active Participants Retired Participants ^a		7,574 5,854		7,717
Total Participants		<u>5,854</u> 13,428		<u>6,052</u> 13,769
Actuarial Descent Value of Decisional Description				
Actuarial Present Value of Projected Benefits Active Participants	\$	1,218,293	\$	1,238,968
Retired Participants	Ç	1,136,544	ڔ	1,235,908
Total Participants	\$	2,354,837	\$	2,474,946
	Ŷ	2,00 1,007	Ŷ	2,17 1,3 10
Actuarial Accrued Liability				
Active Participants	\$	793,401	\$	800,897
Retired Participants		1,136,544		1,235,978
Total Participants	\$	1,929,945	\$	2,036,875
Actuarial Value of Assets	\$	41,695	\$	72,366
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability	\$	1,888,250	\$	1,964,509
Net Employer ADC for FYE		June 30, 2019		June 30, 2020
Normal Cost	\$	46,225	\$	47,137
Administrative Expenses		189		206
Amortization of UAAL		108,493		115,120
Total ADC	\$	154,907	\$	162,463
Estimated Member Contributions		(11,603)		(17,754)
Net Employer ADC	\$	143,304	\$	144,709
Expected Claim Costs for FYE ^b Employer Explicit Costs		June 30, 2019		June 30, 2020
Medical and Rx Claims	\$	53,979	\$	56,097
Part B Reimbursement	Ŧ	8,184	т	8,999
Dental Claims		3,772		4,007
Total	\$	65,935	\$	69,103
Employer Implicit Costs		9,528		13,310
Total Employer Costs	\$	75,463	\$	82,413
Retiree Share of Claim Costs	•	-		
Medical and Rx Claims	\$	4,081	\$	4,219
Dental Claims		1,185		1,218
Total	\$	5,266	\$	5,437
Total Claims Costs	\$	80,729	\$	87,850

^eRetired participants with dental only coverage, 372 as of July 1, 2018, and 380 as of July 1, 2019, are excluded from the above counts but are reflected in the actuarial valuation.

^bFor purposes of financial reporting, employer explicit and implicit costs will be updated based on actual experience during each respective reporting period.



	CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLOYEES POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS PROGRAM FULL-FUNDING PROJECTIONS BASED ON JULY 1, 2019, ACTUARIAL VALUATION (\$ IN 000'S) BARGAINING UNIT NUMBER 7 PROTECTIVE SERVICES AND PUBLIC SAFETY												
Long-terr Discount	n Beginning n Asset Return Rate i is Fully Funded	7/1/2019 6.750% 6.750% 2048											
		Disbursements/	Administrative	Pre-Fund	Investment		Accrued	Funded					
FYE	Assets (boy)	Benefits	Expenses	Contribution	Income	Assets (eoy)	Liability (eoy)	Ratio	Normal Cost				
2019	\$ 41,665	\$-	\$ 12					3.6%					
2020	72,366	-	206	35,507	6,057	113,724	2,139,488	5.3%	45,881				
2021	113,724	-	225	46,106	9,200	168,805	2,239,921	7.5%	44,639				
2022	168,805	-	246	44,885	12,876	226,320	2,337,045	9.7%	43,357				
2023	226,320	-	267	43,624	16,716	286,393	2,430,722	11.8%	42,011				
2024	286,393	-	288	42,299	20,726	349,130	2,520,537	13.9%	40,576				
2025	349,130	-	309	40,884	24,913	414,618	2,606,316	15.9%	39,082				
2026	414,618	-	328	39,410	29,284	482,984	2,688,176	18.0%	37,505				
2027	482,984	-	347	37,851	33,847	554,335	2,766,364	20.0%	35,847				
2028	554,335	-	365	36,212	38,608	628,790	2,840,438	22.1%	34,157				
2029	628,790	-	384	34,541	43,577	706,524	2,909,968	24.3%	32,445				
2030	706,524	-	403	32,848	48,767	787,736	2,974,449	26.5%	30,711				
2031	787,736	-	423	31,134	54,192	872,639	3,033,202	28.8%	28,952				
2032	872,639	-	443	29,394	59,864	961,454	3,085,809	31.2%	27,186				
2033	961,454	-	463	27,649	65,801	1,054,441	3,131,820	33.7%	25,435				
2034	1,054,441	-	482	25,917	72,019	1,151,895	3,170,964	36.3%	23,672				
2035	1,151,895	-	502	24,174	78,539	1,254,106	3,202,711	39.2%	21,888				
2036	1,254,106	-	521	22,409	85,379	1,361,373	3,226,860	42.2%	20,123				
2037 2038	1,361,373 1,474,057	-	539 555	20,662 18,976	92,561 100,110	1,474,057 1,592,588	3,243,425 3,252,721	45.4% 49.0%	18,421 16,773				
		-	568					49.0% 52.8%	,				
2039 2040	1,592,588 1,717,419	-	568	17,342 15,753	108,057 116,429	1,717,419 1,849,019	3,255,197 3,250,658	52.8% 56.9%	15,172 13,615				
2040	1,849,019	-	582	14,209	110,429	1,849,019	3,230,038	56.9% 61.4%	12,073				
2041	1,987,895	-	604	14,203	134,584	2,134,552	3,239,120	66.3%	10,550				
2042	2,134,552		615	12,677	134,584	2,134,552	3,195,610	71.6%	9,078				
2043	2,134,332		625	9,703	144,432	2,289,333	3,162,539	77.6%	7,681				
2044	2,285,355		633	8,314	154,843	2,433,430	3,122,388	84.1%	6,369				
2045	2,627,000	_	640	7,009	105,805	2,810,903	3,075,342	91.4%	5,182				
2040	2,810,903		644	5,827	189,908	3,005,994	3,022,075	99.5%	4,132				
2048	3,005,994	224,594	647	4,779	195,586	2,981,118	2,963,225	100.6%	3,228				
2049	2,981,118	259,130	648	-	192,601	2,913,941	2,898,923	100.5%	2,484				
2050	2,913,941	258,312	646	-	188,094	2,843,077	2,830,333	100.5%	1,879				
2051	2,843,077	256,529	641	-	183,370	2,769,277	2,758,313	100.4%	1,401				
2052	2,769,277	254,649	637	-	178,451	2,692,442	2,682,865	100.4%	1,028				
2053	2,692,442	251,808	630	-	173,359	2,613,363	2,604,864	100.3%	742				
2054	2,613,363	248,361	621	-	168,136	2,532,517	2,524,857	100.3%	526				
2055	2,532,517	244,639	612	-	162,803	2,450,069	2,443,065	100.3%	366				
2056	2,450,069	240,075	600	-	157,390	2,366,784	2,360,301	100.3%	250				
2057	2,366,784	235,040	588	-	151,935	2,283,091	2,277,030	100.3%	166				



CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLOYEES POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS PROGRAM DEVELOPMENT OF GASB NOS. 74 AND 75 SINGLE EQUIVALENT DISCOUNT RATE (\$ IN 000'S) **BARGAINING UNIT NUMBER 7** PROTECTIVE SERVICES AND PUBLIC SAFETY

20-Year GO Municipal Bond Rate at June 30, 2019	3.130%
Long-Term Investment Return	6.750%
Year Plan is Fully Funded	2048
Single Equivalent Rate	3.654%

Present Value of Benefits

sent Value	of Benefits			\$ 4,475,862			\$ 4,475,8
		Cross-over		Discounted	Single		Discounted
	Net Employer	Investment	Discount	Benefit	Equivalent	Discount	Benefit
FYE	Benefits	Return	Factor	Payment	Return	Factor	Payment
2020	\$ 82,413	3.130%	0.98471	\$ 81,154	3.654%	0.98221	
2021	89,931	3.130%	0.95482	85,868	3.654%	0.94759	85,
2022	98,409	3.130%	0.92584	91,111	3.654%	0.91418	89,
2023	106,763	3.130%	0.89774	95,846	3.654%	0.88195	94,
2023	115,229	3.130%	0.87050	100,307	3.654%	0.85086	98,
2025	123,518	3.130%	0.84408	104,259	3.654%	0.82086	101,
2025	131,373	3.130%	0.81846	107,524	3.654%	0.79192	101
2020	138,644	3.130%	0.79362	110,030	3.654%	0.76400	104,
2027	146,022	3.130%	0.76953	112,369	3.654%	0.73707	105,
2028	153,513	3.130%	0.74618	112,505	3.654%	0.71108	107,
2029	161,175	3.130%	0.74018	114,548	3.654%	0.68601	109,
2030	169,136	3.130%	0.72353	118,661	3.654%	0.66183	110,
2031	177,106	3.130%	0.68028	120,482	3.654%	0.63850	111,
2032	185,104	3.130%	0.65963	120,482	3.654%	0.61599	113,
							-
2034	192,946	3.130%	0.63961	123,411	3.654%	0.59427	114,
2035	200,841	3.130%	0.62020	124,562	3.654%	0.57332	115,
2036	208,426	3.130%	0.60138	125,343	3.654%	0.55311	115,
2037	215,522	3.130%	0.58313	125,676	3.654%	0.53361	115
2038	221,881	3.130%	0.56543	125,458	3.654%	0.51479	114
2039	227,388	3.130%	0.54827	124,670	3.654%	0.49665	112
2040	232,684	3.130%	0.53163	123,701	3.654%	0.47914	111
2041	237,551	3.130%	0.51549	122,456	3.654%	0.46224	109
2042	241,611	3.130%	0.49985	120,768	3.654%	0.44595	107
2043	245,836	3.130%	0.48468	119,151	3.654%	0.43023	105
2044	250,117	3.130%	0.46997	117,547	3.654%	0.41506	103
2045	253,369	3.130%	0.45570	115,461	3.654%	0.40043	101
2046	256,065	3.130%	0.44187	113,148	3.654%	0.38631	98
2047	257,788	3.130%	0.42846	110,452	3.654%	0.37269	96
2048	258,630	3.130%	0.41546	107,450	3.654%	0.35955	92
2049	259,130	6.750%	0.38919	100,850	3.654%	0.34687	89,
2050	258,312	6.750%	0.36458	94,175	3.654%	0.33465	86,
2051	256,529	6.750%	0.34153	87,611	3.654%	0.32285	82,
2052	254,649	6.750%	0.31993	81,470	3.654%	0.31147	79,
2053	251,808	6.750%	0.29970	75,467	3.654%	0.30049	75,
2054	248,361	6.750%	0.28075	69,727	3.654%	0.28989	71,
2055	244,639	6.750%	0.26300	64,340	3.654%	0.27967	68,
2056	240,075	6.750%	0.24637	59,147	3.654%	0.26981	64,
2066	192,064	6.750%	0.12821	24,624	3.654%	0.18845	36,
2076	118,296	6.750%	0.06672	7,892	3.654%	0.13162	15
2086	37,853	6.750%	0.03472	1,314	3.654%	0.09193	3
2096	3,405	6.750%	0.01807	62	3.654%	0.06420	
2106	20	6.750%	0.00940	-	3.654%	0.04484	l
2116	-	6.750%	0.00489	-	3.654%	0.03132	l



CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLO	YEES POST	RETIREMENT BENEI	FITS PRO	GRAM	
GASB NO	S. 74 AND	75 DISCLOSURES			
CHANGE IN NET OPEB LIABILITY AN			EMPLOY	'ER (\$ IN 000'S)	
		IIT NUMBER 7			
		AND PUBLIC SAFET			
Fiscal Year Ending	JL	une 30, 2017	J	une 30, 2018	June 30, 2019
Total OPEB Liability					
Service Cost	\$	123,030	\$	106,547	\$ 101,132
Interest on Total OPEB Liability		113,364		126,344	123,285
Changes of Benefit Terms		-		-	-
Difference between Expected and Actual Experience		-		(256,809)	(69,226)
Changes of Assumptions		(336,806)		(73,969)	149,728
Benefit Payments		(70,074)		(66,136)	 (73,353)
Net Change in Total OPEB Liability	\$	(170,486)	\$	(164,023)	\$ 231,566
Total OPEB Liability - Beginning	\$	3,301,789	\$	3,131,303	\$ 2,967,280
Total OPEB Liability - Ending (a)	\$	3,131,303	\$	2,967,280	\$ 3,198,846
Plan Fiduciary Net Position					
Employer PayGO Contributions	\$	70,074	\$	66,136	\$ 73,353
Employer Pre-Funding Contributions		-		5,716	13,316
Active Member Contributions		-		5,716	13,316
Net Investment Income		-		2,376	4,081
Benefit Payments		(70,074)		(66,136)	(73,353)
Administrative Expense		-		(17)	(12)
Other		-		-	-
Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position	\$	-	\$	13,791	\$ 30,701
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning	\$	-	\$	27,904	\$ 41,665
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending (b)	\$	-	\$	41,695	\$ 72,366
Net OPEB Liability - Ending (a) - (b)	\$	3,131,303	\$	2,925,585	\$ 3,126,480
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage Total OPEB Liability		0.000%		1.405%	2.262%
Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC)	\$	148,250	\$	146,981	\$ 141,591
Employer Contribution	\$	70,074	\$	71,852	\$ 86,669
Percentage of ADC made by Employer	·	47%	·	49%	61%
Contribution Excess/(Shortfall)	\$	(78,176)	\$	(75,129)	\$ (54,922)
Expected Return on Assets	\$	-	\$	2,440	\$ 3,832
Investment (Gain)/Loss	\$	-	\$	64	\$ (249)
Average Expected Remaining Service	·	6.124944		6.407090	6.458821
Blended Discount Rate Beginning of Year		3.344%		3.947%	4.066%
Blended Discount Rate End of Year		3.947%		4.066%	3.654%
Long-term Expected Return on Assets		7.280%		7.000%	6.750%



GASB NOS. 74 AND 75 DISCLOSURES OPEB EXPENSES AND NET OPEB LIABILITY SENSITIVITY (\$ IN 000'S) BARGAINING UNIT NUMBER 7 PROTECTIVE SERVICES AND PUBLIC SAFETY									
Measured for the Plan's Fiscal Year Ending	Ju	ne 30, 2018		une 30, 2019					
Applicable for the Sponsor's Fiscal Year Ending	Ju	ne 30, 2019	J	une 30, 2020					
OPEB Expense									
Service Cost Interest on the Total OPEB Liability Current-Period Benefit Changes Active Member Contributions Projected Earnings on Plan Investments Operating Expenses Other Changes in Plan Fiduciary Net Position Recognition of Outflow/(Inflow) due to Non-investment Experience	\$	106,547 126,344 - (5,716) (2,440) 17 - (40,082)	\$	101,132 123,285 - (13,316 (3,832 12 - (50,800					
Recognition of Outflow/(Inflow) due to Assumption Changes Recognition of Outflow/(Inflow) due to Investment Experience Net OPEB Expense	\$	(66,534) <u>13</u> 118,149	\$	(43,352 (37 113,092					
Reconciliation of Net OPEB Liability									
Net OPEB Liability Beginning of Year OPEB Expense Employer Contributions Change in Outflow/(Inflow) due to Non-investment Experience Change in Outflow/(Inflow) due to Assumption Changes Change in Outflow/(Inflow) due to Investment Experience Net OPEB Liability End of Year	\$	3,103,399 118,149 (71,852) (216,727) (7,435) <u>51</u> 2,925,585	\$	2,925,615 113,092 (86,669 (18,426 193,080 (212 3,126,480					
Deferred (Inflows) Non-investment Experience Assumption Changes Investment Experience	\$ \$ \$	(216,727) (289,252) -	\$ \$ \$	(235,153 (222,718 (199					
Deferred Outflows Non-investment Experience Assumption Changes Investment Experience	\$ \$ \$	- - 51	\$ \$ \$	- 126,546 38					
Net OPEB Liability Sensitivity									
Baseline Discount Rate Baseline Discount Rate and Trend Rates Increase Discount Rate by One Percentage Point Decrease Discount Rate by One Percentage Point Increase Trend Rate by One Percentage Point	\$ \$ \$	4.066% 2,925,585 2,494,169 3,472,238	\$ \$ \$	3.6549 3,126,480 2,661,092 3,716,688					
Decrease Trend Rate by One Percentage Point Decrease Trend Rate by One Percentage Point	\$ \$	3,423,507 2,537,599	\$ \$	3,762,731 2,632,967					



Valuation Date	6/30/2019		DE	FER	GASB NOS. 74 RED INFLOWS A BARGAININ	AND 75 AND OI G UNIT	UTFLOWS (\$ IN	000							
Measurement Date	6/30/2019 6/30/2019														
	Nor		stment Experien					٨٥	sumption Changes			nvo	stment Experier	200	
			mortization	ice	Initial			Ast	Amortization	Initial	 	-	Amortization	ice	Initial
Plan Year Beginning	(Gain)/Loss	A	Factor	ļ	Amortization		(Gain)/Loss		Factor	Amortization	Gain)/Loss		Factor	Ar	nortization
7/1/2016	\$ -		6.124944		-	\$	(336,806)		6.124944	\$ (54,989)	\$ -	\$	5.000000	\$	-
7/1/2017	\$ (256,809)		6.407090		(40,082)	\$	(73,969)		6.407090	\$ (11,545)	\$ 64	Ľ	5.000000	\$	13
7/1/2018	\$ (69,226)		6.458821	\$	(10,718)	\$	149,728		6.458821	\$ 23,182	\$ (249)		5.000000	\$	(50
Deferred Outflows/(Inflows) Recognized in OPEB Expense for Current Plan Year End	Outflows		(Inflows)		Net		Outflows		(Inflows)	Net	Outflows		(Inflows)		Net
6/30/2019	\$ -	\$	(50,800)	\$	(50,800)	\$	23,182	\$	(66,534)	\$ (43,352)	\$ 13	\$	(50)	\$	(37
Deferred Outflows/(Inflows) Recognized in OPEB Expense for Future Plan Years Ending															
6/30/2020	\$ -	\$	(50,800)	\$	(50,800)	\$	23,182	\$	(66,534)	\$ (43,352)	\$ 13	\$	(50)	\$	(37
6/30/2021	\$ -	\$	(50,800)		(50,800)	\$	23,182	\$	(66,534)	(43,352)	\$ 13		(50)	\$	(37
6/30/2022	\$ -	\$	(50,800)	\$	(50,800)	\$	23,182	\$	(66,534)	\$ (43,352)	\$ 12	\$	(50)	\$	(38
6/30/2023	\$ -	\$	(50,800)	\$	(50,800)	\$	23,182	\$	(18,417)	\$ 4,765	\$ -	\$	(49)	\$	(49
6/30/2024	\$ -	\$	(27,035)	\$	(27,035)	\$	23,182	\$	(4,699)	\$ 18,483	\$ -	\$	-	\$	-
6/30/2025	\$ -	\$	(4,918)	\$	(4,918)	\$	10,636	\$	-	\$ 10,636	\$ -	\$	-	\$	-
6/30/2026	\$ -	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$ -	\$ -	\$	-	\$	-
6/30/2027	\$ -	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$ -	\$ -	\$	-	\$	-
6/30/2028	\$ -	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$ -	\$ -	\$	-	\$	-
lotal	\$ -	\$	(235,153)	\$	(235,153)	\$	126,546	\$	(222,718)	\$ (96,172)	\$ 38	\$	(199)	\$	(161
Change In Deferred Outflows/(Inflows) Recognized in Liability and Assets for Current Plan Year End															
6/30/2019				\$	(18,426)					\$ 193,080				\$	(212



CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLOYEES POS FULL-FUNDING ACTUARIAI 7.00% AT JULY 1, 2018 AN BARGAINING UI	. VALUATI D 6.75% A NIT NUMB	ON (\$ IN 000'S) AT JULY 1, 2019	ROC	5RAM						
FIREFIGHTERS										
		July 1, 2018		July 1, 2019						
Number of Participants Covered		6 552		6 4 7 9						
Active Participants		6,552		6,178						
Retired Participants ^a		3,417		3,563						
Total Participants		9,969		9,741						
Actuarial Present Value of Projected Benefits										
Active Participants	\$	1,080,832	\$	1,085,986						
Retired Participants	Ŧ	846,455	Ŧ	927,485						
Total Participants	\$	1,927,287	\$	2,013,471						
Asturnial Assurad Linkility										
Actuarial Accrued Liability	÷	600.050	~	646 670						
Active Participants	\$	600,858	\$	616,679						
Retired Participants		846,455	-	927,485						
Total Participants	\$	1,447,313	\$	1,544,164						
Actuarial Value of Assets	\$	12,305	\$	42,232						
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability	\$	1,435,008	\$	1,501,932						
Net Employer ADC for FYE	J	une 30, 2019		June 30, 2020						
Normal Cost	\$	43,154	\$	42,921						
Administrative Expenses		130		143						
Amortization of UAAL		82,451		88,013						
Total ADC	\$	125,735	\$	131,077						
Estimated Member Contributions		(10,821)	•	(16,149						
Net Employer ADC	\$	114,914	\$	114,928						
Expected Claim Costs for FYE ^b Employer Explicit Costs	J	une 30, 2019		June 30, 2020						
Medical and Rx Claims	\$	38,565	\$	40,872						
Part B Reimbursement		4,339	'	4,741						
Dental Claims		2,345		2,583						
Total	\$	45,249	\$	48,196						
Employer Implicit Costs		6,811	'	9,093						
Total Employer Costs	\$	52,060	\$	57,289						
Retiree Share of Claim Costs	Ŧ	22,000	7	0,200						
Medical and Rx Claims	\$	3,498	\$	3,790						
Dental Claims	•	745		778						
Total	\$	4,243	\$	4,568						
Total Claims Costs	\$	56,303	\$	61,857						

^eRetired participants with dental only coverage, 60 as of July 1, 2018, and 68 as of July 1, 2019, are excluded from the above counts but are reflected in the actuarial valuation.

^bFor purposes of financial reporting, employer explicit and implicit costs will be updated based on actual experience during each respective reporting period.



	CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLOYEES POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS PROGRAM FULL-FUNDING PROJECTIONS BASED ON JULY 1, 2019, ACTUARIAL VALUATION (\$ IN 000'S) BARGAINING UNIT NUMBER 8 FIREFIGHTERS														
Long-tern Discount	iscal Year Beginning 7/1/2019 ong-term Asset Return 6.750% iscount Rat 6.750% ear Plan is Fully Funded 2048 Disbursements/ Administrative Pre-Fund Investment Accrued Funded														
FYE	Assets (boy)	Benefits	Expenses	Contribution	Income	Assets (eoy)	Liability (eoy)	Ratio	Normal Cost						
2019	\$ 12,297	\$-		\$ 27,544				2.7%							
2020	42,232	-	143	32,298	3,918	78,305	1,634,988	4.8%	42,993						
2021	78,305	-	154	43,147	6,713	128,011	1,727,432	7.4%	42,980						
2022 2023	128,011 181,059	-	168	43,148	10,068	181,059	1,820,563	9.9% 12.4%	42,837						
	181,059 237,540	-	182 197	43,019 42,742	13,644	237,540 297,531	1,913,896 2,007,171	12.4% 14.8%	42,545 42,131						
2024 2025	237,540	-	212	42,742	17,446 21,482	361,144	2,007,171 2,100,092	14.8% 17.2%	42,131 41,588						
2025	361,144	-	212		21,482	428,490		17.2%	40,887						
2028	428,490	-	220	41,814 41,127	30,280	428,490	2,192,779 2,285,330	21.9%	40,887						
2027	428,490	-	240	41,127 40,281	35,056	574,740	2,283,330	21.9%	39,016						
2028	574,740		269	39,285	40,090	653,846	2,468,411	24.2%	37,851						
2025	653,846		284	35,285	40,050	737,089	2,557,908	28.8%	36,565						
2030	737,089		302	36,867	50,967	824,621	2,644,848	31.2%	35,159						
2032	824,621	-	320	35,479	56,829	916,609	2,728,519	33.6%	33,619						
2033	916,609	-	339	33,959	62,987	1,013,216	2,808,339	36.1%	31,967						
2034	1,013,216	-	359	32,326	69,453	1,114,636	2,883,547	38.7%	30,180						
2035	1,114,636	-	380	30,560	76,240	1,221,056	2,953,478	41.3%	28,274						
2036	1,221,056	-	401	28,675	83,360	1,332,690	3,017,299	44.2%	26,297						
2037	1,332,690	-	421	26,719	90,830	1,449,818	3,074,844	47.2%	24,276						
2038	1,449,818	-	441	24,718	98,669	1,572,764	3,125,835	50.3%	22,231						
2039	1,572,764	-	461	22,692	106,900	1,701,895	3,169,856	53.7%	20,156						
2040	1,701,895	-	481	20,637	115,547	1,837,598	3,206,391	57.3%	18,050						
2041	1,837,598	-	501	18,551	124,637	1,980,285	3,234,950	61.2%	15,961						
2042	1,980,285	-	520	16,481	134,199	2,130,445	3,255,347	65.4%	13,922						
2043	2,130,445	-	538	14,460	144,267	2,288,634	3,267,442	70.0%	11,867						
2044	2,288,634	-	556	12,423	154,877	2,455,378	3,270,880	75.1%	9,838						
2045	2,455,378	-	572	10,410	166,064	2,631,280	3,265,606	80.6%	7,936						
2046	2,631,280	-	587	8,523	177,875	2,817,091	3,251,871	86.6%	6,195						
2047	2,817,091	-	600	6,795	190,359	3,013,645	3,229,938	93.3%	4,656						
2048	3,013,645	4,082	611	5,267	203,440	3,217,659	3,200,348	100.5%	3,382						
2049	3,217,659	247,478	619	-	208,955	3,178,517	3,164,260	100.5%	2,396						
2050	3,178,517	249,315	623	-	206,252	3,134,831	3,122,786	100.4%	1,669						
2051	3,134,831	250,738	627	-	203,256	3,086,722	3,076,269	100.3%	1,139						
2052	3,086,722	251,513	629	-	199,983	3,034,563	3,025,247	100.3%	760						
2053	3,034,563	251,408	629	-	196,466	2,978,992	2,970,486	100.3%	496 316						
2054	2,978,992	250,976	627	-	192,729	2,920,118	2,912,194	100.3%	316 197						
2055 2056	2,920,118 2,858,540	249,750 247,848	624 620		188,796 184,702	2,858,540 2,794,774	2,851,043 2,787,605	100.3% 100.3%	197						
2056	2,858,540 2,794,774	247,848 245,988	620	-	184,702	2,794,774	2,787,605	100.3%	72						
2037	2,754,774	243,300	015	-	130,400	2,720,031	2,121,121	100.5%	12						



CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLOYEES POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS PROGRAM DEVELOPMENT OF GASB NOS. 74 AND 75 SINGLE EQUIVALENT DISCOUNT RATE (\$ IN 000'S) **BARGAINING UNIT NUMBER 8** FIREFIGHTERS 20-Year GO Municipal Bond Rate at June 30, 2019 3.130% Long-Term Investment Return 6.750% Year Plan is Fully Funded 2048 Single Equivalent Rate 3.776%

Present Value of Benefits

sent Value	of Benefits			\$ 3,838,321			\$ 3,83
		Cross-over		Discounted	Single		Discounte
	Net Employer	Investment	Discount	Benefit	Equivalent	Discount	Benefit
FYE	Benefits	Return	Factor	Payment	Return	Factor	Payment
2020	\$ 57,289	3.130%	0.98471	\$ 56,414	3.776%	0.98164	\$ 5
2021	61,730	3.130%	0.95482	58,941	3.776%	0.94591	. 5
2022	67,092	3.130%	0.92584	62,117	3.776%	0.91149	e
2023	72,830	3.130%	0.89774	65,383	3.776%	0.87832	e
2024	78,682	3.130%	0.87050	68,492	3.776%	0.84636	6
2025	84,687	3.130%	0.84408	71,482	3.776%	0.81556	6
2026	90,423	3.130%	0.81846	74,008	3.776%	0.78588	7
2027	95,887	3.130%	0.79362	76,098	3.776%	0.75728	7
2028	101,478	3.130%	0.76953	78,091	3.776%	0.72972	7
2029	107,537	3.130%	0.74618	80,242	3.776%	0.70317	7
2030	113,712	3.130%	0.72353	82,274	3.776%	0.67758	7
2031	120,704	3.130%	0.70157	84,683	3.776%	0.65292	7
2032	128,096	3.130%	0.68028	87,141	3.776%	0.62916	8
2033	135,698	3.130%	0.65963	89,511	3.776%	0.60627	8
2034	143,670	3.130%	0.63961	91,893	3.776%	0.58420	8
2035	151,845	3.130%	0.62020	94,175	3.776%	0.56294	8
2036	160,358	3.130%	0.60138	96,436	3.776%	0.54246	8
2037	168,559	3.130%	0.58313	98,291	3.776%	0.52272	8
2038	176,574	3.130%	0.56543	99,840	3.776%	0.50370	8
2039	184,539	3.130%	0.54827	101,177	3.776%	0.48537	8
2040	192,518	3.130%	0.53163	102,348	3.776%	0.46770	g
2041	200,448	3.130%	0.51549	103,330	3.776%	0.45068	9
2042	208,056	3.130%	0.49985	103,996	3.776%	0.43428	9
2043	215,318	3.130%	0.48468	104,360	3.776%	0.41848	g
2044	222,365	3.130%	0.46997	104,504	3.776%	0.40325	8
2045	228,927	3.130%	0.45570	104,323	3.776%	0.38858	8
2046	234,807	3.130%	0.44187	103,755	3.776%	0.37443	8
2047	240,048	3.130%	0.42846	102,851	3.776%	0.36081	8
2048	244,437	3.130%	0.41546	101,553	3.776%	0.34768	8
2049	247,478	6.750%	0.38919	96,315	3.776%	0.33503	8
2050	249,315	6.750%	0.36458	90,895	3.776%	0.32283	8
2051	250,738	6.750%	0.34153	85,634	3.776%	0.31109	7
2052	251,513	6.750%	0.31993	80,467	3.776%	0.29977	7
2053	251,408	6.750%	0.29970	75,347	3.776%	0.28886	7
2054	250,976	6.750%	0.28075	70,462	3.776%	0.27835	6
2055	249,750	6.750%	0.26300	65,684	3.776%	0.26822	6
2056	247,848	6.750%	0.24637	61,062	3.776%	0.25846	6
2066	225,329	6.750%	0.12821	28,888	3.776%	0.17840	4
2076	169,493	6.750%	0.06672	11,308	3.776%	0.12314	2
2086	69,098	6.750%	0.03472	2,399	3.776%	0.08500	
2096	9,661	6.750%	0.01807	175	3.776%	0.05867	
2106	256	6.750%	0.00940	2	3.776%	0.04050	
2116	6	6.750%	0.00489	-	3.776%	0.02795	



CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLO	YEES POST	RETIREMENT BENEI	FITS PRO	GRAM		
		75 DISCLOSURES				
CHANGE IN NET OPEB LIABILITY AN			EMPLOY	/ER (\$ IN 000'S)		
BARGI	AINING UN	NIT NUMBER 8				
Fiscal Year Ending	-	une 30, 2017		une 30, 2018		June 30, 2019
	-		-			
Total OPEB Liability	<u>,</u>	110.000	<u> </u>	404 600	4	05 000
Service Cost	\$	116,930	\$	101,638	\$	95,936
Interest on Total OPEB Liability		88,265		97,944		97,316
Changes of Benefit Terms		-		-		-
Difference between Expected and Actual Experience		-		(195,606)		(80,403)
Changes of Assumptions		(248,744)		4,237		124,662
Benefit Payments		(49,073)		(48,175)		(40,965)
Net Change in Total OPEB Liability	\$	(92,622)	\$	(39,962)	\$	196,546
Total OPEB Liability - Beginning	\$	2,400,763	\$	2,308,141	\$	2,268,179
Total OPEB Liability - Ending (a)	\$	2,308,141	\$	2,268,179	\$	2,464,725
Plan Fiduciary Net Position						
Employer PayGO Contributions	\$	49,073	\$	48,175	\$	40,965
Employer Pre-Funding Contributions		-		6,066		13,772
Active Member Contributions		-		6,066		13,772
Net Investment Income		-		176		2,397
Benefit Payments		(49,073)		(48,175)		(40,965)
Administrative Expense		-		(3)		(6)
Other		-		-		-
Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position	\$	-	\$	12,305	\$	29,935
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning	\$	-	\$	-	\$	12,297
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending (b)	\$	-	\$	12,305	\$	42,232
Net OPEB Liability - Ending (a) - (b)	\$	2,308,141	\$	2,255,874	\$	2,422,493
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage Total OPEB Liability		0.000%		0.543%		1.713%
Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC)	\$	118,158	\$	115,637	\$	111,963
Employer Contribution	\$	49,073	\$	54,241	\$	54,737
Percentage of ADC made by Employer		42%		47%		49%
Contribution Excess/(Shortfall)	\$	(69,085)	\$	(61,396)	\$	(57,226)
Expected Return on Assets	\$	-	\$	434	\$	1,808
Investment (Gain)/Loss	\$	-	\$	258	\$	(589)
Average Expected Remaining Service		9.568629		9.356156	·	8.815624
Blended Discount Rate Beginning of Year		3.540%		4.108%		4.152%
Blended Discount Rate End of Year		4.108%		4.152%		3.776%
Long-term Expected Return on Assets	<u> </u>	7.280%		7.000%		6.750%



GASB NOS. 74 AND 75 DISCLOSURES OPEB EXPENSES AND NET OPEB LIABILITY SENSITIVITY (\$ IN 000'S) BARGAINING UNIT NUMBER 8 FIREFIGHTERS											
Measured for the Plan's Fiscal Year Ending Applicable for the Sponsor's Fiscal Year Ending		ne 30, 2018 ne 30, 2019		une 30, 2019 une 30, 2020							
OPEB Expense											
Service Cost Interest on the Total OPEB Liability Current-Period Benefit Changes Active Member Contributions Projected Earnings on Plan Investments Operating Expenses Other Changes in Plan Fiduciary Net Position Recognition of Outflow/(Inflow) due to Non-investment Experience Recognition of Outflow/(Inflow) due to Assumption Changes Recognition of Outflow/(Inflow) due to Investment Experience	\$	101,638 97,944 - (6,066) (434) 3 - (20,907) (25,543) 52	\$	95,936 97,316 - (13,772) (1,808) 6 - (30,028) (11,402) (66)							
Net OPEB Expense	\$	146,687	\$	136,182							
Reconciliation of Net OPEB Liability											
Net OPEB Liability Beginning of Year OPEB Expense Employer Contributions Change in Outflow/(Inflow) due to Non-investment Experience Change in Outflow/(Inflow) due to Assumption Changes Change in Outflow/(Inflow) due to Investment Experience Net OPEB Liability End of Year	\$	2,308,141 146,687 (54,241) (174,699) 29,780 206 2,255,874	\$	2,255,882 136,182 (54,737) (50,375) 136,064 (523) 2,422,493							
Deferred (Inflows)											
Non-investment Experience Assumption Changes Investment Experience	\$ \$ \$	(174,699) (196,752) -	\$ \$ \$	(225,074) (170,756) (471)							
Deferred Outflows Non-investment Experience Assumption Changes Investment Experience	\$ \$ \$	- 3,784 206	\$ \$ \$	- 113,852 154							
Net OPEB Liability Sensitivity											
Baseline Discount Rate Baseline Discount Rate and Trend Rates Increase Discount Rate by One Percentage Point Decrease Discount Rate by One Percentage Point Increase Trend Rate by One Percentage Point	\$ \$ \$	4.152% 2,255,874 1,902,960 2,710,844 2,684,581	\$ \$ \$	3.776% 2,422,493 2,038,226 2,918,656 2,964,208							
Decrease Trend Rate by One Percentage Point	\$ \$	2,684,581 1,928,567	ې \$	2,964,208							



					GASB NOS. 74 A RED INFLOWS A BARGAINING	AND 7	UTFLOWS (\$ IN NUMBER 8										
Valuation Date Measurement Date	6/30/2019 6/30/2019																
	 -,,											_					
	Noi	n-Inv	estment Experier	ice				As	sumption Changes					nves	tment Experie	nce	
			Amortization		Initial				Amortization		Initial			1	Amortization		Initial
Plan Year Beginning	(Gain)/Loss		Factor		mortization	_	(Gain)/Loss		Factor		Amortization		(Gain)/Loss		Factor		nortization
7/1/2016	\$ -		9.568629		-	\$	(248,744)		9.568629	L ' .	(25,996)	\$		\$	5.000000	\$	-
7/1/2017	\$ (195,606)		9.356156		(20,907)	\$	4,237		9.356156	\$	453	\$			5.000000	\$	52
7/1/2018	\$ (80,403)		8.815624	Ş	(9,121)	\$	124,662		8.815624	\$	14,141	\$	(589)	5.000000	\$	(118
Deferred Outflows/(Inflows) Recognized in OPEB Expense for Current Plan Year End	Outflows		(Inflows)		Net		Outflows		(Inflows)		Net		Outflows		(Inflows)		Net
6/30/2019	\$ -	\$	(30,028)	\$	(30,028)	\$	14,594	\$	(25,996)	\$	(11,402)	\$	52	\$	(118)	\$	(66
Deferred Outflows/(Inflows) Recognized in OPEB Expense for Future Plan Years Ending																	
6/30/2020	\$ -	\$	(30,028)	\$	(30,028)	\$	14,594	\$	(25,996)	\$	(11,402)	\$	52	\$	(118)	\$	(66
6/30/2021	\$ -	\$	(30,028)	\$	(30,028)	\$	14,594	\$	(25,996)	\$	(11,402)	\$	52	\$	(118)	\$	(66
6/30/2022	\$ -	\$	(30,028)	\$	(30,028)	\$	14,594	\$	(25,996)	\$	(11,402)	\$	50	\$	(118)	\$	(68
6/30/2023	\$ -	\$	(30,028)	\$	(30,028)	\$	14,594	\$	(25,996)	\$	(11,402)	\$	-	\$	(117)	\$	(117
6/30/2024	\$ -	\$	(30,028)	\$	(30,028)	\$	14,594	\$	(25,996)	\$	(11,402)	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
6/30/2025	\$ -	\$	(30,028)	\$	(30,028)	\$	14,594	\$	(25,996)	\$	(11,402)	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
6/30/2026	\$ -	\$	(30,028)	\$	(30,028)	\$	14,594	\$	(14,780)	\$	(186)	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
6/30/2027	\$ -	\$	(14,878)	\$	(14,878)	\$	11,694	\$	-	\$	11,694	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
6/30/2028	\$ -	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
Total	\$ -	\$	(225,074)	\$	(225,074)	\$	113,852	\$	(170,756)	\$	(56,904)	\$	154	\$	(471)	\$	(317
Change In Deferred Outflows/(Inflows) Recognized in Liability and Assets for Current Plan Year End																	
6/30/2019				\$	(50,375)					\$	136,064					\$	(523



CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLOYEES POST			ROO	GRAM
FULL-FUNDING ACTUARIAL				
7.00% AT JULY 1, 2018 AND				
BARGAINING UN				
PROFESSIONAL	ENGINEE	RS		
	J	uly 1, 2018		July 1, 2019
Number of Participants Covered				
Active Participants		12,462		13,265
Retired Participants ^a		6,868		7,137
Total Participants		19,330		20,402
Actuarial Present Value of Projected Benefits				
Active Participants	\$	1,904,675	\$	1,949,343
Retired Participants		1,192,145		1,306,505
Total Participants	\$	3,096,820	\$	3,255,848
Actuarial Accrued Liability				
Active Participants	\$	1,462,748	\$	1,482,463
Retired Participants		1,192,145		1,306,505
Total Participants	\$	2,654,893	\$	2,788,968
Actuarial Value of Assets	\$	53,429	\$	84,788
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability	\$	2,601,464	\$	2,704,180
Net Employer ADC for FYE	Ju	ine 30, 2019		June 30, 2020
Normal Cost	\$	55,283	\$	57,163
Administrative Expenses		233		257
Amortization of UAAL		149,472		158,465
Total ADC	\$	204,988	\$	215,885
Estimated Member Contributions		(13,879)		(21,532)
Net Employer ADC	\$	191,109	\$	194,353
Expected Claim Costs for FYE ^b	Ju	ıne 30, 2019		June 30, 2020
Employer Explicit Costs				
Medical and Rx Claims	\$	62,277	\$	65,523
Part B Reimbursement		11,820		13,053
Dental Claims		4,627		4,892
Total	\$	78,724	\$	83,468
Employer Implicit Costs	Ŧ	14,477	Ŧ	19,309
Total Employer Costs	\$	93,201	\$	102,777
Retiree Share of Claim Costs	¥	55,201	Ŷ	102,777
Medical and Rx Claims	\$	4,184	\$	4,153
Dental Claims	7	1,466	7	1,513
Total	\$	5,650	\$	5,666
	ب ج	5,050	ب ح	5,000

^eRetired participants with dental only coverage, 306 as of July 1, 2018, and 313 as of July 1, 2019, are excluded from the above counts but are reflected in the actuarial valuation.

^bFor purposes of financial reporting, employer explicit and implicit costs will be updated based on actual experience during each respective reporting period.

\$



Total Claims Costs

98,851 \$

108,443

	CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLOYEES POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS PROGRAM FULL-FUNDING PROJECTIONS BASED ON JULY 1, 2019, ACTUARIAL VALUATION (\$ IN 000'S) BARGAINING UNIT NUMBER 9 PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERS												
Long-tern Discount	ir Beginning n Asset Return Rate is Fully Funded	7/1/2019 6.750% 6.750% 2048											
		Disbursements/	Administrative	Pre-Fund	Investment		Accrued	Funded					
FYE	Assets (boy)	Benefits	Expenses	Contribution	Income	Assets (eoy)	Liability (eoy)	Ratio	Normal Cost				
2019	\$ 53,391	\$-	\$ 14					3.0%					
2020	84,788	-	257	43,065			2,931,999	4.6%	53,893				
2021	134,740	-	293	54,186			3,066,372	6.5% 8.3%	50,918				
2022 2023	199,517	-	330	51,249			3,191,132		48,075				
2023	265,594 333,193	-	366 402	48,442			3,306,391 3,411,664	10.1% 11.8%	45,316 42,653				
2024	402,505	-	402	43,090			3,507,187	11.8%	42,055				
2023	402,505	-	430	43,090			3,593,898	15.2%	37,709				
2028	547,176	-	487	38,202			3,673,081	15.2%	35,400				
2027	623,071	_	517	35,917			3,745,094	17.0%	33,205				
2028	701,703		541	33,746			3,809,675	20.6%	31,121				
2020	783,375		564	31,685			3,866,869	22.5%	29,137				
2030	868,407	-	586	29,723			3,916,628	24.4%	27,243				
2032	957,129	-	609	27,852			3,958,360	26.5%	25,439				
2033	1,049,883	-	632	26,070	,		3,991,621	28.7%	23,721				
2034	1,147,033	-	653	24,374			4,016,387	31.1%	22,088				
2035	1,248,966	-	674	22,762	85,039	1,356,093	4,032,414	33.6%	20,535				
2036	1,356,093	-	695	21,229	92,218	1,468,845	4,039,342	36.4%	19,064				
2037	1,468,845	-	713	19,777	99,780	1,587,689	4,037,485	39.3%	17,657				
2038	1,587,689	-	729	18,386	5 107,755	1,713,101	4,027,440	42.5%	16,294				
2039	1,713,101	-	744	17,039	116,175	1,845,571	4,009,001	46.0%	14,971				
2040	1,845,571	-	759	15,733	L 125,073	1,985,616	3,981,706	49.9%	13,694				
2041	1,985,616	-	772	14,466	5 134,484	2,133,794	3,945,958	54.1%	12,467				
2042	2,133,794	-	783	13,250			3,901,773	58.7%	11,287				
2043	2,290,706	-	795	12,082			3,848,541	63.8%	10,152				
2044	2,456,990	-	805	10,957			3,786,294	69.5%	9,064				
2045	2,633,326	-	813	9,87			3,715,311	75.9%	8,030				
2046	2,820,440	-	820	8,850			3,635,715	83.0%	7,054				
2047	3,019,116	-	824	7,878			3,548,135	91.0%	6,131				
2048	3,230,194	-	824	6,955			3,453,467	100.0%	5,265				
2049	3,454,566	299,250	822	-	223,221		3,352,255	100.8%	4,460				
2050	3,377,715	327,171	818	-	217,107		3,245,235	100.7%	3,713				
2051	3,266,833	324,056	810	-	209,726		3,133,414	100.6%	3,028				
2052	3,151,693	320,122	800	-	202,085		3,017,382	100.5%	2,420				
2053 2054	3,032,856 2,911,037	315,256 309,375	788 773		194,225 186,198		2,897,898 2,775,858	100.5% 100.4%	1,887 1,431				
2054	2,911,037	309,375 302,731	773	-	178,053			100.4%					
2055	2,787,087 2,661,652	295,077	738	-	178,053		2,651,960 2,527,208	100.4%	1,055 760				
2056	2,535,677	295,077 286,402	738		161,626		2,527,208	100.3%	537				
2037	2,333,077	200,402	/10	-	101,020	2,410,103	2,402,085	100.5%	557				



CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLOYEES POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS PROGRAM DEVELOPMENT OF GASB NOS. 74 AND 75 SINGLE EQUIVALENT DISCOUNT RATE (\$ IN 000'S) **BARGAINING UNIT NUMBER 9 PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERS**

20-Year GO Municipal Bond Rate at June 30, 2019	3.130%
Long-Term Investment Return	6.750%
Year Plan is Fully Funded	2048
Single Equivalent Rate	3.586%

Present Value of Benefits

sent Value	of Benefits			\$ 5,791,606						
		Cross-over		Discounted	Single		Discounted			
	Net Employer	Investment	Discount	Benefit	Equivalent	Discount	Benefit			
FYE	Benefits	Return	Factor	Payment	Return	Factor	Payment			
2020	\$ 102,777	3.130%	0.98471	4	3.586%	0.98254	4			
2020	117,127	3.130%	0.95482	111,836	3.586%	0.94852	100,			
2021	132,133	3.130%	0.92584	122,335	3.586%	0.91569	111,			
2022	146,542	3.130%	0.32384	131,557	3.586%	0.88399	120,			
2023	160,886	3.130%	0.87050	140,051	3.586%	0.85339	123			
2025	174,448	3.130%	0.84408	147,247	3.586%	0.82384	143			
2026	186,601	3.130%	0.81846	152,726	3.586%	0.79532	148			
2027	197,062	3.130%	0.79362	156,392	3.586%	0.76779	151			
2028	206,786	3.130%	0.76953	159,128	3.586%	0.74121	153,			
2029	216,420	3.130%	0.74618	161,488	3.586%	0.71555	153,			
2020	225,632	3.130%	0.72353	163,252	3.586%	0.69078	155,			
2031	234,515	3.130%	0.70157	164,529	3.586%	0.66687	155			
2032	243,580	3.130%	0.68028	165,703	3.586%	0.64378	156			
2032	252,643	3.130%	0.65963	166,651	3.586%	0.62149	150			
2034	261,261	3.130%	0.63961	167,106	3.586%	0.59998	156			
2035	269,651	3.130%	0.62020	167,237	3.586%	0.57921	156			
2036	277,900	3.130%	0.60138	167,123	3.586%	0.55916	155			
2037	285,338	3.130%	0.58313	166,388	3.586%	0.53980	154			
2038	291,690	3.130%	0.56543	164,930	3.586%	0.52111	154			
2039	297,750	3.130%	0.54827	163,246	3.586%	0.50307	149			
2035	303,752	3.130%	0.53163	161,483	3.586%	0.48566	147			
2041	308,832	3.130%	0.51549	159,201	3.586%	0.46885	144			
2042	313,395	3.130%	0.49985	156,650	3.586%	0.45262	141			
2043	318,049	3.130%	0.48468	154,151	3.586%	0.43695	138			
2044	322,125	3.130%	0.46997	151,388	3.586%	0.42182	135			
2045	325,393	3.130%	0.45570	148,283	3.586%	0.40722	132			
2046	328,026	3.130%	0.44187	144,946	3.586%	0.39312	128			
2047	329,548	3.130%	0.42846	141,199	3.586%	0.37951	125			
2048	329,734	3.130%	0.41546	136,991	3.586%	0.36637	120			
2049	328,991	6.750%	0.38919	128,039	3.586%	0.35369	116			
2050	327,171	6.750%	0.36458	119,280	3.586%	0.34145	111			
2051	324,056	6.750%	0.34153	110,674	3.586%	0.32963	106			
2052	320,122	6.750%	0.31993	102,417	3.586%	0.31821	101			
2053	315,256	6.750%	0.29970	94,482	3.586%	0.30720	96			
2054	309,375	6.750%	0.28075	86,857	3.586%	0.29656	91			
2055	302,731	6.750%	0.26300	79,618	3.586%	0.28630	86			
2056	295,077	6.750%	0.24637	72,698	3.586%	0.27639	81			
2066	196,564	6.750%	0.12821	25,201	3.586%	0.19432	38			
2076	103,895	6.750%	0.06672	6,931	3.586%	0.13661	14			
2086	32,616	6.750%	0.03472	1,132	3.586%	0.09605	3			
2096	3,274	6.750%	0.01807	59	3.586%	0.06753				
2106	24	6.750%	0.00940	-	3.586%	0.04748				
2116		6.750%	0.00489	-	3.586%	0.03338				



CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLO	YEES POST	RETIREMENT BENE	FITS PRO	GRAM	
		75 DISCLOSURES			
CHANGE IN NET OPEB LIABILITY AN			EMPLOY	ER (\$ IN 000'S)	
		IT NUMBER 9			
Fiscal Year Ending		ENGINEERS		une 30, 2018	June 30, 2019
	10	iiie 30, 2017		une 30, 2018	Julie 30, 2019
Total OPEB Liability					
Service Cost	\$	166,173	\$	142,954	\$ 127,060
Interest on Total OPEB Liability		154,495		174,062	165,399
Changes of Benefit Terms		-		-	-
Difference between Expected and Actual Experience		-		(334,650)	(88,806)
Changes of Assumptions		(475,991)		(200,549)	145,634
Benefit Payments		(82,449)		(85,278)	 (84,522)
Net Change in Total OPEB Liability	\$	(237,772)	\$	(303,461)	\$ 264,765
Total OPEB Liability - Beginning	\$	4,640,159	\$	4,402,387	\$ 4,098,926
Total OPEB Liability - Ending (a)	\$	4,402,387	\$	4,098,926	\$ 4,363,691
Plan Fiduciary Net Position					
Employer PayGO Contributions	\$	82,449	\$	85,278	\$ 84,522
Employer Pre-Funding Contributions		35,210		5,688	13,311
Active Member Contributions		-		5,688	13,311
Net Investment Income		3,630		3,246	4,789
Benefit Payments		(82,449)		(85,278)	(84,522)
Administrative Expense		(11)		(22)	(14)
Other		-		-	-
Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position	\$	38,829	\$	14,600	\$ 31,397
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning	\$	-	\$	38,829	\$ 53,391
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending (b)	\$	38,829	\$	53,429	\$ 84,788
Net OPEB Liability - Ending (a) - (b)	\$	4,363,558	\$	4,045,497	\$ 4,278,903
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage Total OPEB Liability		0.882%		1.304%	 1.943%
Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC)	\$	200,997	\$	201,339	\$ 191,677
Employer Contribution	\$	117,659	\$	90,966	\$ 97,833
Percentage of ADC made by Employer		59%		45%	51%
Contribution Excess/(Shortfall)	\$	(83,338)	\$	(110,373)	\$ (93,844)
Expected Return on Assets	\$	1,778	\$	3,233	\$ 4,653
Investment (Gain)/Loss	\$	(1,852)	\$	(13)	\$ (136)
Average Expected Remaining Service		5.858108		6.293618	6.507386
Blended Discount Rate Beginning of Year		3.242%		3.866%	3.953%
Blended Discount Rate End of Year		3.866%		3.953%	3.586%
Long-term Expected Return on Assets		7.280%		7.000%	6.750%



GASB NOS. 74 AND 75 DISCLOSURES OPEB EXPENSES AND NET OPEB LIABILITY SENSITIVITY (\$ IN 000'S) BARGAINING UNIT NUMBER 9 PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERS											
Measured for the Plan's Fiscal Year Ending Applicable for the Sponsor's Fiscal Year Ending	Ju	ne 30, 2018 ne 30, 2019		lune 30, 2019 lune 30, 2020							
OPEB Expense											
Service Cost Interest on the Total OPEB Liability Current-Period Benefit Changes Active Member Contributions Projected Earnings on Plan Investments Operating Expenses Other Changes in Plan Fiduciary Net Position Recognition of Outflow/(Inflow) due to Non-investment Experience Recognition of Outflow/(Inflow) due to Assumption Changes Recognition of Outflow/(Inflow) due to Investment Experience	\$	142,954 174,062 - (5,688) (3,233) 22 - (53,173) (113,118) (373)	\$	127,060 165,399 - (13,311 (4,653 14 - (66,820 (90,738 (400							
Net OPEB Expense	\$	141,453	\$	116,551							
Reconciliation of Net OPEB Liability											
Net OPEB Liability Beginning of Year OPEB Expense Employer Contributions Change in Outflow/(Inflow) due to Non-investment Experience Change in Outflow/(Inflow) due to Assumption Changes Change in Outflow/(Inflow) due to Investment Experience	\$	4,363,558 141,453 (90,966) (281,477) (87,431) <u>360</u>	\$	4,045,535 116,551 (97,833 (21,986 236,372 264							
Net OPEB Liability End of Year	\$	4,045,497	\$	4,278,903							
Deferred (Inflows) Non-investment Experience Assumption Changes Investment Experience	\$ \$ \$	(281,477) (482,169) (1,122)	\$ \$ \$	(303,463) (369,051) (858)							
Deferred Outflows Non-investment Experience Assumption Changes Investment Experience	\$ \$ \$	- -	\$ \$ \$	- 123,254 -							
Net OPEB Liability Sensitivity											
Baseline Discount Rate Baseline Discount Rate and Trend Rates Increase Discount Rate by One Percentage Point Decrease Discount Rate by One Percentage Point Increase Trend Rate by One Percentage Point	\$ \$ \$ \$	3.953% 4,045,497 3,466,633 4,768,695 4,700,881	\$ \$ \$	3.586% 4,278,903 3,664,301 5,047,122 5,117,036							
Decrease Trend Rate by One Percentage Point	\$ \$	4,700,881 3,529,470	ې \$	3,620,852							



Valuation Date Measurement Date		6/30/2019 6/30/2019				GASB NOS. 74 RED INFLOWS BARGAININ	AND 7 AND 0 G UNI1	ETIREMENT BEN 5 DISCLOSURES UTFLOWS (\$ IN 7 NUMBER 9 7 NGINEERS										
measurement Date		· ·											_					
	Non-Investment Expe						Assumption Changes						Investment Experienc					
				Amortization Factor		Initial Amortization		(Gain)/Loss		Amortization		Initial		(Gain)/Loss		Amortization		Initial
Plan Year Beginning 7/1/2016	Ś	(Gain)/Loss		5.858108	Ś	Amortization	ć	(Gain)/Loss (475,991)		Factor 5.858108	\$	Amortization (81,253)	_		۱ć	Factor 5.000000		mortization (370)
7/1/2016 7/1/2017	ې \$	- (334,650)		6.293618		- (53,173)	\$ \$	(475,991) (200,549)		6.293618	\$ \$		\$ \$		· ·	5.000000	\$ \$	(370)
7/1/2018	\$ \$	(334,030) (88,806)		6.507386		(13,647)	\$			6.507386	\$	22,380	\$			5.000000	L '	(3)
77172010	ļ	(00,000)		0.507500	Ŷ	(13,047)		140,004		0.507500	ľ	22,500	Ŷ	(100	'	5.000000	ľ	(27)
Deferred Outflows/(Inflows) Recognized in OPEB Expense for Current Plan Year End		Outflows		(Inflows)		Net		Outflows		(Inflows)		Net		Outflows		(Inflows)		Net
6/30/2019	\$	-	\$	(66,820)	\$	(66,820)	\$	22,380	\$	(113,118)	\$	(90,738)	\$	-	\$	(400)	\$	(400)
Deferred Outflows/(Inflows) Recognized in OPEB Expense for Future Plan Years Ending																		
6/30/2020	\$	-	\$	(66,820)	\$	(66,820)	\$	22,380	\$	(113,118)	\$	(90,738)	\$	-	\$	(400)	\$	(400)
6/30/2021	\$	-	\$	(66,820)		(66,820)	\$		\$	(113,118)	· ·	(90,738)	\$		\$	• • •		(402)
6/30/2022	\$	-	\$	(66,820)	\$	(66,820)	\$		\$	(101,591)	\$	(79,211)	\$		\$	(28)	\$	(28)
6/30/2023	\$	-	\$	(66,820)	\$	(66,820)	\$		\$	(31,865)		(9,485)	\$		\$	(28)	\$	(28)
6/30/2024	\$	-	\$	(29,259)	\$	(29,259)	\$	22,380	\$	(9,359)	\$	13,021	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
6/30/2025	\$	-	\$	(6,924)	\$	(6,924)	\$	11,354	\$	-	\$	11,354	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
6/30/2026	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
6/30/2027	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
6/30/2028	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
Total	\$	-	\$	(303,463)	\$	(303,463)	\$	123,254	\$	(369,051)	\$	(245,797)	\$	-	\$	(858)	\$	(858)
Change In Deferred Outflows/(Inflows) Recognized in Liability and Assets for Current Plan Year End																		
6/30/2019					\$	(21,986)					\$	236,372					\$	264



CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLOYEES POST				
FULL-FUNDING ACTUARIAL				
7.00% AT JULY 1, 2018 AN				
BARGAINING UN	IT NUMBER	10		
PROFESSIONA	L SCIENTIFIC	2		
Number of Participants Covered	Ju	ly 1, 2018		July 1, 2019
Number of Participants Covered Active Participants		3,851		4,048
Retired Participants ^a				,
Total Participants		<u>1,870</u> 5,721		<u>1,973</u> 6,021
		5,721		0,021
Actuarial Present Value of Projected Benefits				
Active Participants	\$	468,985	\$	477,405
Retired Participants		323,838		358,428
Total Participants	\$	792,823	\$	835,833
Actuarial Accrued Liability				
Active Participants	\$	314,569	\$	315,416
Retired Participants		323,838		358,428
Total Participants	\$	638,407	\$	673,844
Actuarial Value of Assets	\$	13,455	\$	23,658
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability	\$	624,952	\$	650,186
Net Employer ADC for FYE	Jun	e 30, 2019		June 30, 2020
Normal Cost	\$	16,360	\$	16,753
Administrative Expenses		58		64
Amortization of UAAL		35,908		38,101
Total ADC	\$	52,326	\$	54,918
Estimated Member Contributions		(4 <i>,</i> 105)		(6,307)
Net Employer ADC	\$	48,221	\$	48,611
Expected Claim Costs for FYE ^b	lun	e 30, 2019		June 30, 2020
Employer Explicit Costs	Juli	c 30, 2015		June 30, 2020
Medical and Rx Claims	\$	15,505	\$	16,376
Part B Reimbursement	Ŷ	3,328	Ŷ	3,710
Dental Claims		1,227		1,299
Total	\$	20,060	\$	21,385
Employer Implicit Costs	Ŷ	3,115	Ŷ	4,404
Total Employer Costs	\$	23,175	\$	25,789
Retiree Share of Claim Costs	Ļ	23,173	Ļ	23,703
Medical and Rx Claims	\$	925	\$	942
Dental Claims	Ŷ	390	Ŷ	405
Total	\$	1,315	\$	1,347
Total Claims Costs	\$ \$	24,490	ې \$	27,136
	ې	24,450	ڊ	27,130

^eRetired participants with dental only coverage, 90 as of July 1, 2018, and 92 as of July 1, 2019, are excluded from the above counts but are reflected in the actuarial valuation.

^bFor purposes of financial reporting, employer explicit and implicit costs will be updated based on actual experience during each respective reporting period.



	CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLOYEES POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS PROGRAM FULL-FUNDING PROJECTIONS BASED ON JULY 1, 2019, ACTUARIAL VALUATION (\$ IN 000'S) BARGAINING UNIT NUMBER 10 PROFESSIONAL SCIENTIFIC										
Long-tern Discount	r Beginning n Asset Return Rate is Fully Funded	7/1/2019 6.750% 6.750% 2048									
		Disbursements/	Administrative	Pre-Fund	Investment		Accrued	Funded			
FYE	Assets (boy)	Benefits	Expenses	Contribution	Income	Assets (eoy)	Liability (eoy)	Ratio	Normal Cost		
2019	\$ 13,446	\$-	1	\$ 8,886				3.5%	,		
2020	23,658	-	64	12,613		38,221	710,554	5.4%	16,070		
2021 2022	38,221	-	72	16,141			745,929	7.7% 9.9%	15,482		
2022	57,403 77,274	-	80 88	15,562	,		779,728	9.9%	14,942		
2023	97,928	-	88	15,030 14,527			812,111 843,168	12.1%	14,432 13,946		
2024	97,928	-	102	14,527			843,108	14.2%	13,946		
2023	141,921	-	102	13,595			901,564	10.3%	13,048		
2028	141,921		108	13,595			901,564	20.5%	12,623		
2027	190,084	-	114	12,743			955,758	20.3%	12,023		
2028	215,957		120	12,745		243,152	981,261	22.0%	11,805		
2020	243,152		132	11,937		271,762	1,005,539	27.0%	11,398		
2030	271,762	-	132	11,536		301,882	1,028,344	29.4%	10,982		
2032	301,882	-	145	11,127			1,049,551	31.8%	10,552		
2033	333,606	-	151	10,704	,	367,028	1,069,069	34.3%	10,111		
2034	367,028	-	158	10,269			1,086,616	37.0%	9,659		
2035	402,249	-	165	9,824		439,380	1,102,044	39.9%	9,197		
2036	439,380	-	172	9,369	29,963	478,540	1,115,326	42.9%	8,719		
2037	478,540	-	178	8,897	32,591	519,850	1,126,425	46.2%	8,227		
2038	519,850	-	184	8,411		563,440	1,135,280	49.6%	7,726		
2039	563,440	-	189	7,915	38,289	609,455	1,141,955	53.4%	7,216		
2040	609,455	-	194	7,411	41,378	658,050	1,146,366	57.4%	6,703		
2041	658,050	-	200	6,903	44,641	709,394	1,148,321	61.8%	6,184		
2042	709,394	-	204	6,388	48,089	763,667	1,147,986	66.5%	5,659		
2043	763,667	-	208	5,868	51,735	821,062	1,145,340	71.7%	5,129		
2044	821,062	-	213	5,342			1,140,102	77.3%	4,599		
2045	881,783	-	217	4,816			1,132,340	83.5%	4,080		
2046	946,055	-	220	4,300		1,014,129	1,122,059	90.4%	3,572		
2047	1,014,129	-	223	3,796			1,109,307	97.9%	3,083		
2048	1,086,274	54,144	226	3,309			1,094,092	101.2%	2,615		
2049	1,106,841	91,349	228	-	71,671	1,086,935	1,076,345	101.0%	2,176		
2050	1,086,935	92,060	230	-	70,304		1,056,198	100.8%	1,774		
2051	1,064,949	92,462	231	-	68,806		1,033,848	100.7%	1,411		
2052	1,041,062	92,430	231	-	67,195		1,009,636	100.6%	1,095		
2053	1,015,596 988,814	92,041 91,240	230 228		65,489 63,708		983,854 956,874	100.5%	827 608		
2054 2055	988,814 961,054	91,240	228		61,873		956,874 929,057	100.4% 100.4%	436		
2055	961,054 932,640	90,062 88,747	225	-	59,999		929,057 900,539	100.4%	436		
2056	932,640	87,186	222 218		58,095		871,570	100.3%	215		
2037	505,070	57,100	210	-	36,093	374,301	571,370	100.5%	215		



CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLOYEES POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS PROGRAM DEVELOPMENT OF GASB NOS. 74 AND 75 SINGLE EQUIVALENT DISCOUNT RATE (\$ IN 000'S) BARGAINING UNIT NUMBER 10 **PROFESSIONAL SCIENTIFIC**

20-Year GO Municipal Bond Rate at June 30, 2019	3.130%
Long-Term Investment Return	6.750%
Year Plan is Fully Funded	2048
Single Equivalent Rate	3.690%

Present Value of Benefits

sent Value	of Benefits			\$ 1,533,143			\$ 1,533,1
		Cross-over		Discounted	Single		Discounted
	Net Employer	Investment	Discount	Benefit	Equivalent	Discount	Benefit
FYE	Benefits	Return	Factor	Payment	Return	Factor	Payment
2020	\$ 25,789	3.130%	0.98471	\$ 25,394	3.690%	0.98205	\$ 25,3
2021	28,772	3.130%	0.95482	27,472	3.690%	0.94710	27,2
2022	32,003	3.130%	0.92584	29,629	3.690%	0.91339	29,
2023	35,022	3.130%	0.89774	31,441	3.690%	0.88089	30,
2024	37,893	3.130%	0.87050	32,986	3.690%	0.84954	32,
2025	40,648	3.130%	0.84408	34,310	3.690%	0.81930	33,
2026	43,264	3.130%	0.81846	35,410	3.690%	0.79015	33,
2027	45,664	3.130%	0.79362	36,240	3.690%	0.76203	34,
2028	47,977	3.130%	0.76953	36,920	3.690%	0.73491	35,
2028	50,360	3.130%	0.74618	37,577	3.690%	0.70876	35,
2029	52,790	3.130%	0.74018	38,195	3.690%	0.68353	35,
2030	55,381	3.130%	0.72353	38,854	3.690%	0.65921	36,
2031		3.130%	0.70137	38,854 39,448	3.690%	0.63575	
	57,989			-			36,
2033	60,564	3.130%	0.65963	39,950	3.690%	0.61312	37,
2034	63,291	3.130%	0.63961	40,482	3.690%	0.59130	37,
2035	66,022	3.130%	0.62020	40,947	3.690%	0.57026	37,
2036	68,629	3.130%	0.60138	41,272	3.690%	0.54997	37,
2037	71,117	3.130%	0.58313	41,470	3.690%	0.53039	37,
2038	73,506	3.130%	0.56543	41,562	3.690%	0.51152	37,
2039	75,677	3.130%	0.54827	41,491	3.690%	0.49332	37,
2040	77,778	3.130%	0.53163	41,349	3.690%	0.47576	37,
2041	79,914	3.130%	0.51549	41,195	3.690%	0.45883	36,
2042	81,721	3.130%	0.49985	40,848	3.690%	0.44250	36,
2043	83,396	3.130%	0.48468	40,420	3.690%	0.42675	35,
2044	85,184	3.130%	0.46997	40,034	3.690%	0.41157	35,
2045	86,738	3.130%	0.45570	39,527	3.690%	0.39692	34,
2046	88,133	3.130%	0.44187	38,943	3.690%	0.38279	33,
2047	89,330	3.130%	0.42846	38,274	3.690%	0.36917	32,
2048	90,376	3.130%	0.41546	37,547	3.690%	0.35603	32,
2049	91,349	6.750%	0.38919	35,552	3.690%	0.34336	31,
2050	92,060	6.750%	0.36458	33,563	3.690%	0.33114	30,
2051	92,462	6.750%	0.34153	31,578	3.690%	0.31936	29,
2052	92,430	6.750%	0.31993	29,571	3.690%	0.30799	28,
2053	92,041	6.750%	0.29970	27,585	3.690%	0.29703	27,
2054	91,240	6.750%	0.28075	25,616	3.690%	0.28646	26,
2055	90,062	6.750%	0.26300	23,686	3.690%	0.27627	24,
2056	88,747	6.750%	0.24637	21,864	3.690%	0.26644	23,
2066	74,182	6.750%	0.12821	9,511	3.690%	0.18545	13,
2076	46,940	6.750%	0.06672	3,132	3.690%	0.12908	6,
2086	14,413	6.750%	0.03472	500	3.690%	0.08984	1,
2096	1,079	6.750%	0.01807	20	3.690%	0.06253	-,
2106	12	6.750%	0.00940	-	3.690%	0.04352	
2100		6.750%	0.00340	_	3.690%	0.03029	



CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLO	YEES POST	RETIREMENT BENEI	FITS PRO	GRAM		
GASB NO	S. 74 AND	75 DISCLOSURES				
CHANGE IN NET OPEB LIABILITY AN			EMPLOY	ER (\$ IN 000'S)		
		IT NUMBER 10				
		L SCIENTIFIC				hun - 20, 2010
Fiscal Year Ending	JL	une 30, 2017	Ju	ine 30, 2018		June 30, 2019
Total OPEB Liability						
Service Cost	\$	45,853	\$	39,944	\$	35,836
Interest on Total OPEB Liability		37,273		41,883		40,598
Changes of Benefit Terms		-		-		-
Difference between Expected and Actual Experience		-		(61,856)		(15,887)
Changes of Assumptions		(103,789)		(43,731)		36,442
Benefit Payments		(20,533)		(26,302)		(23,092)
Net Change in Total OPEB Liability	\$	(41,196)	\$	(50,062)	\$	73,897
Total OPEB Liability - Beginning	\$	1,060,929	\$	1,019,733	\$	969,671
Total OPEB Liability - Ending (a)	\$	1,019,733	\$	969,671	\$	1,043,568
Plan Fiduciary Net Position						
Employer PayGO Contributions	\$	20,533	\$	26,302	Ś	23,092
Employer Pre-Funding Contributions		8,119		1,872		4,443
Active Member Contributions		-		1,872		4,443
Net Investment Income		838		763		1,330
Benefit Payments		(20,533)		(26,302)		(23,092)
Administrative Expense		(3)		(6)		(1)(4)
Other		-		-		-
Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position	\$	8,954	\$	4,501	\$	10,212
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning	\$	-	\$	8,954	\$	13,446
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending (b)	\$	8,954	\$	13,455	\$	23,658
Net OPEB Liability - Ending (a) - (b)	\$	1,010,779	\$	956,216	\$	1,019,910
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage Total OPEB Liability		0.878%		1.388%		2.267%
Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC)	\$	50,708	\$	50,357	\$	47,883
Employer Contribution	\$	28,652	\$	28,174	\$	27,535
Percentage of ADC made by Employer		57%		56%		58%
Contribution Excess/(Shortfall)	\$	(22,056)	\$	(22,183)	\$	(20,348)
Expected Return on Assets	\$	410	\$	786	\$	1,247
Investment (Gain)/Loss	\$	(428)	\$	23	\$	(83)
Average Expected Remaining Service		7.400512		7.965646		8.186229
Blended Discount Rate Beginning of Year		3.399%		3.993%		4.084%
Blended Discount Rate End of Year		3.993%		4.084%		3.690%
Long-term Expected Return on Assets		7.280%		7.000%		6.750%



GASB NOS. 74 AND 75 DISCL OPEB EXPENSES AND NET OPEB LIABILITY S BARGAINING UNIT NUMBI PROFESSIONAL SCIENTII	ENSITIVITY (ER 10	\$ IN 000'S)		
Measured for the Plan's Fiscal Year Ending Applicable for the Sponsor's Fiscal Year Ending	Ju	ne 30, 2018 ne 30, 2019		ne 30, 2019 ne 30, 2020
OPEB Expense				
Service Cost Interest on the Total OPEB Liability Current-Period Benefit Changes Active Member Contributions Projected Earnings on Plan Investments Operating Expenses Other Changes in Plan Fiduciary Net Position Recognition of Outflow/(Inflow) due to Non-investment Experience Recognition of Outflow/(Inflow) due to Assumption Changes Recognition of Outflow/(Inflow) due to Investment Experience	\$	39,944 41,883 - (1,872) (786) 6 - (7,765) (19,515) (81)	\$	35,836 40,598 - (4,443) (1,247) 4 - (9,706) (15,063) (98)
Net OPEB Expense	\$	51,814	\$	45,881
Reconciliation of Net OPEB Liability				
Net OPEB Liability Beginning of Year OPEB Expense Employer Contributions Change in Outflow/(Inflow) due to Non-investment Experience Change in Outflow/(Inflow) due to Assumption Changes Change in Outflow/(Inflow) due to Investment Experience Net OPEB Liability End of Year	\$	1,010,779 51,814 (28,174) (54,091) (24,216) 104 956,216	\$	956,225 45,881 (27,535) (6,181) 51,505 15 1,019,910
Deferred (Inflows)	Ŧ	,	Ŧ	_,,
Non-investment Experience Assumption Changes Investment Experience	\$ \$ \$	(54,091) (113,980) (256)	\$ \$ \$	(60,272) (94,465) (236)
Deferred Outflows Non-investment Experience Assumption Changes Investment Experience	\$ \$ \$	- - 18	\$ \$ \$	- 31,990 13
Net OPEB Liability Sensitivity				
Baseline Discount Rate Baseline Discount Rate and Trend Rates Increase Discount Rate by One Percentage Point Decrease Discount Rate by One Percentage Point	\$ \$ \$	4.084% 956,216 819,061 1,127,676	\$ \$ \$	3.690% 1,019,910 871,959 1,205,051
Increase Trend Rate by One Percentage Point Decrease Trend Rate by One Percentage Point	\$ \$	1,114,047 832,924	\$ \$	1,225,771 859,876



Veluction Data		6/30/2019				E EMPLOYEES P GASB NOS. 74 A RED INFLOWS A BARGAINING PROFESSIO	ND 75 ND OU UNIT	5 DISCLOSURES UTFLOWS (\$ IN 9 NUMBER 10									
Valuation Date Measurement Date		6/30/2019 6/30/2019															
		No	n-Inv	estment Experier	ice				Ass	sumption Changes			In	ives	stment Experier	nce	
				Amortization		Initial				Amortization	Initial			_	Amortization		Initial
Plan Year Beginning		(Gain)/Loss		Factor	A	Amortization		(Gain)/Loss		Factor	Amortization	(Gain)/Loss		Factor	A	mortization
7/1/2016	\$	-		7.400512	\$	-	\$	(103,789)		7.400512	\$ (14,025)	\$	(428)	\$	5.000000	\$	(86)
7/1/2017	\$	(61,856)		7.965646	\$	(7,765)	\$	(43,731)		7.965646	\$ (5,490)	\$	23		5.000000	\$	5
7/1/2018	\$	(15,887)		8.186229	\$	(1,941)	\$	36,442		8.186229	\$ 4,452	\$	(83)		5.000000	\$	(17
Deferred Outflows/(Inflows) Recognized in OPEB Expense for Current Plan Year End		Outflows		(Inflows)		Net		Outflows		(Inflows)	Net		Outflows		(Inflows)		Net
6/30/2019	\$	-	\$	(9,706)	\$	(9,706)	\$	4,452	\$	(19,515)	\$ (15,063)	\$	5	\$	(103)	\$	(98
Deferred Outflows/(Inflows) Recognized in OPEB Expense for Future Plan Years Ending																	
6/30/2020	\$	-	\$	(9,706)	\$	(9,706)	\$	4,452	\$	(19,515)	\$ (15,063)	\$	5	\$	(103)	\$	(98
6/30/2021	\$	-	\$	(9,706)	\$	(9,706)	\$	4,452	\$	(19,515)	\$ (15,063)	\$	5	\$	(101)		(96
6/30/2022	\$	-	\$	(9,706)	\$	(9,706)	\$	4,452	\$	(19,515)	\$ (15,063)	\$	3	\$	(17)	\$	(14
6/30/2023	\$	-	\$	(9,706)	\$	(9,706)	\$	4,452	\$	(19,515)	\$ (15,063)	\$	-	\$	(15)	\$	(15
6/30/2024	\$	-	\$	(9,706)	\$	(9,706)	\$	4,452	\$	(11,104)	\$ (6,652)	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
6/30/2025	\$	-	\$	(9,442)	\$	(9,442)	\$	4,452	\$	(5,301)	\$ (849)	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
6/30/2026	\$	-	\$	(1,941)	\$	(1,941)	\$	4,452	\$	-	\$ 4,452	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
6/30/2027	\$	-	\$	(359)	\$	(359)	\$	826	\$	-	\$ 826	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
6/30/2028	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$ -	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
otal	\$	-	\$	(60,272)	\$	(60,272)	\$	31,990	\$	(94,465)	\$ (62,475)	\$	13	\$	(236)	\$	(223
Change In Deferred Outflows/(Inflows) Recognized in Liability and Assets for Current Plan Year End																	
6/30/2019	1				\$	(6,181)					\$ 51,505					\$	15



CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLOYEES POS			ROO	GRAM
FULL-FUNDING ACTUARIAL 7.00% AT JULY 1, 2018 AN				
BARGAINING UN				
CRAFT AND M				
		July 1, 2018		July 1, 2019
Number of Participants Covered		10 717		42.052
Active Participants		12,717		13,053
Retired Participants ^a		9,664		9,920
Total Participants		22,381		22,973
Actuarial Present Value of Projected Benefits				
Active Participants	\$	1,507,747	\$	1,495,331
Retired Participants		1,680,681		1,795,983
Total Participants	\$	3,188,428	\$	3,291,314
Actuarial Accrued Liability				
Active Participants	\$	981,725	\$	961,795
Retired Participants		1,680,681		1,795,983
Total Participants	\$	2,662,406	\$	2,757,778
Actuarial Value of Assets	\$	27,808	\$	63,867
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability	\$	2,634,598	\$	2,693,911
Net Employer ADC for FYE		June 30, 2019		June 30, 2020
Normal Cost	\$	60,806	\$	60,360
Administrative Expenses		295		319
Amortization of UAAL		151,376		157,863
Total ADC	\$	212,477	\$	218,542
Estimated Member Contributions		(15,275)		(20,226)
Net Employer ADC	\$	197,202	\$	198,316
Expected Claim Costs for FYE ^b		June 30, 2019		June 30, 2020
Employer Explicit Costs	·	54110 00, 2015		June 00, 2020
Medical and Rx Claims	\$	79,561	\$	82,196
Part B Reimbursement	·	14,740	•	15,940
Dental Claims		5,944		6,226
Total	\$	100,245	\$	104,362
Employer Implicit Costs		17,729		23,265
Total Employer Costs	\$	117,974	\$	127,627
Retiree Share of Claim Costs				
Medical and Rx Claims	\$	5,296	\$	4,998

^eRetired participants with dental only coverage, 592 as of July 1, 2018, and 600 as of July 1, 2019, are excluded from the above counts but are reflected in the actuarial valuation.

^bFor purposes of financial reporting, employer explicit and implicit costs will be updated based on actual experience during each respective reporting period.

\$

\$



Dental Claims

Total

Total Claims Costs

1,836

125,106 \$

7,132 \$

1,880

6,878

134,505

	CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLOYEES POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS PROGRAM FULL-FUNDING PROJECTIONS BASED ON JULY 1, 2019, ACTUARIAL VALUATION (\$ IN 000'S) BARGAINING UNIT NUMBER 12 CRAFT AND MAINTENANCE													
Long-terr Discount	r Beginning n Asset Return Rate is Fully Funded	7/1/2019 6.750% 6.750% 2048												
		Disbursements/	Administrative		Pre-Fund		Investment	Τ			Accrued	Funded		
FYE	Assets (boy)	Benefits	Expenses	Co	ontribution		Income		Assets (eoy)		Liability (eoy)	Ratio		Normal Cost
2019	\$ 27,788	\$-	\$ 9	\$	32,536	\$	3,552		\$ 63,867	\$	2,757,778	2.3%		60,360
2020	63,867	-	319		40,453		5,643		109,644		2,876,427	3.8%		57,930
2021	109,644	-	344		48,562		9,002		166,864		2,990,287	5.6%		55,608
2022	166,864	-	372	1	55,980	1	13,109		235,581		3,097,641	7.6%		53,299
2023	235,581	-	400	1	53,699	1	17,671		306,551		3,198,162	9.6%		50,978
2024	306,551	-	427		51,405		22,385		379,914		3,291,916	11.5%		48,662
2025	379,914	-	452		49,114		27,260		455,836		3,379,211	13.5%		46,347
2026	455,836	-	476		46,823		32,308		534,491		3,460,040	15.4%		44,045
2027	534,491	-	498		44,543		37,540		616,076		3,534,658	17.4%		41,781
2028	616,076	-	520		42,301		42,972		700,829		3,602,960	19.5%		39,580
2029	700,829	-	540		40,120		48,620		789,029		3,665,029	21.5%		37,447
2030	789,029	-	561		38,008		54,503		880,979		3,720,349	23.7%		35,374
2031	880,979	-	582		35,956		60,640		976,993		3,768,420	25.9%		33,357
2032	976,993	-	603		33,960		67,054		1,077,404		3,809,195	28.3%		31,383
2033	1,077,404	-	623		32,006		73,767		1,182,554		3,842,384	30.8%		29,457
2034	1,182,554	-	643		30,099		80,800		1,292,810		3,867,445	33.4%		27,579
2035	1,292,810	-	662		28,241		88,180		1,408,569		3,884,301	36.3%		25,718
2036	1,408,569	-	680		26,399		95,932		1,530,220		3,892,738	39.3%		23,890
2037 2038	1,530,220 1,658,194	-	697 713		24,588 22,825		104,083 112,662		1,658,194 1,792,968		3,892,672 3,884,184	42.6% 46.2%		22,112 20,376
2038	1,658,194	-	713		22,825		112,662		1,792,968		3,867,284	46.2%		18,690
2039	1,92,968	-	728		19,431		131,236		2,084,971		3,841,986	54.3%		18,090
2040	2,084,971		753		17,815		141,302		2,084,971		3,808,086	58.9%		15,498
2041	2,084,571		763		16,262		151,940		2,243,333		3,766,135	64.0%		13,979
2042	2,243,333		703	1	10,202	1	163,191		2,587,944		3,716,236	69.6%		12,494
2043	2,587,944	-	779	1	13,273	1	175,101		2,775,539		3,658,211	75.9%		11,063
2045	2,775,539	_	784	1	11,847	1	187,716		2,974,318		3,592,688	82.8%		9,689
2046	2,974,318	-	787	1	10,476	1	201,088		3,185,095		3,520,103	90.5%		8,384
2047	3,185,095		789	1	9,173	1	215,272		3,408,751		3,440,643	99.1%		7,153
2048	3,408,751	251,358	787	1	7,941	1	221,983		3,386,530		3,355,077	100.9%		6,013
2049	3,386,530	313,410	784	1	-	1	218,160		3,290,496		3,264,109	100.8%		4,980
2050	3,290,496	310,944	777	1	-	1	211,760		3,190,535		3,168,449	100.7%		4,054
2051	3,190,535	307,631	769	1	-	1	205,122	·	3,087,257		3,068,770	100.6%	6	3,238
2052	3,087,257	303,501	759	1	-	1	198,289		2,981,286		2,965,762	100.5%	6	2,533
2053	2,981,286	298,131	745	1	-	1	191,314	I.	2,873,724		2,860,600	100.5%	6	1,941
2054	2,873,724	291,963	730	1	-	1	184,259		2,765,290		2,754,084	100.4%	6	1,455
2055	2,765,290	285,378	713	1	-	1	177,159		2,656,358		2,646,666	100.4%	6	1,068
2056	2,656,358	277,766	694	1	-	1	170,059		2,547,957		2,539,451	100.3%	6	772
2057	2,547,957	269,656	674		-		163,012		2,440,639		2,433,065	100.3%	6	549



CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLOYEES POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS PROGRAM DEVELOPMENT OF GASB NOS. 74 AND 75 SINGLE EQUIVALENT DISCOUNT RATE (\$ IN 000'S) BARGAINING UNIT NUMBER 12 CRAFT AND MAINTENANCE 20-Year GO Municipal Bond Rate at June 30, 2019 3.130% Long-Term Investment Return 6.750% Year Plan is Fully Funded 2048 3.604% Single Equivalent Rate Present Value of Benefits \$ 5,773,317 \$ 5,773,317 Cross-over Discounted Single Discounted

			Cross-over		Discounted		Single		Discounted
	Net Employer		Investment	Discount	Benefit		Equivalent	Discount	Benefit
FYE	Benefits		Return	Factor	Payment		Return	Factor	Payment
2020	\$ 127,627	1	3.130%	0.98471	\$ 125,675		3.604%	0.98245	\$ 125,387
2021	137,505		3.130%	0.95482	131,293		3.604%	0.94828	130,393
2022	148,838		3.130%	0.92584	137,801		3.604%	0.91529	136,230
2023	160,077		3.130%	0.89774	143,708		3.604%	0.88345	141,421
2024	170,796		3.130%	0.87050	148,678		3.604%	0.85272	145,642
2025	180,778		3.130%	0.84408	152,590		3.604%	0.82306	148,791
2026	190,346		3.130%	0.81846	155,790		3.604%	0.79443	151,216
2027	199,261		3.130%	0.79362	158,138		3.604%	0.76680	152,793
2028	207,907		3.130%	0.76953	159,991		3.604%	0.74012	153,877
2029	216,128		3.130%	0.74618	161,270		3.604%	0.71438	154,397
2030	224,510		3.130%	0.72353	162,440		3.604%	0.68953	154,806
2031	232,999		3.130%	0.70157	163,466		3.604%	0.66554	155,070
2032	241,119		3.130%	0.68028	164,028		3.604%	0.64239	154,893
2033	249,084		3.130%	0.65963	164,304		3.604%	0.62004	154,443
2034	257,128		3.130%	0.63961	164,462		3.604%	0.59848	153,885
2035	264,770		3.130%	0.62020	164,211		3.604%	0.57766	152,946
2036	272,096		3.130%	0.60138	163,632		3.604%	0.55756	151,711
2037	278,991		3.130%	0.58313	162,687		3.604%	0.53817	150,144
2038	285,302		3.130%	0.56543	161,317		3.604%	0.51945	148,199
2039	291,096		3.130%	0.54827	159,598		3.604%	0.50138	145,949
2040	296,381		3.130%	0.53163	157,564		3.604%	0.48394	143,430
2041	301,375		3.130%	0.51549	155,357		3.604%	0.46710	140,774
2042	305,338		3.130%	0.49985	152,622		3.604%	0.45086	137,664
2043	308,724		3.130%	0.48468	149,631		3.604%	0.43517	134,348
2044	311,798		3.130%	0.46997	146,535		3.604%	0.42004	130,966
2045	313,789		3.130%	0.45570	142,994		3.604%	0.40542	127,218
2046	314,927		3.130%	0.44187	139,158		3.604%	0.39132	123,238
2047	315,495		3.130%	0.42846	135,178		3.604%	0.37771	119,165
2048	314,945		3.130%	0.41546	130,847		3.604%	0.36457	114,820
2049	313,410		6.750%	0.38919	121,975		3.604%	0.35189	110,285
2050	310,944		6.750%	0.36458	113,363		3.604%	0.33965	105,613
2051	307,631		6.750%	0.34153	105,064		3.604%	0.32783	100,852
2052	303,501		6.750%	0.31993	97,099		3.604%	0.31643	96,037
2053	298,131		6.750%	0.29970	89,350		3.604%	0.30542	91,056
2054	291,963		6.750%	0.28075	81,969		3.604%	0.29480	86,070
2055	285,378		6.750%	0.26300	75,054		3.604%	0.28454	81,203
2056	277,766		6.750%	0.24637	68,432		3.604%	0.27465	76,282
2066	199,571		6.750%	0.12821	25,586		3.604%	0.19276	38,469
2076	120,493		6.750%	0.06672	8,039		3.604%	0.13529	16,303
2086	41,210		6.750%	0.03472	1,431		3.604%	0.09495	3,913
2096	4,630		6.750%	0.01807	84		3.604%	0.06664	309
2106	91		6.750%	0.00940	1		3.604%	0.04677	4
2116	-		6.750%	0.00489	-		3.604%	0.03283	



CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLO	YEES POST	RETIREMENT BENE	FITS PRO	GRAM		
		75 DISCLOSURES				
CHANGE IN NET OPEB LIABILITY AN			EMPLOY	ER (\$ IN 000'S)		
		IT NUMBER 12				
Fiscal Year Ending		une 30, 2017	11	une 30, 2018		June 30, 2019
		ane 30, 2017		ane 30, 2010		June 30, 2013
Total OPEB Liability						
Service Cost	\$	167,689	\$	146,732	\$	129,311
Interest on Total OPEB Liability		154,036		172,744		162,948
Changes of Benefit Terms		-		-		-
Difference between Expected and Actual Experience		-		(362,455)		(97,510)
Changes of Assumptions		(433,966)		(166,573)		152,849
Benefit Payments		(110,860)		(114,235)		(120,833)
Net Change in Total OPEB Liability	\$	(223,101)	\$	(323,787)	\$	226,765
Total OPEB Liability - Beginning	\$	4,540,951	\$	4,317,850	\$	3,994,063
Total OPEB Liability - Ending (a)	\$	4,317,850	\$	3,994,063	\$	4,220,828
Plan Fiduciary Net Position						
Employer PayGO Contributions	\$	110,860	\$	114,235	\$	120,833
Employer Pre-Funding Contributions	Ŧ	1,076	Ŧ	8,280	+	16,268
Active Member Contributions		1,076		8,280		16,268
Net Investment Income		872		1,051		3,552
Benefit Payments		(110,860)		(114,235)		(120,833)
Administrative Expense		(110)000) (4)		(9)		(9)
Other		(1)		(3)		(3)
Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position	\$	3,020	\$	17,602	\$	36,079
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning	\$	7,186	\$	10,206	\$	27,788
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending (b)	\$	10,206	\$	27,808	Ş	63,867
Net OPEB Liability - Ending (a) - (b)	\$	4,307,644	\$	3,966,255	\$	4,156,961
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage Total OPEB Liability		0.236%		0.696%		1.513%
Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC)	\$	210,461	\$	209,603	\$	196,209
Employer Contribution	\$	111,936	\$	122,515	\$	137,101
Percentage of ADC made by Employer	7	53%	7	58%	Ŷ	70%
Contribution Excess/(Shortfall)	\$	(98,525)	\$	(87,088)	\$	(59,108)
Expected Return on Assets	\$	600	\$	1,335	\$	3,064
Investment (Gain)/Loss	\$	(272)	Ś	284	Ś	(488)
Average Expected Remaining Service	Ŧ	5.773655	Ŧ	6.134782	Ŧ	6.307925
Blended Discount Rate Beginning of Year		3.310%		3.920%		4.010%
Blended Discount Rate End of Year		3.920%		4.010%		3.604%
Long-term Expected Return on Assets		7.280%		7.000%		6.750%



GASB NOS. 74 AND 75 DISCL OPEB EXPENSES AND NET OPEB LIABILITY S BARGAINING UNIT NUMB CRAFT AND MAINTENAM	ENSITIVITY (ER 12	\$ IN 000'S)		
Measured for the Plan's Fiscal Year Ending Applicable for the Sponsor's Fiscal Year Ending	Ju	ne 30, 2018 ne 30, 2019		June 30, 2019 June 30, 2020
OPEB Expense				
Service Cost Interest on the Total OPEB Liability Current-Period Benefit Changes Active Member Contributions Projected Earnings on Plan Investments Operating Expenses Other Changes in Plan Fiduciary Net Position Recognition of Outflow/(Inflow) due to Non-investment Experience Recognition of Outflow/(Inflow) due to Assumption Changes Recognition of Outflow/(Inflow) due to Investment Experience	\$	146,732 172,744 - (8,280) (1,335) 9 - (59,082) (102,315) 3	\$	129,311 162,948 - (16,268) (3,064) 9 - (74,540) (78,084) (95)
Net OPEB Expense	\$	148,476	\$	120,217
Reconciliation of Net OPEB Liability				
Net OPEB Liability Beginning of Year OPEB Expense Employer Contributions Change in Outflow/(Inflow) due to Non-investment Experience Change in Outflow/(Inflow) due to Assumption Changes Change in Outflow/(Inflow) due to Investment Experience Net OPEB Liability End of Year	\$	4,307,644 148,476 (122,514) (303,373) (64,258) 281 3,966,256	\$	3,966,275 120,217 (137,101) (22,970) 230,933 (393) 4,156,961
Deferred (Inflows)				
Non-investment Experience Assumption Changes Investment Experience	\$ \$ \$	(303,373) (423,061) (164)	\$ \$ \$	(326,343) (320,746) (500)
Deferred Outflows Non-investment Experience Assumption Changes Investment Experience	\$ \$ \$	- - 227	\$ \$ \$	- 128,618 170
Net OPEB Liability Sensitivity				
Baseline Discount Rate Baseline Discount Rate and Trend Rates Increase Discount Rate by One Percentage Point Decrease Discount Rate by One Percentage Point Increase Trend Rate by One Percentage Point	\$ \$ \$	4.010% 3,966,255 3,426,534 4,639,054 4,562,862	\$ \$ \$	3.604% 4,156,961 3,584,831 4,871,048 4,912,788
Decrease Trend Rate by One Percentage Point	\$	3,492,470	\$	3,559,767



deluction Data		c /20 /2010				GASB NOS. 74 A	AND 7 AND O	UTFLOWS (\$ IN NUMBER 12										
Valuation Date Measurement Date		6/30/2019 6/30/2019																
		Nor		estment Experier	ice				Ass	sumption Changes				li	_	stment Experie	nce	
Dise Mana Dastantas			A	Amortization		Initial				Amortization		Initial				Amortization		Initial
Plan Year Beginning		(Gain)/Loss		Factor		mortization		(Gain)/Loss		Factor		Amortization	-	(Gain)/Loss	d d	Factor		mortization
7/1/2016 7/1/2017	\$ \$	- (362,455)		5.773655 6.134782		- (59,082)	\$	(433,966) (166,573)		5.773655 6.134782	\$ \$	(75,163) (27,152)	\$ \$	(272) 284	\$	5.000000 5.000000	\$ \$	(54) 57
7/1/2017 7/1/2018	Ş Ş	(362,455) (97,510)		6.134782		(59,082) (15,458)	\$ \$	(166,573) 152,849		6.134782	\$ \$	(27,152) 24,231	\$ \$	284 (488)		5.000000	L ' .	(98
// 1/ 2010	Ŷ	(010,510)		0.307923	ې	(10,400)		132,049		0.307925		24,231	ç	(400)	'	3.000000		(96)
Deferred Outflows/(Inflows) Recognized in OPEB Expense for Current Plan Year End		Outflows		(Inflows)		Net		Outflows		(Inflows)		Net		Outflows		(Inflows)		Net
6/30/2019	\$	-	\$	(74,540)	\$	(74,540)	\$	24,231	\$	(102,315)	\$	(78,084)	\$	57	\$	(152)	\$	(95
Deferred Outflows/(Inflows) Recognized in OPEB Expense for Future Plan Years Ending																		
6/30/2020	\$	-	\$	(74,540)	\$	(74,540)	\$	24,231	\$	(102,315)	\$	(78,084)	\$	57	\$	(152)	\$	(95
6/30/2021	\$	-	\$	(74,540)	\$	(74,540)	\$	24,231	\$	(102,315)	\$	(78,084)	\$	57	\$	(154)	\$	(97
6/30/2022	\$	-	\$	(74,540)	\$	(74,540)	\$	24,231	\$	(85,303)	\$	(61,072)	\$	56	\$	(98)	\$	(42
6/30/2023	\$	-	\$	(74,540)	\$	(74,540)	\$	24,231	\$	(27,152)	\$	(2,921)	\$	-	\$	(96)	\$	(96
6/30/2024	\$	-	\$	(23,421)	\$	(23,421)	\$	24,231	\$	(3,661)	\$	20,570	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
6/30/2025	\$	-	\$	(4,762)	\$	(4,762)	\$	7,463	\$	-	\$	7,463	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
6/30/2026	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
6/30/2027	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
6/30/2028	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
Total	\$	-	\$	(326,343)	\$	(326,343)	\$	128,618	\$	(320,746)	\$	(192,128)	\$	170	\$	(500)	\$	(330
Change In Deferred Outflows/(Inflows) Recognized in Liability and Assets for Current Plan Year End																		
6/30/2019	1				\$	(22,970)					\$	230,933			1		\$	(393



CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLOYEES POST FULL-FUNDING ACTUARIAL 7.00% AT JULY 1, 2018 AND BARGAINING UNI	VALUATION 6.75% AT T NUMBER	N (\$ IN 000'S) JULY 1, 2019 13	200	GRAM
STATIONARY E	INGINEERS			
	Ju	ly 1, 2018		July 1, 2019
Number of Participants Covered				
Active Participants		958		975
Retired Participants ^a		865		906
Total Participants		1,823		1,881
Actuarial Present Value of Projected Benefits				
Active Participants	\$	133,333	\$	133,692
Retired Participants		168,256		181,782
Total Participants	\$	301,589	\$	315,474
Actuarial Accrued Liability				
Active Participants	\$	93,193	\$	93,116
Retired Participants	Ļ	168,256	Ļ	181,782
-	\$		\$	
Total Participants	Ş	261,449	Ş	274,898
Actuarial Value of Assets	\$	1,556	\$	5,437
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability	\$	259,893	\$	269,461
Net Employer ADC for FYE	Jur	ne 30, 2019		June 30, 2020
Normal Cost	\$	5,428	\$	5,409
Administrative Expenses		29		31
Amortization of UAAL		14,933		15,790
Total ADC	\$	20,390	\$	21,230
Estimated Member Contributions		(1,364)		(2,040)
Net Employer ADC	\$	19,026	\$	19,190
Expected Claim Costs for FYE ^b Employer Explicit Costs	Jur	ie 30, 2019		June 30, 2020
Medical and Rx Claims	\$	7,953	\$	8,320
Part B Reimbursement	·	1,185	•	1,322
Dental Claims		558		598
Total	\$	9,696	\$	10,240
Employer Implicit Costs	·	1,773	•	2,299
Total Employer Costs	\$	11,469	\$	12,539
Retiree Share of Claim Costs	7	11,100	7	12,000
Medical and Rx Claims	\$	664	\$	643
Dental Claims	r	174	ŕ	180
Total	\$	838	\$	823
Total Claims Costs	\$	12,307	\$	13,362
	Ŧ	,007	7	

^eRetired participants with dental only coverage, 65 as of July 1, 2018, and 69 as of July 1, 2019, are excluded from the above counts but are reflected in the actuarial valuation.

^bFor purposes of financial reporting, employer explicit and implicit costs will be updated based on actual experience during each respective reporting period.



				BARGAININ		NEFITS PROGRAM IAL VALUATION (\$ IN 0	100'S)		
Long-tern Discount	r Beginning n Asset Return Rate is Fully Funded	7/1/2019 6.750% 6.750% 2047							
		Disbursements/	Administrative	Pre-Fund	Investment		Accrued	Funded	
FYE	Assets (boy)	Benefits	Expenses	Contribution	Income	Assets (eoy)	Liability (eoy)	Ratio	Normal Cost
2019	\$ 1,555	\$-		\$ 3,584			. ,	2.0%	. ,
2020	5,437	-	31	4,080	501	9,987	286,265	3.5%	5,108
2021 2022	9,987	-	34	5,142	844	15,939	296,980	5.4% 7.2%	4,809
2022	15,939	-	37 40	4,845	1,235	21,982	306,901	7.2% 8.9%	4,512
2023	21,982 28,128		40 43	4,552 4,264	1,634 2,039	28,128 34,388	315,978 324,140	8.9% 10.6%	4,221 3,933
2024 2025	28,128 34,388	-	43 46	3,979	2,039	40,773	324,140 331,399	10.6%	3,933
2023	40,773		40	3,575	2,432	40,773	337,694	12.3%	3,367
2020	40,773		40	3,090	3,304	53,964	343,092	14.0%	3,095
2027	53,964		53	3,148	3,745	60,804	347,630	17.5%	2,840
2020	60,804		55	2,895	4,199	67,843	351,216	19.3%	2,599
2020	67,843		58	2,655	4,666	75,108	353,887	21.2%	2,373
2030	75,108		59	2,432	5,149	82,630	355,753	23.2%	2,167
2031	82,630	-	61	2,228	5,649	90,446	356,687	25.4%	1,975
2033	90,446	-	63	2,038	6,171	98,592	356,639	27.6%	1,787
2034	98,592	-	65	1,853	6,714	107,094	355,623	30.1%	1,610
2035	107,094	-	67	1,677	7,282	115,986	353,572	32.8%	1,443
2036	115,986	-	69	1,512	7,877	125,306	350,441	35.8%	1,286
2037	125,306	-	71	1,356	8,501	135,092	346,285	39.0%	1,142
2038	135,092	-	72	1,214	9,157	145,391	341,189	42.6%	1,009
2039	145,391	-	73	1,081	9,847	156,246	335,205	46.6%	884
2040	156,246	-	74	957	10,576	167,705	328,275	51.1%	766
2041	167,705	-	75	841	11,346	179,817	320,442	56.1%	660
2042	179,817	-	75	735	12,160	192,637	311,847	61.8%	564
2043	192,637	-	75	639	13,022	206,223	302,502	68.2%	478
2044	206,223	-	75	552	13,936	220,636	292,555	75.4%	400
2045	220,636	-	74	474	14,906	235,942	282,136	83.6%	330
2046	235,942	-	73	403	15,937	252,209	271,273	93.0%	267
2047	252,209	7,791	72	339	16,774	261,459	260,107	100.5%	213
2048	261,459	28,183	70	-	16,711	249,917	248,768	100.5%	166
2049	249,917	27,571	69	-	15,952	238,229	237,246	100.4%	127
2050	238,229	26,845	67	-	15,187	226,504	225,655	100.4%	96
2051	226,504	25,961	65	-	14,425	214,903	214,163	100.3%	72
2052	214,903	25,063	63	-	13,672	203,449	202,798	100.3%	53
2053	203,449	24,141	60	-	12,929	192,177	191,597	100.3%	39
2054	192,177	23,127	58	-	12,202	181,194	180,674	100.3%	28
2055	181,194	22,130	55	-	11,494	170,503	170,032	100.3%	20
2056	170,503	21,147	53 50	-	10,805	160,108	159,680	100.3% 100.3%	14 9
2057	160,108	20,170	50	-	10,136	150,024	149,632	100.3%	9



CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLOYEES POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS PROGRAM DEVELOPMENT OF GASB NOS. 74 AND 75 SINGLE EQUIVALENT DISCOUNT RATE (\$ IN 000'S) **BARGAINING UNIT NUMBER 13** STATIONARY ENGINEERS

20-Year GO Municipal Bond Rate at June 30, 2019	3.130%
Long-Term Investment Return	6.750%
Year Plan is Fully Funded	2047
Single Equivalent Rate	3.516%

Present Value of Benefits

sent Value	of Benefits			\$ 535,306			\$ 535,3
		Cross-over		Discounted	Single		Discounted
	Net Employer	Investment	Discount	Benefit	Equivalent	Discount	Benefit
FYE	Benefits	Return	Factor	Payment	Return	Factor	Payment
2020	\$ 12,539	3.130%	0.98471	\$ 12,348	3.516%	0.98287	\$ 12,3
2021	13,602	3.130%	0.95482	12,988	3.516%	0.94949	12,9
2022	14,761	3.130%	0.92584	13,666	3.516%	0.91724	13,5
2023	15,920	3.130%	0.89774	14,292	3.516%	0.88608	14,1
2023	17,097	3.130%	0.87050	14,883	3.516%	0.85598	14,6
2025	18,207	3.130%	0.84408	15,368	3.516%	0.82691	15,0
2026	19,320	3.130%	0.81846	15,813	3.516%	0.79882	15,4
2020	20,308	3.130%	0.79362	16,117	3.516%	0.77169	15,6
2028	21,213	3.130%	0.76953	16,324	3.516%	0.74548	15,
2029	22,166	3.130%	0.74618	16,540	3.516%	0.72016	-
2025	23,038	3.130%	0.74018	16,669	3.516%	0.69570	-
2030	23,038	3.130%	0.72353	16,668	3.516%	0.67207	15,
2031	24,569	3.130%	0.68028	16,714	3.516%	0.64924	15,
		3.130%	0.65963	16,743	3.516%	0.62719	
2033 2034	25,382 26,122	3.130%	0.63961	16,708	3.516%	0.60588	15, 15,
			0.63961		3.516%	0.58530	15, 15,
2035	26,873	3.130%		16,667			-
2036	27,612	3.130%	0.60138	16,605	3.516%	0.56542	15,
2037	28,239	3.130%	0.58313	16,467	3.516%	0.54622	15,
2038	28,727	3.130%	0.56543	16,243	3.516%	0.52767	15,
2039	29,117	3.130%	0.54827	15,964	3.516%	0.50974	14,
2040	29,513	3.130%	0.53163	15,690	3.516%	0.49243	14,
2041	29,812	3.130%	0.51549	15,368	3.516%	0.47570	14,
2042	29,929	3.130%	0.49985	14,960	3.516%	0.45955	13,
2043	29,994	3.130%	0.48468	14,537	3.516%	0.44394	13,
2044	29,877	3.130%	0.46997	14,041	3.516%	0.42886	12,
2045	29,604	3.130%	0.45570	13,491	3.516%	0.41429	12,
2046	29,282	3.130%	0.44187	12,939	3.516%	0.40022	11,
2047	28,801	3.130%	0.42846	12,340	3.516%	0.38663	11,
2048	28,183	6.750%	0.40137	11,312	3.516%	0.37349	10,
2049	27,571	6.750%	0.37599	10,366	3.516%	0.36081	9,
2050	26,845	6.750%	0.35222	9,455	3.516%	0.34855	9,
2051	25,961	6.750%	0.32994	8,566	3.516%	0.33671	8,
2052	25,063	6.750%	0.30908	7,746	3.516%	0.32528	8,
2053	24,141	6.750%	0.28954	6,990	3.516%	0.31423	7,
2054	23,127	6.750%	0.27123	6,273	3.516%	0.30355	7,
2055	22,130	6.750%	0.25408	5,623	3.516%	0.29324	6,
2056	21,147	6.750%	0.23801	5,033	3.516%	0.28328	5,
2066	12,060	6.750%	0.12386	1,494	3.516%	0.20051	2,
2076	5,293	6.750%	0.06445	341	3.516%	0.14193	
2086	1,185	6.750%	0.03354	40	3.516%	0.10046	
2096	80	6.750%	0.01745	1	3.516%	0.07111	1
2106	-	6.750%	0.00908	-	3.516%	0.05033	1
2116	-	6.750%	0.00473	-	3.516%	0.03563	1



CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLO	OYEES POSTR	ETIREMENT BENEI	FITS PROG	RAM		
		5 DISCLOSURES		- (1		
CHANGE IN NET OPEB LIABILITY A		UTIONS MADE BY	EMPLOYE	R (\$ IN 000'S)		
Fiscal Year Ending	-	ne 30, 2017	Jui	ne 30, 2018		June 30, 2019
						·
Total OPEB Liability Service Cost	\$	14,669	\$	12,821	\$	11,434
Interest on Total OPEB Liability	Ļ	14,564	Ļ	16,406	Ļ	15,722
Changes of Benefit Terms		14,504		10,400		15,722
Difference between Expected and Actual Experience		-		- (27,555)		- (3,013)
		- (44,093)		,		
Changes of Assumptions		(, ,		(15,965)		14,480
Benefit Payments	<u> </u>	(10,675)	ć	(10,863)	<u> </u>	(10,957)
Net Change in Total OPEB Liability	\$	(25,535)	\$	(25,156)	\$	27,666
Total OPEB Liability - Beginning	\$	447,182	\$	421,647	\$	396,491
Total OPEB Liability - Ending (a)	\$	421,647	\$	396,491	\$	424,157
Plan Fiduciary Net Position						
Employer PayGO Contributions	\$	10,675	\$	10,863	\$	10,957
Employer Pre-Funding Contributions	Ŧ		Ŧ	768	+	1,792
Active Member Contributions		-		768		1,792
Net Investment Income		-		21		299
Benefit Payments		(10,675)		(10,863)		(10,957)
Administrative Expense		(,,		(1)		(1)
Other		-		(=)		(-)
Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position	\$	-	\$	1,556	\$	3,882
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning	\$	-	\$	-	\$	1,555
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending (b)	\$	-	\$	1,556	\$	5,437
Net OPEB Liability - Ending (a) - (b)	\$	421,647	\$	394,935	\$	418,720
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage Total OPEB Liability		0.000%		0.392%		1.282%
Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC)	\$	19,979	\$	19,810	\$	18,598
Employer Contribution	Ś	10,675	\$	11,631	\$	12.749
Percentage of ADC made by Employer	Ŷ	53%	Ŷ	59%	Ŷ	69%
Contribution Excess/(Shortfall)	\$	(9,304)	\$	(8,179)	\$	(5,849)
Expected Return on Assets	\$	-	\$	55	\$	232
Investment (Gain)/Loss	\$	-	\$	34	\$	(67)
Average Expected Remaining Service	Ŧ	4.408263	Ŧ	4.574619	4	4.587420
Blended Discount Rate Beginning of Year		3.190%		3.825%		3.906%
Blended Discount Rate End of Year		3.825%		3.906%		3.516%
Long-term Expected Return on Assets		7.280%		7.000%		6.750%



GASB NOS. 74 AND 75 DISCI OPEB EXPENSES AND NET OPEB LIABILITY BARGAINING UNIT NUMB STATIONARY ENGINEE	SENSITIVITY (\$ BER 13	5 IN 000'S)		
Measured for the Plan's Fiscal Year Ending Applicable for the Sponsor's Fiscal Year Ending	Jun	ne 30, 2018 ne 30, 2019		ne 30, 2019 ne 30, 2020
OPEB Expense				
Service Cost Interest on the Total OPEB Liability Current-Period Benefit Changes Active Member Contributions Projected Earnings on Plan Investments Operating Expenses Other Changes in Plan Fiduciary Net Position Recognition of Outflow/(Inflow) due to Non-investment Experience Recognition of Outflow/(Inflow) due to Assumption Changes Recognition of Outflow/(Inflow) due to Investment Experience	\$ \$	12,821 16,406 - (768) (55) 1 - (6,023) (13,492) 7 8,897	\$	11,434 15,722 - (1,792) (232) 1 - (6,680) (10,336) <u>(6)</u>
Net OPEB Expense	Ş	8,897	Ş	8,111
Reconciliation of Net OPEB Liability				
Net OPEB Liability Beginning of Year OPEB Expense Employer Contributions Change in Outflow/(Inflow) due to Non-investment Experience Change in Outflow/(Inflow) due to Assumption Changes Change in Outflow/(Inflow) due to Investment Experience Net OPEB Liability End of Year	\$ 	421,647 8,897 (11,631) (21,532) (2,473) 27 394,935	\$	394,936 8,111 (12,749) 3,667 24,816 (61) 418,720
Deferred (Inflows)		,	·	,
Non-investment Experience Assumption Changes Investment Experience	\$ \$ \$	(21,532) (36,564) -	\$ \$ \$	(17,865) (23,072) (54)
Deferred Outflows Non-investment Experience Assumption Changes Investment Experience	\$ \$ \$	- - 27	\$ \$ \$	- 11,324 20
Net OPEB Liability Sensitivity				
Baseline Discount Rate Baseline Discount Rate and Trend Rates Increase Discount Rate by One Percentage Point Decrease Discount Rate by One Percentage Point Increase Trend Rate by One Percentage Point	\$ \$ \$	3.906% 394,935 341,623 461,264 452,509	\$ \$ \$	3.516% 418,720 361,599 489,857 492,060
Decrease Trend Rate by One Percentage Point	\$	348,676	\$	360,052



Valuation Date Measurement Date		6/30/2019 6/30/2019			(E EMPLOYEES PG GASB NOS. 74 A RED INFLOWS AI BARGAINING STATIONA	ND 79 ND O UNIT	5 DISCLOSURES UTFLOWS (\$ IN 9 NUMBER 13										
		Noi	n-Inv	vestment Experier	nce				Ass	sumption Changes				Ir	۱ve	stment Experier	nce	
				Amortization		Initial				Amortization		Initial				Amortization		Initial
Plan Year Beginning		(Gain)/Loss		Factor	A	mortization		(Gain)/Loss		Factor		Amortization	(0	Gain)/Loss		Factor	A	mortization
7/1/2016	\$	-		4.408263	\$	-	\$	(44,093)		4.408263	\$	(10,002)	\$	-	\$	5.000000	\$	-
7/1/2017	\$	(27,555)		4.574619	\$	(6,023)	\$	(15,965)		4.574619	\$	(3,490)	\$	34		5.000000	\$	7
7/1/2018	\$	(3,013)		4.587420	\$	(657)	\$	14,480		4.587420	\$	3,156	\$	(67)		5.000000	\$	(13
Deferred Outflows/(Inflows) Recognized in OPEB Expense for Current Plan Year End		Outflows		(Inflows)		Net		Outflows		(Inflows)		Net		Outflows		(Inflows)		Net
6/30/2019	\$	-	\$	(6,680)	\$	(6,680)	\$	3,156	\$	(13,492)	\$	(10,336)	\$	7	\$	(13)	\$	(6
Deferred Outflows/(Inflows) Recognized in OPEB Expense for Future Plan Years Ending																		
6/30/2020	Ś	-	Ś	(6,680)	Ś	(6,680)	\$	3,156	Ś	(13,492)	Ś	(10,336)	\$	7	\$	(13)	\$	(6
6/30/2021	\$	-	\$	(6,680)		(6,680)	\$	3,156		(7,575)		(4,419)	\$	7	\$		\$	(6
6/30/2022	\$	-	\$	(4,120)	\$	(4,120)	\$			(2,005)		1,151	\$	6	\$	(13)	\$	(7
6/30/2023	\$	-	\$	(385)	\$	(385)	\$		\$	-	\$	1,856	\$	-	\$	(15)	\$	(15
6/30/2024	\$	-	\$	-	\$	- 1	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
6/30/2025	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
6/30/2026	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
6/30/2027	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
6/30/2028	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
Fotal	\$	-	\$	(17,865)	\$	(17,865)	\$	11,324	\$	(23,072)	\$	(11,748)	\$	20	\$	(54)	\$	(34
Change In Deferred Outflows/(Inflows) Recognized in Liability and Assets for Current Plan Year End																		
6/30/2019					\$	3,667					\$	24,816			L		\$	(6:



CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLOYEES POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS PROGRAM FULL-FUNDING ACTUARIAL VALUATION (\$ IN 000'S) 7.00% AT JULY 1, 2018 AND 6.75% AT JULY 1, 2019 BARGAINING UNIT NUMBER 16

PHYSICIANS, DENTISTS AND PODIATRISTS

		July 1, 2018		July 1, 2019
Number of Participants Covered		1 500		1 (21
Active Participants		1,598		1,621
Retired Participants ^a		1,435		1,473
Total Participants		3,033		3,094
Actuarial Present Value of Projected Benefits				
Active Participants	\$	204,930	\$	206,348
Retired Participants		218,669		240,837
Total Participants	\$	423,599	\$	447,185
Actuarial Accrued Liability				
Active Participants	\$	129,938	\$	132,602
Retired Participants		218,669		240,837
Total Participants	\$	348,607	\$	373,439
Actuarial Value of Assets	\$	14,232	\$	26,676
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability	\$	334,375	\$	346,763
Net Employer ADC for FYE	J	lune 30, 2019		June 30, 2020
Normal Cost	\$	10,709	\$	10,528
Administrative Expenses		41		47
Amortization of UAAL		19,212	_	20,320
Total ADC	\$	29,962	\$	30,895
Estimated Member Contributions		(4,032)		(5,287)
Net Employer ADC	\$	25,930	\$	25,608
Expected Claim Costs for FYE ^b Employer Explicit Costs	L	lune 30, 2019		June 30, 2020
Medical and Rx Claims	\$	10,459	\$	10,600
Part B Reimbursement	Ŷ	2,590	Ļ	2,765
Dental Claims		937		967
Total	\$	13,986	\$	14,332
Employer Implicit Costs	Ŷ	2,535	7	4,406
Total Employer Costs	\$	16,521	Ś	18,738
Retiree Share of Claim Costs	Ŧ	_0,0_1	7	_0,.00
Medical and Rx Claims	\$	1,406	\$	1,423
Dental Claims		299		304
Total	\$	1,705	\$	1,727
Total Claims Costs	\$	18,226	\$	20,465

^eRetired participants with dental only coverage, 150 as of July 1, 2018, and 151 as of July 1, 2019, are excluded from the above counts but are reflected in the actuarial valuation.

^bFor purposes of financial reporting, employer explicit and implicit costs will be updated based on actual experience during each respective reporting period.



				OJECTIONS BASED ON BARGAINII	S POSTRETIREMENT BE I JULY 1, 2019, ACTUAR NG UNIT NUMBER 16 INTISTS AND PODIATRI	IAL VALUATION (\$ IN 0	100'S)		
Long-tern Discount	n Beginning n Asset Return Rate i is Fully Funded	7/1/2019 6.750% 6.750% 2041							
		Disbursements/	Administrative	Pre-Fund	Investment		Accrued	Funded	
FYE 2019	Assets (boy) \$ 14,222	Benefits \$ -	Expenses \$ 4	Contribution \$ 10,962	Income \$ 1,496	Assets (eoy) \$ 26,676	Liability (eoy) \$ 373,439	Ratio 7.1%	Normal Cost \$ 10,528
2019	26,676	Ş -	47	\$ 10,982	2,150	39,353	373,439	10.1%	\$ 10,528 9,776
2020	39,353	-	51	9,828		52,111	406,105	10.1%	9,136
2021	52,111		51	9,828	3,821	65,067	400,103	12.8%	8,503
2022	65,067		61	8,564	4,674	78,244	420,131	13.3%	7,892
2023	78,244	-	65	7,957	5,544	91,680	443,348	20.7%	7,305
2025	91,680	-	69	7,374	· · ·	105,416	452,636	23.3%	6,744
2026	105,416	-	72	6,816		119,500	460,439	26.0%	6,197
2027	119,500	-	76	6,273	8,272	133,969	466,792	28.7%	5,657
2028	133,969	-	79	5,736	· · ·	148,857	471,664	31.6%	5,134
2029	148,857	-	82	5,216	· · ·	164,209	475,033	34.6%	4,633
2030	164,209	-	85	4,718		180,080	476,853	37.8%	4,154
2031	180,080	-	88	4,241	12,293	196,526	477,139	41.2%	3,704
2032	196,526	-	90	3,794	13,388	213,618	475,897	44.9%	3,284
2033	213,618	-	93	3,377	14,528	231,430	473,144	48.9%	2,886
2034	231,430	-	95	2,981	15,717	250,033	468,875	53.3%	2,512
2035	250,033	-	97	2,609	16,961	269,506	463,137	58.2%	2,165
2036	269,506	-	98	2,264	18,264	289,936	456,044	63.6%	1,850
2037	289,936	-	99	1,949	19,632	311,418	447,740	69.6%	1,564
2038	311,418	-	100	1,664	21,073	334,055	438,346	76.2%	1,310
2039	334,055	-	100	1,410	22,592	357,957	428,045	83.6%	1,088
2040	357,957	-	99	1,187	24,198	383,243	417,003	91.9%	895
2041	383,243	1,046	99	994	25,864	408,956	405,313	100.9%	730
2042	408,956	39,043	98	-	26,305	396,120	393,105	100.8%	589
2043	396,120	38,529	96	-	25,456	382,951	380,454	100.7%	469
2044	382,951	37,922	95	-	24,587	369,521	367,448	100.6%	368
2045	369,521	37,294	93	-	23,701	355,835	354,105	100.5%	284
2046	355,835	36,630	92	-	22,800	341,913	340,460	100.4%	215
2047	341,913	35,834	90	-	21,887	327,876	326,641	100.4%	158
2048	327,876	35,034	88	-	20,966	313,720	312,657	100.3%	113
2049	313,720	34,220	86	-	20,037	299,451	298,522	100.3%	79
2050	299,451	33,332	83	-	19,104	285,140	284,315	100.3%	53
2051	285,140	32,419	81	-	18,168	270,808	270,064	100.3%	35
2052	270,808	31,418	79	-	17,234	256,545	255,867	100.3%	22
2053	256,545 242,398	30,377 29,378	76	-	16,306	242,398 228,331	241,773 227,751	100.3%	13 8
2054			73	-	15,384	,	,	100.3%	8
2055 2056	228,331 214,390	28,339 27,271	68	-	14,469 13,564	214,390 200,615	213,851 200,113	100.3% 100.3%	3
2056	200,615	26,162	65		12,671	187,059	186,593	100.3%	2
2037	200,013	20,102	05	-	12,071	137,035	100,395	100.270	2



CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLOYEES POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS PROGRAM DEVELOPMENT OF GASB NOS. 74 AND 75 SINGLE EQUIVALENT DISCOUNT RATE (\$ IN 000'S) BARGAINING UNIT NUMBER 16 PHYSICIANS, DENTISTS AND PODIATRISTS

20-Year GO Municipal Bond Rate at June 30, 2019	3.130%
Long-Term Investment Return	6.750%
Year Plan is Fully Funded	2041
Single Equivalent Rate	3.772%

Present Value of Benefits

ent Value	of Benefits			\$ 706,051			\$ 706,
		Cross-over		Discounted	Single		Discounted
	Net Employer	Investment	Discount	Benefit	Equivalent	Discount	Benefit
FYE	Benefits	Return	Factor	Payment	Return	Factor	Payment
2020	\$ 18,738	3.130%	0.98471	\$ 18,452	3.772%	0.98166	\$ 18
2021	20,514	3.130%	0.95482	19,587	3.772%	0.94598	19
2022	22,384	3.130%	0.92584	20,724	3.772%	0.91160	20
2023	24,221	3.130%	0.89774	21,744	3.772%	0.87847	21
2024	25,933	3.130%	0.87050	22,575	3.772%	0.84654	21
2025	27,512	3.130%	0.84408	23,222	3.772%	0.81577	22
2026	28,976	3.130%	0.81846	23,715	3.772%	0.78612	22
2027	30,323	3.130%	0.79362	24,065	3.772%	0.75755	22
2028	31,615	3.130%	0.76953	24,329	3.772%	0.73001	23
2029	32,847	3.130%	0.74618	24,510	3.772%	0.70348	23
2030	34,049	3.130%	0.72353	24,635	3.772%	0.67791	23
2031	35,157	3.130%	0.70157	24,665	3.772%	0.65327	22
2032	36,190	3.130%	0.68028	24,619	3.772%	0.62953	22
2033	37,139	3.130%	0.65963	24,498	3.772%	0.60665	22
2034	38,015	3.130%	0.63961	24,315	3.772%	0.58460	22
2035	38,771	3.130%	0.62020	24,046	3.772%	0.56335	21
2036	39,350	3.130%	0.60138	23,664	3.772%	0.54288	21
2037	39,733	3.130%	0.58313	23,170	3.772%	0.52315	20
2038	39,952	3.130%	0.56543	22,590	3.772%	0.50413	20
2039	39,953	3.130%	0.54827	21,905	3.772%	0.48581	19
2040	39,768	3.130%	0.53163	21,142	3.772%	0.46815	18
2041	39,476	3.130%	0.51549	20,349	3.772%	0.45114	17
2042	39,043	6.750%	0.48290	18,854	3.772%	0.43474	16
2043	38,529	6.750%	0.45236	17,429	3.772%	0.41894	16
2044	37,922	6.750%	0.42376	16,070	3.772%	0.40371	15
2045	37,294	6.750%	0.39696	14,804	3.772%	0.38904	14
2046	36,630	6.750%	0.37186	13,621	3.772%	0.37490	13
2047	35,834	6.750%	0.34835	12,483	3.772%	0.36127	12
2048	35,034	6.750%	0.32632	11,433	3.772%	0.34814	12
2049	34,220	6.750%	0.30569	10,461	3.772%	0.33549	11
2050	33,332	6.750%	0.28636	9,545	3.772%	0.32330	10
2051	32,419	6.750%	0.26825	8,697	3.772%	0.31155	10
2052	31,418	6.750%	0.25129	7,895	3.772%	0.30022	9
2053	30,377	6.750%	0.23540	7,151	3.772%	0.28931	8
2054	29,378	6.750%	0.22052	6,478	3.772%	0.27880	8
2055	28,339	6.750%	0.20657	5,854	3.772%	0.26866	7
2056	27,271	6.750%	0.19351	5,277	3.772%	0.25890	7
2066	15,467	6.750%	0.10070	1,558	3.772%	0.17879	2
2076	4,770	6.750%	0.05240	250	3.772%	0.12347	
2086	636	6.750%	0.02727	17	3.772%	0.08526	
2096	58	6.750%	0.01419	1	3.772%	0.05888	
2106	4	6.750%	0.00738	-	3.772%	0.04066	
2116	-	6.750%	0.00384	-	3.772%	0.02808	



CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLO	YEES POSTI	RETIREMENT BENE	FITS PROG	RAM	
		75 DISCLOSURES			
CHANGE IN NET OPEB LIABILITY AN			EMPLOYE	R (\$ IN 000'S)	
		T NUMBER 16			
		AND PODIATRISTS			1 00 0010
Fiscal Year Ending	Ju	ne 30, 2017	Ju	ne 30, 2018	June 30, 2019
Total OPEB Liability					
Service Cost	\$	25,410	\$	22,878	\$ 19,868
Interest on Total OPEB Liability		19,529		22,062	20,854
Changes of Benefit Terms		-		-	-
Difference between Expected and Actual Experience		-		(43,849)	3,825
Changes of Assumptions		(45,549)		(17,270)	13,636
Benefit Payments		(15,948)		(18,647)	(18,674)
Net Change in Total OPEB Liability	\$	(16,558)	\$	(34,826)	\$ 39,509
Total OPEB Liability - Beginning	\$	547,898	\$	531,340	\$ 496,514
Total OPEB Liability - Ending (a)	\$	531,340	\$	496,514	\$ 536,023
Plan Fiduciary Net Position					
Employer PayGO Contributions	\$	15,948	\$	18,647	\$ 18,674
Employer Pre-Funding Contributions		711		3,373	5,481
Active Member Contributions		711		3,373	5,481
Net Investment Income		591		645	1,496
Benefit Payments		(15,948)		(18,647)	(18,674)
Administrative Expense		(3)		(5)	(4)
Other		-		-	-
Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position	\$	2,010	\$	7,386	\$ 12,454
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning	\$	4,836	\$	6,846	\$ 14,222
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending (b)	\$	6,846	\$	14,232	\$ 26,676
Net OPEB Liability - Ending (a) - (b)	\$	524,494	\$	482,282	\$ 509,347
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage Total OPEB Liability		1.288%		2.866%	4.977%
Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC)	\$	29,785	\$	28,038	\$ 24,481
Employer Contribution	\$	16,659	\$	22,020	\$ 24,155
Percentage of ADC made by Employer		56%		79%	99%
Contribution Excess/(Shortfall)	\$	(13,126)	\$	(6,018)	\$ (326)
Expected Return on Assets	\$	403	\$	739	\$ 1,373
Investment (Gain)/Loss	\$	(188)	\$	94	\$ (123)
Average Expected Remaining Service		4.144907		4.131138	4.126132
Blended Discount Rate Beginning of Year		3.454%		4.041%	4.112%
Blended Discount Rate End of Year		4.041%		4.112%	3.772%
Long-term Expected Return on Assets		7.280%	<u> </u>	7.000%	6.750%



GASB NOS. 74 AND 75 DISC OPEB EXPENSES AND NET OPEB LIABILITY BARGAINING UNIT NUMI PHYSICIANS, DENTISTS AND P	SENSITIVITY (\$ BER 16	5 IN 000'S)		
Measured for the Plan's Fiscal Year Ending	Jun	ie 30, 2018		ine 30, 2019
Applicable for the Sponsor's Fiscal Year Ending	Jun	ie 30, 2019	Ju	ine 30, 2020
OPEB Expense				
Service Cost	\$	22,878	\$	19,868
Interest on the Total OPEB Liability		22,062		20,854
Current-Period Benefit Changes		-		-
Active Member Contributions		(3,373)		(5,481
Projected Earnings on Plan Investments		(739)		(1,373
Operating Expenses		5		4
Other Changes in Plan Fiduciary Net Position		-		-
Recognition of Outflow/(Inflow) due to Non-investment Experience		(10,614)		(9,687
Recognition of Outflow/(Inflow) due to Assumption Changes		(15,169)		(11,864
Recognition of Outflow/(Inflow) due to Investment Experience		(19)		(44
Net OPEB Expense	\$	15,031	\$	12,277
Reconciliation of Net OPEB Liability				
Net OPEB Liability Beginning of Year	\$	524,494	\$	482,292
OPEB Expense		15,031		12,277
Employer Contributions		(22,020)		(24,155
Change in Outflow/(Inflow) due to Non-investment Experience		(33,235)		13,512
Change in Outflow/(Inflow) due to Assumption Changes		(2,101)		25,500
Change in Outflow/(Inflow) due to Investment Experience		113		(79
Net OPEB Liability End of Year	\$	482,282	\$	509,347
Deferred (Inflows)				
Non-investment Experience	\$ \$ \$	(33,235)	\$	(22,621
Assumption Changes	\$	(36,661)	\$	(21,492
Investment Experience	\$	(112)	\$	(172
Deferred Outflows				
Non-investment Experience	\$	-	\$	2,898
Assumption Changes	\$	-	\$	10,331
Investment Experience	\$	75	\$	56
Net OPEB Liability Sensitivity				
Baseline Discount Rate		4.112%		3.772%
Baseline Discount Rate and Trend Rates	\$	482,282	\$	509,347
Increase Discount Rate by One Percentage Point	\$	421,602	\$ \$	444,156
Decrease Discount Rate by One Percentage Point	\$ \$ \$	556,680		589,306
Increase Trend Rate by One Percentage Point		548,460	\$	592,667
Decrease Trend Rate by One Percentage Point	\$	428,136	\$	441,790



Valuation Date Measurement Date		6/30/2019 6/30/2019			FER	E EMPLOYEES P GASB NOS. 74 A RED INFLOWS A BARGAINING YSICIANS, DENT	ND 79 ND 01 UNIT	5 DISCLOSURES UTFLOWS (\$ IN NUMBER 16	000									
		· ·								ui el								
		No	-	estment Experier	ice	Initial			Ass	sumption Changes		Initial			_	stment Experie Amortization	nce	Initial
Plan Year Beginning	-	(Gain)/Loss		Factor	A	Amortization		(Gain)/Loss		Factor		Amortization	(Gain)/Loss		Factor	Ar	nortization
7/1/2016	Ś	-		4.144907		-	\$	(45,549)		4.144907	\$	(10,989)	\$	(188)) \$		\$	(38)
7/1/2017	\$	(43,849)		4.131138	\$	(10,614)	\$	(17,270)		4.131138	L '	(4,180)	Ş	94	/ Ť	5.000000	Ś	19
7/1/2018	\$	3,825		4.126132		927	\$	13,636		4.126132		3,305	\$	(123))	5.000000	\$	(25
Deferred Outflows/(Inflows) Recognized in OPEB Expense for Current Plan Year End		Outflows		(Inflows)		Net		Outflows		(Inflows)		Net		Outflows		(Inflows)		Net
6/30/2019	\$	927	\$	(10,614)	\$	(9,687)	\$	3,305	\$	(15,169)	\$	(11,864)	\$	19	\$	(63)	\$	(44
Deferred Outflows/(Inflows) Recognized in OPEB Expense for Future Plan Years Ending																		
6/30/2020	\$	927	\$	(10,614)	\$	(9,687)	\$	3,305	\$	(15,169)	\$	(11,864)	\$	19	\$	(63)	\$	(44
6/30/2021	\$	927	\$	(10,614)		(9,687)	\$	-	\$	(5,773)		(2,468)	\$	19	\$		\$	(42
6/30/2022	\$	927	\$	(1,393)	\$	(466)	\$	3,305	\$	(550)	\$	2,755	\$	18	\$	(25)	\$	(7
6/30/2023	\$	117	\$	-	\$	117	\$	416	\$	-	\$	416	\$	-	\$		\$	(23
6/30/2024	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
6/30/2025	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
6/30/2026	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
6/30/2027	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
6/30/2028	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
Fotal	\$	2,898	\$	(22,621)	\$	(19,723)	\$	10,331	\$	(21,492)	\$	(11,161)	\$	56	\$	(172)	\$	(116
Change In Deferred Outflows/(Inflows) Recognized in Liability and Assets for Current Plan Year End																		
6/30/2019					\$	13,512					\$	25,500					\$	(79



CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLOYEES POS			100	GRAM
FULL-FUNDING ACTUARIAL 7.00% AT JULY 1, 2018 AN				
BARGAINING UN				
PSYCHIATRIC T	ECHNICIA	NS		
	J	luly 1, 2018		July 1, 2019
Number of Participants Covered		•		
Active Participants		6,414		6,228
Retired Participants ^a		4,852		4,979
Total Participants		11,266		11,207
Actuarial Present Value of Projected Benefits				
Active Participants	\$	849,687	\$	847,223
Retired Participants		784,756		846,234
Total Participants	\$	1,634,443	\$	1,693,457
Actuarial Accrued Liability				
Active Participants	\$	502,416	\$	503,474
Retired Participants		784,756		846,234
Total Participants	\$	1,287,172	\$	1,349,708
Actuarial Value of Assets	\$	7,704	\$	26,827
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability	\$	1,279,468	\$	1,322,881
Net Employer ADC for FYE	Ju	une 30, 2019		June 30, 2020
Normal Cost	\$	34,926	\$	34,393
Administrative Expenses		132		142
Amortization of UAAL		73,514		77,521
Total ADC	\$	108,572	\$	112,056
Estimated Member Contributions		(8,764)		(12,950)
Net Employer ADC	\$	99,808	\$	99,106
Expected Claim Costs for FYE ^b	Ju	une 30, 2019		June 30, 2020
Employer Explicit Costs				
Medical and Rx Claims	\$	37,798	\$	39,286
Part B Reimbursement		5,790		6,231
Dental Claims	<u> </u>	2,623		2,759
Total	\$	46,211	\$	48,276
Employer Implicit Costs		6,479		8,566
Total Employer Costs	\$	52,690	\$	56,842
Retiree Share of Claim Costs	~	2 400	÷	2 (22)
Medical and Rx Claims	\$	2,400	\$	2,632
Dental Claims	~	799		822
Total Total Claims Casts	\$ \$	3,199	\$ ¢	3,454
Total Claims Costs	Ş	55,889	\$	60,296

^eRetired participants with dental only coverage, 283 as of July 1, 2018, and 292 as of July 1, 2019, are excluded from the above counts but are reflected in the actuarial valuation.

^bFor purposes of financial reporting, employer explicit and implicit costs will be updated based on actual experience during each respective reporting period.



	CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLOYEES POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS PROGRAM FULL-FUNDING PROJECTIONS BASED ON JULY 1, 2019, ACTUARIAL VALUATION (\$ IN 000'S) BARGAINING UNIT NUMBER 18 PSYCHIATRIC TECHNICIANS													
Long-terr Discount	ar Beginning n Asset Return Rate ı is Fully Funded	7/1/2019 6.750% 6.750% 2048												
		Disbursements/	Administrative	Pre-Fund	Investment		Accrued	Funded						
FYE	Assets (boy)	Benefits	Expenses	Contribution	Income	Assets (eoy)	Liability (eoy)	Ratio	Normal Cost					
2019	\$ 7,698	\$-		\$ 17,652				2.0%						
2020	26,827	-	142	25,901	2,666	55,252	1,418,768	3.9%	33,530					
2021	55,252	-	153	33,682		93,624	1,487,147	6.3%	32,697					
2022	93,624	-	165	32,862		133,726	1,554,018	8.6%	31,867					
2023	133,726	-	178	32,045		175,678	1,619,435	10.8%	31,033					
2024	175,678	-	190	31,223	12,889	219,600	1,683,213	13.0%	30,200					
2025	219,600	-	203	30,403	15,826	265,626	1,745,267	15.2%	29,362					
2026	265,626	-	215	29,577	,	313,893	1,805,627	17.4%	28,514					
2027	313,893	-	226	28,739		364,540	1,864,537	19.6%	27,661					
2028	364,540	-	237	27,898	25,525	417,726	1,922,102	21.7%	26,796					
2029	417,726	-	247	27,043	29,086	473,608	1,978,189	23.9%	25,912					
2030	473,608	-	259	26,171	32,829	532,349	2,032,348	26.2%	25,002					
2031	532,349	-	271	25,273	36,764	594,115	2,084,388	28.5%	24,060					
2032 2033	594,115	-	283	24,344	40,902	659,078	2,133,746	30.9%	23,081					
2033	659,078 727,413	-	296 309	23,377 22,359	45,254 49,832	727,413 799,295	2,180,124 2,223,203	33.4% 36.0%	22,050 20,955					
2034	727,413	-	309	22,359			2,223,203	38.7%	19,806					
2033	874,898		336	20,142		954,417	2,202,310	41.5%	18,612					
2030	954,417	-	350	18,962		1,038,070	2,327,321	41.5%	17,378					
2037	1,038,070		350	17,742		1,126,095	2,352,581	44.0%	16,115					
2030	1,126,095		378	16,493	76,546	1,218,756	2,372,401	51.4%	14,841					
2035	1,218,756		392	15,233	82,759	1,316,356	2,386,481	55.2%	13,550					
2040	1,316,356	-	405	13,956		1,419,211	2,394,457	59.3%	12,248					
2041	1,419,211	_	405	12,667	96,203	1,527,663	2,396,180	63.8%	10,949					
2043	1,527,663		431	11,380		1,642,093	2,391,580	68.7%	9,660					
2044	1,642,093	-	442	10,102		1,762,915	2,380,640	74.1%	8,419					
2045	1,762,915	-	452	8,871	119,276	1,890,610	2,363,695	80.0%	7,235					
2046	1,890,610	-	460	7,695	127,856	2,025,701	2,340,856	86.5%	6,110					
2047	2,025,701	-	467	6,577	136,937	2,168,748	2,312,359	93.8%	5,067					
2048	2,168,748	20,920	472	5,540	145,864	2,298,760	2,278,578	100.9%	4,124					
2049	2,298,760	190,265	476	-	148,834	2,256,853	2,240,181	100.7%	3,297					
2050	2,256,853	190,669	477	-	145,991	2,211,698	2,197,893	100.6%	2,584					
2051	2,211,698	190,281	476	-	142,956	2,163,897	2,152,392	100.5%	1,986					
2052	2,163,897	189,518	474	-	139,755	2,113,660	2,103,971	100.5%	1,498					
2053	2,113,660	188,261	471	-	136,406	2,061,334	2,053,061	100.4%	1,109					
2054	2,061,334	186,002	465	-	132,949	2,007,816	2,000,634	100.4%	804					
2055	2,007,816	183,438	459	-	129,422	1,953,341	1,946,993	100.3%	571					
2056	1,953,341	180,891	452	-	125,830	1,897,828	1,892,116	100.3%	397					
2057	1,897,828	178,011	445	-	122,179	1,841,551	1,836,326	100.3%	270					



CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLOYEES POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS PROGRAM DEVELOPMENT OF GASB NOS. 74 AND 75 SINGLE EQUIVALENT DISCOUNT RATE (\$ IN 000'S) BARGAINING UNIT NUMBER 18 **PSYCHIATRIC TECHNICIANS**

3.130%
6.750%
2048
3.705%

Present Value of Benefits

sent Value	of Benefits			\$ 3,116,732			\$ 3,116,7
		Cross-over		Discounted	Single		Discounted
	Net Employer	Investment	Discount	Benefit	Equivalent	Discount	Benefit
FYE	Benefits	Return	Factor	Payment	Return	Factor	Payment
2020	\$ 56,842	3.130%		\$ 55,973	3.705%	0.98197	2
2021	61,120	3.130%	0.95482	58,359	3.705%	0.94689	57,8
2022	66,185	3.130%	0.92584	61,277	3.705%	0.91305	60,
2023	71,103	3.130%	0.89774	63,832	3.705%	0.88043	62,
2024	76,101	3.130%	0.87050	66,246	3.705%	0.84897	64,
2025	81,075	3.130%	0.84408	68,434	3.705%	0.81864	66,
2026	85,902	3.130%	0.81846	70,307	3.705%	0.78939	67,
2027	90,372	3.130%	0.79362	71,721	3.705%	0.76118	68,
2028	94,641	3.130%	0.76953	72,829	3.705%	0.73399	69,
2029	98,940	3.130%	0.74618	73,827	3.705%	0.70776	70,
2030	103,555	3.130%	0.72353	74,925	3.705%	0.68247	70,
2031	108,204	3.130%	0.70157	75,913	3.705%	0.65809	71,
2032	113,227	3.130%	0.68028	77,026	3.705%	0.63457	71,
2033	118,324	3.130%	0.65963	78,050	3.705%	0.61190	72,
2034	123,481	3.130%	0.63961	78,980	3.705%	0.59004	72,
2035	129,009	3.130%	0.62020	80,012	3.705%	0.56895	73,
2036	134,568	3.130%	0.60138	80,926	3.705%	0.54862	73
2037	140,004	3.130%	0.58313	81,640	3.705%	0.52902	74
2038	145,518	3.130%	0.56543	82,280	3.705%	0.51012	74,
2039	151,129	3.130%	0.54827	82,859	3.705%	0.49189	74,
2040	156,665	3.130%	0.53163	83,287	3.705%	0.47432	74,
2041	162,161	3.130%	0.51549	83,593	3.705%	0.45737	74,
2042	167,389	3.130%	0.49985	83,669	3.705%	0.44103	73,
2043	172,280	3.130%	0.48468	83,500	3.705%	0.42527	73,
2044	176,785	3.130%	0.46997	83,083	3.705%	0.41008	72,
2045	180,603	3.130%	0.45570	82,301	3.705%	0.39542	71
2046	183,978	3.130%	0.44187	81,295	3.705%	0.38129	70,
2047	186,800	3.130%	0.42846	80,037	3.705%	0.36767	68,
2048	188,977	3.130%	0.41546	78,512	3.705%	0.35453	66,
2049	190,265	6.750%	0.38919	74,049	3.705%	0.34187	65,
2050	190,669	6.750%	0.36458	69,514	3.705%	0.32965	62,
2051	190,281	6.750%	0.34153	64,986	3.705%	0.31787	60,
2052	189,518	6.750%	0.31993	60,632	3.705%	0.30651	58,
2053	188,261	6.750%	0.29970	56,422	3.705%	0.29556	55,
2054	186,002	6.750%	0.28075	52,220	3.705%	0.28500	53,
2055	183,438	6.750%	0.26300	48,244	3.705%	0.27482	50,
2056	180,891	6.750%	0.24637	44,566	3.705%	0.26500	47,
2066	155,796	6.750%	0.12821	19,974	3.705%	0.18417	28,
2076	103,159	6.750%	0.06672	6,882	3.705%	0.12800	13,
2086	33,370	6.750%	0.03472	1,159	3.705%	0.08896	2,
2096	3,164	6.750%	0.01807	57	3.705%	0.06183	_,
2106	84	6.750%	0.00940	1	3.705%	0.04297	l
2116	1	6.750%	0.00489	-	3.705%	0.02986	l



CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLO	YEES POST	RETIREMENT BENE	FITS PRO	GRAM		
		75 DISCLOSURES				
CHANGE IN NET OPEB LIABILITY AN		BUTIONS MADE BY T NUMBER 18	EMPLOY	ER (\$ IN 000'S)		
Fiscal Year Ending		ine 30, 2017	Ju	ine 30, 2018		June 30, 2019
				·		·
Total OPEB Liability Service Cost	\$	90,257	\$	78,668	\$	75,099
Interest on Total OPEB Liability	Ş	90,237 76,899	Ş	85,613	Ş	82,679
Changes of Benefit Terms		70,099		65,015		82,079
Difference between Expected and Actual Experience		-		- (191,777)		- (57.011)
		-		,		(57,811)
Changes of Assumptions		(222,349)		(40,755)		92,553
Benefit Payments	<u>_</u>	(49,553)	<u> </u>	(43,073)	<u> </u>	(60,499)
Net Change in Total OPEB Liability	\$	(104,746)	\$	(111,324)	\$	132,021
Total OPEB Liability - Beginning	\$	2,197,374	\$	2,092,628	\$	1,981,304
Total OPEB Liability - Ending (a)	\$	2,092,628	\$	1,981,304	\$	2,113,325
Plan Fiduciary Net Position						
Employer PayGO Contributions	\$	49,553	\$	43.073	\$	60.499
Employer Pre-Funding Contributions	'	-		3,799	'	8,826
Active Member Contributions		-		3,799		8,826
Net Investment Income		-		108		1,480
Benefit Payments		(49,553)		(43,073)		(60,499)
Administrative Expense		-		(2)		(3)
Other		-		-		-
Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position	\$	-	\$	7,704	\$	19,129
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning	\$	-	\$	-	\$	7,698
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending (b)	\$	-	Ş	7,704	\$	26,827
Net OPEB Liability - Ending (a) - (b)	\$	2,092,628	\$	1,973,600	\$	2,086,498
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage Total OPEB Liability	-	0.000%		0.389%		1.269%
Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC)	\$	103,287	\$	102,587	\$	99,746
Employer Contribution	Ś	49,553	Ś	46,872	\$	69,325
Percentage of ADC made by Employer	Ļ	48%	Ļ	46%	Ļ	70%
Contribution Excess/(Shortfall)	\$	(53,734)	\$	(55,715)	\$	(30,421)
Expected Return on Assets	\$	-	\$	272	\$	1,146
Investment (Gain)/Loss	\$	-	Ś	164	\$	(334)
Average Expected Remaining Service	Ŧ	6.796418	Ŧ	7.343741	Ŷ	7.212367
Blended Discount Rate Beginning of Year		3.398%		3.991%		4.080%
Blended Discount Rate End of Year		3.991%		4.080%		3.705%
Long-term Expected Return on Assets		7.280%		7.000%		6.750%



GASB NOS. 74 AND 75 DISCL OPEB EXPENSES AND NET OPEB LIABILITY S BARGAINING UNIT NUMB PSYCHIATRIC TECHNICIA	ENSITIVITY (ER 18	\$ IN 000'S)		
Measured for the Plan's Fiscal Year Ending Applicable for the Sponsor's Fiscal Year Ending	Ju	ne 30, 2018 ne 30, 2019		une 30, 2019 une 30, 2020
OPEB Expense				
Service Cost Interest on the Total OPEB Liability Current-Period Benefit Changes Active Member Contributions Projected Earnings on Plan Investments Operating Expenses Other Changes in Plan Fiduciary Net Position Recognition of Outflow/(Inflow) due to Non-investment Experience Recognition of Outflow/(Inflow) due to Assumption Changes Recognition of Outflow/(Inflow) due to Investment Experience	\$	78,668 85,613 - (3,799) (272) 2 - (26,114) (38,266) 33	\$	75,099 82,679 - (8,826) (1,146) 3 - (34,130) (25,433) (34)
Net OPEB Expense	\$	95,865	\$	88,212
Reconciliation of Net OPEB Liability				
Net OPEB Liability Beginning of Year OPEB Expense Employer Contributions Change in Outflow/(Inflow) due to Non-investment Experience Change in Outflow/(Inflow) due to Assumption Changes Change in Outflow/(Inflow) due to Investment Experience Net OPEB Liability End of Year	\$	2,092,628 95,865 (46,872) (165,663) (2,489) <u>131</u> 1,973,600	\$	1,973,606 88,212 (69,325) (23,681) 117,986 (300) 2,086,498
Deferred (Inflows)				
Non-investment Experience Assumption Changes Investment Experience	\$ \$ \$	(165,663) (192,122) -	\$ \$ \$	(189,344) (153,856) (267)
Deferred Outflows Non-investment Experience Assumption Changes Investment Experience	\$ \$ \$	- - 131	\$ \$ \$	- 79,720 98
Net OPEB Liability Sensitivity				
Baseline Discount Rate Baseline Discount Rate and Trend Rates Increase Discount Rate by One Percentage Point Decrease Discount Rate by One Percentage Point Increase Trend Rate by One Percentage Point	\$ \$ \$	4.080% 1,973,600 1,683,682 2,341,245 2,314,191	\$ \$ \$	3.705% 2,086,498 1,776,680 2,479,902 2,520,036
Decrease Trend Rate by One Percentage Point	\$	1,710,603	\$	1,753,262



Voluction Data		c /20 /2010			(GASB NOS. 74	ND 75 ND OU UNIT	JTFLOWS (\$ IN NUMBER 18								
Valuation Date Measurement Date		6/30/2019 6/30/2019														
									_							
		Noi		estment Experien	ce				Ass	sumption Changes		 	-	tment Experie	nce	
Plan Year Beginning	-	(Gain)/Loss	A	Amortization Factor	۵	Initial mortization		(Gain)/Loss		Amortization Factor	Initial Amortization	 Gain)/Loss		Amortization Factor	Δ	Initial mortization
7/1/2016	Ś	-		6.796418		-	\$	(222,349)		6.796418	\$ (32,716)	\$ -	Ś	5.000000	Ś	-
7/1/2017	\$	(191,777)		7.343741		(26,114)	Ş	(40,755)		7.343741	\$ (5,550)	\$ 164	1 T	5.000000	\$	33
7/1/2018	\$	(57,811)		7.212367		(8,016)	\$	92,553		7.212367	\$ 12,833	\$ (334)	5.000000	\$	(67
Deferred Outflows/(Inflows) Recognized in OPEB Expense for Current Plan Year End		Outflows		(Inflows)		Net		Outflows		(Inflows)	Net	Outflows		(Inflows)		Net
6/30/2019	\$	-	\$	(34,130)	\$	(34,130)	\$	12,833	\$	(38,266)	\$ (25,433)	\$ 33	\$	(67)	\$	(34
Deferred Outflows/(Inflows) Recognized in OPEB Expense for Future Plan Years Ending																
6/30/2020	\$	-	\$	(34,130)	\$	(34,130)	\$	12,833	\$	(38,266)	\$ (25,433)	\$ 33	\$	(67)	\$	(34
6/30/2021	\$	-	\$	(34,130)	\$	(34,130)	\$	12,833	\$	(38,266)	\$ (25,433)	\$ 33	\$	(67)	\$	(34
6/30/2022	\$	-	\$	(34,130)	\$	(34,130)	\$	12,833	\$	(38,266)	\$ (25,433)	\$ 32	\$	(67)	\$	(35
6/30/2023	\$	-	\$	(34,130)	\$	(34,130)	\$	12,833	\$	(31,603)	\$ (18,770)	\$ -	\$	(66)	\$	(66
6/30/2024	\$	-	\$	(34,130)	\$	(34,130)	\$	12,833	\$	(5,550)	\$ 7,283	\$ -	\$	-	\$	-
6/30/2025	\$	-	\$	(16,995)	\$	(16,995)	\$	12,833	\$	(1,905)	\$ 10,928	\$ -	\$	-	\$	-
6/30/2026	\$	-	\$	(1,699)	\$	(1,699)	\$	2,722	\$	-	\$ 2,722	\$ -	\$	-	\$	-
6/30/2027	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$ -	\$ -	\$	-	\$	-
6/30/2028	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$ -	\$ -	\$	-	\$	-
Total	\$	-	\$	(189,344)	\$	(189,344)	\$	79,720	\$	(153,856)	\$ (74,136)	\$ 98	\$	(267)	\$	(169
Change In Deferred Outflows/(Inflows) Recognized in Liability and Assets for Current Plan Year End																
6/30/2019					\$	(23,681)					\$ 117,986				\$	(300



CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLOYEES POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS PROGRAM FULL-FUNDING ACTUARIAL VALUATION (\$ IN 000'S) 7.00% AT JULY 1, 2018 AND 6.75% AT JULY 1, 2019 BARGAINING UNIT NUMBER 19

HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES/PROFESSIONAL

		July 1, 2018		July 1, 2019
Number of Participants Covered Active Participants		5,791		5,744
Retired Participants ^a				,
Total Participants		<u>3,406</u> 9,197		<u>3,571</u> 9,315
Actuarial Present Value of Projected Benefits				
Active Participants	\$	703,866	\$	704,843
Retired Participants		531,815		587,931
Total Participants	\$	1,235,681	\$	1,292,774
Actuarial Accrued Liability				
Active Participants	\$	411,037	\$	412,809
Retired Participants		531,815		587,931
Total Participants	\$	942,852	\$	1,000,740
Actuarial Value of Assets	\$	8,737	\$	29,723
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability	\$	934,115	\$	971,017
Net Employer ADC for FYE	L	lune 30, 2019		June 30, 2020
Normal Cost	\$	31,743	\$	31,247
Administrative Expenses		93		103
Amortization of UAAL		53,671		56,902
Total ADC	\$	85,507	\$	88,252
Estimated Member Contributions		(7,959)		(11,756)
Net Employer ADC	\$	77,548	\$	76,496
Expected Claim Costs for FYE ^b Employer Explicit Costs	٦	lune 30, 2019		June 30, 2020
Medical and Rx Claims	\$	24,956	\$	25,986
Part B Reimbursement	Ŧ	5,301	Ŧ	5,840
Dental Claims		2,074		2,191
Total	\$	32,331	\$	34,017
Employer Implicit Costs		4,730		7,316
Total Employer Costs	\$	37,061	\$	41,333
Retiree Share of Claim Costs		- ,		,
Medical and Rx Claims	\$	2,313	\$	2,545
Dental Claims		654		679
Total	\$	2,967	\$	3,224
Total Claims Costs	\$	40,028	\$	44,557

^eRetired participants with dental only coverage, 220 as of July 1, 2018, and 241 as of July 1, 2019, are excluded from the above counts but are reflected in the actuarial valuation.

^bFor purposes of financial reporting, employer explicit and implicit costs will be updated based on actual experience during each respective reporting period.



	CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLOYEES POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS PROGRAM FULL-FUNDING PROJECTIONS BASED ON JULY 1, 2019, ACTUARIAL VALUATION (\$ IN 000'S) BARGAINING UNIT NUMBER 19 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES/PROFESSIONAL													
Long-terr Discount	r Beginning n Asset Return Rate ı is Fully Funded	7/1/2019 6.750% 6.750% 2046												
		Disbursements/	Administrative	Pre-Fund	Investment		Accrued	Funded						
FYE	Assets (boy)	Benefits	Expenses	Contribution	Income	Assets (eoy)	Liability (eoy)	Ratio	Normal Cost					
2019	\$ 8,731	\$-		\$ 19,360				3.0%						
2020	29,723	-	103	23,513	2,783	55,916	1,058,918	5.3%	30,046					
2021	55,916	-	113	30,160	4,772	90,735	1,115,636	8.1%	29,022					
2022	90,735	-	124	29,146	7,088	126,845	1,170,578	10.8%	28,036					
2023	126,845	-	135	28,171	9,493	164,374	1,223,546	13.4%	27,064					
2024	164,374	-	146	27,210	11,994	203,432	1,274,459	16.0%	26,118					
2025	203,432	-	158	26,276	14,599	244,149	1,323,238	18.5%	25,180					
2026	244,149	-	168	25,348	17,316	286,645	1,370,047	20.9%	24,246					
2027	286,645	-	178	24,424	20,153	331,044	1,414,840	23.4%	23,315					
2028	331,044	-	188	23,503	23,119	377,478	1,457,598	25.9%	22,392					
2029	377,478	-	197	22,589	26,223	426,093	1,498,283	28.4%	21,466					
2030	426,093	-	207	21,673	29,474	477,033	1,536,581	31.0%	20,525					
2031	477,033	-	218	20,742	32,881	530,438	1,572,223	33.7%	19,581					
2032	530,438	-	228	19,809	36,455	586,474	1,605,056	36.5%	18,631					
2033 2034	586,474 645,311	-	238 249	18,869 17,890	40,206 44,144	645,311 707,096	1,634,895 1,661,328	39.5% 42.6%	17,642 16,620					
2034	707,096	-	249	16,879	44,144 48,281	707,098	1,684,059	42.6%	15,580					
2035	707,098	-	239	15,850	52,627	840,204	1,084,039	45.8%	14,526					
2030	840,204		270	13,830	57,196	911,925	1,702,841	49.3%	13,465					
2037	911,925		280	14,805	62,002	987,392	1,728,183	57.1%	12,403					
2038	987,392		290	12,705	67,061	1,066,859	1,734,592	61.5%	11,358					
2035	1,066,859		307	11,665	72,390	1,150,607	1,736,965	66.2%	10,309					
2040	1,150,607	-	315	10,624	78,008	1,238,924	1,735,188	71.4%	9,267					
2041	1,238,924	-	313	9,590	83,935	1,332,127	1,728,995	77.0%	8,258					
2042	1,332,127	-	329	8,587	90,193	1,430,578	1,718,709	83.2%	7,275					
2044	1,430,578	-	333	7,609	96,806	1,534,660	1,704,675	90.0%	6,328					
2045	1,534,660		338	6,667	103,800	1,644,789	1,686,694	97.5%	5,420					
2046	1,644,789	72,965	342	5,763	108,781	1,686,026	1,664,770	101.3%	4,556					
2047	1,686,026	138,276	346	-	109,205	1,656,609	1,639,124	101.1%	3,758					
2048	1,656,609	138,966	347	-	107,196	1,624,492	1,610,185	100.9%	3,035					
2049	1,624,492	139,328	348	-	105,016	1,589,832	1,578,147	100.7%	2,397					
2050	1,589,832	139,134	348	-	102,683	1,553,033	1,543,467	100.6%	1,854					
2051	1,553,033	138,359	346	-	100,225	1,514,553	1,506,668	100.5%	1,401					
2052	1,514,553	137,298	343	-	97,663	1,474,575	1,468,000	100.4%	1,032					
2053	1,474,575	135,671	339	-	95,018	1,433,583	1,428,008	100.4%	740					
2054	1,433,583	133,993	335	-	92,307	1,391,562	1,386,740	100.3%	518					
2055	1,391,562	132,299	331	-	89,527	1,348,459	1,344,202	100.3%	355					
2056	1,348,459	130,096	325	-	86,691	1,304,729	1,300,895	100.3%	238					
2057	1,304,729	127,819	320	-	83,815	1,260,405	1,256,893	100.3%	157					



CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLOYEES POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS PROGRAM DEVELOPMENT OF GASB NOS. 74 AND 75 SINGLE EQUIVALENT DISCOUNT RATE (\$ IN 000'S) **BARGAINING UNIT NUMBER 19** HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES/PROFESSIONAL

20-Year GO Municipal Bond Rate at June 30, 2019	3.130%
Long-Term Investment Return	6.750%
Year Plan is Fully Funded	2046
Single Equivalent Rate	3.757%

Present Value of Benefits

sent Value	of Benefits			\$ 2,308,322			\$ 2,308,3
		Cross-over		Discounted	Single		Discounted
	Net Employer	Investment	Discount	Benefit	Equivalent	Discount	Benefit
FYE	Benefits	Return	Factor	Payment	Return	Factor	Payment
2020	\$ 41,333	3.130%		\$ 40,701	3.757%	0.98173	· · · · ·
2020	45,307	3.130%	0.95482	43,260	3.757%	0.94618	40,
2021	49,672	3.130%	0.92584	45,989	3.757%	0.91192	42,
2022	54,152	3.130%	0.92384	48,615	3.757%	0.87891	43,
2023	58,596	3.130%	0.83774	51,008	3.757%	0.84708	47,
2024	63,011	3.130%	0.87050	53,186	3.757%	0.84708	51
2025	67,135	3.130%	0.84408	54,947	3.757%	0.78685	51
		3.130%	0.81846		3.757%	0.75836	
2027	71,179			56,489			53
2028	75,112	3.130%	0.76953	57,801	3.757%	0.73090	54
2029	78,958	3.130%	0.74618	58,917	3.757%	0.70444	55,
2030	82,969	3.130%	0.72353	60,031	3.757%	0.67893	56,
2031	87,070	3.130%	0.70157	61,086	3.757%	0.65435	56
2032	91,142	3.130%	0.68028	62,002	3.757%	0.63066	57
2033	95,204	3.130%	0.65963	62,800	3.757%	0.60783	57
2034	99,429	3.130%	0.63961	63,596	3.757%	0.58582	58
2035	103,681	3.130%	0.62020	64,303	3.757%	0.56461	58
2036	107,916	3.130%	0.60138	64,898	3.757%	0.54416	58
2037	111,964	3.130%	0.58313	65,289	3.757%	0.52446	58
2038	115,841	3.130%	0.56543	65,500	3.757%	0.50547	58
2039	119,496	3.130%	0.54827	65,515	3.757%	0.48717	58
2040	122,739	3.130%	0.53163	65,251	3.757%	0.46953	57
2041	125,829	3.130%	0.51549	64,864	3.757%	0.45253	56
2042	128,910	3.130%	0.49985	64,436	3.757%	0.43615	56
2043	131,425	3.130%	0.48468	63,699	3.757%	0.42035	55
2044	133,368	3.130%	0.46997	62,679	3.757%	0.40513	54
2045	135,294	3.130%	0.45570	61,654	3.757%	0.39046	52
2046	136,998	3.130%	0.44187	60,536	3.757%	0.37633	51
2047	138,276	6.750%	0.41393	57,237	3.757%	0.36270	50
2048	138,966	6.750%	0.38776	53,885	3.757%	0.34957	48
2049	139,328	6.750%	0.36324	50,609	3.757%	0.33691	46
2050	139,134	6.750%	0.34027	47,343	3.757%	0.32471	45
2051	138,359	6.750%	0.31876	44,103	3.757%	0.31296	43
2052	137,298	6.750%	0.29860	40,997	3.757%	0.30162	41
2053	135,671	6.750%	0.27972	37,950	3.757%	0.29070	39
2054	133,993	6.750%	0.26203	35,111	3.757%	0.28018	37
2055	132,299	6.750%	0.24546	32,475	3.757%	0.27003	35
2056	130,096	6.750%	0.22994	29,914	3.757%	0.26026	33,
2066	108,123	6.750%	0.11966	12,938	3.757%	0.17999	19
2076	64,293	6.750%	0.06227	4,003	3.757%	0.12447	8
2086	17,172	6.750%	0.03240	556	3.757%	0.08608	1
2096	1,088	6.750%	0.01686	18	3.757%	0.05953	
2106	38	6.750%	0.00877	-	3.757%	0.04117	
2116	13	6.750%	0.00457	-	3.757%	0.02847	



CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLO			FITS PRO	GRAM		
		75 DISCLOSURES				
CHANGE IN NET OPEB LIABILITY A		F NUMBER 19	EIVIPLOT	ER (\$ IN 000 S)		
		/ICES/PROFESSION				
Fiscal Year Ending		ne 30, 2017		une 30, 2018		June 30, 2019
Total OPEB Liability						
Service Cost	\$	78,546	Ś	69,599	\$	63,722
Interest on Total OPEB Liability	Ļ	55,156	Ļ	62,178	Ļ	59,961
Changes of Benefit Terms		55,150		02,178		59,901
Difference between Expected and Actual Experience		-		- (128,625)		- (23,634)
Changes of Assumptions		- (141,348)		(128,623) (44,590)		58,150
Benefit Payments		(141,348) (34,938)				(42,720)
	\$		\$	(37,371)	\$	
Net Change in Total OPEB Liability	Ş	(42,584)	Ş	(78,809)	Ş	115,479
Total OPEB Liability - Beginning	\$	1,520,526	\$	1,477,942	\$	1,399,133
Total OPEB Liability - Ending (a)	\$	1,477,942	\$	1,399,133	\$	1,514,612
Plan Fiduciary Net Position						
Employer PayGO Contributions	\$	34,938	\$	37,371	\$	42,720
Employer Pre-Funding Contributions		-	·	4,311		9,680
Active Member Contributions		-		4,311		9,680
Net Investment Income		-		117		1,636
Benefit Payments		(34,938)		(37,371)		(42,720)
Administrative Expense		-		(2)		(4)
Other		-		-		-
Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position	\$	-	\$	8,737	\$	20,992
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning	\$	-	\$	-	\$	8,731
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending (b)	\$	-	\$	8,737	\$	29,723
Net OPEB Liability - Ending (a) - (b)	\$	1,477,942	\$	1,390,396	\$	1,484,889
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage Total OPEB Liability		0.000%		0.624%		1.962%
Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC)	\$	83,250	\$	81,436	\$	75,827
Employer Contribution	\$	34,938	\$	41,682	\$	52,400
Percentage of ADC made by Employer		42%		51%	·	69%
Contribution Excess/(Shortfall)	\$	(48,312)	\$	(39,754)	\$	(23,427)
Expected Return on Assets	\$	-	\$	308	\$	1,277
Investment (Gain)/Loss	\$	-	\$	191	\$	(359)
Average Expected Remaining Service		6.796642	,	7.229237		7.182353
Blended Discount Rate Beginning of Year		3.487%		4.066%		4.159%
Blended Discount Rate End of Year		4.066%		4.159%		3.757%
Long-term Expected Return on Assets		7.280%		7.000%		6.750%



GASB NOS. 74 AND 75 DISCLOSURES OPEB EXPENSES AND NET OPEB LIABILITY SENSITIVITY (\$ IN 000'S) BARGAINING UNIT NUMBER 19 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES/PROFESSIONAL											
Measured for the Plan's Fiscal Year Ending	Ju	ne 30, 2018		une 30, 2019							
Applicable for the Sponsor's Fiscal Year Ending	Ju	ne 30, 2019	J	June 30, 2020							
OPEB Expense											
Service Cost Interest on the Total OPEB Liability Current-Period Benefit Changes Active Member Contributions	\$	69,599 62,178 - (4,311)	\$	63,722 59,961 - (9,680							
Projected Earnings on Plan Investments Operating Expenses Other Changes in Plan Fiduciary Net Position Recognition of Outflow/(Inflow) due to Non-investment Experience		(308) 2 - (17,792)		(1,277) 4 - (21,083)							
Recognition of Outflow/(Inflow) due to Assumption Changes Recognition of Outflow/(Inflow) due to Investment Experience Net OPEB Expense	\$	(26,965) 38 82,441	\$	(18,869) (34) 72,744							
Reconciliation of Net OPEB Liability											
Net OPEB Liability Beginning of Year OPEB Expense Employer Contributions Change in Outflow/(Inflow) due to Non-investment Experience Change in Outflow/(Inflow) due to Assumption Changes Change in Outflow/(Inflow) due to Investment Experience Net OPEB Liability End of Year	\$	1,477,942 82,441 (41,682) (110,833) (17,625) <u>153</u> 1,390,396	\$	1,390,402 72,744 (52,400) (2,551 77,019 (325 1,484,889							
Deferred (Inflows) Non-investment Experience	\$	(110,833)	\$	(113,384							
Assumption Changes Investment Experience	\$ \$	(138,176)	\$ \$	(111,211) (287)							
Deferred Outflows Non-investment Experience Assumption Changes Investment Experience	\$ \$ \$	- - 153	\$ \$ \$	- 50,054 115							
Net OPEB Liability Sensitivity											
Baseline Discount Rate Baseline Discount Rate and Trend Rates Increase Discount Rate by One Percentage Point Decrease Discount Rate by One Percentage Point	\$ \$ \$	4.159% 1,390,396 1,198,395 1,629,616	\$ \$ \$	3.757% 1,484,889 1,276,565 1,744,800							
Increase Trend Rate by One Percentage Point Decrease Trend Rate by One Percentage Point	\$ \$	1,611,240 1,216,561	\$ \$	1,771,690 1,260,452							



CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLOYEES POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS PROGRAM GASB NOS. 74 AND 75 DISCLOSURES DEFERRED INFLOWS AND OUTFLOWS (\$ IN 000'S) BARGAINING UNIT NUMBER 19 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES/PROFESSIONAL																			
Valuation Date Measurement Date		6/30/2019 6/30/2019																	
			n-Inv	estment Experier	nce				Ass	umption Changes					Inve	stment Experier	nce		
				Amortization Initial		Amortization				Initial				Amortization		Initial			
Plan Year Beginning	(Gain)/Loss			Factor	Amortization			(Gain)/Loss		Factor		Amortization		(Gain)/Loss		Factor		Amortization	
7/1/2016 7/1/2017 7/1/2018	\$ \$ \$	- (128,625) (23,634)		6.796642 7.229237 7.182353	\$	- (17,792) (3,291)	\$ \$ \$	(141,348) (44,590) 58,150			\$ \$ \$	(20,797) (6,168) 8,096		\$ - \$ 191 \$ (359	\$)	5.000000	\$ \$ \$	- 38 (72)	
Deferred Outflows/(Inflows) Recognized in OPEB Expense for Current Plan Year End		Outflows		(Inflows)		Net		Outflows		(Inflows)		Net		Outflows		(Inflows)		Net	
6/30/2019	\$	-	\$	(21,083)	\$	(21,083)	\$	8,096	\$	(26,965)	\$	(18,869)		\$ 38	\$	(72)	\$	(34)	
Deferred Outflows/(Inflows) Recognized in OPEB Expense for Future Plan Years Ending																			
6/30/2020	\$	-	\$	(21,083)		(21,083)	\$	8,096	\$	(26,965)	\$	(18,869)		\$ 38	\$	(72)	\$	(34)	
6/30/2021	\$		\$	(21,083)		(21,083)	\$	8,096	\$	(26,965)		(18,869)		\$ 38		、 ,	\$	(34)	
6/30/2022	\$	-	\$	(21,083)		(21,083)	\$	8,096	\$	(26,965)		(18,869)		\$ 39	\$	(72)	\$	(33)	
6/30/2023	\$	-	\$	(21,083)		(21,083)	\$	8,096	\$	(22,734)		(14,638)		\$-	Ş	(71)	Ş	(71)	
6/30/2024 6/30/2025	\$ \$	-	\$ ¢	(21,083) (7,372)	\$ \$	(21,083) (7,372)	\$ \$	8,096 8,096	\$ \$	(6,168) (1,414)		1,928 6,682		\$- \$-	Ş	-	ې د	-	
6/30/2026	ې \$	-	ې د	(7,372) (597)	ې S	(7,572)	ې \$	8,090 1,478	ې s	(1,414)	ې د	1,478		ş - \$ -	ç	-	ې د	-	
6/30/2027	Ś	-	Ś	-	Ś	-	Ś	-	Ś	-	Ś	-		\$-	Ś	-	Ś	-	
6/30/2028	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-		\$ -	\$	-	\$	-	
Total	\$	-	\$	(113,384)	\$	(113,384)	\$	50,054	\$	(111,211)	\$	(61,157)		\$ 115	\$	(287)	\$	(172)	
Change In Deferred Outflows/(Inflows) Recognized in Liability and Assets for Current Plan Year End																			
6/30/2019					\$	(2,551)					\$	77,019					\$	(325)	



CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLOYEES POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS PROGRAM FULL-FUNDING ACTUARIAL VALUATION (\$ IN 000'S) 7.00% AT JULY 1, 2018 AND 6.75% AT JULY 1, 2019 CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY

		July 1, 2018		July 1, 2019
Number of Participants Covered Active Participants		47,995		49,249
Retired Participants ^a				
Total Participants		<u> </u>		<u>31,483</u> 80,732
		70,752		00,752
Actuarial Present Value of Projected Benefits				
Active Participants	\$	5,772,262	\$	5,844,100
Retired Participants		4,906,913		5,414,274
Total Participants	\$	10,679,175	\$	11,258,374
Actuarial Accrued Liability				
Active Participants	\$	3,380,581	\$	3,444,530
Retired Participants		4,906,913		5,414,274
Total Participants	\$	8,287,494	\$	8,858,804
Actuarial Value of Assets	\$	-	\$	-
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability	\$	8,287,494	\$	8,858,804
Net Employer ADC for FYE	J	une 30, 20 19		June 30, 2020
Normal Cost	\$	266,569	\$	266,289
Administrative Expenses		906		1,011
Amortization of UAAL		476,173		519,126
Total ADC	\$	743,648	\$	786,426
Estimated Member Contributions		-		-
Net Employer ADC	\$	743,648	\$	786,426
Expected Claim Costs for FYE ^b Employer Explicit Costs	J	une 30, 2019		June 30, 2020
Medical and Rx Claims	\$	236,415	Ś	245,394
Part B Reimbursement	Ŧ	58,584	Ŧ	63,358
Dental Claims		16,937		17,822
Total	\$	311,936	\$	326,574
Employer Implicit Costs	·	50,324	•	77,815
Total Employer Costs	\$	362,260	\$	404,389
Retiree Share of Claim Costs		, , ,	•	- ,
Medical and Rx Claims	\$	11,208	\$	8,237
Dental Claims			_	-
Total	\$	11,208	\$	8,237
Total Claims Costs	\$		\$	412,626

^aRetired participants with dental only coverage, 1,607 as of July 1, 2018, and 1,654 as of July 1, 2019, are excluded from the above counts but are reflected in the actuarial valuation.

^bFor purposes of financial reporting, employer explicit and implicit costs will be updated based on actual experience during each respective reporting period.



	CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLOYEES POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS PROGRAM FULL-FUNDING PROJECTIONS BASED ON JULY 1, 2019, ACTUARIAL VALUATION (\$ IN 000'S) CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY													
Long-terr Discount	n Beginning n Asset Return Rate i is Fully Funded		7/1/2019 6.750% 6.750% N/A											
			Disbursements/	Administrative		Pre-Fund		Investment				Accrued	Funded	
FYE	Assets (boy)		Benefits	Expenses		Contribution		Income		Assets (eoy)		Liability (eoy)	Ratio	Normal Cost
2019	\$	-	\$ -	\$-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	8,858,804	0.0%	
2020		-	-			-		-		-		9,323,014	0.0%	254,707
2021		-	-			-		-		-		9,770,253	0.0%	244,966
2022		-	-	-		-		-		-		10,197,216	0.0%	235,333
2023		-	-	-		-		-		-		10,602,785	0.0%	225,737
2024		-	-	-		-		-		-		10,986,041	0.0%	216,203
2025		-	-	-		-		-		-		11,346,743	0.0%	206,772
2026 2027		-	-	-		-		-		-		11,685,932 12,005,969	0.0% 0.0%	197,612 188,584
2027		-	-	-		-		-		-		12,003,989	0.0%	
2028		-	-			-		-				12,589,770	0.0%	179,661 170,927
2029		-	-					-				12,850,388	0.0%	162,432
2030												13,088,467	0.0%	153,967
2031												13,302,132	0.0%	145,485
2032								_				13,489,705	0.0%	137,093
2034		-	-					-				13,650,705	0.0%	128,793
2034		_	-					-				13,784,537	0.0%	120,535
2036		-	-	-		-		-		-		13,890,452	0.0%	112,331
2037		-	-	-		-		-		-		13,968,453	0.0%	104,258
2038		-	-	-		-		-		-		14,018,640	0.0%	96,371
2039		-	-	-		-		-		-		14,040,435	0.0%	88,694
2040		-	-	-		-		-		-		14,033,571	0.0%	81,196
2041		-	-	-		-		-		-		13,997,939	0.0%	73,859
2042		-	-	-		-		-		-		13,933,383	0.0%	66,682
2043		-	-			-		-		-		13,839,467	0.0%	59,656
2044		-	-			-		-		-		13,716,198	0.0%	52,802
2045		-	-			-		-		-		13,564,017	0.0%	46,187
2046		-	-			-		-		-		13,383,334	0.0%	39,876
2047		-	-	-		-		-		-		13,175,003	0.0%	33,918
2048		-	-	-		-		-		-		12,939,621	0.0%	28,386
2049		-	-	-		-		-		-		12,678,750	0.0%	23,357
2050		-	-	-		-		-		-		12,393,919	0.0%	18,873
2051		-	-			-		-		-		12,087,372	0.0%	14,951
2052		-	-			-		-		-		11,761,851	0.0%	11,589
2053		-	-	-		-		-		-		11,419,014	0.0%	8,773
2054		-	-	-		-		-		-		11,061,700	0.0%	6,479
2055		-	-	-		-		-		-		10,693,448	0.0%	4,668
2056		-	-	-		-		-		-		10,316,634	0.0%	3,296
2057		-	-	-		-		-		-		9,933,217	0.0%	2,293



CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLOYEES POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS PROGRAM DEVELOPMENT OF GASB NOS. 74 AND 75 SINGLE EQUIVALENT DISCOUNT RATE (\$ IN 000'S) CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY

20-Year GO Municipal Bond Rate at June 30, 2019	3.130%
Long-Term Investment Return	6.750%
Year Plan is Fully Funded	N/A
Single Equivalent Rate	3.130%

Present Value of Benefits

sent Value	e of Benefits			\$ 22,574,036			\$ 22,574,0
		Cross-over		Discounted	Single		Discounted
	Net Employer	Investment	Discount	Benefit	Equivalent	Discount	Benefit
FYE	Benefits	Return	Factor	Payment	Return	Factor	Payment
2020	\$ 404,389	3.130%	0.98471		3.130%	0.98471	
2021	439,162	3.130%	0.95482	419,321	3.130%	0.95482	419,3
2022	477,939	3.130%	0.92584	442,497	3.130%	0.92584	442,4
2023	516,577	3.130%	0.89774	463,754	3.130%	0.89774	463,7
2024	554,745	3.130%	0.87050	482,904	3.130%	0.87050	482,9
2025	591,771	3.130%	0.84408	499,501	3.130%	0.84408	499,
2026	626,402	3.130%	0.81846	512,685	3.130%	0.81846	512,
2027	657,631	3.130%	0.79362	521,909	3.130%	0.79362	521,
2028	686,903	3.130%	0.76953	528,595	3.130%	0.76953	528,
2029	716,488	3.130%	0.74618	534,627	3.130%	0.74618	534,
2030	746,624	3.130%	0.72353	540,206	3.130%	0.72353	540,
2031	776,690	3.130%	0.70157	544,904	3.130%	0.70157	544,
2032	807,129	3.130%	0.68028	549,073	3.130%	0.68028	549,
2033	837,581	3.130%	0.65963	552,496	3.130%	0.65963	552,
2034	866,890	3.130%	0.63961	554,474	3.130%	0.63961	554,
2035	895,122	3.130%	0.62020	555,155	3.130%	0.62020	555,
2036	922,372	3.130%	0.60138	554,694	3.130%	0.60138	554,
2037	947,828	3.130%	0.58313	552,703	3.130%	0.58313	552,
2038	971,514	3.130%	0.56543	549,321	3.130%	0.56543	549,
2039	994,131	3.130%	0.54827	545,049	3.130%	0.54827	545,
2040	1,015,367	3.130%	0.53163	539,797	3.130%	0.53163	539
2041	1,035,027	3.130%	0.51549	533,548	3.130%	0.51549	533,
2042	1,053,126	3.130%	0.49985	526,402	3.130%	0.49985	526,
2043	1,069,915	3.130%	0.48468	518,563	3.130%	0.48468	518,
2044	1,084,946	3.130%	0.46997	509,888	3.130%	0.46997	509,
2045	1,097,801	3.130%	0.45570	500,271	3.130%	0.45570	500,
2046	1,108,621	3.130%	0.44187	489,869	3.130%	0.44187	489,
2047	1,117,069	3.130%	0.42846	478,621	3.130%	0.42846	478,
2048	1,123,493	3.130%	0.41546	466,764	3.130%	0.41546	466,
2049	1,127,081	3.130%	0.40285	454,043	3.130%	0.40285	454,
2050	1,128,041	3.130%	0.39062	440,638	3.130%	0.39062	440,
2051	1,125,828	3.130%	0.37877	426,426	3.130%	0.37877	426,
2052	1,120,123	3.130%	0.36727	411,389	3.130%	0.36727	411,
2053	1,112,149	3.130%	0.35612	396,063	3.130%	0.35612	396,
2054	1,100,860	3.130%	0.34532	380,145	3.130%	0.34532	380,
2055	1,085,742	3.130%	0.33484	363,545	3.130%	0.33484	363,
2056	1,068,105	3.130%	0.32467	346,785	3.130%	0.32467	346,
2066	840,958	3.130%	0.23856	200,619	3.130%	0.23856	200,
2076	494,684	3.130%	0.17529	86,711	3.130%	0.17529	86,
2086	147,091	3.130%	0.12879	18,944	3.130%	0.12879	18,
2096	12,165	3.130%	0.09463	1,151	3.130%	0.09463	1,
2106	140	3.130%	0.06953	10	3.130%	0.06953	,
2116	1	3.130%	0.05109		3.130%	0.05109	l



CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLOYEES POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS PROGRAM GASB NOS. 74 AND 75 DISCLOSURES CHANGE IN NET OPEB LIABILITY AND CONTRIBUTIONS MADE BY EMPLOYER (\$ IN 000'S)

CALIFO	RNIA S	TATE UNIVERSITY				
Fiscal Year Ending		June 30, 2017		June 30, 2018		June 30, 2019
Total OPEB Liability						
Service Cost	\$	795,696	\$	680,934	\$	603,049
Interest on Total OPEB Liability		436,431		513,512		490,260
Changes of Benefit Terms		-		-		-
Difference between Expected and Actual Experience		-		(1,111,239)		(94,145)
Changes of Assumptions		(1,663,194)		(519,714)		751,688
Benefit Payments		(333,828)		(353,022)		(381,303)
Net Change in Total OPEB Liability	\$	(764,895)	\$	(789,529)	\$	1,369,549
Total OPEB Liability - Beginning	\$	14,683,420	\$	13,918,525	\$	13,128,996
Total OPEB Liability - Ending (a)	\$	13,918,525	\$	13,128,996	\$	14,498,545
Plan Fiduciary Net Position						
Employer PayGO Contributions	\$	333,828	\$	353,022	\$	381,303
Employer Pre-Funding Contributions		-		-		-
Active Member Contributions		-		-		-
Net Investment Income		-		-		-
Benefit Payments		(333,828)		(353,022)		(381,303)
Administrative Expense		-		-		-
Other		-		-		-
Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending (b)	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
Net OPEB Liability - Ending (a) - (b)	\$	13,918,525	\$	13,128,996	\$	14,498,545
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage Total OPEB Liability		0.000%		0.000%		0.000%
Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC)	\$	732,573	\$	754,550	\$	743,648
Employer Contribution	\$	333,828	\$	353,022	\$	381,303
Percentage of ADC made by Employer	Ŷ	46%	Ŷ	47%	Ŷ	51%
Contribution Excess/(Shortfall)	\$	(398,745)	\$	(401,528)	\$	(362,345)
Expected Return on Assets	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
Investment (Gain)/Loss	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
Average Expected Remaining Service		6.864209		7.170774		7.253473
Blended Discount Rate Beginning of Year		2.850%		3.560%		3.620%
Blended Discount Rate End of Year		3.560%		3.620%		3.130%
Long-term Expected Return on Assets		7.280%		7.000%		6.750%



GASB NOS. 74 AND 75 DISCLOSURES
OPEB EXPENSES AND NET OPEB LIABILITY SENSITIVITY (\$ IN 000'S)
CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY

Measured for the Plan's Fiscal Year Ending Applicable for the Sponsor's Fiscal Year Ending		ne 30, 2018 ne 30, 2019	une 30, 2019 une 30, 2020
OPEB Expense			
Service Cost	\$	680,934	\$ 603,049
Interest on the Total OPEB Liability		513,512	490,260
Current-Period Benefit Changes		-	-
Active Member Contributions		-	-
Projected Earnings on Plan Investments		-	-
Operating Expenses		-	-
Other Changes in Plan Fiduciary Net Position		-	-
Recognition of Outflow/(Inflow) due to Non-investment Experience		(154,968)	(167,947)
Recognition of Outflow/(Inflow) due to Assumption Changes		(314,776)	(211,145)
Recognition of Outflow/(Inflow) due to Investment Experience	<u> </u>		 -
Net OPEB Expense	\$	724,702	\$ 714,217
Reconciliation of Net OPEB Liability			
Net OPEB Liability Beginning of Year	\$	13,918,525	\$ 13,128,996
OPEB Expense		724,702	714,217
Employer Contributions		(353,022)	(381,303)
Change in Outflow/(Inflow) due to Non-investment Experience		(956,271)	73,802
Change in Outflow/(Inflow) due to Assumption Changes		(204,938)	962,833
Change in Outflow/(Inflow) due to Investment Experience		-	 -
Net OPEB Liability End of Year	\$	13,128,996	\$ 14,498,545
Deferred (Inflows)			
Non-investment Experience	\$	(956,271)	\$ (882,469)
Assumption Changes	\$	(1,625,833)	\$ (1,311,057)
Investment Experience	\$ \$	-	\$ -
Deferred Outflows			
Non-investment Experience	¢	_	\$ _
Assumption Changes	ې خ	-	\$ 648,057
Investment Experience	\$ \$ \$	-	\$
Net OPEB Liability Sensitivity			
Baseline Discount Rate		3.620%	3.130%
Baseline Discount Rate and Trend Rates	\$	13,128,996	\$ 14,498,545
Increase Discount Rate by One Percentage Point	\$	11,329,989	\$ 12,495,949
Decrease Discount Rate by One Percentage Point	\$	15,372,355	\$ 17,001,133
Increase Trend Rate by One Percentage Point	\$	15,171,779	\$ 17,249,934
Decrease Trend Rate by One Percentage Point	\$	11,525,389	\$ 12,349,046



					(GASB NOS. 74 A	AND 75	UTFLOWS (\$ IN											
Valuation Date Measurement Date		6/30/2019 6/30/2019																	
		Non-Investment Experience Assumption Changes													I	nves	tment Experie	nce	
				Amortization		Initial		Amortization		Initial				Amortization			Initial		
Plan Year Beginning		(Gain)/Loss		Factor		mortization		(Gain)/Loss		Factor		Amortization			n)/Loss		Factor		nortization
7/1/2016 7/1/2017 7/1/2018	\$ \$ \$	- (1,111,239) (94,145)		6.864209 7.170774 7.253473	\$	- (154,968) (12,979)	\$ \$ \$	(1,663,194) (519,714) 751,688		6.864209 7.170774 7.253473	\$	(242,299) (72,477) 103,631		\$ \$ \$	-	\$	5.000000 5.000000 5.000000	\$ \$ \$	-
	Ş	(94,145)		7.255475	Ş	(12,979)	Ş	751,000		7.255475	Ş	105,051		Ş	-		5.000000	Ş	-
Deferred Outflows/(Inflows) Recognized in OPEB Expense for Current Plan Year End		Outflows		(Inflows)		Net		Outflows		(Inflows)		Net		Ou	tflows		(Inflows)		Net
6/30/2019	\$	-	\$	(167,947)	\$	(167,947)	\$	103,631	\$	(314,776)	\$	(211,145)		\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
Deferred Outflows/(Inflows) Recognized in OPEB Expense for Future Plan Years Ending																			
6/30/2020	\$	-	\$	(167,947)	\$	(167,947)	\$	103,631	\$	(314,776)		(211,145)		\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
6/30/2021	\$	-	\$	(167,947)		(167,947)	\$	103,631	\$	(314,776)		(211,145)		\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
6/30/2022	\$	-	\$	(167,947)		(167,947)	\$	103,631	\$	(314,776)		(211,145)		\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
6/30/2023	\$	-	\$	(167,947)		(167,947)	\$	103,631	\$	(281,877)		(178,246)		\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
6/30/2024	\$	-	\$	(167,947)		(167,947)	\$	103,631	\$	(72,477)		31,154		\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
6/30/2025 6/30/2026	\$ \$	-	\$ \$	(39,442) (3,292)		(39,442) (3,292)	\$ \$	103,631 26,271	\$ \$	(12,375)		91,256 26,271		\$ \$	-	\$ \$	-	\$	-
6/30/2027	ې \$	-	ş Ş	(3,292)	Ş ¢	(3,292)	ې \$		ş S	-	\$ \$	20,271		ې \$	-	ې غ	-	\$ \$	-
6/30/2028	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-		\$ \$	-	\$	-	ې \$	-
Total	\$	-	\$	(882,469)	\$	(882,469)	\$	648,057	\$	(1,311,057)	\$	(663,000)		\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
Change In Deferred Outflows/(Inflows) Recognized in Liability and Assets for Current Plan Year End																			
6/30/2019					\$	73,802					\$	962,833				1		\$	-



CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLOYEES POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS PROGRAM FULL-FUNDING ACTUARIAL VALUATION (\$ IN 000'S) 7.00% AT JULY 1, 2018 AND 6.75% AT JULY 1, 2019 JUDICIAL BRANCH

		July 1, 2018		July 1, 2019
Number of Participants Covered Active Participants		1,609		1,617
Retired Participants ^a		,		
Total Participants		<u>937</u> 2,546		<u>1,019</u> 2,636
		2,540		2,030
Actuarial Present Value of Projected Benefits				
Active Participants	\$	211,714	\$	209,147
Retired Participants		167,801		196,969
Total Participants	\$	379,515	\$	406,116
Actuarial Accrued Liability				
Active Participants	\$	141,167	\$	136,439
Retired Participants		167,801		196,969
Total Participants	\$	308,968	\$	333,408
Actuarial Value of Assets	\$	11,178	\$	20,165
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability	\$	297,790	\$	313,243
Net Employer ADC for FYE		June 30, 2019		June 30, 2020
Normal Cost	\$	8,042	\$	8,101
Administrative Expenses		29		33
Amortization of UAAL		17,110		18,356
Total ADC	\$	25,181	\$	26,490
Estimated Member Contributions		(4,035)		(4,067)
Net Employer ADC	\$	21,146	\$	22,423
Expected Claim Costs for FYE ^b Employer Explicit Costs		June 30, 2019		June 30, 2020
Medical and Rx Claims	\$	7,715	\$	8,517
Part B Reimbursement	Ŷ	1,646	Ŷ	1,903
Dental Claims		607		670
Total	\$	9,968	\$	11,090
Employer Implicit Costs	÷	1,446	7	2,291
Total Employer Costs	\$	11,414	Ś	13,381
Retiree Share of Claim Costs	Ŷ	,	Ŷ	10,001
Medical and Rx Claims	\$	656	\$	650
Dental Claims	•	193	·	208
Total	\$	849	\$	858
Total Claims Costs	\$	12,263	\$	14,239

^eRetired participants with dental only coverage, 42 as of July 1, 2018, and 46 as of July 1, 2019, are excluded from the above counts but are reflected in the actuarial valuation.

^bFor purposes of financial reporting, employer explicit and implicit costs will be updated based on actual experience during each respective reporting period.



	CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLOYEES POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS PROGRAM FULL-FUNDING PROJECTIONS BASED ON JULY 1, 2019, ACTUARIAL VALUATION (\$ IN 000'S) JUDICIAL BRANCH												
Long-tern Discount	r Beginning n Asset Return Rate is Fully Funded	7/1/2019 6.750% 6.750% 2045											
		Disbursements/	Administrative	Pre-Fund	Investment		Accrued	Funded					
FYE	Assets (boy)	Benefits	Expenses	Contribution	Income	Assets (eoy)	Liability (eoy)	Ratio	Normal Cost				
2019	\$ 11,170	\$ -	\$ 3					6.0%					
2020	20,165	-	33	8,134	1,630	29,896	350,727	8.5%	7,785				
2021	29,896	-	37	7,822	2,276	39,957	367,541	10.9%	7,489				
2022	39,957	-	40	7,529	2,946	50,392	383,625	13.1%	7,196				
2023	50,392	-	44	7,240	3,640	61,228	398,899	15.3%	6,909				
2024	61,228	-	48	6,957	4,362	72,499	413,287	17.5%	6,623				
2025	72,499	-	52	6,675	5,114	84,236	426,888	19.7%	6,342				
2026	84,236	-	55	6,398	5,897	96,476	439,572	21.9%	6,062				
2027 2028	96,476	-	59	6,121	6,713	109,251	451,423	24.2%	5,774				
2028	109,251 122,591	-	62 65	5,836	7,566 8,457	122,591 136,538	462,509 472,694	26.5% 28.9%	5,490 5,212				
2029	136,538	-	69	5,555 5,280	9,389	150,558	472,694 481,770	28.9%	4,934				
2030	150,558	-	72	5,280	9,389	166,439	481,770	31.4%	4,934				
2031	166,439		72	4,735	10,300	182,487	485,070	36.8%	4,383				
2032	182,487		70	4,755	12,463	199,333	501,857	30.8%	4,106				
2033	199,333		82	4,188	13,591	217,030	506,131	42.9%	3,839				
2035	217,030		86	3,924	14,777	235,645	508,994	46.3%	3,579				
2036	235,645	-	89	3,668	16,025	255,249	510,577	50.0%	3,323				
2037	255,249	-	91	3,414	17,340	275,912	510,956	54.0%	3,066				
2038	275,912	-	94	3,160	18,726	297,704	510,014	58.4%	2,812				
2039	297,704	-	96	2,908	20,188	320,704	507,723	63.2%	2,566				
2040	320,704	-	98	2,664	21,733	345,003	504,136	68.4%	2,330				
2041	345,003	-	100	2,430	23,365	370,698	499,320	74.2%	2,098				
2042	370,698	-	101	2,199	25,092	397,888	493,346	80.7%	1,870				
2043	397,888	-	103	1,973	26,919	426,677	486,184	87.8%	1,652				
2044	426,677	-	104	1,756	28,855	457,184	477,888	95.7%	1,445				
2045	457,184	13,953	104	1,550	30,444	475,121	468,570	101.4%	1,252				
2046	475,121	41,812	105	-	30,679	463,883	458,329	101.2%	1,075				
2047	463,883	41,703	104	-	29,924	452,000	447,321	101.0%	912				
2048	452,000	41,463	104	-	29,130	439,563	435,643	100.9%	761				
2049	439,563	41,318	103	-	28,295	426,437	423,167	100.8%	623				
2050	426,437	41,036	103	-	27,418	412,716	409,993	100.7%	500				
2051	412,716	40,538	101	-	26,509	398,586	396,314	100.6%	393				
2052	398,586	39,986	100	-	25,574	384,074	382,167	100.5%	303				
2053	384,074	39,327	98	-	24,616	369,265	367,651	100.4%	229				
2054	369,265	38,529	96	-	23,643	354,283	352,901	100.4%	169				
2055	354,283	37,663	94	-	22,660	339,186	337,987	100.4%	122				
2056	339,186	36,750	92	-	21,672	324,016	322,960	100.3%	86				
2057	324,016	35,784	89	-	20,680	308,823	307,878	100.3%	60				



CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLOYEES POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS PROGRAM DEVELOPMENT OF GASB NOS. 74 AND 75 SINGLE EQUIVALENT DISCOUNT RATE (\$ IN 000'S) JUDICIAL BRANCH

20-Year GO Municipal Bond Rate at June 30, 2019	3.130%
Long-Term Investment Return	6.750%
Year Plan is Fully Funded	2045
Single Equivalent Rate	3.724%

Present Value of Benefits

resent Value	of Benefits			\$	705,454			\$	705,454
		Cross-over			Discounted	Single			Discounted
	Net Employer	Investment	Discount		Benefit	Equivalent	Discount		Benefit
FYE	Benefits	Return	Factor		Payment	Return	Factor		Payment
2020	\$ 13,381	3.1309		\$	13,177	3.724%	0.98189	\$	13,140
2021	14,676	3.1309		1 ·	14,013	3.724%	0.94663	Ť	13,893
2022	16,174	3.1309			14,975	3.724%	0.91265		14,761
2022	17,708	3.1309			15,897	3.724%	0.87988		15,581
2023	19,265	3.130%			16,770	3.724%	0.84830		16,342
2024	20,671	3.130%			17,448	3.724%	0.81784		16,906
2025	22,158	3.130%			18,135	3.724%	0.78848		17,471
2020	23,503	3.130/			18,155	3.724%	0.76017		17,471
2027	23,303	3.130/			19,022	3.724%	0.73288		17,807
2028		3.1309			,	3.724%	0.73288		-
2029	26,023 27,474	3.1309			19,418	3.724%			18,387
2030					19,878		0.68120		18,715
	28,918	3.130%			20,288	3.724%	0.65675		18,992
2032	30,328	3.130%			20,631	3.724%	0.63317		19,203
2033	31,618	3.130%			20,856	3.724%	0.61044		19,301
2034	32,884	3.130%			21,033	3.724%	0.58852		19,353
2035	34,252	3.130%			21,243	3.724%	0.56739		19,434
2036	35,410	3.130%			21,295	3.724%	0.54702		19,370
2037	36,414	3.130%			21,234	3.724%	0.52739		19,204
2038	37,452	3.130%			21,177	3.724%	0.50845		19,043
2039	38,434	3.130%			21,072	3.724%	0.49020		18,840
2040	39,285	3.130%			20,885	3.724%	0.47260		18,566
2041	39,996	3.130%			20,618	3.724%	0.45563		18,224
2042	40,563	3.130%			20,275	3.724%	0.43927		17,818
2043	41,088	3.130%			19,914	3.724%	0.42350		17,401
2044	41,493	3.130%			19,500	3.724%	0.40830		16,942
2045	41,726	3.130%			19,015	3.724%	0.39364		16,425
2046	41,812	6.750%			17,849	3.724%	0.37951		15,868
2047	41,703	6.750%			16,677	3.724%	0.36588		15,258
2048	41,463	6.750%			15,533	3.724%	0.35275		14,626
2049	41,318	6.750%			14,499	3.724%	0.34009		14,052
2050	41,036	6.750%	6 0.32873	6	13,490	3.724%	0.32788		13,455
2051	40,538	6.750%	6 0.30795		12,483	3.724%	0.31610		12,814
2052	39,986	6.750%	6 0.28847	'	11,535	3.724%	0.30476		12,186
2053	39,327	6.750%	6 0.27023		10,627	3.724%	0.29382		11,555
2054	38,529	6.750%	6 0.25315	5	9,753	3.724%	0.28327		10,914
2055	37,663	6.750%	6 0.23714	ŀ	8,931	3.724%	0.27310		10,286
2056	36,750	6.750%	6 0.22214		8,164	3.724%	0.26329		9,676
2066	25,880	6.750%	6 0.11560		2,992	3.724%	0.18266		4,727
2076	13,115	6.750%	6 0.06016		789	3.724%	0.12673		1,662
2086	3,337	6.750%	6 0.03130		104	3.724%	0.08792		293
2096	224	6.750%	6 0.01629		4	3.724%	0.06100		14
2106	1	6.750%	6 0.00848		-	3.724%	0.04232		-
2116	-	6.750%	6 0.00441		-	3.724%	0.02936		-



CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLOYEES POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS PROGRAM GASB NOS. 74 AND 75 DISCLOSURES CHANGE IN NET OPEB LIABILITY AND CONTRIBUTIONS MADE BY EMPLOYER (\$ IN 000'S)

JUDICIAL BRANCH

	IUDICIAL	. BRANCH				
Fiscal Year Ending		June 30, 2017		June 30, 2018		June 30, 2019
Total OPEB Liability						
Service Cost	\$	21,728	\$	19,162	\$	16,635
Interest on Total OPEB Liability		18,121		20,340		19,448
Changes of Benefit Terms		-		-		-
Difference between Expected and Actual Experience		-		(36,336)		623
Changes of Assumptions		(47,721)		(21,827)		18,913
Benefit Payments		(10,339)		(9,362)		(11,534
Net Change in Total OPEB Liability	\$	(18,211)	\$	(28,023)	\$	44,085
Total OPEB Liability - Beginning	\$	507,578	\$	489,367	\$	461,344
Total OPEB Liability - Ending (a)	\$	489,367	\$	461,344	\$	505,429
Plan Fiduciary Net Position						
Employer PayGO Contributions	\$	10,339	\$	9,362	\$	11,534
Employer Pre-Funding Contributions		1,612		3,689		3,934
Active Member Contributions		1,612		3,689		3,934
Net Investment Income		160		421		1,130
Benefit Payments		(10,339)		(9,362)		(11,534)
Administrative Expense		(1)		(4)		(3
Other		-		-		-
Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position	\$	3,383	\$	7,795	\$	8,995
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning	\$	-	\$	3,383	\$	11,170
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending (b)	\$	3,383	\$	11,178	\$	20,165
Net OPEB Liability - Ending (a) - (b)	\$	485,984	\$	450,166	\$	485,264
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage Total OPEB Liability		0.691%		2.423%		3.990%
Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC)	\$	23,621	\$	22,301	\$	21,247
Employer Contribution	\$	11,951	\$	13,051	\$	15,468
Percentage of ADC made by Employer		51%	'	59%	'	73%
Contribution Excess/(Shortfall)	\$	(11,670)	\$	(9,250)	\$	(5,779
Expected Return on Assets	\$	115	\$	510	\$	1,053
Investment (Gain)/Loss	\$	(45)	\$	89	\$	(77
Average Expected Remaining Service		6.606982		6.745952		6.724931
Blended Discount Rate Beginning of Year		3.457%		4.043%		4.118%
Blended Discount Rate End of Year		4.043%		4.118%		3.724%
Long-term Expected Return on Assets		7.280%		7.000%		6.750%



GASB NOS. 74 AND 75 DISCLOSURES OPEB EXPENSES AND NET OPEB LIABILITY SENSITIVITY (\$ IN 000'S) JUDICIAL BRANCH

Measured for the Plan's Fiscal Year Ending		ie 30, 2018	June 30, 2019		
Applicable for the Sponsor's Fiscal Year Ending	Jun	ie 30, 2019	Ju	ne 30, 2020	
OPEB Expense					
Service Cost	\$	19,162	\$	16,635	
Interest on the Total OPEB Liability		20,340		19,448	
Current-Period Benefit Changes		-		-	
Active Member Contributions		(3,689)		(3,934	
Projected Earnings on Plan Investments		(510)		(1,053	
Operating Expenses		4		3	
Other Changes in Plan Fiduciary Net Position		-		-	
Recognition of Outflow/(Inflow) due to Non-investment Experience		(5,386)		(5,293	
Recognition of Outflow/(Inflow) due to Assumption Changes		(10,459)		(7,647	
Recognition of Outflow/(Inflow) due to Investment Experience		9		(6	
Net OPEB Expense	\$	19,471	\$	18,153	
Reconciliation of Net OPEB Liability					
Net OPEB Liability Beginning of Year	\$	485,984	\$	450,174	
OPEB Expense		19,471		18,153	
Employer Contributions		(13,051)		(15,468	
Change in Outflow/(Inflow) due to Non-investment Experience		(30,950)		5,916	
Change in Outflow/(Inflow) due to Assumption Changes		(11,368)		26,560	
Change in Outflow/(Inflow) due to Investment Experience		80		(71	
Net OPEB Liability End of Year	\$	450,166	\$	485,264	
Deferred (Inflows)					
Non-investment Experience	\$	(30,950)	\$	(25 <i>,</i> 564	
Assumption Changes	\$ \$ \$	(51,866)	\$	(41,407	
Investment Experience	\$	(27)	\$	(80	
Deferred Outflows					
Non-investment Experience	\$	-	\$	530	
Assumption Changes	\$ \$ \$	-	\$	16,101	
Investment Experience	\$	71	\$	53	
Net OPEB Liability Sensitivity					
Baseline Discount Rate		4.118%		3.724%	
Baseline Discount Rate and Trend Rates	\$	450,166	\$	485,264	
Increase Discount Rate by One Percentage Point	\$ \$	386,866	\$	416,305	
Decrease Discount Rate by One Percentage Point	\$	528,735	\$	570,891	
Increase Trend Rate by One Percentage Point	\$	520,246	\$	577,212	
Decrease Trend Rate by One Percentage Point	\$	394,343	\$	412,349	



	CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLOYEES POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS PROGRAM GASB NOS. 74 AND 75 DISCLOSURES DEFERRED INFLOWS AND OUTFLOWS (\$ IN 000'S) JUDICIAL BRANCH																
Valuation Date Measurement Date		6/30/2019 6/30/2019															
	Non-Investment Experience Assumption Changes														estment Experie	nce	
			Amortization		Initial			Γ	Amortization		Initial				Amortization		Initial
Plan Year Beginning		(Gain)/Loss	Factor	1	Amortization		(Gain)/Loss		Factor		Amortization		(Gain)/Loss		Factor	Α	mortization
7/1/2016 7/1/2017 7/1/2018	\$ \$ \$	- (36,336) 623	6.606982 6.745952 6.724931	\$	- (5,386) 93		(21,827)		6.745952	\$	(7,223) (3,236) 2,812		\$ 8	5) \$ 9 7)	5.000000 5.000000 5.000000	\$ \$ \$	(9) 18 (15)
Deferred Outflows/(Inflows) Recognized in OPEB Expense for Current Plan Year End		Outflows	(Inflows)		Net		Outflows		(Inflows)		Net		Outflows		(Inflows)		Net
6/30/2019 Deferred Outflows/(Inflows) Recognized in OPEB	\$	93	\$ (5,386)	\$	(5,293)	¢	5 2,812	\$	(10,459)	\$	(7,647)		\$ 1	8 \$	5 (24)	\$	(6)
Expense for Future Plan Years Ending	_		ф (F 200)		(5.000)		2.012		(10, 150)						· (2.4)		(6)
6/30/2020 6/30/2021	\$ \$		\$ (5,386) \$ (5,386)		(5,293) (5,293)	ç			(10,459) (10,459)		(7,647) (7,647)			8 9	· · ·		(6) (6)
6/30/2022	ې \$		\$ (5,386)		(5,293)	ç			(10,459)		(7,647)			7			(0)
6/30/2023	\$		\$ (5,386)		(5,293)	Ş			(7,619)		(4,807)		\$ -		. ,	\$	(17)
6/30/2024	\$		\$ (4,020)		(3,927)	ļ			(2,411)		401		, \$-	4	. ,	\$	-
6/30/2025	\$	65	\$ -	\$	65	Ş		\$	-	\$	2,041		\$-	9	5 -	\$	-
6/30/2026	\$	-	\$-	\$	-	Ş	- 5	\$	-	\$	-		\$-	\$	5 -	\$	-
6/30/2027	\$	-	\$-	\$	-	Ş		\$	-	\$	-		\$-	4	-	\$	-
6/30/2028	\$	-	\$-	\$	-	¢	-	\$	-	\$	-		\$-	-	-	\$	-
Total	\$	530	\$ (25,564)	\$	(25,034)	Ş	5 16,101	\$	(41,407)	\$	(25,306)		\$ 5	3	\$ (80)	\$	(27)
Change In Deferred Outflows/(Inflows) Recognized in Liability and Assets for Current Plan Year End																	
6/30/2019				\$	5,916					\$	26,560					\$	(71)



CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLOYEES POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS PROGRAM FULL-FUNDING ACTUARIAL VALUATION (\$ IN 000'S) 7.00% AT JULY 1, 2018 AND 6.75% AT JULY 1, 2019 EXEMPT/EXCLUDED/EXECUTIVE

		July 1, 2018		July 1, 2019
Number of Participants Covered		6 6 4 2		6.026
Active Participants		6,643		6,926
Retired Participants ^a		4,122		4,262
Total Participants		10,765		11,188
Actuarial Present Value of Projected Benefits				
Active Participants	\$	742,274	\$	771,098
Retired Participants		718,880		791,878
Total Participants	\$	1,461,154	\$	1,562,976
Actuarial Accrued Liability				
Active Participants	\$	501,781	\$	518,577
Retired Participants		718,880		791,878
Total Participants	\$	1,220,661	\$	1,310,455
Actuarial Value of Assets	\$	-	\$	6,855
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability	\$	1,220,661	\$	1,303,600
Net Employer ADC for FYE		June 30, 2019		June 30, 2020
Normal Cost	\$	25,785	\$	26,855
Administrative Expenses		126		139
Amortization of UAAL		70,135		76,393
Total ADC	\$	96,046	\$	103,385
Estimated Member Contributions		-		(6,749
Net Employer ADC	\$	96,046	\$	96,636
Expected Claim Costs for FYE ^b Employer Explicit Costs		June 30, 2019		June 30, 2020
Medical and Rx Claims	\$	34,405	\$	36,152
Part B Reimbursement	Ŷ	6,890	Ŷ	7,560
Dental Claims		2,640		2,804
Total	\$	43,935	\$	46,516
Employer Implicit Costs	Ŧ	6,391	7	9,245
Total Employer Costs	\$		\$	55,762
Retiree Share of Claim Costs	Ŷ	55,520	4	
Medical and Rx Claims	\$	2,376	\$	2,739
Dental Claims		838	•	869
Total	\$	3,214	\$	3,608
Total Claims Costs	\$	53,540	\$	59,369

^eRetired participants with dental only coverage, 274 as of July 1, 2018, and 297 as of July 1, 2019, are excluded from the above counts but are reflected in the actuarial valuation.

^bFor purposes of financial reporting, employer explicit and implicit costs will be updated based on actual experience during each respective reporting period.



	CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLOYEES POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS PROGRAM FULL-FUNDING PROJECTIONS BASED ON JULY 1, 2019, ACTUARIAL VALUATION (\$ IN 000'S) EXEMPT/EXCLUDED/EXECUTIVE											
Long-tern Discount	r Beginning n Asset Return Rate i is Fully Funded	7/1/2019 6.750% 6.750% 2050										
		Disbursements/	Administrative	Pre-Fund	Investment		Accrued	Funded				
FYE	Assets (boy)	Benefits	Expenses	Contribution	Income	Assets (eoy)	Liability (eoy)	Ratio	Normal Cost			
2019	\$ -	\$-	\$ 1			,		0.5%	,			
2020	6,855	-	139	13,497	906	21,119	1,369,935	1.5%	25,873			
2021	21,119	-	152	19,519	2,068	42,554	1,427,254	3.0%	24,996			
2022	42,554	-	166	25,162	3,702	71,252	1,481,731	4.8%	24,147			
2023	71,252	-	179	24,326	5,611	101,010	1,533,507	6.6%	23,299			
2024	101,010	-	193	23,492	7,592 9,648	131,901	1,582,273	8.3%	22,430			
2025 2026	131,901 163,979	-	206 218	22,636 21,762	9,648	163,979 197,307	1,627,948 1,670,672	10.1% 11.8%	21,543 20,669			
2028	197,307	-	218	21,762 20,898	11,784	231,980	1,710,899	11.8%	19,820			
2027	231,980	-	229	20,858	16,317	268,117	1,748,664	15.3%	18,984			
2028	268,117		239	19,234	18,728	305,830	1,748,004	13.3%	18,584			
2025	305,830		249	18,413	21,246	345,229	1,816,387	19.0%	17,336			
2030	345,229		200	17,606	23,878	386,443	1,845,728	20.9%	16,526			
2032	386.443		281	16.807	26,634	429,603	1,871,724	23.0%	15,715			
2033	429,603	-	292	16,007	29,520	474,838	1,894,116	25.1%	14,903			
2034	474,838	-	302	15,205	32,546	522,287	1,912,917	27.3%	14,099			
2035	522,287	-	312	14,410	35,722	572,107	1,928,218	29.7%	13,307			
2036	572,107	-	321	13,628	39,059	624,473	1,939,898	32.2%	12,514			
2037	624,473	-	329	12,843	42,567	679,554	1,948,044	34.9%	11,718			
2038	679,554	-	337	12,055	46,259	737,531	1,952,658	37.8%	10,923			
2039	737,531	-	345	11,268	50,146	798,600	1,953,610	40.9%	10,136			
2040	798,600	-	352	10,488	54,242	862,978	1,950,626	44.2%	9,350			
2041	862,978	-	360	9,710	58,561	930,889	1,943,584	47.9%	8,569			
2042	930,889	-	366	8,935	63,120	1,002,578	1,932,542	51.9%	7,803			
2043	1,002,578	-	373	8,175	67,933	1,078,313	1,917,257	56.2%	7,048			
2044	1,078,313	-	378	7,426	73,020	1,158,381	1,897,879	61.0%	6,315			
2045	1,158,381	-	382	6,697	78,400	1,243,096	1,874,697	66.3%	5,610			
2046	1,243,096	-	386	5,997	84,095	1,332,802	1,847,544	72.1%	4,943			
2047	1,332,802	-	389	5,332	90,128	1,427,873	1,816,751	78.6%	4,321			
2048	1,427,873	-	390	4,710	96,525	1,528,718	1,782,975	85.7%	3,737			
2049	1,528,718	-	390	4,127	103,313	1,635,768	1,746,264	93.7%	3,195			
2050	1,635,768	27,092	389	3,585	109,621	1,721,493	1,706,664	100.9%	2,699			
2051	1,721,493	154,936	387	-	111,044	1,677,214	1,664,650	100.8%	2,249			
2052	1,677,214	153,697	384	-	108,097	1,631,230	1,620,602	100.7%	1,845			
2053	1,631,230	152,299	381	-	105,039	1,583,589	1,574,595	100.6%	1,486			
2054	1,583,589	150,823	377	-	101,873	1,534,262	1,526,626	100.5%	1,174			
2055	1,534,262	149,038	373	-	98,603	1,483,454	1,476,932	100.4%	909			
2056	1,483,454	146,901	367	-	95,244	1,431,430	1,425,809	100.4%	686			
2057	1,431,430	144,587	361	-	91,810	1,378,292	1,373,389	100.4%	506			



CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLOYEES POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS PROGRAM DEVELOPMENT OF GASB NOS. 74 AND 75 SINGLE EQUIVALENT DISCOUNT RATE (\$ IN 000'S) EXEMPT/EXCLUDED/EXECUTIVE

20-Year GO Municipal Bond Rate at June 30, 2019	3.130%
Long-Term Investment Return	6.750%
Year Plan is Fully Funded	2050
Single Equivalent Rate	3.568%

Present Value of Benefits

sent Value	of Benefits			\$ 2,840,175			\$ 2,840,1
		Cross-over		Discounted	Single		Discounted
	Net Employer	Investment	Discount	Benefit	Equivalent	Discount	Benefit
FYE	Benefits	Return	Factor	Payment	Return	Factor	Payment
2020	\$ 55,761	3.130%	0.98471	\$ 54,908	3.568%	0.98263	\$ 54,7
2021	60,726	3.130%		57,982	3.568%	0.94878	57,6
2022	66,312	3.130%		61,395	3.568%	0.91609	60,7
2023	71,608	3.130%	0.89774	64,286	3.568%	0.88454	63,3
2024	77,026	3.130%		67,051	3.568%	0.85406	65,7
2025	82,306	3.130%	0.84408	69,472	3.568%	0.82464	67,8
2026	87,230	3.130%	0.81846	71,394	3.568%	0.79624	69,4
2027	91,533	3.130%	0.79362	72,642	3.568%	0.76881	70,3
2028	95,667	3.130%	0.76953	73,619	3.568%	0.74232	71,0
2029	99,680	3.130%	0.74618	74,379	3.568%	0.71675	71,4
2030	103,867	3.130%	0.72353	75,151	3.568%	0.69206	71,8
2031	108,144	3.130%	0.70157	75,871	3.568%	0.66822	72,2
2032	112,464	3.130%	0.68028	76,507	3.568%	0.64520	72,5
2033	116,812	3.130%	0.65963	77,053	3.568%	0.62298	72,7
2034	120,913	3.130%	0.63961	77,337	3.568%	0.60152	72,7
2035	124,696	3.130%	0.62020	77,337	3.568%	0.58080	72,4
2036	128,383	3.130%	0.60138	77,207	3.568%	0.56079	71,9
2037	131,749	3.130%	0.58313	76,826	3.568%	0.54147	71,3
2038	134,877	3.130%	0.56543	76,263	3.568%	0.52282	70,5
2039	137,903	3.130%	0.54827	75,608	3.568%	0.50481	69,6
2040	140,962	3.130%	0.53163	74,939	3.568%	0.48742	68,7
2041	143,885	3.130%	0.51549	74,171	3.568%	0.47063	67,7
2042	146,489	3.130%	0.49985	73,222	3.568%	0.45442	66,5
2043	149,085	3.130%	0.48468	72,258	3.568%	0.43876	65,4
2044	151,268	3.130%	0.46997	71,091	3.568%	0.42365	64,0
2045	152,928	3.130%		69,690	3.568%	0.40905	62,5
2046	154,531	3.130%	0.44187	68,283	3.568%	0.39496	61,0
2047	155,592	3.130%	0.42846	66,665	3.568%	0.38136	59,3
2048	155,826	3.130%		64,739	3.568%	0.36822	57,3
2049	155,859	3.130%	0.40285	62,788	3.568%	0.35554	55,4
2050	155,699	3.130%	0.39062	60,819	3.568%	0.34329	53,4
2051	154,936	6.750%		56,695	3.568%	0.33146	51,3
2052	153,697	6.750%		52,685	3.568%	0.32005	49,1
2053	152,299	6.750%	0.32111	48,905	3.568%	0.30902	47,0
2054	150,823	6.750%		45,368	3.568%	0.29838	45,0
2055	149,038	6.750%		41,997	3.568%	0.28810	42,9
2056	146,901	6.750%		38,777	3.568%	0.27817	40,8
2066	114,329	6.750%		15,705	3.568%	0.19592	22,3
2076	69,191	6.750%		4,946	3.568%	0.13798	9,5
2086	23,638	6.750%		879	3.568%	0.09718	2,2
2096	2,940	6.750%		57	3.568%	0.06845	
2106	48	6.750%		-	3.568%	0.04821	
2100		6.750%		_	3.568%	0.03395	



CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLOYEES POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS PROGRAM GASB NOS. 74 AND 75 DISCLOSURES CHANGE IN NET OPEB LIABILITY AND CONTRIBUTIONS MADE BY EMPLOYER (\$ IN 000'S) EXEMPT/EXCLUDED/EXECUTIVE

EXEMP	T/EXCL	UDED/EXECUTIVE				
Fiscal Year Ending		June 30, 2017		June 30, 2018		June 30, 2019
Total OPEB Liability						
Service Cost	\$	85,390	\$	71,649	\$	64,676
Interest on Total OPEB Liability		65,881		76,114		72,985
Changes of Benefit Terms		-		-		-
Difference between Expected and Actual Experience		-		(147,520)		24,633
Changes of Assumptions		(262,923)		(67,124)		(38,227
Benefit Payments		(46,707)		(47,009)		(51,792
Net Change in Total OPEB Liability	\$	(158,359)	\$	(113,890)	\$	72,275
Total OPEB Liability - Beginning	\$	2,249,404	\$	2,091,045	\$	1,977,155
Total OPEB Liability - Ending (a)	\$	2,091,045	\$	1,977,155	\$	2,049,430
Plan Fiduciary Net Position						
Employer PayGO Contributions	\$	46,707	\$	47,009	\$	51,792
Employer Pre-Funding Contributions		-		-		3,243
Active Member Contributions		-		-		3,243
Net Investment Income		-		-		370
Benefit Payments		(46,707)		(47,009)		(51,792
Administrative Expense		-		-		(1)
Other		-		-		-
Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position	\$	-	\$	-	\$	6,855
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending (b)	\$	-	\$	-	\$	6,855
Net OPEB Liability - Ending (a) - (b)	\$	2,091,045	\$	1,977,155	\$	2,042,575
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage Total OPEB Liability		0.000%		0.000%		0.334%
Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC)	\$	93,212	\$	96,008	\$	92,803
Employer Contribution	\$	46,707	\$	47,009	\$	55,035
Percentage of ADC made by Employer	Ŷ	50%	Ŷ	49%	Ŧ	59%
Contribution Excess/(Shortfall)	\$	(46,505)	\$	(48,999)	\$	(37,768
Expected Return on Assets	\$	-	\$	-	\$	223
Investment (Gain)/Loss	\$	-	\$	-	\$	(147
Average Expected Remaining Service		6.958847		7.188319		7.271707
Blended Discount Rate Beginning of Year		2.850%		3.560%		3.620%
Blended Discount Rate End of Year		3.560%		3.620%		3.568%
Long-term Expected Return on Assets		7.280%		7.000%		6.750%



GASB NOS. 74 AND 75 DISCLOSURES OPEB EXPENSES AND NET OPEB LIABILITY SENSITIVITY (\$ IN 000'S) EXEMPT/EXCLUDED/EXECUTIVE											
Measured for the Plan's Fiscal Year Ending Applicable for the Sponsor's Fiscal Year Ending		ne 30, 2018 ne 30, 2019		June 30, 2019 June 30, 2020							
OPEB Expense											
Service Cost Interest on the Total OPEB Liability Current-Period Benefit Changes	\$	71,649 76,114 -	\$	64,676 72,985 -							
Active Member Contributions Projected Earnings on Plan Investments Operating Expenses		- -		(3,243 (223 1							
Other Changes in Plan Fiduciary Net Position Recognition of Outflow/(Inflow) due to Non-investment Experience Recognition of Outflow/(Inflow) due to Assumption Changes Recognition of Outflow/(Inflow) due to Investment Experience Net OPEB Expense	\$	- (20,522) (47,121) - - 80,120	\$	- (17,134) (52,378) (29) 64,655							
Reconciliation of Net OPEB Liability		,		,							
Net OPEB Liability Beginning of Year OPEB Expense Employer Contributions Change in Outflow/(Inflow) due to Non-investment Experience Change in Outflow/(Inflow) due to Assumption Changes Change in Outflow/(Inflow) due to Investment Experience Net OPEB Liability End of Year	\$	2,091,045 80,120 (47,009) (126,998) (20,003) - 1,977,155	\$	1,977,155 64,655 (55,035 41,767 14,151 (118 2,042,575							
Deferred (Inflows) Non-investment Experience Assumption Changes Investment Experience	\$ \$ \$	(126,998) (245,143) -	\$ \$ \$	(106,476 (230,992 (118							
Deferred Outflows Non-investment Experience Assumption Changes Investment Experience	\$ \$ \$	- - -	\$ \$ \$	21,245 - -							
Net OPEB Liability Sensitivity											
Baseline Discount Rate Baseline Discount Rate and Trend Rates Increase Discount Rate by One Percentage Point Decrease Discount Rate by One Percentage Point	\$ \$ \$	3.620% 1,977,155 1,693,906 2,333,244	\$ \$ \$	3.568% 2,042,575 1,754,669 2,403,591							
Increase Trend Rate by One Percentage Point Decrease Trend Rate by One Percentage Point	\$ \$	2,296,860 1,727,067	\$ \$	2,432,736 1,737,692							



					(GASB NOS. 74 A	AND 7	UTFLOWS (\$ IN										
Valuation Date Measurement Date		6/30/2019 6/30/2019																
		No	n-Inv	estment Experier	ice				As	sumption Changes				I	nves	tment Experie	nce	
				Amortization		Initial				Amortization		Initial			4	mortization		Initial
Plan Year Beginning		(Gain)/Loss		Factor		mortization		(Gain)/Loss		Factor		Amortization		iain)/Loss		Factor		nortization
7/1/2016 7/1/2017 7/1/2018	\$ \$ \$	- (147,520) 24,633		6.958847 7.188319 7.271707	\$ \$ \$	- (20,522) 3,388	\$ \$ \$	(67,124)		6.958847 7.188319 7.271707	\$	(37,783) (9,338) (5,257)	\$ \$ \$	- (147)	\$	5.000000 5.000000 5.000000	\$ \$ \$	- - (29)
Deferred Outflows/(Inflows) Recognized in OPEB Expense for Current Plan Year End		Outflows		(Inflows)		Net		Outflows		(Inflows)		Net		Outflows		(Inflows)		Net
6/30/2019	\$	3,388	\$	(20,522)	\$	(17,134)	\$	-	\$	(52,378)	\$	(52,378)	\$	-	\$	(29)	\$	(29)
Deferred Outflows/(Inflows) Recognized in OPEB Expense for Future Plan Years Ending																		
6/30/2020	\$	3,388	\$	(20,522)	\$	(17,134)	\$	-	\$	(52,378)	\$	(52,378)	\$	-	\$	(29)	\$	(29)
6/30/2021	\$	3,388	\$	(20,522)	\$	(17,134)	\$		\$	(52,378)	\$	(52,378)	\$	-	\$	(29)	\$	(29)
6/30/2022	\$	3,388	\$	(20,522)	\$	(17,134)	\$		\$	(52,378)	\$	(52,378)	\$	-	\$	(29)	\$	(29)
6/30/2023	\$	3,388	\$	(20,522)	\$	(17,134)	\$		\$	(50,820)		(50,820)	\$	-	\$	(31)	\$	(31)
6/30/2024	\$	3,388	\$	(20,522)		(17,134)	\$		\$	(14,595)		(14,595)	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
6/30/2025	\$	3,388	\$	(3,866)	\$	(478)	\$		\$	(7,015)		(7,015)	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
6/30/2026	\$	917	\$	-	\$	917	\$		\$	(1,428)	\$	(1,428)	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
6/30/2027	\$	-	Ş	-	Ş	-	\$	-	Ş	-	Ş	-	\$	-	Ş	-	\$	-
6/30/2028	\$	-	Ş	-	Ş	-	\$	-	Ş	-	Ş	-	\$	-	Ş	-	\$	-
Total	\$	21,245	\$	(106,476)	\$	(85,231)	\$	-	\$	(230,992)	\$	(230,992)	\$	-	\$	(118)	\$	(118)
Change In Deferred Outflows/(Inflows) Recognized in Liability and Assets for Current Plan Year End																		
6/30/2019					\$	41,767					\$	14,151					\$	(118)



CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLOYEES POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS PROGRAM FULL-FUNDING ACTUARIAL VALUATION (\$ IN 000'S) 7.00% AT JULY 1, 2018 AND 6.75% AT JULY 1, 2019 OTHER

July 1, 2018 July 1, 2019 Number of Participants Covered **Active Participants** 4,234 4,281 Retired Participants^a 13,156 12,204 **Total Participants** 17,390 16,485 Actuarial Present Value of Projected Benefits \$ **Active Participants** 510,149 \$ 515,706 **Retired Participants** 1,379,236 1,425,899 \$ 1,889,385 \$ **Total Participants** 1,941,605 Actuarial Accrued Liability **Active Participants** \$ 326,574 \$ 328,168 **Retired Participants** 1,425,899 1,379,236 \$ **Total Participants** 1,705,810 \$ 1,754,067 \$ Actuarial Value of Assets \$ 1,705,810 \$ 1,754,067 Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability \$ Net Employer ADC for FYE June 30, 2019 June 30, 2020 \$ Normal Cost 20,483 \$ 20,836 Administrative Expenses 339 358 Amortization of UAAL 156,471 170,200 Total ADC \$ 177,293 \$ 191,394 **Estimated Member Contributions** Ś Net Employer ADC 177,293 \$ 191,394 Expected Claim Costs for FYE^b June 30, 2019 June 30, 2020 **Employer Explicit Costs** \$ Medical and Rx Claims 78,943 \$ 73,846 Part B Reimbursement 23,742 23,326 **Dental Claims** 7,121 6,655 Total \$ 109,806 \$ 103,827 **Employer Implicit Costs** 25,940 39,455 \$ **Total Employer Costs** 135,746 \$ 143,282 **Retiree Share of Claim Costs** Medical and Rx Claims \$ 2,000 \$ 1,954 **Dental Claims** 2,213 2,058 \$ Total 4,213 \$ 4,012 **Total Claims Costs** \$ 139,959 \$ 147,294

^eRetired participants with dental only coverage, 886 as of July 1, 2018, and 805 as of July 1, 2019, are excluded from the above counts but are reflected in the actuarial valuation.

^bFor purposes of financial reporting, employer explicit and implicit costs will be updated based on actual experience during each respective reporting period.



							JULY			ITS PROGRAM VALUATION (\$ IN 0	00'S)		
Fiscal Yea	ır Beginning		7/1/2019	,			OTH	IER						
Long-terr Discount	n Asset Return Rate		6.750% 6.750%											
Year Plan	is Fully Funded		N/A											
			Disbursements/	Administrative		Pre-Fund		Investment				Accrued	Funded	
FYE	Assets (boy)		Benefits	Expenses	6	Contribution	6	Income	6	Assets (eoy)	Å	Liability (eoy)	Ratio	Normal Cost
2019 2020	\$	-	\$-	\$-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	1,754,067	0.0% 0.0%	
2020		· .	-	-		-		-		-		1,746,591 1,736,263	0.0%	19,724 19,014
2021			-			-		-		-		1,736,263	0.0%	19,014 18,297
2022		1	-			-		-		-		1,722,700	0.0%	17,543
2023		1	-			-	1	-		-		1,688,767	0.0%	16,769
2024		2	_			-		_		_		1,669,531	0.0%	16,066
2025						-		-				1,649,735	0.0%	15,340
2027			-	-		-		-		-		1,630,133	0.0%	14,591
2028			-	-		-		-		-		1,610,788	0.0%	13,901
2029			-	-		-		-		-		1,591,510	0.0%	13,191
2030			-	-		-		-		-		1,572,048	0.0%	12,460
2031			-	-		-		-		-		1,552,133	0.0%	11,758
2032			-	-		-		-		-		1,531,525	0.0%	11,160
2033		-	-	-		-		-		-		1,510,475	0.0%	10,583
2034		-	-	-		-		-		-		1,489,027	0.0%	9,950
2035		-	-	-		-		-		-		1,466,841	0.0%	9,344
2036		-	-	-		-		-		-		1,443,935	0.0%	8,767
2037		-	-	-		-		-		-		1,420,266	0.0%	8,167
2038		-	-	-		-		-		-		1,395,945	0.0%	7,526
2039		-	-	-		-		-		-		1,370,881	0.0%	6,902
2040		-	-	-		-		-		-		1,345,034	0.0%	6,361
2041		-	-	-		-		-		-		1,318,578	0.0%	5,880
2042		-	-	-		-		-		-		1,291,828	0.0%	5,440
2043		-	-	-		-	1	-		-		1,265,072	0.0%	5,027
2044		-	-	-		-	1	-		-		1,238,100	0.0%	4,617
2045		-	-	-		-		-		-		1,210,819	0.0%	4,218
2046		-	-	-		-	1	-		-		1,183,320	0.0%	3,827
2047		-	-	-		-		-		-		1,155,559	0.0%	3,430
2048		-	-	-		-		-		-		1,127,273	0.0%	3,043
2049		-	-	-		-	1	-		-		1,098,306	0.0%	2,660
2050		-	-	-		-		-		-		1,068,624	0.0%	2,283
2051		-	-	-		-		-		-		1,038,158	0.0%	1,921
2052		-	-	-		-		-		-		1,006,908	0.0%	1,577
2053 2054						-		-		-		974,842 942,058	0.0% 0.0%	1,263 983
2054 2055			-			-		-		-		942,058 908,962	0.0%	983 742
2055		1	-			-	1	-		-		908,962 875,700	0.0%	742 545
2056			-	-				-		-		842,649	0.0%	389
2057		-	-	-		-		-	I	-	I	642,649	0.0%	389



CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLOYEES POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS PROGRAM DEVELOPMENT OF GASB NOS. 74 AND 75 SINGLE EQUIVALENT DISCOUNT RATE (\$ IN 000'S)

OTHER

20-Year GO Municipal Bond Rate at June 30, 2019	3.130%
Long-Term Investment Return	6.750%
Year Plan is Fully Funded	N/A
Single Equivalent Rate	3.130%

Present Value of Benefits

esent Value	of Benefits			\$ 3,225,998			\$ 3,225,9
		Cross-over		Discounted	Single		Discounted
	Net Employer	Investment	Discount	Benefit	Equivalent	Discount	Benefit
FYE	Benefits	Return	Factor	Payment	Return	Factor	Payment
2020	\$ 143,282	3.130%	0.98471		3.130%	0.98471	4
2021	144,407	3.130%	0.95482	137,883	3.130%	0.95482	137,8
2022	146,130	3.130%	0.92584	135,294	3.130%	0.92584	135,2
2023	146,856	3.130%	0.89774	131,839	3.130%	0.89774	131,8
2024	146,917	3.130%	0.87050	127,890	3.130%	0.87050	127,8
2025	146,203	3.130%	0.84408	123,407	3.130%	0.84408	123,4
2026	144,763	3.130%	0.81846	118,482	3.130%	0.81846	118,
2027	142,535	3.130%	0.79362	113,119	3.130%	0.79362	113,2
2028	140,234	3.130%	0.76953	107,915	3.130%	0.76953	107,
2029	138,197	3.130%	0.74618	103,119	3.130%	0.74618	103,
2030	136,383	3.130%	0.72353	98,678	3.130%	0.72353	98,
2031	134,795	3.130%	0.70157	94,569	3.130%	0.70157	94,
2032	133,444	3.130%	0.68028	90,779	3.130%	0.68028	90,
2033	131,910	3.130%	0.65963	87,012	3.130%	0.65963	87,
2034	130,326	3.130%	0.63961	83,358	3.130%	0.63961	83,
2035	128,987	3.130%	0.62020	79,998	3.130%	0.62020	79,
2036	127,610	3.130%	0.60138	76,742	3.130%	0.60138	76,
2037	126,260	3.130%	0.58313	73,625	3.130%	0.58313	73,
2038	124,727	3.130%	0.56543	70,524	3.130%	0.56543	70,
2039	123,197	3.130%	0.54827	67,545	3.130%	0.54827	67,
2040	121,676	3.130%	0.53163	64,686	3.130%	0.53163	64,
2041	120,020	3.130%	0.51549	61,869	3.130%	0.51549	61,
2042	118,081	3.130%	0.49985	59,022	3.130%	0.49985	59,
2043	115,887	3.130%	0.48468	56,168	3.130%	0.48468	56,
2044	113,924	3.130%	0.46997	53,540	3.130%	0.46997	53,
2045	112,040	3.130%	0.45570	51,057	3.130%	0.45570	51,
2046	110,059	3.130%	0.44187	48,632	3.130%	0.44187	48,
2047	108,112	3.130%	0.42846	46,322	3.130%	0.42846	46,
2048	106,400	3.130%	0.41546	44,205	3.130%	0.41546	44,
2049	104,813	3.130%	0.40285	42,224	3.130%	0.40285	42,
2050	103,218	3.130%	0.39062	40,319	3.130%	0.39062	40,
2051	101,649	3.130%	0.37877	38,501	3.130%	0.37877	38,
2052	100,045	3.130%	0.36727	36,744	3.130%	0.36727	36,
2053	98,439	3.130%	0.35612	35,057	3.130%	0.35612	35,
2054	96,716	3.130%	0.34532	33,397	3.130%	0.34532	33,
2055	94,589	3.130%	0.33484	31,672	3.130%	0.33484	31,
2056	92,339	3.130%	0.32467	29,980	3.130%	0.32467	29,
2066	67,605	3.130%	0.23856	16,128	3.130%	0.23856	16,
2076	46,594	3.130%	0.17529	8,167	3.130%	0.17529	8,
2086	19,641	3.130%	0.12879	2,530	3.130%	0.12879	2,
2096	2,471	3.130%	0.09463	234	3.130%	0.09463	
2106	36	3.130%	0.06953	2	3.130%	0.06953	l
2116	_	3.130%	0.05109	-	3.130%	0.05109	l



CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLOYEES POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS PROGRAM GASB NOS. 74 AND 75 DISCLOSURES

CHANGE IN NET OPEB LIABILITY AND CONTRIBUTIONS MADE BY EMPLOYER (\$ IN 000'S)

	OTH	ER				
Fiscal Year Ending	J	une 30, 2017	J	une 30, 2018		June 30, 2019
Total OPEB Liability						
Service Cost	\$	64,873	\$	55,285	\$	48,033
Interest on Total OPEB Liability		82,194		94,010		86,636
Changes of Benefit Terms		-		-		-
Difference between Expected and Actual Experience		-		(201,879)		52,984
Changes of Assumptions		(243,150)		(43,635)		111,835
Benefit Payments		(135,079)		(131,602)	<u> </u>	(165,439
Net Change in Total OPEB Liability	\$	(231,162)	\$	(227,821)	\$	134,049
Total OPEB Liability - Beginning	\$	2,886,186	\$	2,655,024	\$	2,427,203
Total OPEB Liability - Ending (a)	\$	2,655,024	\$	2,427,203	\$	2,561,252
Plan Fiduciary Net Position						
Employer PayGO Contributions	\$	135,079	\$	131,602	\$	165,439
Employer Pre-Funding Contributions		-		-		-
Active Member Contributions		-		-		-
Net Investment Income		-		-		-
Benefit Payments		(135,079)		(131,602)		(165,439)
Administrative Expense		-		-		-
Other	. <u> </u>	-		-	<u> </u>	-
Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending (b)	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
Net OPEB Liability - Ending (a) - (b)	\$	2,655,024	\$	2,427,203	\$	2,561,252
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage Total OPEB Liability		0.000%		0.000%		0.000%
Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC)	\$	174,233	\$	179,460	\$	177,293
Employer Contribution	\$	135,079	\$	131,602	\$	165,439
Percentage of ADC made by Employer		78%		73%	-	93%
Contribution Excess/(Shortfall)	\$	(39,154)	\$	(47,858)	\$	(11,854)
Expected Return on Assets	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
Investment (Gain)/Loss	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
Average Expected Remaining Service		2.607026		2.749775		2.965309
Blended Discount Rate Beginning of Year		2.850%		3.560%		3.620%
Blended Discount Rate End of Year		3.560%		3.620%		3.130%
Long-term Expected Return on Assets		7.280%		7.000%		6.750%



GASB NOS. 74 AND 75 DISCLOSURES OPEB EXPENSES AND NET OPEB LIABILITY SENSITIVITY (\$ IN 000'S)

	JED	
OTHER	115 15	

Measured for the Plan's Fiscal Year Ending Applicable for the Sponsor's Fiscal Year Ending		ne 30, 2018 ne 30, 2019		ne 30, 2019 ne 30, 2020
OPEB Expense				
Service Cost Interest on the Total OPEB Liability Current-Period Benefit Changes	\$	55,285 94,010 -	\$	48,033 86,636
Active Member Contributions Projected Earnings on Plan Investments		-		-
Operating Expenses Other Changes in Plan Fiduciary Net Position		-		-
Recognition of Outflow/(Inflow) due to Non-investment Experience Recognition of Outflow/(Inflow) due to Assumption Changes Recognition of Outflow/(Inflow) due to Investment Experience		(73,417) (109,136)		(55,549) (34,771)
Net OPEB Expense	\$	(33,258)	\$	44,349
Reconciliation of Net OPEB Liability				
Net OPEB Liability Beginning of Year OPEB Expense	\$	2,655,024 (33,258)	\$	2,427,203 44,349
Employer Contributions Change in Outflow/(Inflow) due to Non-investment Experience Change in Outflow/(Inflow) due to Assumption Changes		(131,602) (128,462) 65,501		(165,439) 108,533 146,606
Change in Outflow/(Inflow) due to Investment Experience Net OPEB Liability End of Year	\$	- 2,427,203	\$	- 2,561,252
Deferred (Inflows)	ė	(120,462)	ć	
Non-investment Experience Assumption Changes Investment Experience	\$ \$ \$	(128,462) (84,382) -	\$ \$ \$	(55,045) (11,897) -
Deferred Outflows				
Non-investment Experience Assumption Changes Investment Experience	\$ \$ \$	- - -	\$ \$ \$	35,116 74,121 -
Net OPEB Liability Sensitivity				
Baseline Discount Rate		3.620%		3.130%
Baseline Discount Rate and Trend Rates	\$	2,427,203	\$	2,561,252
Increase Discount Rate by One Percentage Point	\$	2,166,118	\$	2,282,730
Decrease Discount Rate by One Percentage Point	\$	2,744,658	\$	2,900,652
Increase Trend Rate by One Percentage Point Decrease Trend Rate by One Percentage Point	\$ \$	2,693,173 2,209,310	\$ \$	2,902,686 2,283,935



						E EMPLOYEES P GASB NOS. 74 A RED INFLOWS A O	ND 75	5 DISCLOSURES UTFLOWS (\$ IN (
Valuation Date Measurement Date		6/30/2019 6/30/2019																
		No	n-Inv	estment Experier	ice				Ass	sumption Changes				li	nves	tment Experie	nce	
				Amortization		Initial				Amortization		Initial			A	Amortization		Initial
Plan Year Beginning		(Gain)/Loss		Factor	4	Amortization		(Gain)/Loss		Factor		Amortization	(Ga	in)/Loss		Factor	Ar	mortization
7/1/2016	\$	-		2.607026	\$	-	\$	(243,150)		2.607026	L '	(93,267)	\$	-	\$	5.000000	\$	-
7/1/2017	\$	(201,879)		2.749775	\$	(73,417)	\$	(43,635)		2.749775	\$	(15,869)	\$	-		5.000000	\$	-
7/1/2018	\$	52,984		2.965309	\$	17,868	\$	111,835		2.965309	\$	37,714	\$	-		5.000000	\$	-
Deferred Outflows/(Inflows) Recognized in OPEB Expense for Current Plan Year End		Outflows		(Inflows)		Net		Outflows		(Inflows)		Net	0	utflows		(Inflows)		Net
6/30/2019	\$	17,868	\$	(73,417)	\$	(55,549)	\$	37,714	\$	(72,485)	\$	(34,771)	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
Deferred Outflows/(Inflows) Recognized in OPEB Expense for Future Plan Years Ending																		
6/30/2020	\$	17,868	\$	(55,045)	\$	(37,177)	\$	37,714	\$	(11,897)	\$	25,817	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
6/30/2021	\$	17,248	\$	-	\$	17,248	\$	36,407	\$	-	\$	36,407	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
6/30/2022	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
6/30/2023	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
6/30/2024	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
6/30/2025	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
6/30/2026	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
6/30/2027	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
6/30/2028	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
Total	\$	35,116	\$	(55,045)	\$	(19,929)	\$	74,121	\$	(11,897)	\$	62,224	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
Change In Deferred Outflows/(Inflows) Recognized in Liability and Assets for Current Plan Year End																		
6/30/2019	1				\$	108,533					\$	146,606					\$	-



CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLOYEES POS FULL-FUNDING ACTUARIAL	VALUATIO	ON (\$ IN 000'S)	ROC	GRAM
7.00% AT JULY 1, 2018 AN				
SERVICE EMPLOYEES INTER	INATIONA	L UNION (SEIO)		
	j	luly 1, 2018		July 1, 2019
Number of Participants Covered		•		•
Active Participants		110,661		112,123
Retired Participants ^a		67,663		70,106
Total Participants		178,324		182,229
Actuarial Procent Value of Projected Deposits				
Actuarial Present Value of Projected Benefits Active Participants	\$	13,307,829	\$	13,333,227
Retired Participants	ç	10,469,062	ç	11,447,335
-	\$		<u> </u>	
Total Participants	Ş	23,776,891	\$	24,780,562
Actuarial Accrued Liability				
Active Participants	\$	8,757,155	\$	8,766,373
Retired Participants		10,469,062		11,447,335
Total Participants	\$	19,226,217	\$	20,213,708
Actuarial Value of Assets	\$	-	\$	151,612
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability	\$	19,226,217	\$	20,062,096
Net Employer ADC for FYE	Ju	une 30, 2019		June 30, 2020
Normal Cost	\$	490,997	\$	488,072
Administrative Expenses		1,871		2,052
Amortization of UAAL		1,104,677		1,175,638
Total ADC	\$	1,597,545	\$	1,665,762
Estimated Member Contributions		(61,609)		(122,531)
Net Employer ADC	\$	1,535,936	\$	1,543,231
Expected Claim Costs for FYE ^b Employer Explicit Costs	Ju	une 30, 2019		June 30, 2020
Medical and Rx Claims	\$	509,073	\$	E22 672
Part B Reimbursement	Ş	100,376	Ş	533,672 110,695
Dental Claims		40,841		42,944
Total	\$	650,290	\$	
Employer Implicit Costs	Ş	97,824	Ş	687,311 133,610
	<u> </u>		ć	
Total Employer Costs Retiree Share of Claim Costs	\$	748,114	\$	820,921
Medical and Rx Claims	\$	29,427	\$	29,134
Dental Claims	Ş	12,739	ڔ	13,156
Total	\$	42,166	\$	42,290
Total Claims Costs	ې \$			
	Ş	790,280	\$	863,211

^aRetired participants with dental only coverage, 5,034 as of July 1, 2018, and 5,258 as of July 1, 2019, are excluded from the above counts but are reflected in the actuarial valuation.

^bFor purposes of financial reporting, employer explicit and implicit costs will be updated based on actual experience during each respective reporting period.



				NIA STATE EMPLOYEES OJECTIONS BASED ON		NEFITS PROGRAM IAL VALUATION (\$ IN 0	100'S)		
				SERVICE EMPLOYEES	INTERNATIONAL UNIO	N (SEIU)			
	r Beginning n Asset Return Rate	7/1/2019 6.750% 6.750%							
	is Fully Funded	2049							
	-	Disbursements/	Administrative	Pre-Fund	Investment		Accrued	Funded	
FYE	Assets (boy)	Benefits	Expenses	Contribution	Income	Assets (eoy)	Liability (eoy)	Ratio	Normal Cost
2019	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 14					0.8%	
2020	. 151,612	-	2,052	245,062	18,301	412,923	21,250,523	1.9%	471,971
2021	412,923	-	2,241	355,659	39,605	805,946	22,262,136	3.6%	456,601
2022	805,946	-	2,452	459,052	69,560	1,332,106	23,238,625	5.7%	441,288
2023	1,332,106	-	2,663	443,951	104,568	1,877,962	24,177,243	7.8%	425,850
2024	1,877,962	-	2,876	428,726	140,900	2,444,712	25,074,595	9.7%	410,174
2025	2,444,712	-	3,085	413,259	178,635	3,033,521	25,929,618	11.7%	394,340
2026	3,033,521	-	3,286	397,626	217,854	3,645,715	26,742,310	13.6%	378,372
2027	3,645,715	-	3,475	381,847	258,647	4,282,734	27,514,515	15.6%	362,344
2028	4,282,734	-	3,659	366,002	301,114	4,946,191	28,245,954	17.5%	346,398
2029	4,946,191	-	3,846	350,244	345,368	5,637,957	28,932,391	19.5%	330,591
2030	5,637,957	-	4,034	334,625	391,538	6,360,086	29,570,708	21.5%	314,902
2031	6,360,086	-	4,220	319,123	439,760	7,114,749	30,158,157	23.6%	299,291
2032	7,114,749	-	4,407	303,698	490,182	7,904,222	30,691,607	25.8%	283,718
2033	7,904,222	-	4,593	288,311	542,954	8,730,894	31,167,484	28.0%	268,157
2034	8,730,894	-	4,780	272,937	598,238	9,597,289	31,581,632	30.4%	252,635
2035	9,597,289	-	4,965	257,600	656,204	10,506,128	31,930,722	32.9%	237,193
2036	10,506,128	-	5,146	242,339	717,038	11,460,359	32,211,861	35.6%	221,866
2037	11,460,359	-	5,320	227,187	780,940	12,463,166	32,423,709	38.4%	206,690
2038	12,463,166	-	5,486	212,176	848,126	13,517,982	32,565,246	41.5%	191,731
2039	13,517,982	-	5,646	197,377	918,829	14,628,542	32,634,078	44.8%	176,966
2040	14,628,542	-	5,800	182,767	993,302	15,798,811	32,628,130	48.4%	162,374
2041	15,798,811	-	5,947	168,321	1,071,811	17,032,996	32,545,735	52.3%	147,987
2042	17,032,996	-	6,084	154,070	1,154,640	18,335,622	32,385,749	56.6%	133,805
2043	18,335,622	-	6,212	140,017	1,242,097	19,711,524	32,146,959	61.3%	119,866
2044 2045	19,711,524 21,165,897	-	6,327 6,424	126,192	1,334,508	21,165,897	31,829,792	66.5% 72.2%	106,286 93,180
		-	6,424	112,711 99,685	1,432,227 1,535,641	22,704,411	31,436,356 30,968,882	72.2%	93,180 80,641
2046 2047	22,704,411 24,333,232	-	6,505	99,685 87,208	1,535,641 1,645,171	24,333,232 26,059,044	30,968,882 30,431,012	78.6% 85.6%	80,641 68,791
2047	24,333,232 26,059,044	-	6,609	75,401		26,059,044 27,889,105	29,826,728	85.6% 93.5%	57,776
2048	26,059,044 27,889,105	- 412,880	6,629	64,405	1,761,269 1,870,726	27,889,105 29,404,727	29,826,728 29,161,654	93.5% 100.8%	47,693
2049	27,889,105	2,649,702	6,629	04,405	1,896,632	29,404,727 28,645,033	29,161,654 28,443,080	100.8%	38,610
2050	29,404,727	2,639,142	6,598	-	1,845,704	28,645,055 27,844,997	27,677,243	100.7%	30,569
2051	27,844,997	2,618,791	6,547		1,792,379	27,012,038	26,872,177	100.5%	23,608
2052	27,012,038	2,588,555	6,471	_	1,737,161	26,154,173	26,036,597	100.5%	17,749
2053	26,154,173	2,551,424	6,379	-	1,680,491	25,276,861	25,176,744	100.3%	12,992
2055	25,276,861	2,506,298	6,266	-	1,622,774	24,387,071	24,300,418	100.4%	9,284
2055	24,387,071	2,455,159	6,138	-	1,564,415	23,490,189	23,413,835	100.3%	6,513
2057	23,490,189	2,400,305	6,001	-	1,505,701	22,589,584	22,521,143	100.3%	4,516



CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLOYEES POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS PROGRAM DEVELOPMENT OF GASB NOS. 74 AND 75 SINGLE EQUIVALENT DISCOUNT RATE (\$ IN 000'S) SERVICE EMPLOYEES INTERNATIONAL UNION (SEIU)

20-Year GO Municipal Bond Rate at June 30, 2019	3.130%
Long-Term Investment Return	6.750%
Year Plan is Fully Funded	2049
Single Equivalent Rate	3.604%

Present Value of Benefits

ent Value	of Benefits			\$ 45,319,178			\$ 45,319,1
		Cross-over		Discounted	Single		Discounted
	Net Employer	Investment	Discount	Benefit	Equivalent	Discount	Benefit
FYE	Benefits	Return	Factor	Payment	Return	Factor	Payment
2020	\$ 820,921	3.130%	0.98471		3.604%	0.98245	
2021	896,418	3.130%	0.95482	855,920	3.604%	0.94827	850,0
2022	980,617	3.130%	0.92584	907,898	3.604%	0.91529	897,5
2023	1,065,222	3.130%	0.89774	956,296	3.604%	0.88344	941,0
2024	1,150,534	3.130%	0.87050	1,001,537	3.604%	0.85271	981,0
2025	1,233,911	3.130%	0.84408	1,041,517	3.604%	0.82305	1,015,5
2026	1,314,385	3.130%	0.81846	1,075,771	3.604%	0.79442	1,044,1
2027	1,390,171	3.130%	0.79362	1,103,267	3.604%	0.76678	1,065,9
2028	1,463,490	3.130%	0.76953	1,126,204	3.604%	0.74010	
2029	1,538,381	3.130%	0.74618	1,147,906	3.604%	0.71436	
2030	1,613,454	3.130%	0.72353	1,167,385	3.604%	0.68951	1,112,4
2031	1,688,170	3.130%	0.70157	1,184,373	3.604%	0.66552	1,123,5
2032	1,762,698	3.130%	0.68028	1,199,127	3.604%	0.64237	1,132,3
2033	1,837,178	3.130%	0.65963	1,211,863	3.604%	0.62002	1,139,0
2034	1,911,930	3.130%	0.63961	1,222,895	3.604%	0.59845	
2035	1,985,931	3.130%	0.62020	1,231,676	3.604%	0.57763	1,147,
2036	2,058,544	3.130%	0.60138	1,237,962	3.604%	0.55754	1,147,
2037	2,128,162	3.130%	0.58313	1,240,986	3.604%	0.53814	1,145,
2038	2,194,376	3.130%	0.56543	1,240,761	3.604%	0.51942	1,139,
2039	2,258,547	3.130%	0.54827	1,238,287	3.604%	0.50135	1,132,
2040	2,320,183	3.130%	0.53163	1,233,472	3.604%	0.48391	1,122,
2040	2,378,728	3.130%	0.551549	1,226,216	3.604%	0.46708	
2041	2,433,583	3.130%	0.49985	1,216,419	3.604%	0.45083	1,097,
2043	2,484,777	3.130%	0.48468	1,204,313	3.604%	0.43514	1,081,
2043	2,530,649	3.130%	0.46997	1,189,321	3.604%	0.42001	1,062,
2045	2,569,749	3.130%	0.45570	1,171,043	3.604%	0.40540	
2046	2,602,176	3.130%	0.44187	1,149,830	3.604%	0.39129	1,018,
2047	2,626,843	3.130%	0.42846	1,125,501	3.604%	0.37768	992,
2048	2,643,760	3.130%	0.41546	1,098,371	3.604%	0.36454	963,
2049	2,651,764	3.130%	0.40285	1,068,260	3.604%	0.35186	
2050	2,649,702	6.750%	0.37738	999,933	3.604%	0.33962	899,
2051	2,639,142	6.750%	0.35351	932,973	3.604%	0.32780	-
2052	2,618,791	6.750%	0.33116	867,240	3.604%	0.31640	
2053	2,588,555	6.750%	0.31022	803,023	3.604%	0.30539	790,
2054	2,551,424	6.750%	0.29060	741,456	3.604%	0.29477	752,
2055	2,506,298	6.750%	0.27223	682,288	3.604%	0.28452	713,
2056	2,455,159	6.750%	0.25502	626,104	3.604%	0.27462	674,
2050	1,892,610	6.750%	0.13271	251,159	3.604%	0.19273	
2000	1,130,583	6.750%	0.15271	78,075	3.604%	0.13526	
2086	338,971	6.750%	0.03594	12,181	3.604%	0.09493	
2096	26,598	6.750%	0.03334	497	3.604%	0.06663	1,
2106	305	6.750%	0.01870	3	3.604%	0.04676	
2100	5	6.750%	0.00575	5	3.604%	0.03282	1



CALIFORNIA STATE EMPLOYEES POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS PROGRAM GASB NOS. 74 AND 75 DISCLOSURES CHANGE IN NET OPEB LIABILITY AND CONTRIBUTIONS MADE BY EMPLOYER (\$ IN 000'S) SERVICE EMPLOYEES INTERNATIONAL UNION (SEIU)

Fiscal Year Ending		June 30, 2017		June 30, 2018		June 30, 2019
Total OPEB Liability						
Service Cost	\$	1,378,943	\$	1,200,926	\$	1,078,364
Interest on Total OPEB Liability		1,134,584		1,275,886		1,201,673
Changes of Benefit Terms		-		-		
Difference between Expected and Actual Experience		-		(2,703,574)		(525,00)
Changes of Assumptions		(3,327,962)		(1,136,147)		1,213,33
Benefit Payments		(700,957)		(821,018)		(856,494
Net Change in Total OPEB Liability	\$	(1,515,392)	\$	(2,183,927)	\$	2,111,868
Total OPEB Liability - Beginning	\$	33,184,807	\$	31,669,415	\$	29,485,488
Total OPEB Liability - Ending (a)	\$	31,669,415	\$	29,485,488	\$	31,597,356
Plan Fiduciary Net Position						
Employer PayGO Contributions	\$	700,957	\$	821,018	\$	856,494
Employer Pre-Funding Contributions		-		-		71,71
Active Member Contributions		-		-		71,71
Net Investment Income		-		-		8,202
Benefit Payments		(700,957)		(821,018)		(856,494
Administrative Expense		-		-		(14
Other		-		-		
Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position	\$	-	\$	-	\$	151,612
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning	\$	-	\$	-	\$	
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending (b)	\$	-	\$	-	\$	151,612
Net OPEB Liability - Ending (a) - (b)	\$	31,669,415	\$	29,485,488	\$	31,445,744
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage Total OPEB Liability		0.000%		0.000%		0.480
Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC)	\$	1,569,195	\$	1,616,271	\$	1,525,833
Employer Contribution	\$	700,957	\$	821,018	\$	928,200
Percentage of ADC made by Employer	Ŧ	45%	Ŧ	51%	Ŧ	61
Contribution Excess/(Shortfall)	\$	(868,238)	\$	(795,253)	\$	(597,62
Expected Return on Assets	\$	-	\$	-	\$	4,93
Investment (Gain)/Loss	\$	-	\$	-	\$	(3,26
Average Expected Remaining Service	·	6.774713	·	7.091438	·	7.22006
Blended Discount Rate Beginning of Year		3.316%		3.930%		3.987
Blended Discount Rate End of Year		3.930%		3.987%		3.604
Long-term Expected Return on Assets		7.280%		7.000%		6.750



GASB NOS. 74 AND 75 DISCL OPEB EXPENSES AND NET OPEB LIABILITY S SERVICE EMPLOYEES INTERNATION	SENSITIVITY			
Measured for the Plan's Fiscal Year Ending Applicable for the Sponsor's Fiscal Year Ending		ine 30, 2018 ine 30, 2019		lune 30, 2019 lune 30, 2020
OPEB Expense				
Service Cost Interest on the Total OPEB Liability Current-Period Benefit Changes	\$	1,200,926 1,275,886 -	\$	1,078,364 1,201,673
Active Member Contributions Projected Earnings on Plan Investments		-		(71,712 (4,934
Operating Expenses Other Changes in Plan Fiduciary Net Position Recognition of Outflow/(Inflow) due to Non-investment Experience		- - (384,183)		14 - (456,898
Recognition of Outflow/(Inflow) due to Assumption Changes Recognition of Outflow/(Inflow) due to Investment Experience		(651,448)		(483,397 (654
Net OPEB Expense	\$	1,441,181	\$	1,262,456
Reconciliation of Net OPEB Liability				
Net OPEB Liability Beginning of Year OPEB Expense Employer Contributions Change in Outflow/(Inflow) due to Non-investment Experience Change in Outflow/(Inflow) due to Assumption Changes Change in Outflow/(Inflow) due to Investment Experience	\$	31,669,415 1,441,181 (821,018) (2,319,391) (484,699)	\$	29,485,483 1,262,456 (928,200 (68,109 1,696,729 (2,614
Net OPEB Liability End of Year	\$	29,485,488	\$	31,445,74
Deferred (Inflows) Non-investment Experience Assumption Changes Investment Experience	\$ \$ \$	(2,319,391) (3,321,427) -	\$ \$ \$	(2,387,500 (2,669,982 (2,614
Deferred Outflows Non-investment Experience Assumption Changes	\$ \$	-	\$ \$	- 1,045,282
Investment Experience	\$	-	\$	-
Net OPEB Liability Sensitivity				
Baseline Discount Rate Baseline Discount Rate and Trend Rates Increase Discount Rate by One Percentage Point	\$ \$	3.987% 29,485,488 25,317,045	\$ \$	3.604 31,445,744 26,978,518
Decrease Discount Rate by One Percentage Point Increase Trend Rate by One Percentage Point Decrease Trend Rate by One Percentage Point	\$ \$ \$	34,700,365 34,231,398 25,769,081	\$ \$ \$	37,038,555 37,595,20 26,649,96



			DE	FER	E EMPLOYEES P GASB NOS. 74 A RED INFLOWS A E EMPLOYEES IN	ND 75	DISCLOSURES	000'	'S)								
Valuation Date Measurement Date	6/30/2019 6/30/2019																
	No	n-In	vestment Experier	ce				Ass	umption Changes				Ir	ves	tment Experier	nce	
			Amortization		Initial				Amortization	Initial				A	Amortization		Initial
Plan Year Beginning	(Gain)/Loss		Factor	1	Amortization		(Gain)/Loss		Factor	Amortization		(Ga	ain)/Loss		Factor	Ar	nortization
7/1/2016	\$ -		6.774713		-	\$	(3,327,962)		6.774713	(491,233)		\$	-	\$	5.000000	\$	-
7/1/2017	\$ (2,703,574)		7.037205	\$	(384,183)	\$	(1,136,147)		7.091438	\$ (160,214)		\$	-		5.000000	\$	-
7/1/2018	\$ (525,007)		7.220061	\$	(72,715)	\$	1,213,332		7.220061	\$ 168,050		\$	(3,268)		5.000000	\$	(654)
Deferred Outflows/(Inflows) Recognized in OPEB Expense for Current Plan Year End	Outflows		(Inflows)		Net		Outflows		(Inflows)	Net		0	utflows		(Inflows)		Net
6/30/2019	\$ -	\$	(456,898)	\$	(456,898)	\$	168,050	\$	(651,447)	\$ (483,397)		\$	-	\$	(654)	\$	(654)
Deferred Outflows/(Inflows) Recognized in OPEB Expense for Future Plan Years Ending																	
6/30/2020	\$ -	\$	(456,898)	\$	(456,898)	\$	168,050	\$	(651,447)	\$ (483,397)		\$	-	\$	(654)	\$	(654)
6/30/2021	\$ -	\$	(456,898)	\$	(456,898)	\$	168,050	\$	(651,447)	\$ (483,397)		\$	-	\$	(654)	\$	(654)
6/30/2022	\$ -	\$	(456,898)	\$	(456,898)	\$	168,050	\$	(651,447)	\$ (483,397)		\$	-	\$	(654)	\$	(654)
6/30/2023	\$ -	\$	(456,898)	\$	(456,898)	\$	168,050	\$	(540,778)	\$ (372,728)		\$	-	\$	(652)	\$	(652
6/30/2024	\$ -	\$	(456,898)	\$	(456,898)	\$	168,050	\$	(160,214)	\$ 7,836		\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
6/30/2025	\$ -	\$	(87,008)	\$	(87,008)	\$	168,050	\$	(14,649)	\$ 153,401		\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
6/30/2026	\$ -	\$	(16,002)	\$	(16,002)	\$	36,982	\$	-	\$ 36,982		\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
6/30/2027	\$ -	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$ -		\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
6/30/2028	\$ -	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$ -	1	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
Total	\$ -	\$	(2,387,500)	\$	(2,387,500)	\$	1,045,282	\$	(2,669,982)	\$ (1,624,700)		\$	-	\$	(2,614)	\$	(2,614)
Change In Deferred Outflows/(Inflows) Recognized in Liability and Assets for Current Plan Year End																	
6/30/2019				\$	(68,109)					\$ 1,696,729						\$	(2,614)

